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Table 1: Glossary of the key definitions 
This glossary contains the definitions of the concepts used in the mapping. In addition the glossary provides 

an overview of the codes i.e. distinct letters, set of letters or signs, which have been assigned to the 

concepts used in the mapping.  

 

The overall concepts used in the mapping  

The overall concepts used in the mapping are defined below.  

 

An audit assignment of a SAI: is defined as the tasks which are to be performed by a SAI - or other public 

sector auditor - in accordance with a legal mandate in order to enable the SAI to express conclusions 

supported by sufficient appropriate evidence on whether public authorities or other publicly funded entities 

have observed requirements that follow from their responsibility for management of public funds and 

publicly funded activities. 

 

The scope of the mandate: is defined as the organizational units or scope of activities which should or can 

be audited according to the SAI mandate, e.g. the ―state accounts‖, ―execution of the budget‖, ―policy 

programs‖ or ―publicly owned companies‖. 

 

The conditions: is defined as any condition which determine to what extent the SAI can decide by its own 

discretions to undertake tasks of auditing within the scope of the mandate, e.g. ―should each year audit...‖, 

―may examine any matter which the SAI deems relevant to...‖, or  ―upon request from the…‖  

 

Other auditors: is defined as other auditors which the mandate of the SAI provide the SAI to perform some 

of its duties in corporation with. 

 

The subject: is defined as which conclusions should be expressed of the audit. Two subtypes has been 

identified 

- The subject matter: When expressing a conclusion concerning a subject matter the task of the SAI 

is to conclude whether a certain subject matter, like for instance internal controls, conforms to the 

applicable requirements (the audit criteria). It is thus the SAI that evaluates the subject matter 

against the criteria.  

- The subject matter information: When expressing a conclusion concerning subject matter 

information the task is to conclude whether the information provided by a party with responsibility for 

the management of public funds is reported in all material respects in accordance with an applicable 

reporting framework. In this case, the responsible management has evaluated the subject matter 

and is presenting the results in a report. 

 

The audit criteria: is defined as any identification of the kind of criteria the auditor should apply to the 

subject, e.g. ―effectiveness‖, ―principles of sound financial management‖, ―integrity‖ or ―law on the state 

accounting‖ or ―financial reporting standards‖.  

The audit criteria can be divided into two dimensions: 

- Branch of auditing: is defined as ―Financial auditing‖, ―Compliance auditing‖, ―Performance 

auditing‖ or ―other assignments‖, which are assignments that falls within the definition of a public 

auditing assignment but concerns other requirements than those characterizing financial, 

performance and compliance auditing. 

- Type of requirements: is defined as further requirements, which the SAI may or should take into 

consideration when auditing. These requirements can be divided into ―Process requirements‖, 



―Outcome requirements‖ and ―Reporting requirements‖. 

 

The type of conclusions: is defined as any identification of the kind of the result the SAI should aim to 

achieve through the audit. The type of conclusions can be subdivided into two categories: ―Conclusions 

expressing assurance‖ and ―Other types of conclusions used by SAIs‖ 

  

The reporting: is defined as any frequency and format which the reporting by SAI should take. 

 

The intended users: is defined as any bodies which are to make use of the reporting by the SAI. 

 

The concepts defined above can be divided into different distinctions. These distinctions have each been 

assigned a code i.e. a distinct letter, set of letters or signs, in order to make the mapping easier. These 

codes are written in front of the name of the distinction e.g. Fix - Fixed tasks. 

 

 

The scope of the mandate 

The scope of the mandate may be defined a different levels of aggregation, 

 

General distinction with regard to the scope 

P– The public sector in general 

N – National government (federal level) 

L – Regional or local level government (state, county, municipality) 

O – Organizational units further defined by the mandate (e.g. certain companies) 

A – Special bodies within the national system (e.g. the parliaments administration, the regents 

administration, political parties or the central bank) 

I – Individuals further defined by the mandate (e.g. individuals with responsibility for accounting) 

 

The mandate may further take different approaches when defining the boundaries of the scope of the audit, 

 

Supplementary distinctions  

o – ―Organizations belonging to…‖ 

l – ―Within the legal/ministerial responsibility of…‖ 

f – ―Activities financed by …‖ 

p – ―Policies, programs or laws belonging to..‖ 

c – ―Projects e.g. construction or IT carried out by…‖ 

b – ―Belonging to the budget of…‖/‖Implementation of the budget of…‖ 

t  – ―Transactions‖ or ―income and expenditure of ..‖ (including specific classes, e.g. taxes) 

s – ―Assets/property and/or liabilities/debt of..‖  (including specific classes, e.g. specified stocks or valuables)  

g – ―… which are receiving grants from a specified source‖  

a – ―The accounting by…‖ (where it relates to practices/systems and internal accounting reports)   

r – ―The financial statements or other reports of…‖  

 

  



The conditions and other auditors 

 

The scope of discretion left to the SAI  

 

Fix- Fixed tasks: are tasks of auditing of a certain subject, which a SAI or public audit authority is required 

to perform for each object within a certain interval in time. 

 

Dis- Discretionary tasks: are tasks of auditing which the SAI or public audit authority is required to initiate 

at its own discretion. The SAI or public audit authority may have discretion with regard to the choice of 

objects selected for auditing and/or the specific subject of the auditing task. Exercising this discretion 

involves professional judgments about the significance of auditing subjects (the extent to which the 

conclusions reached by an audit of the subject are likely to enhance the oversight, insight and foresight of 

the authorities exercising monitoring and corrective functions, or lead to improvements in the management of 

public funds).  

 

Req- Requested tasks: are tasks of auditing which the SAI or other public sector auditor is obliged to carry 

out upon request from specified bodies in order to facilitate the monitoring and corrective functions exercised 

by these bodies within the constitutional system. In each case the subject of the audit is determined by the 

request.  

 

Per-Tasks upon permission: Task of auditing (other than fixed and discretionary tasks) which the SAI may 

choose to carry out upon request or consent from certain bodies (intended users) specified in the mandate.   

 

Neg – Negotiated tasks: are tasks of auditing which the SAI or another public sector auditor has been 

engaged to carry out. The engagement is based on a mutually binding contract with a party, which has a 

responsibility for the management of public funds involved in the audited object.  In each case the subject 

and audit criteria are determined by the terms of the engagement.  

 

 

Provisions on tasks to be conducted in corporation with other auditors 

 

PAA – A public audit authority: is a permanently established body or audit function that has a general 

responsibility under public law for the public audit of a range of entities or other objects defined by their legal 

status, geographical location or the nature of the public funding. Public audit authorities act, by virtue of their 

office, under such obligations and responsibilities that follow from their auditing mandate. They observe the 

objectivity and neutrality that follow from the nature of their office and function.  

 

EA – Engaged external auditors: is an auditor or auditing firm that has been engaged by an agreement to 

undertake tasks that are part of an assignment of public audit. The engagement requires the acceptance of 

the engaged auditor as well as the other contracting party and may be ended by the contracting parties 

under agreed conditions. The obligations and responsibilities of engaged auditors arise from the terms of the 

agreement and the general professional authorisation that the auditor may have to undertake such 

engagements. This authorisation may include the observation of pronouncements by the International 

Federation of Accountants or other professional standards.  

 

IA – Internal auditors: is an auditor or audit unit which is established by those responsible for the 

management of public funds as described in more detail in [exposure draft] INTOSAI GOV 9140 and 9150.  



The fundamental auditing principles and implementation guidelines may be applied in total or in part by 

internal auditors in the conduct of their work as part of an established cooperation with a SAI or other public 

audit authority. 

 

The mapping does not aim to include all provisions on corporation with other auditors. But in cases where 

the mandate provides that important parts of the tasks described are to be performed by other auditors 

rather than the SAI this is noted.  

 

Post-audits and pre-audit 

During the conduct of the mapping it turned out that the distinction between pre-audits and post-audits 

needed to be clarified to be applicable to the audit assignments of SAIs. The distinction relates to a process 

in which those responsible decide on the acquisition, management and use of public funds and implement 

these decisions. Post-audits may be conducted at any stage in such processes. The subject of post-audits 

may be the steps already taken by those responsible for the management as well as current facts that may 

inform future decisions. An audit is considered to be a pre-audit if and only if legal requirements provide that 

specific decisions regarding the acquisition, transfer or use of public funds may not be taken or implemented 

unless the audit has resulted in a permissive conclusion.  

 

Where the mapping includes pre-audits these are noted in the “conditions” column:  

  

X – A pre-audit task:  Legal requirements provide that specific decisions regarding the acquisition, transfer 

or use of public funds may not be taken or implemented unless the audit has been conducted and have 

resulted in a permissive conclusion. 

 

 

The audit criteria and subject 

 

Branch of auditing 

 

F- Financial auditing:  is a branch of auditing where the audit criteria applied by the auditor are 

requirements that serve the purpose of ensuring reliable recording and reporting of historical financial 

information.  

 

P- Performance auditing: is a branch of auditing where the audit criteria applied by the auditor are 

requirements that serve the purpose of achieving economy, efficiency and effectiveness in publicly funded 

activities.    

 

C- Compliance auditing: is a branch of auditing where the audit criteria applied by the auditor are 

requirements that serve the purpose of ensuring that public funds are obtained and used in accordance with 

law and propriety. 

 

Z-Other: Assignments which falls within the definition of a public auditing assignment but concerns other 

requirements than those characterizing financial, performance and compliance auditing.  

 

 
  



Type of requirements 

 

P- Process requirements: are requirements relating to the processes and systems used in the 

management of public funds. This may include requirements to follow principles of sound financial 

management and take appropriate measures to ensure that public funds are obtained and used as intended. 

 

O-Outcome requirements: are requirements relating to the outcome that should be achieved as a result of 

the measures taken by those entrusted with the management of public funds. These may include 

requirements relating to how public funds should be obtained, how they should be used and the results that 

should be achieved through the funded activities. 

 

R-Reporting requirements: are requirements relating to the information to be reported by those responsible 

for the management of public funds. The information to be reported may concern the processes of 

management and the measures taken to ensure the intended outcome as well as the outcome achieved. 

This may be financial or non financial as well as historical or prospective information. 

 

Z-Other: Assignments which falls within the definition of a public auditing assignment but concerns other 

requirements than process, outcome or reporting requirements.  

 

Further: 

s- Specific subjects: The assignment concern only requirements to certain subjects which are specified in 

the mandate. 

 

 

The type of conclusions 

 

Conclusions expressing assurance 

 

A- Expression of assurance:  The purpose is to express an opinion which is designed to enhance the 

degree of confidence of the intended users that the subject of the audit is in accordance (in all material 

aspects) with (specific) audit criteria.   

 

Where possible this may be further defined as follows:  

 

rA – Expression of reasonable assurance 

lA – Expression of limited assurance 

Ai – Expression of assurance regarding information reported by those responsible for the management of 

public funds or publicly funded activities 

Am – Expression of assurance whether a certain subject matter is in accordance with the applicable 

requirements (Does not presuppose reporting of information by those responsible for the management of 

public funds or publicly funded activities) 

 

Other types of conclusions used by SAIs 

 

ASS - An assessment: is a set of conclusions supported by sufficient appropriate evidence in a style and 

format designed to provide for transparency and accountability in the management of public funds. 

Depending on the outcome of the audit, the conclusions may be of an affirmative or informative nature or 



point to the need to take action by expressing criticism of a past or current practice in the management of 

public funds, or provide recommendations on how management can be improved. The mandate may in 

some cases provide for a procedure according to which the SAI can follow-up on whether appropriate 

actions have been taken in light of the findings and recommendations.  

 

AI - An investigative audit: provides a set of conclusions supported by sufficient appropriate evidence as to 

whether identifiable individual persons have observed the requirements that follow from the responsibility 

they have by virtue of their office or actions for the management of public funds. The conclusions are 

designed to serve the purpose of taking a legal decision on corrective actions or measures to make those 

accountable accept responsibility, to obtain compensation, or to take other preventive steps (cf. ISSAI 

1/Principle 1). The legal decision may be a decision which is to be taken by the intended users or it may be a 

decision which is to be taken by the SAI or public audit authority itself, if in addition to its public auditing 

function it has such competencies.  

 

Combined conclusions 

 

Ass\A - Assessment with an expression of assurance: An assignment to produce a report which contains 

assessments as well as a statement of assurance. 

 

> CAss - Consolidated assessments: An assessment based on a range of audits. The consolidated 

assessment thus express general conclusions, which is partly or totally based on a range of audits which 

also result in an expression of assurance or legal decisions concerning each of the audited entities/financial 

statements/persons responsible. (―Digestion reports‖) 

 

>AI - Integrated investigative audits:  An audit investigation of a specific matter which may be launched as 

a result of observations made during the conduct of an assignment to provide a statement of assurance or 

an assessment.  

 

> Descision of decharge: is a formal decision taken by a body exercising monitoring and corrective 

functions within the constitutional system whereby a party with responsibility for management of public funds 

is granted discharge from responsibilities by virtue of the office related to a specific period in time.   

 

Decisions on discharge are taken on the basis on the results of performed auditing tasks. If the granting of 

discharge involves decisions concerning the responsibility of identifiable individual persons and may lead to 

corrective actions directed at the persons involved the auditing task will be an audit investigation. Decisions 

of discharge may also be taken on the basis of opinions by which the SAI express assurance to the 

appropriate body that the requirements relevant for the decision of discharge have been observed in all 

material aspects.  

 

(“>” – reads “which may or should further result in”) 

 

In cases where the mandate requires compliance with certain auditing standards this is specified. 

 

Provisions on Standards 

 

$ - Defined by standards decided by the SAI or by agreement by the SAI 

 



§ - Defined by standards not decided by the SAI (includes national standards and ―generally accepted 

standards‖) 

 

ISSAI –INTOSAI standards are to be followed 

 

IFAC –IFAC standards are explicitly referred to and are to be followed 

 

 
Reporting 

 

Frequency 

 

Y – Yearly/regularly: Reporting to intended users should be done at fixed terms, e.g. yearly. 

 

Ç - Ad hoc: Reporting to intended users should be done when the SAI deems it relevant.  

 

Format 

 

S- Short:  The content of the report is standardized e.g. by predefined headings/sections in order to keep it 

brief and recognizable.   

 

L- Long:  The format of the report is decided by the SAI and adapted according to the content and the 

individual circumstances. 

 

 
Intended users 

The mapping includes information on whether the intended users are mentioned in the mandate. 

 

Pa – Parliament or committee established by Parliament 

 

Go - Government (executive branch) 

 

Pr – The president 

 

He – Other head of state, e.g. a King, Queen or other  Regent 

 

Ge – The general public  

 

PAA –Other Public Auditing Authorities (Where the SAI has to report to such) 

 

O – The leadership of the audited organizations  

 

D – Donors financing audited activities (especially international donors or other donors from outside the 

jurisdiction in which the SAI operates)  

 

NB! In some cases it may be difficult to distinguish between intended users and procedures for informing 

those responsible for the management of public funds of the audit results and/or obtaining their comments as 



part of a procedure contradiction (or “natural justice”). In cases of doubt the presumption has been that 

bodies explicitly mentioned by the mandate are “intended users”.   

 

 

Other signs used 

The following additional signs have been used in the mapping to give further indications of the degree of 

flexibility of the mandates. 

 

(  ) Is not necessarily the only possibility (reflects current practice or is explicitly mentioned in the mandate)  

 

/    Can be either or    (while some other possibilities are excluded) 

 

Z   Other (used where the scope is specified in a way that falls outside the categorization used) 

 



Table 2: General overview of the assignments of the 31 selected SAIs  
 

ARABOSAI 

 

 

  

Scope Conditions and 
Other auditors 

Branch of auditing Type of 
requirements 

Type of conclusion Reporting Intended 
users 

Kingdom of Bahrain 
Assignment 1 Regulatory audit 
―Organizations belonging to‖ the 
public sector in general (Po) 
 
―The accounting by‖ special bodies 
within the national system‖ (As) 
 
―Transactions‖ or ―income and 
expenditure of‖ special bodies within 
the national system (At) 
 
Organizational units further defined by 
the mandate (O) 
 
Regional or local level government (L) 
 
―The accounting by‖ the public sector 
in general (Pa) 
 
―The financial statements or other 
reports of‖ the public sector in general 
(Pr) 
 

Fixed tasks (Fix) 
 
Engaged 
external auditors 
(EA) 

Financial auditing (F) 
 
Compliance auditing 
(C) 

Process 
requirements (P) 
 
Outcome 
requirements (O) 
 
Reporting 
requirements (R) 
 
Specific subjects 
(s) 

Expresseion of limited 
assurance (rA) 
 
Assessment  
(Ass) 

Yearly/regularly (Y) Other head of 
state (He) 
 
Parliament or 
committee 
established by 
Parliament 
(Pa) 
 
Government 
(executive 
branch) (Go) 
 
The 
leadership of 
the audited 
organizations 
(O) 
 

Assignment 2 Performance and Special Nature Assignments 
The public sector in general (P) 
 
Organizations belonging to  
- special bodies within the national 
system  
- regional or local level government 
(oAL) 
 
Organizational units further defined by 
the mandate (O) 

Discretionary 
tasks (Dis) 
 
Task upon 
permission (Per) 
 
Engaged 
external auditors 
(EA) 
 
 

Compliance auditing 
(C) 
 
Performance audition 
(P) 

Process 
requirements (P) 
 
Outcome 
requirements (O) 
 
Reporting 
requirements (R) 
 
Specific subjects 
(s) 

Assessment (Ass) Yearly/regularly (Y) 
 
Ad hoc (Ç) 
 

Other head of 
state (He) 
 
Parliament or 
committee 
established by 
Parliament 
(Pa) 
 
Government 
(executive 
branch) (Go) 
 
The 
leadership of 
the audited 
organizations 
(O) 
 

Assignment 3 Financial Violations 
The public sector in general (P) 
 
Organizations belonging to  
- Special bodies within the national 
system 
- Regional and local level government 
- Organizational units further defined 
by the mandate  
(oALO) 

Discretionary 
tasks (Dis) 
 
Tasks upon 
permission (Per) 
 
Engaged 
external auditors 
(EA) 

Compliance auditing 
(C) 

Process 
requirements (P) 
 
Reporting 
requirements (R) 
 
Specific subjects 
(s) 

Investigative audits 
(AI) 
 
Integrated 
investigative audits 
(>AI) 

Yearly/regularly (Y) 
 
Ad hoc (Ç) 

Other head of 
state (He) 
 
Parliament or 
committee 
established by 
Parliament 
(Pa) 
 
Government 
(executive 
branch) (Go) 
 
The 
leadership of 
the audited 
organizations 
(O) 
 

Assignment 4 Construction Projects 
Projects e.g. construction or IT carried 
out by... (c) 
 

Discretionary 
tasks (Dis) 
 
Tasks upon 
permission (Per) 
 
Engaged 
external auditor 
(EA) 
 

Financial auditing (F) 
 
Performance auditing 
(P) 
 
Compliance auditing 
(C) 

Outcome 
requirements (O) 
 
Process 
requirements (P) 

Assessment (Ass) Ad hoc (Ç) Other head of 
state (He) 
 
Parliament or 
committee 
established by 
Parliament 
(Pa) 
 
Government 
(executive 
branch) (Go) 
 
The 
leadership of 
the audited 
organizations 
(O) 



Scope Conditions and 
Other auditors 

Branch of auditing Type of 
requirements 

Type of conclusion Reporting Intended 
users 

Kuwait 
Assignment 1: Compliance, performance, and special assignments   
The public sector in general (P) 
 
Regional or local level government (L) 
 
Organizational units further defined by 
the mandate (O) 

Fixed tasks (Fix) 
 
A pre-audit task 
(X) 

Financial auditing (F) 
 
Compliance auditing 
(C) 

Process 
requirements (P) 
 
Specific subjects 
(s) 

Consolidated 
assessments (>Cass) 
 
Expression of 
assurance whether a 
certain subject matter 
is in accordance with 
the applicable 
requirements (Does 
not presuppose 
reporting information 
by those responsible 
for the management 
of public funds or 
public funded 
activities (Am) 
 
Assessment  (Ass) 
 
 

Yearly/regularly (Y) Other head of 
state (He) 
 
Parliament or 
committee 
established by 
Parliament 
(Pa) 
 
Government 
(executive 
branch) (Go) 
 
The 
leadership of 
the audited 
organizations 
(O) 

Assignment 2:   Supply and public work tenders 
Projects e.g. construction or IT carried 
out by... (c) 
 

A pre-audit task 
(X) 
 
Requested tasks 
(Req) 

Compliance auditing 
(C) 

Process 
requirements (P) 
 

Expression of 
assurance whether a 
certain subject matter 
is in accordance with 
the applicable 
requirements (Does 
not presuppose 
reporting information 
by those responsible 
for the management 
of public funds or 
public funded 
activities (Am) 
 

Ad hoc (Ç) The 
leadership of 
the audited 
organizations 
(O) 

Assignment 3:  Materials entrusted to and operations in the public stores and warehouses   
―Assets/property and/or liabilities/debt 
of the public sector in general  (sP) 

Discretionary 
tasks (Dis) 

Compliance auditing 
(C) 

Process 
requirements (P) 
 

Assessment  (Ass) Ad hoc (Ç) Other head of 
state (He) 
 
Parliament or 
committee 
established by 
Parliament 
(Pa) 
 
Government 
(executive 
branch) (Go) 
 
The 
leadership of 
the audited 
organizations 
(O) 
 

Assignment 4: Embezzlement, Negligence and Financial contravention   
The public sector in general (P) 
 
Regional or local level government (L) 
 
Organizational units further defined by 
the mandate (O) 
 

Discretionary 
tasks (Dis) 

Compliance auditing 
(C) 

Process 
requirements (P) 
 
Specific subjects 
(s) 

Investigative audits 
(AI) 

Ad hoc (Ç) (Other head of 
state (He)) 
 
Parliament or 
committee 
established by 
Parliament 
(Pa) 
 
Government 
(executive 
branch) (Go) 
 
The 
leadership of 
the audited 
organizations 
(O) 
 

Assignment 5: Final accounts of the financial year ended 
The accounting by the public sector in 
general (Pa) 
 
The financial statements or other 
reports of the public sector in general 
(Pr) 
 
The accounting by organizational units 
further defined by the mandate (Oa) 
 
The financial statements or other 
reports of organizational units further 
defined by the mandate  
(Or) 
 

Fixed tasks (Fix) 
 
Discretionary 
tasks (Dis) 

Financial auditing (F) Process 
requirements (P) 
 
Reporting 
requirements (R) 
 

Assessment  (Ass) Yearly/regularly (Y) 
 
Ad hoc (Ç) 

Other head of 
state (He) 
 
Parliament or 
committee 
established by 
Parliament 
(Pa) 
 
Government 
(executive 
branch) (Go) 
 
The 
leadership of 
the audited 
organizations 
(O) 
 

Assignment 6: Companies and Establishments   
The accounting by organizational units 
further defined by the mandate (Oa) 
 
The financial statements or other 
reports of organizational units further 
defined by the mandate  
(Or) 
 

Fixed tasks (Fix) Financial auditing (F) Reporting 
requirements (R) 
 

Assessment  (Ass) Yearly/regularly (Y) 
 

Government 
(executive 
branch) (Go) 
 
The 
leadership of 
the audited 
organizations 
(O) 
 



 

 
  

Assignment 7: Assignments from the National Assembly or the Council of Ministers   
The public sector in general (P) 
 
Organizational units further defined by 
the mandate (O) 

Requested tasks 
(Req) 

Financial auditing (F) 
 
Performance auditing 
(P) 
 
Compliance auditing 
(C) 

Process 
requirements (P) 
 
Outcome 
requirements (O) 
 
Reporting 
requirements (R) 
 

Assessment  (Ass) 
 
Investigative audits 
(AI) 

Ad hoc (Ç) Parliament or 
committee 
established by 
Parliament 
(Pa) 
 
Government 
(executive 
branch) (Go) 
 

Assignment 8: Financial deviations    
The public sector in general (P) 
 
Regional or local level government (L) 
 
Organizational units further defined by 
the mandate (O) 
 

Discretionary 
tasks (Dis) 

Compliance auditing 
(C) 

Process 
requirements (P) 
 
Specific subjects 
(s) 

Investigative audits 
(AI) 

Ad hoc (Ç) 
 

Other head of 
state (He) 
 
Parliament or 
committee 
established by 
Parliament 
(Pa) 
 
Government 
(executive 
branch) (Go) 
 
The 
leadership of 
the audited 
organizations 
(O) 
 



 
  

Scope Conditions and 
Other auditors 

Branch of auditing Type of 
requirements 

Type of conclusion Reporting Intended 
users 

Kingdom of Saudi Arabia 
Assignment 1: Financial, Compliance and Performance 
The public sector in general (P) 
 
Regional or local level government (L) 
 
Organizational units further defined by 
the mandate (O) 
 

Fixed tasks (Fix) 
 
Discretionary 
tasks (Dis) 

Financial auditing (F) 
 
Performance auditing 
(P) 
 
Compliance auditing 
(C) 

Process 
requirements (P) 
 
Outcome 
requirements (O) 
 
Specific subjects 
(s) 

Assessment  (Ass) 
 

Yearly/regularly (Y) 
 
Ad hoc (Ç) 
 

Other head of 
state (He) 
 
Government 
(executive 
branch) (Go) 
 
The 
leadership of 
the audited 
organizations 
(O) 
 

Assignment 2: Financial & Accounting Violations 
The public sector in general (P) 
 
Regional or local level government (L) 
 
Organizational units further defined by 
the mandate (O) 
 

Discretionary 
tasks (Dis) 

Compliance auditing 
(C) 

Process 
requirements (P) 
 
Specific subjects 
(s) 

Integrated 
investigative audits 
(>AI)  
 

Yearly/regularly (Y) 
 
Ad hoc (Ç) 
 

Government 
(executive 
branch) (Go) 
 
The 
leadership of 
the audited 
organizations 
(O) 
 

Assignment 3: Audit of Private Corporations & Companies    
Organizational units further defined by 
the mandate (O) 
 

Fixed tasks (Fix) 
 
Engaged 
external auditor 
(EA) 
 

Financial auditing (F) 
 
Performance auditing 
(P) 
 
Compliance auditing 
(C) 

Process 
requirements (P) 
 
Outcome 
requirements (O) 
 
Reporting 
requirements (R) 

Assessment  (Ass) 
 
Expression of 
reasonable assurance 
(rA) 

Yearly/regularly (Y) 
 

Other head of 
state (He) 
 
Government 
(executive 
branch) (Go) 
 
The 
leadership of 
the audited 
organizations 
(O) 
 



 
  

Scope Conditions and 
Other auditors 

Branch of auditing Type of 
requirements 

Type of conclusion Reporting Intended 
users 

Republic of Tunisia 
Assignment 1: Jurisdictional audit (financial  audit) 
National government (N) 
 
Regional or local level government (L) 
 
Organizational units further defined by 
the mandate (O) 
 
Individuals further defined by the 
mandate (I) 

Fixed tasks (Fix) Financial auditing (F) 
 
Compliance auditing 
(C) 

Process 
requirements (P) 
 

Investigative audits 
(AI) which may result 
in a decision of 
discharge (>Des) 

Yearly/regularly (Y) 
 
Ad hoc (Ç) 
 

Government 
(executive 
branch) (Go) 
 
Parliament or 
committee 
established by 
parliament 
(Pa) 
 
The president 
(Pr) 

Assignment 2:  Management audit ( regularity and performance audit) 
National government (N) 
 
Regional or local level government (L) 
 
Organizational units further defined by 
the mandate (O) 
 

Discretionary 
tasks (Dis) 

Financial auditing (F) 
 
Performance auditing 
(P) 
 
Compliance auditing 
(C) 

Process 
requirements (P) 
 
Outcome 
requirements (O) 
 

Assessment  (Ass)  Yearly/regularly (Y) 
 

The 
leadership of 
the audited 
organizations 
(O) 
 
Parliament or 
committee 
established by 
parliament 
(Pa) 
 
The president 
(Pr) 
 
Government 
(executive 
branch) (Go) 

Assignment 3: Evaluating the results of the economic or financial aid granted to private entities 
―...which are receiving grants from a 
specified source (g) 

Discretionary 
tasks (Dis) 

Performance auditing 
(P) 
 
Compliance auditing 
(C) 

Process 
requirements (P) 
 
Outcome 
requirements (O) 
 
Specific subjects 
(s) 

Assessment  (Ass)  
 

Yearly/regularly (Y) 
 

The 
leadership of 
the audited 
organizations 
(O) 
 
Parliament or 
committee 
established by 
parliament 
(Pa) 
 
The president 
(Pr) 
 
Government 
(executive 
branch) (Go) 

Assignment 4:  Audit of political parties 
Special bodies within the national 
system (A) 

Fixed tasks (Fix) Financial auditing (F) Reporting 
requirements (R) 

Assessment  (Ass)  
 
Expression of 
assurance whether a 
certain subject matter 
is in accordance with 
the applicable 
requirements (Does 
not presuppose 
reporting information 
by those responsible 
for the management 
of public funds or 
public funded 
activities (Am) 
 

Yearly/regularly (Y) 
 

The president 
(Pr) 
 
The 
leadership of 
the audited 
organizations 
(O) 
 



ASOSAI 

 

 
  

Scope Conditions and 
Other auditors 

Branch of auditing Type of 
requirements 

Type of conclusion Reporting Intended 
users 

China 
Assignment 1: General auditing   
―Transactions‖ or ―income and 
expenditure of‖ the national 
government (Nt) 
 
―Transactions‖ or ―income and 
expenditure of‖ the regional or local 
level government (Lt) 
 
―Belonging to the budget 
of...‖/‖Implementation of the budget of‖ 
organizational units further defined by 
the mandate (Ob) 
 
―The accounting by‖ organizational 
units further defined by the mandate 
(Oa) 
 
―Transactions‖ or ―income and 
expenditure of‖ organizational units 
further defined by the mandate (Ot) 
 
―Assets/property and/or liabilities debt 
of‖ special bodies within the national 
system (As) 
 
―Transactions‖ or ―income and 
expenditure of‖ organizational units 
further defined by the mandate (At) 
 
―Assets/property and/or liabilities debt 
of‖ organizational units further defined 
by the mandate (Os) 
 
Organizational units further defined by 
the mandate ―which are receiving 
grants from a specified source (Og) 
 
―Policies, programs or laws belonging 
to‖ organizational units further defined 
by the mandate (Op) 
 

Fixed tasks (Fix) (Compliance auditing 
(C)) 
 
(Performance auditing 
(P)) 
 
Other (Z) 

(Outcome 
requirements 
(O)) 

Can either be an 
assessment (Ass) or 
an assessment with 
an expression of 
assurance (Ass/A) 
which may or should 
further result in 
Integrated 
investigative audits 
(>AI) 

Yearly/regularly (Y) (Parliament or 
committee 
established by 
Parliament 
(Pa)) 
 
(Government 
(executive 
branch) 
(Go))? 

Assignment 2: Supervision of Individuals 
Individuals further defined by the 
mandate (I) 
 

 Compliance auditing 
(C) 

 Investigative audits 
(AI) 

  

Assignment 3: Special reports 
―Transactions‖ or ―income and 
expenditure of‖ the national 
government (Nt) 
 

Discretionary 
tasks (Dis) 

(Compliance auditing 
(C)) 
 
(Performance auditing 
(P)) 

Outcome 
requirements (O) 

Assessment (Ass) 
which may or should 
further result in 
Integrated 
investigative audits 
(>AI) 
 

Ad hoc (Ç) Government 
(executive 
branch) (Go) 



 
  

Scope Conditions and 
Other auditors 

Branch of auditing Type of 
requirements 

Type of conclusion Reporting Intended 
users 

Japan 
Assignment 1  
―The financial statement or other 
reports of‖ the national government 
(Nr) 
 
―The accounting by‖ the national 
government (Na) 
 
―Transactions‖ or ―income and 
expenditure of‖ the national 
government (Nt) 
 
―Assets/property and/or liabilities debt 
of‖ the national government (Ns) 
 
―Transactions‖ or ―income and 
expenditure of‖ organizational units 
further defined by the mandate (At) 
 
―The accounting by‖ organizational 
units further defined by the mandate 
(Oa) 
 

Fixed tasks (Fix) Financial auditing (F) 
 
Compliance auditing 
(C) 
 
Performance auditing 
(P) 
 
(Other (Z)) 

 (Assessment with an 
expression of 
assurance (Ass/A)) 
which may or should 
further result in an 
assessment (>Ass) 

Yearly/regularly (Y) 
 
Ad hoc (Ç) 

Parliament or 
committee 
established by 
Parliament 
(Pa) 

Assignment 2 
‖Within the legal/ministerial 
responsibility of‖ the national 
government (NI) 
 
―Assets/property and/or liabilities debt 
of‖ the national government (Ns) 
 
―Transactions‖ or ―income and 
expenditure of‖ the national 
government (Nt) 
 
‖Activities financed by‖ the national 
government (Nf) 
 
Organizational units further defined by 
the mandate ―which are receiving 
grants from a specified source (Og) 
 
―The accounting by‖ organizational 
units further defined by the mandate 
(Oa) 
 
Other (Z) 
 

Discretionary 
tasks (Dis) 
 
Requested tasks 
(Req) 

Financial auditing (F) 
 
Compliance auditing 
(C) 
 
Performance auditing 
(P) 
 
Other (Z) 

    



OLACEFS 

 

 
  

Scope Conditions and 
Other auditors 

Branch of auditing Type of 
requirements 

Type of conclusion Reporting Intended 
users 

Argentina 
Assignment 1  
―The accounting by‖ the national 
government (Na) 

 Financial auditing (F) 
 
Compliance auditing 
(C) 
 
Performance auditing 
(P) 
 

 Assessment (Ass)  Parliament or 
committee 
established by 
Parliament 
(Pa) 

Assignment 2  
  Financial auditing (F) 

 
Compliance auditing 
(C) 
 
Performance auditing 
(P) 
 

 (Expression of 
assurance (A)) 

 Parliament or 
committee 
established by 
Parliament 
(Pa) 

Assignment 3  
―Activities finances by‖ organizational 
units further defined by the mandate 
(Of) 
 

      

Assignment 4  
―Assets/property and/or liabilities/debt 
of‖ the public sector in general (Ps) 
 

   (Expression of 
assurance (A)) 

  



 

 
  

Scope Conditions and 
Other auditors 

Branch of auditing Type of 
requirements 

Type of conclusion Reporting Intended 
users 

Chile 
Assignment 1  
The public sector in general (P) 
 

 Financial auditing (F) 
 
Compliance auditing 
(C) 
 
 

(Process 
requirements 
(P)) 
 
(Reporting 
requirements 
(R)) 

Expression of 
assurance regarding 
information reported 
by those responsible 
for the management 
of public funds or 
public funded 
activities (AI) 
 

  



 
  

Scope Conditions and 
Other auditors 

Branch of auditing Type of 
requirements 

Type of conclusion Reporting Intended 
users 

Columbia 
Assignment 1  
    (Assessment (Ass)) 

 
  

Assignment 2  
  (Performance auditing 

(P)) 
 

    

Assignment 3  
  Compliance auditing 

(C) 
 
Performance auditing 
(P) 
 

Outcome 
requirements (O) 

Assessment (Ass)   

Assignment 4  
―The financial statements or other 
reports of‖ organizational units further 
defined by the mandate (Or) 

 Financial auditing (F)  (Expression of 
assurance regarding 
information reported 
by those responsible 
for the management 
of public funds or 
public funded 
activities (AI)) 
 

  



 

 
  

Scope Conditions and 
Other auditors 

Branch of auditing Type of 
requirements 

Type of conclusion Reporting Intended 
users 

Mexico 
Assignment 1  
National government (N) 
 
Regional or local level government (L) 
 
Individuals further defined by the 
mandate (I) 
 
―Transactions‖ or ―income and 
expenditure of‖ the public sector in 
general (Pt) 
 
―The accounting by‖ the public sector 
in general (Pa) 
 
―Policies, programs or laws belonging 
to‖ the public sector in general (Pp) 
 

Fixed tasks (Fix)   Assessment with an 
expression of 
assurance (Ass\A) 

  

Assignment 2  
―The accounting by‖ the national 
government (Na) 
 

 Compliance auditing 
(C) 
 
Performance auditing 
(P) 

Outcome 
requirements (O) 

Assessment (Ass)  Parliament or 
committee 
established by 
Parliament 
(Pa) 
 

Assignment 3  
The public sector in general (P) 
 

 Compliance auditing 
(C) 
 
Performance auditing 
(P) 
 

(Outcome 
requirements 
(O)) 

  Parliament or 
committee 
established by 
Parliament 
(Pa) 
 

Assignment 4  
The public sector in general (P) 
 

Discretionary 
tasks (Dis) 

Compliance auditing 
(C) 
 
Performance auditing 
(P) 
 

    

Assignment 5 

National government (N) 
 
Regional or local level government (L) 
 
Organizational units further defined by 
the mandate (O) 
 
Individual further defined by the 
mandate (I) 
 

   Expression of 
assurance regarding 
information reported 
by those responsible 
for the management 
of public funds or 
public funded 
activities (AI) 

  

Assignment 6 

    Expression of 
assurance regarding 
information reported 
by those responsible 
for the management 
of public funds or 
public funded 
activities (AI) 
 

  



 
  

Scope Conditions and 
Other auditors 

Branch of auditing Type of 
requirements 

Type of conclusion Reporting Intended 
users 

Panama 
Assignment 1  
The public sector in general (P)  Compliance auditing 

(C) 
 
Performance auditing 
(P) 

 Expression of 
assurance (A) which 
may or should further 
result in Integrated 
investigative audits 
(>AI) 
 

 The general 
public (Ge) 

Assignment 2  
―The accounting by‖ the national 
government (Na) 
 

  (Process 
requirements 
(P)) 
 

   

Assignment 3  
       

Assignment 4  
National government (N) 
 
Regional or local level government (L) 
 

A pre-audit task 
(X) 

     



PASAI 

Scope Conditions and 
Other auditors 

Branch of auditing Type of 
requirements 

Type of conclusion Reporting Intended 
users 

Federated States of Micronesia  
Assignment 1: Financial Audits 
Organizational units further defined by 
the mandate (O) 
 
―Activities financed by‖ the national 
government‖ (Nf) 
 
Organizational units ―which are 
receiving grants from a specified 
source (Og) 
 

Discretionary 
tasks (Dis) 

Financial auditing (F) Reporting 
requirements (R) 
 
Process 
requirements (P) 

Expression of 
assurance (A) 
 
Assessment (Ass) 
(which may or should 
further result in 
consolidated 
assessments (> 
CAss)) 

Yearly/regularly (Y) 
 

The general 
public (Ge) 
 
The president 
(Pr) 
 
Parliament or 
committee 
established by 
Parliament 
(Pa) 
 
The 
leadership of 
the audited 
organizations 
(O) 
 
Donors 
financing 
audited 
activities (D) 
 

Assignment 2: Performance Audits 
Organizational units further defined by 
the mandate (O) 
 

Discretionary 
tasks (Dis) 

Compliance auditing 
(C) 
 
Performance auditing 
(P) 
 

(Outcome 
requirements 
(O)) 

Can be either 
expression of 
assurance (A) 
or assessment (Ass) 

Ad hoc (Ç) 
Long format (L) 

The general 
public (Ge) 
 
The president 
(Pr) 
 
Parliament or 
committee 
established by 
Parliament 
(Pa) 
 
The 
leadership of 
the audited 
organizations 
(O) 
 

Assignment 3: Single Audits   
The public sector in general (P) 
 
The national government (Na) 
 
―The financial statements or other 
reports of‖ special bodies within the 
national system (Ar) 
 

Engaged 
external auditors 
(EA) 

Financial auditing (F) Reporting 
requirements (R) 
 

Defined by standards 
decided by the SAI or 
by agreement by the 
SAI ($) 
 
(Expression of 
assurance (A)) 

Yearly/regularly (Y) 
Long format (L) 

The general 
public (Ge) 
 
The president 
(Pr) 
 
Parliament or 
committee 
established by 
Parliament 
(Pa) 
 
The 
leadership of 
the audited 
organizations 
(O) 
 
Donors 
financing 
audited 
activities (D) 
 

Assignment 4: Inspection 
―Organizations belonging to‖ the 
national government and ―which are 
receiving grants from a specified 
source‖ (Nog) 
 

Requested tasks 
(Req) 
 
Discretionary 
tasks (Dis) 

Compliance auditing 
(C) 
 
Performance auditing 
(P) 

(Process 
requirements 
(P)) 

(Assessment (Ass)) Yearly/regularly (Y) 
 
Ad hoc (Ç) 
 

The general 
public (Ge) 
 
The president 
(Pr) 
 
Parliament or 
committee 
established by 
Parliament 
(Pa) 
 
The 
leadership of 
the audited 
organizations 
(O) 
 
Donors 
financing 
audited 
activities (D) 
 

Assignment 5: Investigations 
―Organizations belonging to‖ the 
national government and ―which are 
receiving grants from a specified 
source‖ (Nog) 
 

Discretionary 
tasks (Dis) 

Compliance auditing 
(C) 
 

Other (Z) Investigative audits 
(AI) 

Ad hoc (Ç) 
Long format (L) 
 

Government 
(executive 
branch) (Go) 
 
The 
leadership of 
the audited 
organizations 
(O) 



 

 
  

                                                      
1
 Current practice 

Scope Conditions and 
Other auditors 

Branch of auditing Type of 
requirements 

Type of conclusion Reporting Intended 
users 

New Zealand 
Assignment 1: Financial Report Audits   
―The accounting by‖ the public sector 
in general (Pa) 
 
―The financial statements or other 
reports of‖ the public sector in general 
(Pr) 

Fixed tasks (Fix) Financial auditing (F) 
 
Compliance auditing 
(C) 
 
Performance auditing 
(P) 

Reporting 
requirements (R) 

Defined by standards 
decided by the SAI or 
by agreement by the 
SAI ($) 
 
(Expression of 
reasonable assurance 
(rA)) 
 
Which may or should 
further result in 
consolidated 
assessments (>Cass) 
 

Ad hoc (Ç) 
 
Yearly/regularly (Y) 
 

The general 
public (Ge) 
 
Government 
(executive 
branch) (Go) 
 
Parliament or 
committee 
established by 
Parliament 
(Pa) 
 

Assignment 2: Performance Audits   
―Organizations belonging to‖ the 
public sector in general (Po) 

Discretionary 
tasks (Dis) 

Compliance auditing 
(C) 
 
Performance auditing 
(P) 

Outcome 
requirements (O) 
 
Process 
requirements (P) 

Defined by standards 
decided by the SAI or 
by agreement by the 
SAI ($) 
 
(Assessment (Ass)) 
 

Ad hoc (Ç) 
 
Yearly/regularly (Y) 
 

The general 
public (Ge) 
 
Government 
(executive 
branch) (Go) 
 
Parliament or 
committee 
established by 
Parliament 
(Pa) 
 

Assignment 3: Inquiries 
―Organizations belonging to‖ the 
public sector in general (Po) 
 

Requested tasks 
(Req) 
 
Discretionary 
tasks (Dis) 

Compliance auditing 
(C) 
 
Performance auditing 
(P) 

Process 
requirements (P) 

(Defined by standards 
decided by the SAI or 
by agreement by the 
SAI ($)) 
 
(Investigative audits 
(AI)) 
 

Ad hoc (Ç) The general 
public (Ge) 
 
Government 
(executive 
branch) (Go) 
 
Parliament or 
committee 
established by 
Parliament 
(Pa) 
 

Assignment 4: Other auditing services   
―Organizations belonging to‖ the 
public sector in general (Po) 
 

Negotiated tasks 
(Neg) 

Compliance auditing 
(C) 
 
Other (Z) 
 

Process 
requirements (P) 

(Defined by standards 
decided by the SAI or 
by agreement by the 
SAI ($)) 
 

Ad hoc (Ç) 
 

The 
leadership of 
the audited 
organizations 
(O) 
 

Assignment 5: Appropriation Audit and Controller Function 
―Transactions‖ or ―income and 
expenditure of‖ the national 
government (Nt) 
 
―The financial statements or other 
reports of‖ the national government 
(Nr) 
 
―Belonging to the budget 
of‖/‖Implementation of the budget of‖ 
the national government (Nb) 
 

Fixed tasks (Fix) Compliance auditing 
(C) 
 

Process 
requirements (P) 
 
Reporting 
requirements (R) 

Defined by standards 
decided by the SAI or 
by agreement by the 
SAI ($) 
 

Yearly/regularly (Y) The general 
public (Ge) 
 
Government 
(executive 
branch) (Go) 
 
Parliament or 
committee 
established by 
Parliament 
(Pa) 
 

Assignment 6: Audit of Long Term Council Community Plans of local government authorities (10- year plans of local 
government authorities) 
―Policies, programs or laws belonging 
to‖ the regional or local level 
government (Lp) 
 
―The financial statements or other 
reports of‖ the regional or local level 
government (Lr) 
 

Fixed tasks (Fix) Financial auditing (F) 
 
Compliance auditing 
(C) 
 
Performance auditing 
(P) 

Process 
requirements (P) 
 
Reporting 
requirements (R) 

Defined by standards 
decided by the SAI or 
by agreement by the 
SAI ($) 
 
(Expression of 
reasonable assurance 
(rA)) 
 

(Yearly/regularly 
(Y)) 

The general 
public (Ge) 
 
Government 
(executive 
branch) (Go) 
 
Parliament or 
committee 
established by 
Parliament 
(Pa) 
 

Assignment 7: Other Work  (Administration of the Local Authorities (Members‟ Interests) Act 1968 )
1
 

Regional or local level government (L) Fixed tasks (Fix) Compliance auditing 
(C) 

Process 
requirements (P) 
 

Investigative audits 
(AI) 

Ad hoc (Ç) The general 
public (Ge) 
 
The 
leadership of 
the audited 
organizations 
(O) 
 



 
  

Scope Conditions and 
Other auditors 

Branch of auditing Type of 
requirements 

Type of conclusion Reporting Intended 
users 

Papua New Guinea 
Assignment 1: Audits of public accounts   
―The accounting by‖ the public sector 
in general (Pa) 
 
―The financial statements or other 
reports of‖ the public sector in general 
(Pr) 
 

(Fixed tasks 
(Fix)) 
 
Discretionary 
tasks (Dis) 
 

Financial auditing (F) 
 
Compliance auditing 
(C) 
 
Performance auditing 
(P) 
 

Process 
requirements (P) 
 
Outcome 
requirements (O) 
 
Reporting 
requirements (R) 
 

(Expression of 
assurance (A)) which 
may or should further 
result in Integrated 
investigative audits 
(>AI) 
 

Yearly/regularly (Y) 
 
Ad hoc (Ç) 
 

The general 
public (Ge) 
 
Government 
(executive 
branch) (Go) 
 
Parliament or 
committee 
established by 
Parliament 
(Pa) 
 

Assignment 2: Audits of National Government Departments   
―Organizations belonging to‖ the 
national government (No) 
 

Discretionary 
tasks (Dis) 
 
Engaged 
external auditors 
(EA) 

Financial auditing (F) 
 
Compliance auditing 
(C) 
 
Performance auditing 
(P) 

Process 
requirements (P) 
 
Outcome 
requirements (O) 
 

 Yearly/regularly (Y) 
 
Ad hoc (Ç) 
 

The general 
public (Ge) 
 
Government 
(executive 
branch) (Go) 
 
Parliament or 
committee 
established by 
Parliament 
(Pa) 
 

Assignment 3: Audits of Provincial Government 
Regional or local level government (L) 
 

A public audit 
authority (PAA) 
 
Engaged 
external auditors 
(EA) 
 

Financial auditing (F) 
 
Compliance auditing 
(C) 
 
Performance auditing 
(P) 

Process 
requirements (P) 
 
Reporting 
requirements (R) 

(Expression of 
assurance (A) which 
may or should further 
result in consolidated 
assessments (>Cass)) 

(Yearly/regularly 
(Y)) 
 

Government 
(executive 
branch) (Go) 
 
Parliament or 
committee 
established by 
Parliament 
(Pa) 
 

Assignment 4: Audits of Public Bodies   
Organizational units further defined by 
the mandate (O) 
 

Fixed tasks (Fix) 
 
(Engaged 
external auditors 
(EA)) 
 

Financial auditing (F) Reporting 
requirements (R) 

Expression of 
assurance (A) 

Yearly/regularly (Y) 
 
Ad hoc (Ç) 
 

The general 
public (Ge) 
 
(Government 
(executive 
branch) (Go)) 
 
Parliament or 
committee 
established by 
Parliament 
(Pa) 
 

Assignment 5: Miscellaneous provisions 
―Activities financed by‖ the public 
sector in general (Pf) 

Discretionary 
tasks (Dis) 
 
Engaged 
external auditors 
(EA) 

Performance auditing 
(P) 

Process 
requirements (P) 
 
Outcome 
requirements (O) 
 

(Assessment (Ass)) 
 
Investigative audits 
(AI) 

Ad hoc (Ç) 
 

The general 
public (Ge) 
 
Government 
(executive 
branch) (Go) 
 
Parliament or 
committee 
established by 
Parliament 
(Pa) 
 
Donors 
financing 
audited 
activities (D) 
 



North America 

 

 
  

Scope Conditions and 
Other auditors 

Branch of auditing Type of 
requirements 

Type of conclusion Reporting Intended 
users 

Canada 
Assignment 1:   Legislative auditing 
―The financial statements or other 
reports of‖ the national government 
(Nr) 
 
―The financial statements or other 
reports of‖ organizational units further 
defined by the mandate (Or) 

Fixed tasks (Fix) 
 
Requested tasks 
(Req) 

Financial auditing (F) 
 
Compliance auditing 
(C) 
 
Performance auditing 
(P) 
 
Other (Z) 

Process 
requirements (P) 
 
Outcome 
requirements (O) 
 
Reporting 
requirements (R) 

Expression of 
assurance (A) which 
may or should further 
result in consolidated 
assessments (>Cass) 

Yearly/regularly (Y) 
 
Ad hoc (Ç) 

Parliament or 
committee 
established by 
Parliament 
(Pa) 

Assignment 2: Inquires  of improper retention of public money 
Individuals further defined by the 
mandate ―which are receiving grants 
from specialised source‖ (Ig) 
 
Organizational units further defined by 
the mandate ―which are receiving 
grants from specialised source‖ (Og) 

   Investigative audits 
(AI) 

  



Scope Conditions and 
Other auditors 

Branch of auditing Type of 
requirements 

Type of conclusion Reporting Intended 
users 

USA 
Assignment 1  
The public in general (P) 
 
Organizational units further defined by 
the mandate (O) 

Fixed tasks (Fix) 
 
Requested tasks 
(Req) 
 
Discretionary 
tasks (Dis) 

Financial auditing (F) 
 
Compliance auditing 
(C) 
 
Performance auditing 
(P) 
 
Other (Z) 

 Defined by standards 
decided by the SAI or 
agreement by the SAI 
($) 

Yearly/regularly (Y) 
 
Ad hoc (Ç) 

Parliament or 
committee 
established by 
Parliament 
(Pa) 
 
Government 
(executive 
branch) (Go) 
 
The general 
public (Ge) 
The 
leadership of 
the audited 
organizations 
(O) 

Assignment 2 
―Policies, programs or laws belonging 
to‖ the national government (Np) 

Discretionary 
tasks (Dis) 
 
Requested tasks 
(Req) 

Financial auditing (F) 
 
Compliance auditing 
(C) 
 
Performance auditing 
(P) 
 
Other (Z) 

 Defined by standards 
decided by the SAI or 
agreement by the SAI 
($) 

Yearly/regularly (Y) 
 
(Ad hoc (Ç)) 

Parliament or 
committee 
established by 
Parliament 
(Pa) 
 
The general 
public (Ge) 
 
Government 
(executive 
branch) (Go) 
 
The 
leadership of 
the audited 
organizations 
(O) 

Assignment 3 
Organizational units further defined by 
the mandate (O) 

Fixed tasks (Fix) Financial auditing (F) 
 
Compliance auditing 
(C) 
 
Performance auditing 
(P) 

 Defined by standards 
decided by the SAI or 
agreement by the SAI 
($) 

Ad hoc (Ç) 
 
Yearly/regularly (Y) 

Parliament or 
committee 
established by 
Parliament 
(Pa) 
 
The general 
public (Ge) 
 
Government 
(executive 
branch) (Go) 
 
The 
leadership of 
the audited 
organizations 
(O) 

Assignment 4: Financial Audit engagements as defined by Yellow book 2007 
  Financial auditing (F) Process 

requirements (P) 
 
Reporting 
requirements (R) 

Expression of 
reasonable assurance 
(rA) 
 
Assessment with an 
expression of 
assurance (Ass\A) 
(which may or should 
further result in 
Integrated 
investigative audits 
(>AI)) 

  

Assignment 5: Attestation engagements as defined by Yellow book 2007 

  Financial auditing (F) 
 
Compliance auditing 
(C) 
 
Performance auditing 
(P) 
 
Other (Z) 

 Expression of 
reasonable assurance 
(rA) 
 
Expression of limited 
assurance (lA) 

  

Assignment 6: (Performance audit engagements as defined by the Yellow book 2007) 

  Compliance auditing 
(C) 
 
Performance auditing 
(P) 

 Assessment (Ass) 
 
(Expression of 
assurance (A)) 

  

Assignment 7: Performance audit engagements -  Program effectiveness and results audit objectives, as defined by the 
Yellow book 2007 

―Policies, programs or laws belonging 
to‖ the public sector in general (Pp) 

 Performance auditing 
(P) 

Process 
requirements (P) 
 
Outcome 
requirements (O) 

   

Assignment 8: (Performance audit -  Internal control audit objectives, as defined by the Yellow book, 2007) 

  Compliance auditing 
(C) 
 
Performance auditing 
(P) 

Process 
requirements (P) 

   

 Assignment 9:  Performance audit engagements -  Compliance audit objectives, as defined by the Yellow book, 2007 



 

  

  Compliance auditing 
(C) 

    

Assignment 10:  Performance audit engagements -   Prospective analysis audit objectives as defined by the Yellow book, 
2007 

―Policies, programs or laws belonging 
to‖ the public sector in general (Pp) 
 
―Belonging to the budget 
of‖/‖Implementation of the budget of‖ 
the public sector in general (Pb) 

 Performance auditing 
(P) 

Reporting 
requirements (R) 

   



EUROSAI 

 

 

 
  

Scope Conditions and 
Other auditors 

Branch of auditing Type of 
requirements 

Type of conclusion Reporting Intended 
users 

Albania 
Assignment 1: General auditing function 
―Belonging to the budget 
of...‖/‖Implementation of the budget of‖ 
the national government (Nb)  
 
―Assets/property and/or liabilities debt 
of‖ the national government (Ns) 
 
Regional or local level government (L) 
 
Organizational units further defined by 
the mandate (O) 
 
Special bodies within the national 
system (A) 
 
The public sector in general (P) 
 
National government (N) 
 
―Activities finances by‖ the national 
government (Nf) 

Fixed tasks (Fix) 
 
Discretionary 
tasks (Dis) 
 
Tasks upon 
permission (Per) 
 
Internal auditors 
(IA) 
 
Engaged 
external auditor 
(EA) 

Financial auditing (F) 
 
Performance auditing 
P) 
 
Compliance auditing 
(C) 
 
Other (Z) 

Process 
requirements (P) 
 
Outcome 
requirements (O) 

Assessment with an 
expression of 
assurance (Ass\A) 
 
Assessment (Ass) 

Yearly/regularly (Y) 
 
Ad hoc (Ç) 
 
Short (S) 
 
Long (L) 

Parliament or 
committee 
established by 
Parliament 
(Pa) 
 
The president 
(Pr) 
 
Government 
(executive 
branch) (Go) 
 
The general 
public (Ge) 
 
Other public 
auditing 
authorities 
(PAA) 
 
The 
leadership of 
the audited 
organizations 
(O) 



  

 

 
  

Scope Conditions and 
Other auditors 

Branch of auditing Type of 
requirements 

Type of conclusion Reporting Intended 
users 

Belgium 
Assignment 1  
―Belonging to the budget 
of...‖/‖Implementation of the budget of‖ 
the national government (Nb)  
 

 A pre-audit task (x)    Parliament or 
committee 
established by 
Parliament 
(Pa) 

Assignment 2 
―Belonging to the budget 
of...‖/‖Implementation of the budget of‖ 
the national government (Nb)  
 
―The accounting by‖ the national 
government (Na) 

 Financial auditing (F) 
 
Compliance auditing 
(C) 

 Assessment (Ass) Yearly/regularly (Y) Parliament or 
committee 
established by 
Parliament 
(Pa) 

Assignment 3 
Organizational units further defined by 
the mandate (O) 
 

 Financial auditing (F) 
 
Compliance auditing 
(C) 

    

Assignment 4  
Individuals further defined by the 
mandate (I) 

 Financial auditing (F) 
 
Compliance auditing 
(C) 

 Investigative audits 
(AI) which may further 
result in 
a decision of 
discharge (>Des) 

 
 

Assignment 5 

The public sector in general (P)  Compliance auditing 
(C) 
 
Performance auditing 
(P) 

(Process 
requirements 
(P)) 

Assessment (Ass)  Government 
(executive 
branch) (Go) 
 
Parliament or 
committee 
established by 
Parliament 
(Pa) 

Assignment 6 

―Assets/property and/or liabilities debt 
of‖ the national government (Ns) 
 

 Financial auditing (F) 
 
Compliance auditing 
(C) 

 Assessment (Ass) Yearly/regularly (Y) Parliament or 
committee 
established by 
Parliament 
(Pa) 

Assignment 7 

―Transactions‖ or ―income and 
expenditure of‖ the national 
government (Nt) 

 Compliance auditing 
(C) 
 
Performance auditing 
(P) 

Process 
requirements (P) 

Assessment (Ass)  Government 
(executive 
branch) (Go) 
 
Parliament or 
committee 
established by 
Parliament 
(Pa) 

Assignment 8 

―Transactions‖ or ―income and 
expenditure of‖ the national 
government (Nt) 

 A pre-audit task (X)     



 

 

 

 

  
  

Scope  Conditions and 
Other auditors 

Branch of auditing Type of 
requirements 

Type of conclusion Reporting Intended 
users 

Bulgaria 
Assignment 1:  Audit of activities comprised by public budgets   
―Belonging to the budget 
of...‖/‖Implementation of the budget of‖ 
the national government (Nb)  
―Belonging to the budget 
of...‖/‖Implementation of the budget of‖ 
organizational units further defined by 
the mandate (Ob) 
 
―Belonging to the budget 
of...‖/‖Implementation of the budget of‖ 
the regional or local government  (Lb) 
 
Special bodies within the national 
system (A) 

Fixed tasks (Fix) 
 
Discretionary 
tasks (Dis) 

Financial auditing (F) 
 
Compliance auditing 
(C) 
 
Performance auditing 
(P) 

(Process 
requirements 
(P)) 
 
(Reporting 
requirements 
(R)) 
 
Outcome 
Requirements 
(O) 

Assessment (Ass)  
which may or should 
further result in an 
Integrated 
investigative audits 
(>AI) 
 
Defined by standards 
not decided by the 
SAI ($) 
 
INTOSAI standards 
are also to be followed 
(ISSAI) 

Ad hoc (Ç) 
 
Yearly/regularly (Y) 

Government 
(executive 
branch) (Go) 
 
The 
leadership of 
the audited 
organizations 
(O) 
 
Parliament or 
committee 
established by 
Parliament 
(Pa) 

Assignment 2: Audit of financial management and control systems 
       

Assignment 3: Certification of financial statements 
―The financial statements or other 
reports of‖ organizational units further 
defined by the mandate (Or) 

Fixed tasks (Fix) 
 

Financial auditing (F) Reporting 
requirements (R) 

Expression of 
assurance (A) 
(which may or should 
further result in a 
consolidated 
assessment 
((>Cass))) 

 
 

Parliament or 
committee 
established by 
Parliament 
(Pa) 

Assignment 4:  State owned enterprises 
organizational units further defined by 
the mandate (O) 

Requested tasks 
(Req) 
 
Tasks upon 
permission (Per) 

     

Assignment 5:  Opinions 

       



 

 

 
  

Scope  Conditions and 
Other auditors 

Branch of auditing Type of 
requirements 

Type of conclusion Reporting Intended 
users 

Croatia 
Assignment 1:  General audit assigment 
―Transactions‖ or ―income and 
expenditure of‖ the public sector in 
general (Pt) 
 
―Transactions‖ or ―income and 
expenditure of‖ the national 
government (Nt) 
 
―The financial statements or other 
reports of‖ the national government 
(Nr) 
 
―Transactions‖ or ―income and 
expenditure of‖ the regional or local 
level government (Lt) 
 
―The financial statements or other 
reports of‖ the regional or local level 
government (Lr) 
 
―Transactions‖ or ―income and 
expenditure of‖ organizational units 
further defined by the mandate (Ot) 
 
―The financial statements or other 
reports of‖ organizational units further 
defined by the mandate (Or) 
 
Organizational units further defined by 
the mandate ―which are receiving 
grants from a specified source (Og) 
 

Fixed tasks (Fix) 
 

Financial auditing (F) 
 
Compliance auditing 
(C) 
 
Performance auditing 
(P) 

(Reporting 
requirements 
(R)) 
 
(Outcome 
requirements 
(O)) 

Assessment (Ass) 
 
INTOSAI standards 
are also to be followed 
(ISSAI) 

Yearly/regularly (Y) 
 
 

The 
leadership of 
the audited 
organizations 
(O) 
 
Government 
(executive 
branch) (Go) 
 
Parliament or 
committee 
established by 
Parliament 
(Pa) 

Assignment 2: Privatisation 
Organizational units further defined by 
the mandate (O) 

 Compliance auditing 
(C) 

Process 
requirements (P) 
 
Outcome 
requirements (O) 

  The 
leadership of 
the audited 
organizations 
(O) 
 
Government 
(executive 
branch) (Go) 



 

 

 
  

Scope  Conditions and 
Other auditors 

Branch of auditing Type of 
requirements 

Type of conclusion Reporting Intended 
users 

Czech Republic  
Assignment 1:  General audit assignment   
―Assets/property and/or liabilities debt 
of‖ the national government (Ns) 
 
―The financial statements or other 
reports of‖ the national government 
(Nr) 
 
―Belonging to the budget 
of...‖/‖Implementation of the budget of‖ 
the national government (Nb)  
 
Can either be the public sector in 
general ―which are receiving grants 
from a specified source‖ (Pg) or  
―Activities financed by the‖ national 
government (Nf) 
 
―Transactions‖ or ―income and 
expenditure of‖ the national 
government (Nt) 
 
Organizational units further defined by 
the mandate (O) 
 
 

Discretionary 
tasks (Dis) 

Financial auditing (F) 
 
Compliance auditing 
(C) 
 
Performance auditing 
(P) 

 Can be either 
cconsolidated 
assessments (CAss) 
or expression of 
assurance (A) or 
assessment (Ass)  

Yearly/regularly (Y) Parliament or 
committee 
established by 
Parliament 
(Pa) 
 
Government 
(executive 
branch) (Go) 
 
The 
leadership of 
the audited 
organizations 
(O) 
 

Assignment 2: The national bank  
Special bodies within the national 
system (A) 

      



  

  

Scope  Conditions and 
Other auditors 

Branch of auditing Type of 
requirements 

Type of conclusion Reporting Intended 
users 

Denmark 
Assignment 1:  Audit within the scope of the state accounts 
―The accounting by‖ the national 
government (Na) 
 
 

(Internal auditors 
(IA)) 

Financial auditing (F) 
 
Compliance auditing 
(C) 
 
Performance auditing 
(P) 

Process 
requirements (P) 
 
Outcome 
requirements (O) 
 
Reporting 
requirements (R) 

(Expression of 
assurance (A)) 
 
Assessment (Ass) 

Yearly/regularly (Y) 
 
Ad hoc (Ç) 
 

Parliament or 
committee 
established by 
Parliament 
(Pa) 

Assignment 2: Audit of public entities outside the scope of the state accounts  
―The financial statements or other 
reports of‖ organizational units further 
defined by the mandate (Or) 
 
 

(Internal auditors 
(IA)) 
 
(Engaged 
external auditor 
(EA)) 

Financial auditing (F) 
 
Compliance auditing 
(C) 
 
Performance auditing 
(P) 

Process 
requirements (P) 
 
Outcome 
requirements (O) 

Assessment (Ass) Ad hoc (Ç) 
 

Parliament or 
committee 
established by 
Parliament 
(Pa) 

Assignment 3: Review of audited accounts from municipalities and organisations receiving financial contributions from the 
state 
―The financial statements or other 
reports of‖ the regional or local level 
government (Lr) 
 
 

Discretionary 
tasks (Dis) 

Financial auditing (F) 
 
Compliance auditing 
(C) 
 
Performance auditing 
(P) 

  Ad hoc (Ç) 
 

Parliament or 
committee 
established by 
Parliament 
(Pa) 



 

 

 
  

Scope  Conditions and 
Other auditors 

Branch of auditing Type of 
requirements 

Type of conclusion Reporting Intended 
users 

France 
Assignment 1: Implementation of finance acts 
―Belonging to the budget 
of...‖/‖Implementation of the budget of‖ 
the national government (Nb)  
 
―Within the legal/ministerial 
responsibility of the national 
government (Nl) 

 (Performance auditing 
(P)) 

 Assessment (Ass)  Parliament or 
committee 
established by 
Parliament 
(Pa) 
 
Government 
(executive 
branch) (Go) 
 
The general 
public (Ge) 

Assignment 2: Certification of state accounts 
―The accounting by‖ the national 
government (Na) 
 
―The financial statements or other 
reports of‖ the national government 
(Nr) 

 Financial auditing (F) 
 
Compliance auditing 
(C) 
 

 Expression of 
assurance (A) 

Yearly/regularly (Y)  

Assignment 3: Control for the purpose of accounts judgement 
Individuals further defined by the 
mandate (I) 

 Financial auditing (F) 
 
Compliance auditing 
(C) 
 

 Audit investigation (AI) 
which may or should 
further result in a 
decisions of discharge  
(>Des) 

 Government 
(executive 
branch) (Go) 

Assignment 4:  Report on the implementation of the Social security financing 
―Belonging to the budget 
of‖/‖implementation of the budget of‖ 
organizational units further defined by 
the mandate (Ob) 

 Compliance auditing 
(C) 

    

Assignment 5: Certification of the accounts of the social security fund 

―The financial statements or other 
reports of‖ organizational units further 
defined by the mandate (Or) 
 

 Financial auditing (F) 
 
Compliance auditing 
(C) 
 

(Reporting 
requirements 
(R)) 

Assessment with an 
expression of 
assurance (Ass\A) 
 

  

Assignment 6: Yearly reports on budget implementation 

―Belonging to the budget 
of‖/‖implementation of the budget of‖ 
the national government (Nb) 

 (Performance auditing 
(P)) 

 Assessment (Ass) Yearly/regularly (Y) Parliament or 
committee 
established by 
Parliament 
(Pa) 



 

 

 

 

 

 
  

Scope  Conditions and 
Other auditors 

Branch of auditing Type of 
requirements 

Type of conclusion Reporting Intended 
users 

Germany 
Assignment 1:  General auditing assignment 
National government (federal level) 
(N) 
 
Organizational units further defined by 
the mandate (e.g. certain companies), 
―which are receiving grants from a 
specified source‖ (Og) 
 
Special bodies within the national 
system (e.g. the parliaments 
administration, the regents 
administration, political parties or the 
central bank) (A) 
 

Fixed tasks (Fix) 
 
Discretionary 
tasks (Dis) 
 
Tasks upon 
permission (Per) 
 
Negotiated tasks 
(Neg) 

Financial auditing (F) 
 
Performance auditing 
(P) 
 
Compliance auditing 
(C) 

Process 
requirements (P) 
 
Outcome 
requirements (O) 
 
Reporting 
requirements (R) 

Assessment (Ass) 
 
Decision of discharge 
(Des) 
 
Defined by standards 
decided by the SAI or 
by agreement by the 
SAI ($) 
 
Defined by standards 
not decided by the 
SAI (includes national 
standards and 
―generally accepted 
standards‖) (§) 

Yearly/regularly (Y) 
 
Ad hoc (Ç) 

Parliament or 
committee 
established by 
Parliament 
(Pa) 
 
Government 
(executive 
branch (Go) 
 
The 
leadership of 
the audited 
organizations 
(O) 



 

 

 

 

 

  
  

Scope  Conditions and 
Other auditors 

Branch of auditing Type of 
requirements 

Type of conclusion Reporting Intended 
users 

Hungary 
Assignment 1:  General auditing   
The public sector in general (P) 

 

Belonging to the budget 

of‖/‖Implementation of the budget if‖ 

the national government (Nb) 

 

―Assets/property and/or liabilities/debt 

of‖ the national government (Ns) 

 

―Activities financed by‖ organizational 

units further defined by the mandate 

(Of) 

 

Regional or local level government (L) 

 

―Organizations belonging to‖ the 

national government (No) 

 

(Fixed tasks 

(Fix)) 

 

(Requested 

tasks (Req)) 

Compliance auditing 

(C) 

 

Performance auditing 

(P) 

(Process 

requirements 

(P)) 

Assessment (Ass) 

which may or should 

further result in 

Integrated 

investigative audits 

(>AI) 

 Parliament or 

committee 

established by 

Parliament 

(Pa) 

 

Government 

(executive 

branch) (Go) 

 

Assignment 2: National Bank 
Special bodies within the national 
system (A) 

      

Assignment 3: Political parties 
Special bodies within the national 
system (A) 

 Compliance auditing 
(C) 

Process 
requirements (P) 
 
Outcome 
requirements (O) 

   

Assignment 4:  International tasks accepted 
 Negotiated tasks 

(Neg) 
     



 

 

 

 

 

 
  

Scope  Conditions and 
Other auditors 

Branch of auditing Type of 
requirements 

Type of conclusion Reporting Intended 
users 

Ireland 
Assignment 1:  Assignment by the constitution 
―The accounting by‖ the national 
government (Na) 

 (Financial auditing (F))    Parliament or 
committee 
established by 
Parliament 
(Pa) 

Assignment 2: Audit of appropriation accounts 
―The accounting by‖ the national 
government (Na) 

Fixed tasks (Fix) 
 

Financial auditing (F) 
 
Compliance auditing 
(C) 
 
 

Process 
requirements (P) 
 
Outcome 
requirements (O) 
 
Reporting 
requirements (R) 

Expression of 
assurance (A) which 
may or should further 
result in integrated 
audit investigations 
(>AI) 

Yearly/regularly (Y) 
 
Ad hoc (Ç) 
 

Government 
(executive 
branch) (Go) 
 
Parliament or 
committee 
established by 
Parliament 
(Pa) 

Assignment 3: Stocks and stores 
―Assets/property and/or liabilities debt 
of‖ the national government (Ns) 
 
 
 

 Financial auditing (F) 
 

Process 
requirements (P) 
 
Outcome 
requirements (O) 
 

   

Assignment 4:  Revenues of the state 
―Transactions‖ or ―income and 
expenditure of‖ the national 
government (Nt) 
 
 
 

 Financial auditing (F) 
 
Compliance auditing 
(C) 

    

Assignment 5: Departments carrying out commercial activities 

―The financial statements or other 
reports of‖ organizational units further 
defined by the mandate (Or) 

Fixed tasks (Fix) 
 

Financial auditing (F) 
 

Reporting 
requirements (R) 

Expression of 
assurance (A) 

Yearly/regularly (Y)  



 
 

 

 

 

 

 
  

Scope  Conditions and 
Other auditors 

Branch of auditing Type of 
requirements 

Type of conclusion Reporting Intended 
users 

Israel 
Assignment 1:  Audited bodies 
―Organizations belonging to‖ the 
national government (No) 
 
 

 Financial auditing (F) 
 
Compliance auditing 
(C) 
 
Performance auditing 
(P) 
 
(Other (Z)) 

Process 
requirements (P) 
 
Outcome 
requirements (O) 
 
Reporting 
requirements (R) 
 
 

Assessment (Ass) Yearly/regularly (Y) Parliament or 
committee 
established by 
Parliament 
(Pa) 
 
Government 
(executive 
branch) (Go) 

Assignment 2: Other audited bodies 
Regional or local level government (L) 
 
Organizational units further defined by 
the mandate (O) 
 
Individuals further defined by the 
mandate (I) 

 Financial auditing (F) 
 
Compliance auditing 
(C) 
 
Performance auditing 
(P)  
 
(Other (Z)) 

Process 
requirements (P) 
 
Outcome 
requirements (O) 
 
Reporting 
requirements (R) 
 

Assessment (Ass)  The 
leadership of 
the audited 
organizations 
(O) 
 
Parliament or 
committee 
established by 
Parliament 
(Pa) 
 
Government 
(executive 
branch) (Go) 



 

 

 

 

 
  

Scope  Conditions and 
Other auditors 

Branch of auditing Type of 
requirements 

Type of conclusion Reporting Intended 
users 

Sweden 
Assignment 1:  Performance audits 
National government (N) 
 
Special bodies within the national 
system (A) 
 
―Activities financed by‖ the national 
government (Nf) 
 
Organizational units further defined by 
the mandate (O) 
 
 

Discretionary 
tasks (Dis) 

Performance auditing 
(P)  
 

 Assessment (Ass) 
which may or should 
further result in a 
consolidated 
assessment (>Cass) 

Ad hoc (Ç) 
 
Yearly/regularly (Y) 

Government 
(executive 
branch) (Go) 
 
Parliament or 
committee 
established by 
Parliament 
(Pa) 

Assignment 2: Audits of annual accounts 
―The financial statements or other 
reports of‖ the national government 
(Nr) 
 
―The financial statements or other 
reports of‖ organizational units further 
defined by the mandate 
(Or) 

Fixed tasks (Fix) 
 
Internal auditor 
(IA) 
 

Financial auditing (F) 
 
Compliance auditing 
(C) 
 

Process 
requirements (P) 
 
Reporting 
requirements (R) 

Expression of 
reasonable assurance 
(rA) 
 
INTOSAI standards 
are to be followed 
(ISSAI) 
 
IFAC standards are 
explicitly referred to 
and to be followed 
(IFAC) 

Yearly/regularly (Y) 
 
Short (S) 

Government 
(executive 
branch) (Go) 
 
 
Parliament or 
committee 
established by 
Parliament 
(Pa) 
 
The general 
public (Ge) 
 
The 
leadership of 
the audited 
organizations 
(O) 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Scope  Conditions and 
Other auditors 

Branch of auditing Type of 
requirements 

Type of conclusion Reporting Intended 
users 

United Kingdom 
Assignment 1:  Performance auditing 
―Organizations belonging to‖ the 
national government (No) 
 
―Activities financed by‖ organizational 
units further defined by the mandate 
(Of) 

Discretionary 
tasks (Dis) 

Performance auditing 
(P) 

Outcome 
requirements (O) 
 

Assessment (Ass) Ad hoc (Ç) Parliament or 
committee 
established by 
Parliament 
(Pa) 

Assignment 2: Government accounts 
―The financial statements or other 
reports of‖ organizational units further 
defined by the mandate (Or) 

Fixed tasks (Fix) Financial auditing (F) Reporting 
requirements (R) 

Can either be 
expression of 
assurance (A) or 
assessment with an 
expression of 
assurance (Ass\A) 

Yearly/regularly (Y) Parliament or 
committee 
established by 
Parliament 
(Pa) 

Assignment 3: Departemental accounts 
―The financial statements or other 
reports of‖ organizational units further 
defined by the mandate (Or) 

Fixed tasks (Fix) Financial auditing (F) 
 
Compliance auditing 
(C) 

Reporting 
requirements (R) 
 
Outcome 
requirements (O) 
 

Expression of 
assurance  (Ass\A) 

Yearly/regularly (Y) 
 
Ad hoc (Ç) 

Government 
(executive 
branch) (Go) 
 
 
Parliament or 
committee 
established by 
Parliament 
(Pa) 
 

Assignment 4:  Other departmental accounts 
―The financial statements or other 
reports of‖ organizational units further 
defined by the mandate (Or) 

Fixed tasks (Fix) Financial auditing (F) 
 
Compliance auditing 
(C) 

Reporting 
requirements (R) 
 
Outcome 
requirements (O) 
 

Expression of 
assurance  (Ass\A) 

Yearly/regularly (Y) 
 

Government 
(executive 
branch) (Go) 
 
 
Parliament or 
committee 
established by 
Parliament 
(Pa) 

Assignment 5 

Special bodies within the national 
system (A) 

A pre-audit task 
(X) 

     



Table 3: The provisions of the mandates of the selected SAIs in 
AFROSAI 
 
Country: Ghana  
Assignment 1: Audit of public accounts generally 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
 
The public accounts of Ghana and all public offices, including the courts, the central and local government 
administrations, of the  Universities and public institutions of like nature., of any other body or organization 
established by an act of Parliament shall be audited and  reported on by the Auditor-General. 
 
 

  Scope:  
 

Conditions: 
  
Other 
auditors: 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
 
The Auditor-General shall examine in such manner as he thinks necessary the public and other government 
accounts and shall ascertain whether in his opinion — 
  (a) the accounts have been properly kept; 
  (b) all public monies have been fully accounted for, and rules and procedures applicable are sufficient to ensure   
an effective check on the assessment, collection and proper allocation of the revenue; 
  (c) monies have been expended for the purposes for which they were appropriated and the expenditures have  
been made as authorised; 
  (d) essential records are maintained and the rules and procedures applied are sufficient to safeguard and control 
public property; and 
  (e) programmes and activities have been undertaken with due regard to economy, efficiency and effectiveness in 
relation to the resources utilised and results achieved. 
 

Branch of 
auditing:  
 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
 
The Auditor-General shall, within six months after the end of the immediately preceding financial year to which 
each of the accounts mentioned in this Part relates, submit his report to Parliament and shall, in the report, draw 
attention to any irregularities in the accounts audited and to any other matter which in his opinion ought to be 
brought to the notice of Parliament. 
  (2) Without limiting the scope of subsection (1), the Auditor-General in his report to Parliament on the public 
accounts shall draw attention to any case in which he has observed that— 
  (a) an officer or employee of Government has wilfully or negligently omitted to collect or receive any public money 
due to the Government; 
  (b) any public money was not duly accounted for and paid into the Consolidated Fund or other designated public 
account; 
  (c) an appropriation was exceeded or was applied for a purpose or in a manner not authorised by law; 
  (d) an expenditure was not authorised or properly vouched for or certified; 
  (e) there has been a deficiency through fraud, default or mistake of any person; 
  (f) applicable internal control and management measures are inefficient or ineffective; 
  (g) the use or custody of property, money, stamps, securities, equipment, stores, trust money, trust property or 
other assets has occurred in a manner detrimental to the State; 
  (h) resources have not been used with due regard to economy, efficiency and effectiveness in relation to the 
results attained; 
  (i) in the public interest, the matter should be brought to the notice of Parliament. 
 

Type of 
conclusion:  
 

Reporting: 
 

Intended users of the reporting 
 
Parliament 
 
The Auditor General shall, within  six months after  the end of the immediately preceding financial year to which 
each of the accounts ….. submit  his report  to Parliament ….. 
 

Intended 
users:  
 

Assignment 2: Audit of Statutory corporations 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
 
  14. (1) In respect of the accounts of a statutory corporation, a state enterprise or a public commercial institution 
operating under its own enactment, the Auditor-General or any person appointed by him shall upon the 
examination of the accounts of the body or institution, express his opinion as to whether the accounts present fairly 
financial information in accordance with the applicable statutory provisions, stated accounting policies of the 
Government and is in accordance with generally accepted accounting standards and essentially consistent with 
that of the preceding year. 
 

  Scope:  
 

Conditions: 
  
Other 
auditors: 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
 
The Auditor-General or any person appointed by him shall upon the examination of the accounts of the body or 
institution, express his opinion as to whether the accounts present fairly financial information in accordance with 
the applicable statutory provisions, stated accounting policies of the Government and is in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting standards and essentially consistent with that of the preceding year. 
 

Branch of 
auditing:  
 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
  
  (2) The Auditor-General or any person appointed by the Auditor-General to audit the accounts of statutory 
corporations shall in addition to the audit report draw attention to the following – 
  (a) the profitability, liquidity, stability and solvency of the corporation and also the performance of the shares of the 
corporation on the capital markets, where relevant; 

Type of 
conclusion:  
 

Reporting: 
 



  (b) whether there was any delay in payment of government portion of any declared dividend, if any, into the 
Consolidated Fund; 
  (c) any significant cases of fraud or losses and the underlying causes; 
  (d) any internal control weakness noted; and 
  (e) the general corporate performance indicating— 
  (i) achievement against set targets and objectives; and 
  (ii) whether the finances of the body have been conducted with due regard to economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness having regard to the resources utilised. 
 

Intended users of the reporting 
 
Parliament 
 

Intended 
users:  
 

Assignment: 3 Audit of foreign transactions 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
 
The Bank of Ghana shall not later three months – 

(a) after the end of the first six months of its financial year ; and 
(b) after the end of its financial year, submit to the Auditor-General for audit , a statement of foreign 

exchange receipts and payments and transfers in and outside Ghana. 
The Auditor-General shall not later than three months after the submission referred to in section (1) submit his 
report to Parliament on the statement. 
 

  Scope:  
 

Conditions: 
  
Other 
auditors: 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
 
The Auditor-General shall, not later than three months after the submission of the statement referred to in section    
(1) submit his report to Parliament on the statement. 

Branch of 
auditing:  
 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
 
The Auditor-General shall, not later than three months after the submission of the statement referred to in section 
(1) submit his report to Parliament on the statement. 
 

Type of 
conclusion:  
 

Reporting: 
 

Intended users of the reporting 
 
The Auditor-General shall, not later than three months after the submission of the statement referred to in section 
(1) submit his report to Parliament on the statement. 
 

Intended 
users:  
 

Assignment 4: Disallowance and surcharge 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
 
The Auditor General shall specify to the appropriate head of department or institution the amount  due from any 
person upon whom he has made a surcharge or disallowance and the reason for the surcharge or disallowance. 
 

  Scope:  
 

Conditions: 
  
Other 
auditors: 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
 
A sum specified by the Auditor-General to be due from any person shall be paid by that person to the department 
or institution as the case may be, within 60 days after it has been so specified. 
  (3) A person aggrieved by a disallowance or surcharge made by the Auditor-General may appeal to the High  
Court not later than the expiration of 60 days prescribed in subsection (2). 
  (4) In accordance with article 187(10) the Rules of Court Committee may, by constitutional instrument, make 
Rules of Court for the purposes of subsection (3) of this section. 
 

Branch of 
auditing:  
 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
 
  (5) Any sum which is lawfully due under this section shall, on civil proceedings taken by the Head of Department 
in a court be recoverable as a civil debt and where the person surcharged is in receipt of remuneration from 
government or any institution, the remuneration shall be attached to the extent of the sum lawfully due. 
  (6) In any proceedings for the recovery of that sum a certificate signed by the Auditor-General shall be prima facie 
evidence of the facts certified. 
  (7) The Auditor-General may with the prior approval of Parliament revoke any surcharge made under this section. 
 

Type of 
conclusion:  
 

Reporting: 
 

Intended users of the reporting 
 
Parliament 
 

Intended 
users:  
 

Assignment 5: Special audits/Reviews 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
 
The Auditor-General may in addition to the audit of public accounts, carry out in the public interest such special 
audits  or reviews as he considers necessary and shall submit reports on the audits  or review undertaken by him 
to Parliament 
 

  Scope:  
 

Conditions: 
  
Other 
auditors: 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
 

Branch of 
auditing:  



The Auditor-General may in addition to the audit of public accounts, carry out in the public interest such special 
audits  or reviews as he considers necessary and shall submit reports on the audits  or review undertaken by him 
to Parliament 

 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
 
The Auditor-General …. shall submit reports on the audits  or review undertaken by him to Parliament 

Type of 
conclusion:  
 

Reporting: 
 

Intended users of the reporting 
 
Parliament 
 

Intended 
users:  
 

 

 
Country:  Zimbabwe 
Assignment 1: Audit of public accounts 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
 
The Public Accounts of Zimbabwe and of all Accounting Officers, receivers of revenues and other such persons 
entrusted with public moneys or property of the State shall at least once in financial year be examined, audited and 
reported on by the Comptroller and Auditor-General on behalf of Parliament. 
 

  Scope:  
 

Conditions: 
  
Other 
auditors: 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
 
The Comptroller and Auditor-General shall satisfy himself that— 
  a) all reasonable precautions have been taken to safeguard the collection of public moneys and that the 
provisions of this Act and any other enactment and of any direction or instruction issued in terms of subsection (2) 
of section eighteen or departmental instruction referred to in subsection (3) of that section which relate therein have 
been duly observed; 
  b) all payments of public moneys— 
    (i) have been made in accordance with proper authority; and 
    (ii) have been properly charged; and 
    (iii) are supported by sufficient vouchers or proof of payment; 
  c) all moneys expended and charged to an appropriation account— 
    (i) have been applied to the purposes for which the grants made by Parliament were intended; and 
    (ii) were expended in conformity with the appropriate authority; 
  d) All reasonable precautions have been taken is safeguard and control State property and all issues of State 
property were made in accordance with proper authority. 
 

Branch of 
auditing:  
 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
  
The Comptroller and Auditor-General, after examining the accounts transmitted to him in terms of section thirty-one 
and signing a certificate recording the result of his examination shall prepare and submit to the Minister, not later 
than 31

st
 March in each year, a report on his examination and audit of the accounts referred to in paragraph (a) of 

subsection (1) of section seven. 
  (2) Subject to subsection (3), The Comptroller and Auditor-General shall embody in his annual report the 
accounts submitted in terms of section thirty-one and shall set out therein if, in his opinion, any payment out of 
public moneys which has been made to any Minister as defined in subsection (3) of section forty-six, Deputy 
Minister or other Members of Parliament is one on which he should report to parliament, a statement showing the 
name of the member receiving such payment, the total amount received and the service in respect of which the 
payment was made. 
 

Type of 
conclusion:  
 

Reporting: 
 

Intended users of the reporting 
 
The Comptroller and Auditor-General shall submit every report made by him in accordance with subsection (1) to 
the Minister for the time being responsible for finance who shall, on one of the seven days on which parliament sits 
next after he has received the report, lay it before parliament. 
….. 

Intended 
users:  
 

Assignment 2: Value for Money Audits 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
 
Comptroller and Auditor Genera … may carry out examinations into the economy, efficiency and effectiveness with 
which any Ministry, Statutory body, statutory fund or other body whose accounts he is required to audit has used its 
resources in discharging its functions; 
 

  Scope:  
 

Conditions: 
  
Other 
auditors: 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
 
Provided that the Comptroller and Auditor-General shall not be entitled to question the merits or the terms of the 
policies of any such ministry, statutory body, statutory fund or other body. 
 

Branch of 
auditing:  
 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
 
If at any time it appears to the Comptroller and Auditor-General desirable that any matter relating to public moneys 

Type of 
conclusion:  
 



or state property should be drawn to the attention of Parliament without undue delay, he shall prepare a special 
report in relation to such matter and transmit 
 

Reporting: 
 

Intended users of the reporting 
 
Parliament 

Intended 
users:  
 

Assignment 3: Audit of statutory bodies (pubic enterprises) 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
 
Comptroller and Auditor Genera … shall, on behalf of parliament, audit the accounts of any statutory body or 
statutory fund where required to do so by or under this Act or any other enactment; and 
 

  Scope:  
 

Conditions: 
  
Other 
auditors: 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
- 
 

Branch of 
auditing:  
 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
 Reports on accounts of statutory bodies 
 
The Comptroller and Auditor-General after examining the accounts of any statutory body referred to in paragraph 
(b) subsection (1) of section seven and signing a certificate recording the results of his examination, shall transmit 
to the Appropriate Minister his certificate upon his examination and audit of such accounts, together with any report 
which he may consider necessary. 
 
17. Reports to be laid before Parliament. 
  (1) Any report transmitted-  
    a) to the Minister in terms of section fourteen or fifteen; or 
    b) to the Appropriate Minister in terms of section sixteen; shall be laid by the Minister or appropriate Minister, as 
the case may be, before Parliament sits next after he has received such report. 
  (2) Where the Minister or appropriate Minister fails to lay any report before Parliament in terms of subsection (1) 
within the period specified therein, the Comptroller and Auditor-General shall transmit a copy of such report to the 
Speaker of Parliament to be laid before Parliament by the Speaker. 
 

Type of 
conclusion:  
 

Reporting: 
 

Intended users of the reporting 
 
Minister 
 
Parliament 
 

Intended 
users:  
 

Assignment 4: Surcharge 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
 
The Comptroller and Auditor-General may surcharge against the said person the amount of any sums not collected 
or accounted for or the amount of any deficiency in or improper payment, payment not duly vouched or loss or 
destruction of public moneys as the case may be. 
 

  Scope:  
 

Conditions: 
  
Other 
auditors: 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
 
If- it appears to the Comptroller and Auditor-General that any person to whom the provisions of this Part apply was 
responsible for- 
  (i) any deficiency in the collection of or accounting for public moneys; or 
  (ii) any improper payment of public moneys; or 
  (iii) any payment of public moneys which is not duly vouched and the Comptroller and Auditor-General is satisfied 
that such payment has resulted in a loss of public moneys or a further payment of public moneys in respect of the 
same matter; or 
  (iv) any deficiency in or destruction of public moneys; and 
  (b) an explanation satisfactory to the Comptroller and Auditor-General is not within a period specified by him, 
furnished to him with regard to such irregularity as is referred to in paragraph(a): 
 

Branch of 
auditing:  
 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
  
(2) The Comptroller and Auditor-General may at any time withdraw a surcharge- 
  (a) in respect of which a satisfactory explanation has been received: or 
  (b) if it otherwise appears to him that no surcharge should have been made. 
(3) Whenever the Comptroller and Auditor-General raises a surcharge in terms of subsection (1) or withdraws a 
surcharge in terms of subsection (3); he shall immediately notify the appropriate accounting officer. 
 

Type of 
conclusion:  
 

Reporting: 
 

Intended users of the reporting 
 
Parliament 
 

Intended 
users:  
 

 

 

 



Country:  Botswana 
Assignment 1: Audit of public accounts 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
 
The public accounts of Botswana and of all officers' courts and authorities of the Government of Botswana shall be 
audited and reported on by the Auditor General.   
 

  Scope:  
 

Conditions: 
  
Other 
auditors: 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
- 

Branch of 
auditing:  
 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
 
3. The Auditor-General shall submit his reports to the Minister responsible for Finance, who shall cause them to be 
laid before the National Assembly 

Type of 
conclusion:  
 

Reporting: 
 

Intended users of the reporting 
 
Parliament 
 

Intended 
users:  
 

Assignment 2: Body corporates 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
 
…. if it is so provided by Parliament in the case of body corporate directly established by law, the accounts of that 
body corporate shall be audited and reported on by such person as may be specified by or under that law. 
 

  Scope:  
 

Conditions: 
  
Other 
auditors: 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
- 

Branch of 
auditing:  
 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
 
3. The Auditor-General shall submit his reports to the Minister responsible for Finance, who shall cause them to be 
laid before the National Assembly. 
 

Type of 
conclusion:  
 

Reporting: 
 

Intended users of the reporting 
 
Parliament 
 

Intended 
users:  
 

Assignment 3: Investigations into officers of any corporation 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
 
Notwithstanding any other written law, the Minister may request the Auditor-General to carry out such 
investigations into the officers of any corporation established by a written law or any corporation registered in 
accordance with the Companies Act in which the Government owns all the equity shares, as the Minister may think 
necessary or expedient in the public interest. 
 

  Scope:  
 

Conditions: 
  
Other 
auditors: 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
 
5. Where the Auditor General complies with a request made of him under Sub-section 4, he shall, for the purpose 
of his investigations, have all the powers conferred by Sub-section 1, in relation to the Corporation in question and 
its members, officers, employees and property 

Branch of 
auditing:  
 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
 
6. The Auditor-General may submit a written report to the Minister on any investigations carried out by him in 
compliance with a request made of him under Sub-section 4. 
 

Type of 
conclusion:  
 

Reporting: 
 

Intended users of the reporting 
 
Minister 
 
Parliament 
 

Intended 
users:  
 

 

 

 



Country:  Kenya 
Assignment 1: Audit of public accounts 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
 
The Controller and Auditor-General shall, on behalf of the National Assembly, examine, inquire into and audit the 
accounts of all accounting officers and receivers of revenue and of all pawns entrusted with the collection, receipt, 
custody-, issue or payment of public moneys, or with the receipt, custody, issue, sale, transfer or delivery of any 
stamps, securities, stores or other Government property. 
 

  Scope:  
 

Conditions: 
  
Other 
auditors: 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
 
(2) The Controller and Auditor- General shall satisfy himself- 
  (a) that all reasonable precautions have been taken to safeguard the collection of revenue, and that the Act, 
directions and instructions relating thereto have been duly observed; 
  (b) that all moneys which have been appropriated by permanent and disbursed have been applied to the purpose 
for which they were so appropriated and that the expenditure conforms to the authority which governs it; 
  (c) that all public moneys other the those which have been appropriated by Parliament have been dealt with in 
accordance with proper authority; 
  (d) that an reasonable precautions have been taken to safeguard the receipt, custody, issue and proper use of 
Government property, including stamps, securities and stores, and that the regulations and instructions relating 
thereto have been duly observed. 
 

Branch of 
auditing:  
 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
 
On receipt of the accounts prescribed by section 18, the Controller and Auditor-General shall cause them to be 
examined and audited, and shall, within a period of seven months (or such longer period as the National Assembly 
may by resolution appoint) after the end of the financial year to which the accounts relate, certify in respect of each 
account the result of the examination and audit, and shall within the aforesaid period prepare and transmit to the 
Minister a report upon the examination and audit of all such accounts, together with copies of the accounts, 
certified as aforesaid. 
 

Type of 
conclusion:  
 

Reporting: 
 

Intended users of the reporting 
 
Minister 
 
Parliament 
 

Intended 
users:  
 

Assignment 2: Local Authorities  
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
 
The accounts of every local authority shall be audited by the Controller and Auditor-General or by an auditor 
authorized by him in that behalf. 
 

  Scope:  
 

Conditions: 
  
Other 
auditors: 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
 
In a report under this section, the Controller and Auditor-General shall state whether in his opinion- 
(a) he, or the auditor, has obtained all such information and explanations and facilities as may have been required 
to enable such examination and audit to be properly carried out; 
(b) the accounts of the local authority are in order; 
(c) the balance sheets give a true and fair view of the state of financial affairs of the local authority at the end of the 
financial year to which they relate; 
(d) the revenue accounts give a true and fair view of the income and expenditure of the local authority in that 
financial year; 
(e) due provision has been made on account of redemption and repayment of all moneys borrowed by the local 
authority; and 
(f) the amounts set aside for depreciation and renewal of the assets of the local authority are adequate. 
 

Branch of 
auditing:  
 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
 
(3) The Controller and Auditor-General shall transmit a copy of every report under this section to the Minister. 
 

Type of 
conclusion:  
 

Reporting: 
 

Intended users of the reporting 
 
Minister 
 
Parliament 
 

Intended 
users:  
 

Assignment 3: State corporations 
The scope and  conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
 
The Auditor-General (Corporations) shall have the power to examine inquire into and audit the accounts of State 
Corporations and in exercise of his powers may - (a) call upon any officer of the board, State Corporations to offer 
explanation and information which the Auditor-General (Corporations) may require in order to enable him to 
discharge his duties; 
 

  Scope:  
 

Conditions: 
  
Other 
auditors: 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
 

Branch of 
auditing:  



On receipt of the accounts prescribed by subsection (1), the Auditor-General (Corporations) shall cause them to be 
examined and audited and shall, within a period of seven months (or such longer period as the National Assembly 
may by resolution appoint) after the end of the financial year to which the accounts relate, certify in respect of each 
account the result of the examination and audit and shall within that period prepare and submit to the appropriate 
Minister a report upon the examination and audit of all the accounts together with the certified copies of the 
accounts. 
 

 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
  (3) The Auditor-General (Corporations) may, at any time after consultation with the Treasury, submit to the 
appropriate Minister a special report on any mw incidental to his powers and duties under this section. 
  (4) Appropriate Minister shall within fourteen days of receipt by him of a report under subsection (3) lay it before 
the National Assembly. 
 

Type of 
conclusion:  
 

Reporting: 
 

Intended users of the reporting 
 
Minister 
 
Parliament 
 

Intended 
users:  
 

 

 
Country: Cameroon 
Assignment 1: Management Audit 
The scope and conditions of SAI‟s audit assignment 
 
Article 2 of Decree N° 374 of 11/10/05 
The Supreme State Audit Office Is the Cameroon’s Supreme Audit Institution.  In this regard, it is responsible for 
external auditing of public finances. 
Under the terms of this decree, The Supreme State Audit Office was given the mandate: 
To audit  
Government ministries, departments and public agencies that constitute the State administrative system; 
Municipalities and all other bodies that have a public legal entity; 
Public and semi-public enterprises; 
Private enterprises and bodies which receive public funds or are guaranteed by the State to receive financial 
assistance and are of strategic importance to the nation. 
 
Article 8 decree N° 2005- 374 

In the beginning of each year the Minister delegate shall forward the SAIs annual Audit program for approval by the 
President of the republic 
 
 

  Scope:  
 

Conditions: 
  
Other 
auditors: 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
 
Section 2 Decree N° 97-48 
The main objective of roving audit missions is to assess the quality of management of the entities and services 
being audited namely: 
 
Management audits include a review of the overall organisation, distribution of staff, contract awards, procurement 
procedures, investment policies etc of the audited body  In order to: 

- To establish breach and violation of regulations or the principles and rules of sound management; 
- To evaluate and appraise the respect of  efficiency , economy and effectiveness in the management of 

the controlled entity; 
- To assess the genuineness and accuracy of the financial records. 

 

Branch of 
auditing:  
 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
 
Section 4 of decree N° 97-48 
At the end of each audit assignment, the findings of the audit are presented in a report composed of four major 
elements; 

1. Introduction which contains the facts obtained. 
2. Observations which present deviations or irregularities and cases of fraud and corruption detected, their 

causes and effect and indication of responsibility. 
3. Conclusions which arte based on these findings. 
4. Recommendations which, are proposals for actions to be taken to correct the irregularities detected, 

avoid the occurrence of such irregularities in the future and improve on performance of the auditee  

Article 8 

The audit team may if very extreme unquestionable irregularities particularly cases of fraud and corruption are 
detected, propose to the head of the SAI urgent precautionary measures to be taken against those responsible. 
These measures may range from the sealing of bank accounts of the entity being audited , suspension  from office 
of the management to the arrest of the official or officials concerned 
 
  

Type of 
conclusion:  
 

Reporting: 
 

Intended users of the reporting 
 
Section 5 of decree N° 97-48 
Audit reports are forwarded exclusively to the President of the Republic. 
A copy of the audit report may, on his instructions, may be given to any other authority. The audit report is 

Intended 
users:  
 



authentic until it is challenged. In order to permit the body audited to usefully and rapidly carry out the necessary 
adjustments recommended by the auditors, the said body is informed of the main findings of the report. 
 

Assignment 2: Audit of the Implementation of the general State Budget and budget of municipalities 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
 

Article 2 

The Supreme state Audit Office shall audit the Implementation of the general State Budget and budget of 
Municipalities 
 

  Scope:  
 

Conditions: 
  
Other 
auditors: 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 

Article 2 
- The audit covers the areas of regularity, financial and administrative management and performance. 
- Ascertain conformity with public financial acts. 

 

Branch of 
auditing:  
 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
  
Article 15 of decree N° 97-48 
In the course of this Audit, the Office seeks to ascertain  whether  the government budget  is managed in a manner 
as to ensure the best utilization of public resources and whether  officials responsible for the utilization of these 
funds have verified whether their decisions are consistent with laws and regulations in force and whether this has 
resulted in cost effectiveness, efficient and effective public affairs 
 

Type of 
conclusion:  
 

Reporting: 
 

Intended users of the reporting 

- Ministers 
- Municipal supervisory authorities  
- President of the republic 

 

Intended 
users:  
 

Assignment 3: To evaluate projects and programmes 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
 

Article 2 of decree N° 2005-374 
- To evaluate projects and programmes 
 

  Scope:  
 

Conditions: 
  
Other 
auditors: 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
 

- Compliance  
- Financial  
- Performance 
- Impact evaluation 
- Relevance 
- Utility and vitality of projects and programs  

 

Branch of 
auditing:  
 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
  
At the end of each audit assignment auditor’s report as to whether public funds were engaged and paid in the 
respect of the regulations in force; 
 
budget allocation is used for purposes for which they were granted; managed with due regard for economy, 
efficiency and effectiveness; projects were planned and the objectives of projects and programs are being attained, 
are adequate or have been met 

infrastructures received an assignment in conformity and adequate with their use and whether operation cost of 
infrastructures are compatible with their use 
 

Type of 
conclusion:  
 

Reporting: 
 

Intended users of the reporting 

- The government 

- Supervisory authorities  

- President of the republic. 
 
 

Intended 
users:  
 

Assignment 4 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 

Article 2 of decree N° 2005-374 
Assist the government in designing, implementing and evaluating state reform programmes relating to the national 
financial system; 
 

  Scope:  
 

Conditions: 
  
Other 
auditors: 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
 
The SAI of Cameroon plays an important role in encouraging these public sector reforms aimed at improving 
governance. In this domain, the SAI assumes, in addition to its traditional audit functions, the role of a consultant to 

Branch of 
auditing:  
 

Type of 



the government by examining for advisory purposes exposures drafts of reform measures formulated by the 
government.. 
 

require-
ments:  
 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 

In the designing phase, the SAI assesses the reform measures before their publication with a view, to the detection 
and indication of inadequacies and gaps contained in the measures likely to facilitate acts of mismanagement and 
proposing measures to rectify them or to improve upon the measures. 

In the implementation phase, the SAI conduct audits of the ongoing process to ascertain that reform objectives are 
being met and that funds put at the disposal of government units piloting the reforms have been expended for the 
purpose for which they are appropriated. 

In the evaluation phase they ascertain that reform objectives were met and that they are adequate.. 
 

Type of 
conclusion:  
 

Reporting: 
 

Intended users of the reporting 
 

- President of the republic 

- Government 

- Supervisory authority  
 

Intended 
users:  
 

Assignment 5: To contribute to meting out sanctions to government financial managers under conditions stipulated by laws and 
regulations 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 

Article 2 of decree N° 2005-374 

The supreme state audit office shall carry out on the basis of its audit reports punitive measures against officers for 
poor management, fraud and corrupt practices. This task is done by the budget and financial disciplinary Board 
which is the arm of the SA, empowered to examine and rule on irregularities committed by state executives, 
managers of public enterprises, public accountants and all those entrusted with the management of public funds.  
 

  Scope:  
 

Conditions: 
  
Other 
auditors: 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
 
The type of audit findings determine the decisions of the Board which, range from fines, prohibition from holding 
important functions in the management of state services and public enterprises to the communication of fraud 
cases to state prosecutors for criminal actions to be taken.. 

Branch of 
auditing:  
 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
  
The decisions of the board are published 
 
If the Board considers that in addition to the fines imposed or recommended by it, there are grounds for disciplinary 
action, it shall transmit the file accompanied by its recommendation in this respect to the ministerial authority 
having supervisory powers over the person concurred and to the authority invested with disciplinary powers. 
 
Current practice: 
If the initial inquiries made by the board disclose facts which may be deemed to constitute felonies or 
misdemeanors, the chairman of the Board transmits the file to the judicial authority. This transmission shall initiate 
an action by the state, the local authority or the undertaking in question against the person implicated 
 

Type of 
conclusion:  
 

Reporting: 
 

Intended users of the reporting 

- Ministry of Finances 
- The judiciary 
- Other Government Ministries 

 

Intended 
users:  
 

Assignment 6: Specific audits 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 

Article 2 of decree N° 2005-374 
The Supreme State Audit Office may , on the decision of the President of the republic carry out specific audit of 
public or private enterprises and bodies which are strategic to the nation or to national defense interests 
 

  Scope:  
 

Conditions: 
  
Other 
auditors: 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
- 

Branch of 
auditing:  
 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
 - 

Type of 
conclusion:  
 

Reporting: 
 

Intended users of the reporting 
President of the republic 

Intended 
users:  



 

Assignment 7: Counselling 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
 

Article 4 
The supreme state audit Office shall give its opinion on all draft legal and statutory instruments of a financial nature 
submitted to it 
 

  Scope:  
 

Conditions: 
  
Other 
auditors: 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
 
The SAI of Cameroon if requested by government, gives all the advice it deems helpful in connection with 
government policy in the areas of investment, liberalisation, privatisation and any economic and financial reforms.  
It’s role here is not to participate in the finale decision but to advise the government on certain aspects that should 
be taken in to consideration to ensure that the necessary conditions for a well performing public management and 
the protection of the rights of the users of public services are in place.  
 

Branch of 
auditing:  
 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
  

It makes to government in its audit and annual reports observation and recommendations to promote and improve 
government budgeting and financial management systems. 

 
The SAI in this way draws from it’s vast experience acquired from it’s audit work to contribute in the reflection on 
public strategies and policies as well as on major orientations of the administration. 
 

Type of 
conclusion:  
 

Reporting: 
 

Intended users of the reporting 

- Government  
- Municipal executives 

 

Intended 
users:  
 

 
 

Country: Senegal 
Assignment 1: Jurisdictional and financial audit by the Court 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
 
The Court of Auditors rules on the accounts of public accountants as defined  law n°99-70, in its article 25 
As regards the Court of Auditors, shall be considered as public accountant any civil servant or state agent who has 
the capacity to carry out, on behalf of a public body, income and expenditure operations or handle securities, either 
in the form of funds and values under his custody, 
The Court also rules on the accounts of persons it declares to be de facto accountants, i.e. those who perform the 
duties of duly appointed accountants or such accountants who abuse their functions. 
 
Current practice: 
Constituted in finance discipline bench, the Court shall be competent to punish acts of mismanagement and to 
pronounce fines against defaulters 
 
The Court of Auditors exercises its competences within the framework of an annual programme which it adopts 
freely. It can also carry out audit or investigations on the request of the President of the Republic, the Government 
or the Parliament. 
 

  Scope:  
 

Conditions: 
  
Other 
auditors: 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
 
Five months after the end of each management period, the senior accountants of the State, the regional and local 
authorities and public corporations must forward their management accounts to the Court of Auditors along with 
general and supporting documents of income and expenditure operations which they carried out during the period 
just ended. In the event of replacement of accountants in the course of the management period, the entire account 
is rendered by the accountant on seat at the close of the management period 
 
Current practice: 
Vote holders of the other regional and local authorities also submit their administrative accounts to the Court via 
the treasurer. The administrative account is used, in particular, to compare with the corresponding management 
account. 
 
 The rapporteurs carry out the auditing of accounts by examining income and expenditure documents and the 
supporting documents attached thereto. 
They verify the consistency and the exactness of income and expenditure described in the public accounts. They 
also ensure proper use of appropriations, funds and values managed by government services, the local 
government agencies and their public establishments‖ (article 26 of the organization chart law n° 99-70).²² 
 

Branch of 
auditing:  
 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
  
They then draw up a report at the end of the judgement and a draft provisional judgement which they present to the 
bench. The Court sits as a bench in camera. It hands down a provisional judgment by which it summons, where 
necessary, the accountant to give explanations or justifications on observations that necessitate charges. The 
accountant has not more than one month to answer to the observations and injunctions in the provisional 
judgement.. 
 
 

Type of 
conclusion:  
 

Reporting: 
 

http://www.courdescomptes.sn/textes/loi9970.htm
http://www.courdescomptes.sn/textes/loi9970.htm


Current practice: 
As soon as the matter is completely examined, the bench hands down a final ruling. 
 
If the account is found to be in order, the bench hands down a judgment of acquittal with regard to the accountant 
still on duty; as concerns the accountant replaced, it hands down a judgment of final discharge which relieves him 
of all sureties and guarantees mortgaging his property to the benefit of the public treasury 
 
Where the account is irregular or in defect (deficit or irregular payment), the judgement will declare the accountant 
to be in debit ―. The debit prevents the discharge of the accountant until he is audited, if need be, by his successors 
 

Intended users of the reporting 
 
As part of its assistance to the President of the Republic, the Government and the Parliament, the Court of 
Auditors, each year, presents two reports in accordance with article 9 of the audit act 
  1- The annual public report submitted to the President of the Republic and the Presidents of the National 
Assembly and the Senate, which is then later publicised.  
  2- The report on the bill of settlement and the general statement of conformity submitted to the office of the 
Presidents of the National Assembly and the Senate and forwarded for information to the minister in charge of 
Finance. 
 

Intended 
users:  
 

Assignment 2: Assistance to the President of the Republic, the Government and the Parliament in the audit of the execution of 
finance acts 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
 
The Court of Accounts shall each year  assist the President of the Republic, the Government and the Parliament in 
the audit of the execution of finance act (article 57, last subparagraph, ) 
 
It shall conduct any further enquiry that may be requested by Parliament on the occasion of the examination or 
vote of the bill of settlement (article 26). 
 

  Scope:  
 

Conditions: 
  
Other 
auditors: 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
 
It verifies the regularity and the sincerity of receipts and expenditures described in the government accounts. It 
ensures   that public funds and values managed by government services and other public agencies are properly 
managed and that they are expended for the purpose for which they were appropriated. 

Branch of 
auditing:  
 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
  
A special report is written at the end of each audit conducted by the Court This report gives   outlines the 
abnormalities seen and proposes improvements. This special report is deliberated upon collegially in the bench 
(Court) 
 

Type of 
conclusion:  
 

Reporting: 
 

Intended users of the reporting 
 

- Parliament  
- President 

 

Intended 
users:  
 

Assignment 3:  Audit of the semi-public sector 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
 
The Court of Auditors audits the accounts and controls the management, in particular, of semi-public companies 
which include public corporations of commercial and industrial nature, professional public establishments, health 
public establishments, national companies, limited companies in which the State is a majority shareholder. 
It also audits any organization receiving directly or indirectly the support of public authority, public and private 
sector, social security and pension institutions, as well as any organization financed through public fund raised at 
the national level.  
Furthermore, the Court of Auditors has the duty to audit the programmes executed with foreign funding from 
development partners. 
 

  Scope:  
 

Conditions: 
  
Other 
auditors: 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
 
The CVCCEP carries out a non-jurisdictional audit of the accounts and the management of the semi-public 
corporations. Its working methods and investigations are similar to the audit methodology commonly applied at the 
international level. 
 
The aim of these audits is to assess the quality of management and to formulate where necessary proposals likely 
to improve management procedures and to increase effectiveness and output. 
 
The Court also appreciates the realization of the assigned objectives, the adequacy of the means used, the costs 
of the goods and services produced, the prices charged and the financial results. Control also verifies the regularity 
and the sincerity of financial statements of entities being audited.  
 

Branch of 
auditing:  
 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
  
A special report is written at the end of each audit conducted by the Court This report gives an account of the 
methodology, outlines the abnormalities and proposes improvements. This special report is deliberated upon 
collegially in a restricted assembly (CVCCEP). 
 

Type of 
conclusion:  
 

Reporting: 
 

Intended users of the reporting Intended 



 
- President of the Republic 
- Parliament 
- Government 

 

users:  
 

Assignment 4: Sanctioning of acts of mismanagement (art 28) 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
 
Constituted in finance discipline bench, the Court shall be competent to punish acts of mismanagement and to 
pronounce fines against defaulters. 
 
The President of the Republic, the President of the National Assembly, the President of the Senate, the Prime 
Minister, the minister in charge for Finance, the president of the Court of Auditors and the president of the 
CVCCEP can refer a matter to the finance discipline. 
 

  Scope:  
 

Conditions: 
  
Other 
auditors: 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
- 

Branch of 
auditing:  
 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
  
Decisions of the finance discipline bench bear the execution formula. They are not subject to appeal. They 
published in the Official Gazette. 
 
 In the event of condemnation, the punishment is a fine of between 50 000F to at least and twice the gross annual 
salary of the defendant at the date of committing the acts or the annual gross salary corresponding to the highest 
scale of the index grid of the public service at the time of the facts if the concerned is not a worker. 
 

Type of 
conclusion:  
 

Reporting: 
 

Intended users of the reporting 
 

- President of the republic 
- Minister of Finance 
- Supervisory Authorities 

 

Intended 
users:  
 

 
 

Country: Mali 
Assignment 1 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
 
Article 2 of law N° 51 of 2000 
 
The Office of the Comptroller General of the Public Services of Mali shall be responsible for: 
 

1. the audit and inspection of government ministries, administrative  services , public and semi-public 
corporations,  and entities of any nature which receive directly or indirectly, the financial assistance of the 
State and local authorities; 

 
2. the audit of the execution  of the General State budget, regional budgets, budgets of local authorities and 

the accounts of government corporations not included in the budget; 
 

3. the audit of activities of  vote-holders and the  accounts of government  accountants; 
 

4. the search for possible corrupt practices or economic or financial delinquency in audited services and 
organizations. 

 
In this capacity, it carries out all particular investigations or missions, at the request of the supervisory authority or 
at its own initiative after consultation with the aforesaid the authority. 
  
Article 3 of law N° 67 of 2001 
At the beginning of every year, The comptroller general establishes and transmits the audit programme of the 
Office to the Prime Minister and the President of the Republic for approval 
In the discharge of their duties, members of the General Audit of the Public Service have the widest power to carry 
out 
 
They can, on their own initiative, after approval of the Prime Minister, lunch audit and investigation missions in all 
the public services.The Auditor General, the Assistant Auditor General and Controllers can have access to all the 
useful documents of the audited services and collect all useful testimonies. 
 

  Scope:  
 

Conditions: 
  
Other 
auditors: 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
 
Article 3 
In the course of their audit assignments auditors of the Office shall verify the propriety of public expenditure as well 
as the regularity of financial and accounting transactions of the auditee. 

- They shall evaluate the efficiency of the services provided by the auditee to the public. 
- They shall also verify the existence of relevant internal controls and evaluate the adequacy of these 

controls. 

Branch of 
auditing:  
 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
 



- The professional secrecy shall not be enforceable to them. 
 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
  
Article 4 
At the end of  each audit assignment  The Office of the Comptroller General of  Public Services must recommend  
measures intended to: 

- To correct errors and shortcomings recorded;  
- To improve the quality of  administrative and financial management and the functioning of the services  

of the of the auditee 
- To set up, if necessary, appropriate internal controls; 
- To  increase the output and the efficiency of the entity audited 

 
Article 4 of law N° 67 of 2001 
At the end of each year the Comptroller General produces an annual report of the audit activities of his services 
throughout the year, copy of which is transmitted to the Prime Minister and to the President of the Republic. This 
report particularly  outlines : 
 

- Observations made, errors and violations committed by entities audited  during the year; 
- Corrective measures and improvement actions recommended    
- Reforms needed for the good functioning of the audited 

 

Type of 
conclusion:  
 

Reporting: 
 

Intended users of the reporting 
 
Article 14 of law N° 67 of 2001 
 
At the end of their audit assignments, Controllers shall write a report, copy of which is transmitted to agents and 
officials of audited services and organizations who shall be invited to present their written answers to the findings 
within the time which is assigned to them. 
 
Two (02) copies of the final report shall be submitted by the Auditor General to the Prime Minister who transmits a 
copy to the President of the Republic in the 20 days which follow the transmission of the  
Reports. 
 
The Prime Minister shall regularly inform the President of the Republic of follow-up of audit reports which he 
receives. 
 

Intended 
users:  
 

 
 

Country: Burkina Faso 
Assignment 1: General audit functions 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
 
The Court of Auditors (Account Court) is the highest jurisdiction in the control of public finances. 
 
article 2: The Court of Auditors shall, pronounce judgement on the accounts of public accountants, sanction 
violations of management rules and assists the National Assembly in the control of the execution of the finance 
law.   
 
Article 3: The Court of Auditors shall, through constant controls, information and counselling, assist in the 
realization of the following missions: 
   - protection of State Property and the control of the sincerity of public finances; 
   - improvement of management methods and techniques; 
   - ensure rational administrative action. 
It shall carry out control of regularity in both revenue (encashment) and expenditure (disbursement) transactions of 
the controlled entities as well as propose sanctions when necessary, to violations of statutory instruments that 
regulate such operations. 
 
The Court shall be empowered to conduct checks and ensure the judicious use of public funds and the proper 
management of entities subjected to its control. 
It shall draw up both general and specific public reports at the end of each year. 
 
 

  Scope:  
 

Conditions: 
  
Other 
auditors: 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
 
Article 13: In the exercise of its jurisdictional powers, the Court of Accounts: 
 

- Shall judge accounts of the public accountants and to ensure conformity with accounting and financial 
regulations. 

- Shall pronounce judgments ascertain fines to be paid; 
- Shall declare and audits de facto managers; 
- Shall sanction management faults. 

 
Article 12: In the course of its budgetary and management control, the Court of Account: 
 

- Shall establish the conformity of the accounts of public accountants to that of the vote holder 
- Shall make known to those charged with the running of services subjected to control its findings on the 

insufficiencies and irregularities observed in the management of those services; 
- Shall formulate general and particular conclusive findings on the execution of the finance law and the 

use of the public funds; 
- Shall investigate and formulate suggestions on matters of financial and accountable nature that fall within 

Branch of 
auditing:  
 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
 



its competence at the request of the Head of the State; 
- Shall formulate suggestions on State policies in relation to public investments; 
- Shall conduct investigations and studies, at the request of the President of the National Assembly, on 

matters relating to the execution of public revenue and expenditure, the management public treasury, 
local collectivities, administrative services, State services or any institution subjected to its control. 

 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
  
The Court produces annually a report on the execution of the finance laws accompanying the general declaration 
of conformity.  
Every year, the Court examines the findings and observations made during different auditing assignments 
performed during the previous year and writes a report containing the important findings which it retains. This 
public report can suggest all reforms considered to be necessary to correct irregularities, errors or weaknesses 
observed.  
 
The Court of Account produces every two years, an overall report on the operations, the management and results 
of government companies audited by it during that period. The Court of Account outlines in this report its findings 
and lesson which can be drawn from these findings. 
 
The Court of accounts produces each year a special report on all financial and accounting matters which fall under 
its purview and which have been referred to it.  The Court can in these reports suggest as it deems necessary any 
orientation proposals with regards to the government investment policies. 
 

Type of 
conclusion:  
 

Reporting: 
 

Intended users of the reporting 
 

- This report is sent to the National Assembly 
- The President of the republic. 
- The general Public 
- This report is sent to the President of the republic 
- This report is sent to the president of the republic. 

 

Intended 
users:  
 

Assignment 2: Jurisdictional control 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
 
1- Judgment of accounts of accountants 
 
2-Managements of Funds by unqualified Persons (de facto management) 
   
Article 56: Any person who, without having the quality of public accountant or without acting under the supervision 
of a public accountant interferes in the recovery of revenue or funds affected to or intended to be manipulated by a 
public accountant or by any agent under the supervision of a public accountant, shall, notwithstanding judicial 
pursuits that could be opened against him, give account of the fund or values irregularly handled before the Court 
of account judge. 
The same applies for persons who receive or handle directly or indirectly funds or values irregularly extracted from 
the account of a public agency 
 

   Scope:  
 

Conditions: 
  
Other 
auditors: 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
 
The court appreciate the regularity of the justification of the operations registered in the accounts 
 
Article 57: Irregular management of accounts exposes the authors, declared de facto accounting officers by the 
Court of Auditors, to the same obligations and responsibilities as patent public accountants. 
 

Branch of 
auditing:  
 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
  
When irregularities are identified and the responsibility the accountant clearly ascertained, the court shall ask the 
defaulting accountant to produce either, proofs of correction of identified irregularities or complementary evidence 
that may enable the drop of charges levied against him. 
 
Charges levied against the accountant are brought to his attention by provisional ruling. The ruling may be 
accompanied by some additional evidence complementary to the initial charges. 
 

Type of 
conclusion:  
 

Reporting: 
 

Intended users of the reporting 
- 

Intended 
users:  
 

Assignment 3: Budget and Management audits 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
 
Control of government operations and those of Municipalities 
 
The Court of accounts audits the receipts and expenditures transactions carried out during the implementation of 
the general state budget and budgets of municipalities 
 
Current practice: 

- Corrective measures and improvement actions recommended    
- Reforms needed for the good functioning of the audited 

 

  Scope:  
 

Conditions: 
  
Other 
auditors: 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
 
This is to ensure conformity with budgetary and management procedures and to prepare the judgment of the 

Branch of 
auditing:  
 



accounts of accountants. Type of 
require-
ments:  
 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
 
If during the examination of the account of the State, and the Municipalities the Court finds irregularities or financial 
and administrative errors or weaknesses, It informs the minister or supervisory authority in charge and asked to be 
informed of measures taken to correct these errors.  
 
In the case where irregularities or errors have affected the financial interests of the State, the organization or the 
audited municipality, the Court can, in all these cases, ask that disciplinary actions be taken against the authors of 
these faults or negligence. The competent authority must, within six month, make known to the court actions that 
were taken as per this decision. 
 

Type of 
conclusion:  
 

Reporting: 
 

Intended users of the reporting 
 

- Govern Ministers 
- Supervisory Authorities 

 

Intended 
users:  
 

Assignment 4: Audit  of the social security Agencies 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
 
This may include all social security agencies be it private  which are running  family allowance or social welfare 
programs 

  Scope:  
 

Conditions: 
  
Other 
auditors: 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
 
The aim of the audit is to ensure compliance with social security legislations and regulations as well as the impact 
and results of the activities being carried out by these agencies. 

Branch of 
auditing:  
 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
 
The court reports each year  on the quality of  administrative and financial management , on the application of the 
social security acts 

Type of 
conclusion:  
 

Reporting: 
 

Intended users of the reporting 
 

- President of the republic 
- Board of Directors of these bodies 
- Parliament 

 

Intended 
users:  
 

Assignment 5:  Control of organizations and political parties benefiting from government subventions and projects on external 
funding 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
 
Organizations whose management is not subjected to the rules of the public accounting system can, whatever their 
legal nature and the form of the subvention which is given to them by the State, any local government, a public 
corporation or another public authority, be audited  by  the Court of accounts  
 

  Scope:  
 

Conditions: 
  
Other 
auditors: 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
 
With the exception of political parties benefiting from a State grants, the audit is exerted on the whole 
management, if this subvention exceeds 50% of the resources of the entity. On the contrary, the audits are limited 
to the expenditure accounts. 
 

Branch of 
auditing:  
 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
 - 

Type of 
conclusion:  
 

Reporting: 
 

Intended users of the reporting 
- 

Intended 
users:  
 

Assignment 6: Sanctioning  of government accountants   
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
 
The court of Accounts is empowered to try and hand out administrative sanctions to government officials 
responsible for financial and administrative wrongdoings. 
 
1-  FINES meted out to defaulting accountants 
 

  Scope:  
 

Conditions: 
  
Other 
auditors: 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
 

Branch of 
auditing:  



Any accountant who does not present his account within the prescribed delay may be 
Sanctioned by the Court of Accounts to a fine of 5.000 to 50.000 francs per month of delay. 
 
Article 67: Any accountant who does not answer the injunctions pronounced on his accounts in the time prescribed 
may be sanctioned by the Court of Auditors to a fine of 5.000 to 10.000 francs per injunction and per delay, except 
on the presentation of acceptable excuses. 
 

 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
  
The monies collected from fines pronounced by the Court of Auditors are given to the Municipality or to the 
government agency that employs the defaulting accountant.  
The fines pronounced on government accountants are recorded as receipts in the general state budget.  
 
Current practice: 
Article 72: The Court of Auditors notifies directly to the accountants the judgments delivered on their management. 
 
At the same time the aforementioned rulings are also notified: 

- to the Minister of  Finance  for government accountants 
- to the administrative supervisory authority for accountants of municipalities and government agencies 

 
Article 73: The accountants transmit directly to the Court of Auditors their answers to provisional rulings.. 
 
 

Type of 
conclusion:  
 

Reporting: 
 

Intended users of the reporting 
- 
Current practice: 

- Minster of Finances. 
- Supervisory Authorities. 
- Concerned Authorities. 

 

Intended 
users:  
 

Assignment 7: Sanctions of govern executives 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
 
Article 79: The Court of Auditors shall have competence to sanction vote holders on mismanagement practices 
detrimental to the State, the Municipalities, public corporations or any other organization that fall under the purview 
the Court. 
 
Are therefore accountable before the Court of Auditors, all administrative authorities who intervene in the 
management of all public funds. That is: 

- all civil servants, local government agent, agents of public corporations, or government official; 
- any representative, administrator or agent of all other organizations subjected to the control the Court of 

Auditors ; 
 
 

  Scope:  
 

Conditions: 
  
Other 
auditors: 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
 
The court carries out punitive measures on state executives, managers of public enterprises, officials of 
municipalities and all those entrusted with the management of public funds for committing offences such as: 

- carrying out expenditures without complying with applicable rules ; 
- carrying out expenditures without having the capacity or without having received delegation of signature 

for this purpose; 
- violating rules relating to the execution of revenue and expenditure of local councils, public 

establishments or agencies subjected to the control of the Court  
Violating  rules governing the management of the state property put at their disposal approving an irregular act in 
relation to the aforesaid establishments or organizations over which they exercise supervisory authority; 

- in the performance of their duties, knowingly omit to transmit declarations which they are obliged to 
forward to tax authorities or knowingly provides inaccurate or incomplete declaration; 

- in the exercise of their functions or attributions, give to someone else ²unjustified, pecuniary advantage 
or in kind, at the detriment of the public treasury, the community or the interested organization, or tries to 
get such an advantage  for themselves. 

 

Branch of 
auditing:  
 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
 
The Court of Accounts levy fines whose minimum amount cannot be lower than 20.000 francs and the maximum 
amount may double the total amount of his gross annual salary of the defaulter. 
 

Type of 
conclusion:  
 

Reporting: 
 

Intended users of the reporting 
 

- Minster of Finances. 
- Supervisory Authorities. 
- Board of Directors 

 

Intended 
users:  
 

 



Table 4: The provisions of the mandates of the selected SAIs in 
ARABOSAI 
 
Country: Kingdom of Bahrain 
Assignment: Regulatory audit 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
 
Article 4 of NAC Law

2
 

The Audit Court shall audit the following entities: 
1. Ministries, departments and public organizations which constitute the administrative set-up of the State 

and entities attached thereto, provided that the Ministry of Defence, Ministry of Interior and the National 
Guard shall be exempted from the audit of the Audit Court as far as the secret expenses relating to 
national security are concerned; 

2. The Consultative Council, the House of Representatives and the municipal councils; 3.Provinces, 
municipal administrative   organizations and all local authorities that have public legal personality; 

3. Public corporations, public institutions and establishments affiliated to the State or to the provinces, 
municipalities, or other local authorities having public legal personality, unless such audit conflicts with 
the laws organizing their works;  

4. Entities the laws of which stipulate that they shall be subject to the audit of the Audit Court; 
5. Any other entity, which the King authorizes the Audit Court to audit. 

 

  Scope:  
Po 
At 
As 
L 
O 
Par 
 

Conditions: 
 Fix 
 
Other 
auditors: 
EA 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
 
Article 1 
The Audit Court shall undertake the financial audit of the public funds and funds of the entities stipulated in Article 
(4) of this Law, and shall verify, in particular, the soundness and legality of using such funds and their proper 
management in the manner provided for in this Law. 

 
Article 4  
Twelfth: Examine and review the final accounts of the end of the financial year of   the State and other public 
entities subject to the audit of the Audit Court with the objective of issuing an independent technical opinion on the 
correctness of these accounts and financial statements relating thereto and to ascertain that they are prepared 
according to the applicable accounting standards. 
 

Article 5 

The Audit Court shall undertake subsequent audit over the entities subject to its audit, and for so doing, it shall 
exercise the following functions: 

First: To verify that the administrative bodies have collected the revenues due to the State, deposited and credited 
the same in to their respective accounts. 

 
In order to achieve this task, the Audit Court shall, in particular, conduct the following: 
Audit the documents, entries and accounts to verify the soundness and accuracy of such dues; 
 
Ascertain that what has been collected represents the legally accrued amounts and that the financial transactions 
relating to the collections of such dues and their deposits have been conducted in a proper and regular manner 
according to the finance and accounting laws, rules and regulations; 
Verify that no exemption from taxes, fees or costs has been made other than in the cases provided for in the Law 
and in accordance with its provisions. 
 
Second: To verify that the expenditure has been incurred in an appropriate manner and within the approved limits 
of the budget appropriations, and in conformity with the objectives for which they have been allocated, and that the 
spending process through all its stages has been conducted according to the financial and accounting laws, rules 
and regulations. In order to achieve this task, the Audit Court shall, in particular, conduct the following: 
  a)Verify that the allocated funds were used without extravagance;  
  b)Ascertain that the documents presented to support the expenditure are correct, and the amounts spent subject 
to such documents are identical to the figures of the accounting records; 
  c)Verify that there was no overspending on funds allocated to each chapter or item of the budget, except after the 
approval of the designated authority, and according to the accounting laws, rules, regulations, and instructions. 
 
Fourth: Audit all settlement accounts relating to deposits, loans and current accounts, and to ascertain the 
soundness of related transactions, and that figures thereof are registered in the accounts, and that they are correct 
and supported by legally prescribed documents. 
 
Fifth: Audit the accounts of loans extended or received by the State or one of the entities, which are subject to the 
audit of the Audit Court. The Audit Court shall ascertain in the first case that the payment of the principal loan, its 
interest and related charges, were made according to the conditions of the loan agreement, and to ascertain in the 
second case, that the State or the borrowing entity had paid the principal of the loan, its interest and the related 
charges in due time, and to ensure, in both cases, that the financial conditions of the loan agreement are proper. 
The provision of this clause shall be applicable to loans guaranteed by the State, or one of the entities subject to 
the audit of the Audit Court. 

Branch of 
auditing:  
FC 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
PO 
Rs 

                                                      
2
 Decree Law No. (16) for the year 2002 concerning the National Audit Court Law.  

  

 



 
Sixth: Examine and review the resolutions relating to employment in the entities prescribed in paragraph (a), (b), 
(c) and (d) of article (4) of this Law, concerning employment, promotions, allowances, supplementary salaries, 
settlements, and the like, as well as travel and transportation allowances, in order to ascertain the soundness of 
such resolutions and their conformity with the rules of the State budget, and with all the financial rules, laws, bye-
Laws and resolutions regulating this subject matter. 
 
Seventh: Examine and review the pension accounts, indemnities, insurance payments, social insurance and 
subsidies, and ascertain their conformity with the laws, bye- Laws and resolutions regulating them. 
 
Eighth: Review the areas in which the funds allocated in the State budget and in the budgets of other entities 
subject to the audit of the Audit Court are invested, unless such review contradicts the laws regulating their 
activities. The Audit Court shall also review the accounts of these investments, and the appropriateness of their 
returns, and shall make the due comments in this respect. 
 
Ninth: Inspect all warehouses, stores and stocks belonging to the entities subject to the audit of the Audit Court, 
and shall for so doing undertake the following, in particular: a) Examine and review the documents, books, records 
and accounts relating to the warehouses, stores and stocks herein referred to, in order to ascertain the 
correctness of the accounting records related thereto; 

b)     Ascertain the soundness of the physical stock-taking operations;  
c)     Study the reasons that led to the accumulation of inventories or their damage, explain how it shall be   
        dealt with, and suggest the suitable means to avoid the occurrence of such stocking or damage in future; 
c)     Suggest the appropriate means for safekeeping and maintaining the stocks, and the necessary rules for  
        making sound plans for supplying the warehouses and stores; 
d)     Ascertain the adequacy of the systems and regulations relating to the warehouses, stores and their  
        proper implementation, and draw the attention to the deficiency, which might be observed in the   
        aforementioned systems and regulations, in order to avoid such deficiency in future 

 
If it appeared to the Audit Court that there is evidence that any of the warehouses, stores or stocks had been 
mishandled, the Audit Court shall request the concerned entity to undertake by itself an immediate physical stock-
taking. In such case, the Audit Court’s designated employee shall attend the physical stocktaking without 
participating therein.  
 
Tenth: Disclose acts of embezzlement, negligence and financial violations that occur in the entities subject to the 
audit of the Audit Court, investigate the reasons behind that, and identify the weaknesses in the systems which led 
to their occurrence, or which assisted or facilitated their occurrence, and to propose the means for their treatment. 
 
Eleventh: Carry out stocktaking of the currency, stamps and securities to ascertain its conformity with the related 
accounting entries. 
 
Current practice: Apply the INTOSAI and ISA standards. 

 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
 
Article 4  
Twelfth:  

- ― independent technical opinion‖, 
- ‖ ascertain‖. 

 
Article 5 

- First: ―To verify‖ 
- Second: ‖verify‖, ―Ascertain‖ 
- Fourth:‖‖ascertain 
- Fifth: ‖ascertain‖,‖ ensure‖ 
- Sixth: ―Ascertain‖ 
- Seventh: ―Ascertain‖ 
- Eighth:  ‖shall make the due comments‖, ‖ review‖ 
- Ninth: ‖ Examine‖, ‖ Ascertain‖,‖  explain ‖, ― suggest‖ 

e) ―Request the concerned entity to undertake by itself an immediate physical stock-taking.‖ 
- Tenth:‖ Disclose‖, ― investigate‖, ―propose‖. 
- Eleventh: ―Ascertain‖ 

 
Article 19 
The President of the Audit Court shall prepare an annual report on the final account of the State and the final 
accounts of the entities subject to its audit, explaining therein its comments and any disagreement between the 
Audit Court and entities subject to its audit. 

This report shall be presented to the King, the Council of Ministers and to the House of Representatives before the 
date fixed for the approval of the final account relative to that report. 

 

The House of Representatives may invite the President of the Audit Court to attend the sessions in which the 
House discusses the Audit Court’s report, and shall allow the President to express his views on the matters under 
discussion, and on the government replies or statements concerning the said matters. 

 

Article 22 

The Audit Court shall issue its audit and the results of its inspection in the form of comments to be advised to the 
concerned entities through the ministers to which they are affiliated. Such entities must provide the Audit Court with 

Type of 
conclusion:  
rA 
Ass 

Reporting: 
Y 



their replies to such comments, fulfill the requests of the Audit Court and take the required proceedings within one 
month from the date of receiving the notice to collect the lost funds, or the unlawfully spent funds, or funds which 
fell due but negligently not collected.  

 

Intended users of the reporting 
Article 19 

―King, the Council of Ministers and the House of Representatives‖. 

 

Article 22 

―..  to the concerned entities through the ministers to which they are affiliated‖. 

 
e) ― the concerned entity‖ 
 

Intended 
users:  
He 
Pa 
Go 
O 
 

Assignment: Performance and Special Nature Assignments 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
 
Article 4 of NAC Law 
The Audit Court shall audit the following entities: 

1. Ministries, departments and public organizations which constitute the administrative set-up of the State 
and entities attached thereto, provided that the Ministry of Defence, Ministry of Interior and the National 
Guard shall be exempted from the audit of the Audit Court as far as the secret expenses relating to 
national security are concerned; 

2. The Consultative Council, the House of Representatives and the municipal councils; 
3. Provinces, municipal administrative   organizations and all local authorities that have public legal 

personality; 
4. Public corporations, public institutions and establishments affiliated to the State or to the provinces, 

municipalities, or other local authorities having public legal personality, unless such audit conflicts with 
the laws organizing their works; 

5. Companies in which the State or one or more entities with public legal personality, hold more than 50% 
of their capital, or which the State guarantees them a minimum profit or provides them with financial 
assistance; 

6. Entities the laws of which stipulate that they shall be subject to the audit of the Audit Court; 
7. Any other entity, which the King authorizes the Audit Court to audit. 
8. each company subject to its audit, and shall present such report to the administrative entity which 

supervises the company, to the Ministry of Finance and National Economy and to the company’s board 
of directors within a period not exceeding thirty days from the date of receiving the audited financial 
statements from such companies. 

 
Current practice:  
 
NAC current practice regarding the performance and special nature assignments is as per the law provisions 
except on the reporting requirments of Article 20 as NAC did not prepare an annual report concerning each 
company subject to its audit within a period not exceeding thirty days from the date of receiving the audited 
financial statements from such companies,because it is not practicle and possible as per the companies law. 
Hence, there is a proposal to be discussed in the parliment to ammend this article of the law. 
 

  Scope:  
Po 
A 
L 
O 

Conditions: 
 Dis  
Per 
 
Other 
auditors: 
EA 
 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
 
Article 5 
Thirteenth: Examine the reports of the auditors of the companies, which are subject to the audit of the Audit Court, 
and the audited financial statements and reports of their boards of directors. The Audit Court shall have the right to 
review any records, books documents or papers concerning the business of these companies. 
 
Article 6   
Review the financial and accounting systems, and the methods of processing the financial transactions in order to 
ascertain their correctness, identify their deficiencies, and suggest the necessary means for their rectification, and 
improvement, in view of establishing the safest, most efficient and accurate management system for the funds 
subject to the audit; 
   b)Study and examine the accounting and internal audit systems concerning the computer programs, to ensure 
the efficiency and adequacy of these systems, and to identify their deficiencies and weaknesses, and make sure 
that these systems are protected from unauthorized access and to propose reasonable means for the treatment of 
such deficiencies; 
   c) Ascertain that the approved objectives for which the budget allocated from public funds subject to the audit, 
have been met, and that the resources available to meet these objectives have been utilized in a proper manner to 
achieve optimum out-puts with minimum possible resources; and shall also investigate the reasons for not 
achieving the objectives, or non-utilization of the available resources in an efficient manner, and provide the 
necessary recommendations in this respect; 
   d) Study the efficiency of the financial operations with regard to their speed, cost, quality and performance, 
without complications or duplications, and to explain the balance between the input and output of goods and 
services, in order to achieve efficiency, effectiveness and savings in the utilization of the resources. To study the 
conformity and balancing of the financial expenditure with the targeted public benefit and the importance of such 

Branch of 
auditing:  
CP 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
POR 
s 



expenditure and its economic feasibility, and to determine the spending priorities. 
 
Current practice: Apply the INTOSAI Standards. 

 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
 Article 5 
―Examine‖, ―have the right to review‖ 
 
Article 6   
―Review‖, ―Study and examine‖, ―ascertain‖  
 
Article 19 
―The President of the Audit Court shall prepare an annual report on the final account of the State and the final 
accounts of the entities subject to its audit…‖ 
 
 Article 20 
The Audit Court shall prepare an annual report concerning each company subject to its audit, and shall present 
such report to the administrative entity which supervises the company, to the Ministry of Finance and National 
Economy and to the company’s board of directors within a period not exceeding thirty days from the date of 
receiving the audited financial statements from such companies. 
 
The President of the Audit Court, the Audit Court’s undersecretary, or one of the assistant undersecretaries may 
attend the company’s general assembly meetings at which the auditors’ report and the board of directors reports 
are discussed, and shall address the meeting and express his views on matters under discussion.  He may raise 
explanations and ask for clarifications, but shall not have the right to vote. 
 
Article 21 
The President of the Audit Court may present other reports during the financial year on matters which he considers 
to be of great importance, and which needs to be promptly brought to the attention of the concerned authorities 
 
Article 22 
The Audit Court shall issue its audit and the results of its inspection in the form of comments to be advised to the 
concerned entities through the ministers to which they are affiliated. Such entities must provide the Audit Court with 
their replies to such comments, fulfill the requests of the Audit Court and take the required proceedings within one 
month from the date of receiving the notice to collect the lost funds, or the unlawfully spent funds, or funds which 
fell due but negligently not collected. 
 

Type of 
conclusion:  
Ass 

Reporting: 
Y 
 
Ç 
 

Intended users of the reporting 

Article 19 
“King, the Council of Ministers and the House of Representatives”. 
 
Article 20 
“…administrative entity which supervises the company, the Ministry of Finance and National Economy and to 
the company’s board of directors”. 
 
Article 21 
“…..the concerned authorities”. 
 
Article 22 
”…..the concerned entities …” 
 
Current practice: 
-  The the concerned authorities in Article 21 are the King, the Council of Ministers and the House of 
Representatives. 

  
- The concerned entities in Article 22 is represented by these entities ministers. 
 

Intended 
users:  

He 

Go 

Pa 
O 

Assignment: Financial Violations 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
 
Article 13 
First: In the implementation of the provisions of this Law, the following shall be considered as financial violations: 
a) Violations of the rules, regulations and financial procedures stipulated in the Constitution, laws, rules and 
regulations; 

b) Violation of the provisions of the State’s general budget and the budgets attached thereto or independent 
therefrom, in addition to the budgets of the other entities subject to the audit of the Audit Court; 

  c) Any wrong act, whether committed intentionally, recklessly, or negligently, which results in unlawful spending of 
funds subjected to the audit or  .....; 
  d) Embezzlement of funds subject to the audit or abuse the safekeeping thereof; 
  e) Violation of the provisions of the Tenders law, regulations and procedures relating to purchases, sales and 
warehouses ...; 
  f) Engagement in unnecessary expenditures, or expenditures which are not required for public interest. 
 
Second: The following shall also be considered as financial violations: 
  a) Failure to provide the Audit Court with the accounts and their supporting documents on the fixed dates, or with 
the papers and documents it requires for carrying out its audit. 
  b) Failure of the entities subject to the audit of the Audit Court to take the necessary proceedings, within one 
month from the date of their notification by the Audit Court to collect the lost amounts of money, or unlawfully spent 
funds or funds which have become due but negligently not collected. 

  Scope:  
Po 
A 
L 
O 

Conditions: 
 Dis 
Per 
 
Other 
auditors: 
EA 
 



 
Article 16: 
In case any entity subject to the audit of the Audit Court discovers a financial violation under this Law, it must 
provide the Audit Court with a report on such violation and copies of supporting documents within a maximum 
period of seven days from the date of its discovery.  
 
Article 17 
Every entity which is subject to the provisions of this Law must, immediately refer to investigation upon discovery, 
any violations which occur therein. Upon receiving the result of the investigation, it must decide whether to close 
the proceedings or to punish the offender.   
The entity shall provide the Audit Court with the decision taken on such violations within seven days from the date 
of the decision, accompanied by the minutes of the investigation and other papers and documents relating thereto. 
 
Article 18: 
If it appears to the Audit Court from the inspection of the documents that the decision to close the proceedings is 
incorrect, or the punishment passed against the offender is not appropriate to the committed violation, the 
President of the Audit Court shall return the papers to the entity which issued the decision within fifteen days from 
the date of its entire receipt by the Audit Court, and shall require such entity to reconsider the subject matter, either 
by punishing the offender in case the decision relates to closing the proceedings, or to increase the punishment in 
order to make the punishment appropriate to the violation. 
 
The concerned entity shall take action on the request of the Audit Court, and shall inform the Audit Court of the 
result within a maximum period of seven days from the date of receiving the papers returned by the Audit Court. 
 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 

- 
Branch of 
auditing:  
C 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
PR 
s 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
Article 11  
 

The Audit Court shall notify the entities subject to its audit with the violations it discovers, and request them to take 

the necessary proceedings to collect the amounts due to them, or the amounts unlawfully spent during a specific 

period of time. The Audit Court shall have the right to refer the issue to the concerned authority to take criminal 

proceedings, if it has material evidence that a crime has been committed. 

 
Article 19 
―The President of the Audit Court shall prepare an annual report on the final account of the State and the final 

accounts of the entities subject to its audit…‖ 

 

Type of 
conclusion:  
AI 
>AI 

Reporting: 
Y 
Ç 

Intended users of the reporting 

Article 11 
“…the concerned authority” 
 
Article 13:  
 “entities subject to its audit”. 
 

Article 19 
“King, the Council of Ministers and the House of Representatives”. 
 
Current practice: 
- The the concerned authorities in Article 11 is the Prosecutor General. 
- The concerned entities in Article 13 is represented by these entities ministers. 

 

Intended 
users:  
He 
Pa 
Go 
O 

Assignment: Construction Projects 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
Article 4: 
Third: Audit the implementation of construction projects included in the plan. In order to achieve this task, the 
Audit Court shall, in particular, conduct the following: 
Ascertain that the implementation of these projects has been made within the cost  limit and the prescribed 
periods, and has achieved the objectives specified in the plan, and to explain the reasons for the discrepancy and 
shortcoming.  

- Verify the sound use of the funds allocated in the budget for such projects and that the amounts charged 
against these funds have been spent according to what they have been allocated for. 

- Verify that no unbudgeted work has been done before an additional appropriation had been allocated 
thereto. 

- Verify the reasons for the under-spending of all or part of the funds allocated in the budget for 

  Scope:  
c 
 

Conditions: 
 Dis 
Per 
 
Other 
auditors: 
EA 
 



construction projects, and that no surplus in the fund of certain work had been used to exceed the funds 
allocated to other projects, so as to cause an increase in the final costs of that work in excess of the 
amount allocated thereto in the budget, without the approval of the authority endowed with the right to 
approve the excess of the final costs. 

 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
Article 4: 
Third: 

a) ―…. made within the cost  limit and the prescribed periods, and has achieved the objectives specified in 
the plan, and to explain the reasons for the discrepancy and shortcoming‖. 

b) ― sound use of the funds‖ 
c) ―… no unbudgeted work has been done before an additional appropriation had been allocated thereto‖. 
d) ―no surplus‖, ―without approval‖ 

 
Current practice: Apply the INTOSAI and ISA standards. 

 

Branch of 
auditing:  
FPC 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
O 
P 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
Article 4: 
Third: ― Ascertain‖, ― Verify‖ 
 
Article 19 
―The President of the Audit Court shall prepare an annual report on the final account of the State and the final 
accounts of the entities subject to its audit…‖ 
 
Article 22 
The Audit Court shall issue its audit and the results of its inspection in the form of comments to be advised to the 
concerned entities through the ministers to which they are affiliated. Such entities must provide the Audit Court with 
their replies to such comments, fulfill the requests of the Audit Court and take the required proceedings within one 
month from the date of receiving the notice to collect the lost funds, or the unlawfully spent funds, or funds which 
fell due but negligently not collected.  
 

Type of 
conclusion:  
Ass 

Reporting: 
Ç 

Intended users of the reporting 

Article 19 
“King, the Council of Ministers and the House of Representatives”. 
 

Article 22 
“..  to the concerned entities through the ministers to which they are affiliated”. 
 

Intended 
users:  
He 
Pa 
Go 
O 

 
  



Country: Kuwait 
Assignment: Compliance, performance, and special assignments 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
Article 5: 
The following authorities shall be subject to the Financial Control of the SAB: 
- All the Ministries, Departments and Public Organizations which constitute the administrative system of the State.  
- The Municipalities and all other local bodies which have a public legal entity.  
- Public Commissions, bodies, establishments attached to the State, the municipalities or other local bodies, which 
have a public legal entity.  
- Companies or establishments in which the State or any other public legal entity holds a share of not less than 
50% of their capital or guarantees them a minimum profit.  
 

  Scope:  
P 
L 
O 

Conditions: 
 Fix 
 
X 
Other 
auditors: 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
Article 6:  
The SAB shall, in general, exercise Control over the collection of the State revenues and expenditures within the 
limits of the budget allocations and shall examine the adequacy of the regulations and methods adopted for the 
safeguarding of public funds and prevention of their abuse.  
The SAB control shall, in particular, include the accounts of the Ministries, Government organizations and 
departments and all their branches, as well as the accounts of the bodies which have independent or 
supplementary budgets, including the National Assembly and of all other bodies mentioned in the preceding Article.  
 
Article 7: 
The SAB Control shall be exercised before and after the expenditure, in accordance with the provision of this Law. 
 
Article 8:  
In respect of revenues, the SAB Control shall include the following .. 
 
Article 9: 
In respect of expenditures, the SAB control shall include verification of the following ….  
 
Article 10:  
The SAB shall be competent to examine and check personnel orders concerning the authorities referred to in 
paragraphs I, II & III of Article 5 on appointments, promotions, grant of increments, settlements, allowances, 
additional salaries and the like, as well as travel allowances and transport expenses, in order to examine the 
validity of such orders and their conformity with the rules of the Budget and the other financial provisions, laws, by-
laws and orders there under.  
 
Article 11: 
The SAB shall examine and audit the accounts of pension funds, service benefits and insurance, social security 
and aid payments and verify that they conform with the laws, by-laws and orders there under.  
 
Article 12: 
The bodies referred to in the first three paragraphs of Articles 5 of this Law shall submit to the SAB all their orders 
concerning appointment of staff, employees and workmen, their promotions, grant of increments and the like, and 
orders concerning pensions and service benefits and the like, shall be submitted within a period not exceeding ten 
delays from the date of their issue, and the other orders within a period not exceeding…comments concerning the 
conformity of the said orders with the condition of the Budget and the financial controls and rules regulating it, 
sufficiently before the lapse of the period specified for withdrawal or challenge. The authority concerned shall 
immediately withdraw or cancel such faulty orders and their resulting effects. If the said authority does not agree to 
the SAB opinion... 
 
Article 17: 
The SAB shall be competent to examine and check all settlement accounts n respect of materials held in 
safekeeping, imprests and current accounts, and verify the correctness of the work involved in their regard, that 
their figures are entered in the account books and that they are correct and supported by legal documents.  
 
Article 18: 
The SAB shall check the accounts of advances and loans granted by the State or any establishment or body 
having a public legal entity as well as such advances and loans granted thereto. With regard to the former case, it 
shall verify that the capital, interest and their supplements are paid to the Public Treasury in accordance with the 
terms of the contract granting the advance or loan. With regard to the latter case, it shall verify that the State or the 
borrowing public body has aid back the capital, interest and supplements on the fixed dates…. 
 
Article 19:  
The SAB may examine the ways in which the State funds are invested, check the account of such investments and 
make any comments it deems fit in this respect.  
 
Article 20:  
The SAB has the right to examine the administrative, financial and accountancy by-laws in order to ascertain their 
adequacy and suggest the means to avoid any deficiency in them. 
 
Current practice: The applied rules and regulations relating to personnel, salaries, bonuses, and insurance 
expenditures.   
 
Article 19: Principles of sound financial management. 
The supervising entity’s regulations on investment. 
 
Article 20: Principles of Sound Financial Management. 
 

Branch of 
auditing:  
FC 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
P 
s 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
 Article 10:  

Type of 
conclusion:  



―…. in order to examine the validity of such orders and their conformity with the rules of the Budget and the other 
financial provisions, laws, by-laws and orders there under‖.  
  
Article 11: 
―… and verify that they conform with the laws, by-laws and orders there under‖.  
 
Article 12: 
―the conformity of the said orders‖. 
 
Article 17: 
―verify the correctness of the work‖ 
 
Article 18: 
―verify‖ 
 
Article 20:  
―ascertain‖ 
 
Current practice:  
Resolve: Verification 
Report: Yearly 
 

>Cass 
Am 
Ass 

Reporting: 
Y 
 

Intended users of the reporting 
Article 12: 
―Comments‖ 
 
Current practice:  
His Highness the Emir 
The entity. 
Parliament 
Council of Ministers 
Minister of Finance 
 

Intended 
users:  
He 
Pa Go  
O 

Assignment: Supply and public work tenders 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
Article 13: 
Supply and public works tenders, where the value of each is upwards of one hundred thousand dinars** shall be 
subject to the SAB prior control. In determining such value…. 
The SAB shall settle the matter and notify the authority concerned of the result within a period not exceeding seven 
days from the date of receipt of the tender documents and all the papers, documents, statements and explanations 
related to it, in full and duly completed. 
 
** Value was twenty thousand dinars, has been amended to one thousand dinars by Decree-law No. 4 of 1977, 
issued on January 27, 1977 and published in Kuwait – AlYoum No. 1121 on Feb.1, 1977.  
 

  Scope:  
c 
 

Conditions: 
 X 
Req 
 
Other 
auditors: 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
Article 13: 
 ― prior control‖ 
 
Current practice: SAB Law and other laws organizing the same (Tenders, Legal Opinion & legislation…etc). 

Branch of 
auditing:  
C 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
P 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
 Article 13: 
 ―notify the authority concerned of the result‖ 
 
Current practice:  

- Resolve: verification and opinion. 
- Report :  
- Regularly 

 

Type of 
conclusion:  
Am 

Reporting: 
Ç 

Intended users of the reporting 
Article 13: 
 ―the authority concerned‖ 
 

Intended 
users:  
O 
 

Assignment: Materials entrusted to and operations in the public stores and warehouses 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
 
Article 15: 
The SAB shall be competent to inspect all materials entrusted to and operations in the public stores and 
warehouses and their various branches, and examine and check their documents, books, registers and accounts.  
 
The SAB shall verify the safekeeping of various kinds of materials and the correctness of the accounts entries 
pertaining to them, shall investigate the reasons for any damage to or piling up of such materials and make any 
proposals it deems fit for the disposal of the damaged or piled up materials in order to prevent any such recurrence 
in future.  
 
The SAB shall also ascertain the adequacy and sound application of the by-laws and regulations laid down for the 
stores and warehouses referred to, and draw attention to any deficiencies that it may find in them in order to avoid 
them.  

  Scope:  
Ps 

Conditions: 
 Dis 
 
Other 
auditors: 



 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
 
Article 15: 
 ―The SAB shall be competent to inspect all materials entrusted to and operations in the public stores and 
warehouses and their various branches, and examine and check their documents, books, registers and accounts‖. 

Branch of 
auditing:  
C 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
P 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
 Article 15: 

- ―correctness of the accounts entries pertaining to them, shall investigate the reasons for any damage to 
or piling up of such materials and make any proposals it‖. 

 
- ―make any proposals‖ 

 
- ―draw attention to any deficiencies‖ 

 

Type of 
conclusion:  
Ass 

Reporting: 
Ç 

Intended users of the reporting 
 
Current practice:  

- His Highness the Emir 
- The entity. 
- Parliament 
- Council of Ministers 
- Minister of Finance 

Intended 
users:  
He 
Pa 
Go 
O 

Assignment: Embezzlement, Negligence and Financial contravention   
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
 
Article 16: 
 ―public stores, warehouses or treasuries‖ 
 

  Scope:  
P 
L 
O 

Conditions: 
 Dis 
Other 
auditors: 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
Article 16: 

The SAB shall find out and investigate the reasons for cases of embezzlement, negligence and financial 
contravention, the loopholes in the standing work orders which caused, helped or facilitated their happening, and 
suggest corrective measures.  

If the SAB suspects the existence of malpractice in any of the public stores, warehouses or treasuries it may ask 
the authority concerned to take an immediate inventory, which the authority shall carry out. In this event the 
competent inspector or checker in the SAB may witness but not take part in the inventory work 
 
Current practice: SAB Law and the recommendations of the Minister of Finance. 
 

Branch of 
auditing:  
C 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
P 
s 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
 Article 16: 

- ― public stores, warehouses or treasuries‖ 
- ― suggest corrective measures‖ 
- ― ask the authority concerned to take an immediate inventory‖ 

 
Current practice: Verification and audit opinion. 
 

Type of 
conclusion:  
AI 

Reporting: 
Ç 

Intended users of the reporting 
- 
Current practice:  

- His Highness the Emir 
- The entity. 
- Parliament 
- Council of Ministers 
- Minister of Finance 

Intended 
users:  
He 
Pa 
Go 
O 

Assignment: Final accounts of the financial year ended 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
Article 21:  
 
The SAB shall be competent to examine and check the final accounts of the financial year ended for each of the 
State, the public bodies and establishments whose budgets are regulated by laws. 

  Scope:  
Pa 
Pr 
Oa 
Or 

Conditions: 
 Fix 
Dis 
Other 
auditors: 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
- 
Current practice: Financial Reporting Standards, and the applied rules and regulations 
 

Branch of 
auditing:  
F 

Type of 
require-
ments:  



P 
R 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
Article 22:  
The President of the SAB shall make an Annual Report about each of the final accounts referred to in the 
preceding Article, setting forth the comments and differences which may occur between the SAB and the 
authorities subject to its Financial Control. The said report shall be submitted to the Head of the State, the National 
Assembly, the Council of Ministries and the Minister of Finance not later than the end of the month of January 
following the lapsing of the fiscal year.  
The President of the SAB may submit other reports during the year on matters which in his opinion are of such 
importance and seriousness that they should be promptly considered.  
 

Type of 
conclusion:  
Ass 

Reporting: 
Y 
Ç 

Intended users of the reporting 
Article 22:  
― the Head of the State, the National Assembly, the Council of Ministries and the Minister of Finance not later than 
the end of the month of January following the lapsing of the fiscal year‖ 

Intended 
users:  
He 
Pa Go 
O 

Assignment: Companies and Establishments 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
Article 23:  
The SAB shall be competent to examine and check the accounts of every company or establishment in which the 
State or any other public legal entity holds not less than 50% share in its capital or guarantees it minimum profit. In 
arriving at the percentage of capital referred to (in this Article), the total share of the State as well as of all other 
bodies having a public legal entity shall be taken into account.  
 
The preceding provision shall apply in respect of the companies which are licensed to utilize or manage any of the 
public utilities or which are granted a concession to utilize any of the natural resources in the State.  
The SAB also shall, in respect of the share companies that are subject to its Control, check the reports of their 
auditors and of their Board of directors. 
 

  Scope:  
Oa 
Or 

Conditions: 
 Fix 
Other 
auditors: 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
- 
Current practice:  
Financial Reporting Standards. 
Law on the state accounting. 

Branch of 
auditing:  
F 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
(R) 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
Article 24:  
The examination and checking of the accounts of the companies and establishments referred to in the preceding 
Article shall be carried out in accordance with the procedures and conditions adopted by such companies and 
establishments in the preparation of their accounts according to the nature of their business activities and within 
the limits of the provisions, by-laws and orders regulating their operations.  
 
The SAB shall pass its comments resulting from the checking of the aforementioned accounts to each company or 
establishment whose accounts have been checked, the supervising administrative authority concerned and to the 
Ministry of Finance.  
As regards share companies, the SAB shall pass its comments not less than thirty days before the General 
Assembly of the company. The Board of directors of the company shall submit such comments to the General 
Assembly.  
 

Type of 
conclusion:  
Ass 

Reporting: 
Y 

Intended users of the reporting 
Article 24:  
― General Assembly of the company‖ 
 

Intended 
users:  
O 
GO 

Assignment: Assignments from the National Assembly or the Council of Ministers   
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
 
Article 25:  
 ―requested‖ 

  Scope:  
P 
O 

Conditions: 
 Req 
Other 
auditors: 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
- 

Branch of 
auditing:  
FPC 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
POR 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
 Article 25:  
 
 ― SAB shall pass his comments to the authority that requested the examination or checking. He may include in his 
Annual Report any comments he‖ 

Type of 
conclusion:  
Ass 
AI 

Reporting: 
Ç 

Intended users of the reporting 
Article 25:  
The SAB shall examine and check every account or other work which the National Assembly or the Council of 

Intended 
users:  
Pa 



Ministers entrusts to it for examination and checking. In this case the President of the SAB shall pass his 
comments to the authority that requested the examination or checking. He may include in his Annual Report any 
comments he deems fit in respect of the above mentioned account or work. 
 

Go 

Assignment: [Insert assignment] 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
Article 52:  
In the application of the provisions of the law, the following shall be considered financial deviations.  
Contravention of the financial rules and provisions laid down in the Constitution.  
Contravention of the general budget, or the budget, or the budgets appended thereto or independent there from, 
and of the budgets of those bodies that are subject to the control of the State Audit Bureau, for which civil servant s 
assigned to control or supervise them 
  3.Contravention of the Law of the Rules Governing the drawing up of the General Budget, the control of its 
execution and the final accounts. 
  4. Contravention of the provisions of the Tenders’ laws and by laws and of the by-laws of (Government) stores 
and purchases, and, in general, of all financial, accounting and store rules, provisions, regulations, and circulars.  
  5. Any wrongful act, negligence or omission which results or may result in the spending of money from public 
property without lawful right, or in the loss of, or in an adverse effect on, a financial right or interest of the State or 
of any other public entity or body which is subject to the control of the State Audit Bureau.  
  6. Failure to supply the SAB with the tender documents and proposed commitments, agreements and contracts 
which are subject to the prior financial control, without justification. Failure to supply the SAB with the accounts and 
supporting documents in the dates fixed for them, or with the papers, documents or other evidence which the SAB 
requests and has the right to examine, check or peruse in accordance with the Law. 7.Failure to reply to the SAB 
comments or correspondence in general, or delay in replying to them without justification. It shall be considered as 
failure to reply if the object of such reply is procrastination. 
  8. delay without justification in notifying the SAB within a period not exceeding fifteen days of the action taken by 
the  administrative authority concerned in respect of the contravention of which it is notified by the SAB or failure 
without an acceptable excuse to take the necessary action in their regard, and in general, any act or attitude that 
may hinder the SAB without just cause from exercising its functions of financial control in the best manner. 

  Scope:  
P 
L 
O 

Conditions: 
 Dis 
 
Other 
auditors: 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
- 
Current practice:  
Law on the state accounting. 
SAB Law. 

Branch of 
auditing:  
C 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
P 
s 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
 Article 54:  
It shall be incumbent on every government authority, public body or institution or company or establishment 
attached to it, to refer the matter to investigation after discovery of any financial offence which is committed therein, 
and it shall issue within a period not exceeding fifteen days after either to take no action or administratively 
discipline the person responsible or refer him to disciplinary trial as it may deem fit.  
 
Article 55:  
The SAB shall be notified of the decision in the cases of financial deviation together with the investigation file and 
other relative papers and documents, within a period not exceeding ten days from the date of such decisions.  
 
Article 56:  
The SAB shall notify the authority concerned of the financial deviation it first discovered and shall follow the same 
procedures and provisions in their respect as laid down in the preceding two articles. 

Type of 
conclusion:  
AI 

Reporting: 
Ç 
 

Intended users of the reporting 
Article 56:  
― the authority concerned‖ 
 
Current practice:  

- His Highness the Emir 
- The entity. 
- Parliament 
- Council of Ministers 
- Minister of Finance 

Intended 
users:  
He 
Pa 
Go 
O 

 

 
Country: Kingdom of Saudi Arabia 
Assignment: Financial, Compliance and Performance 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
 
Article 9: "… , the following authorities are subject to the GAB control: 

(1) All ministries, governmental departments and their branches. 
(2) Municipalities, managements of water springs and water departments. 
(3) Public Corporations and other departments which have independent budgets to which the government 
contributes, either by way of subsidy or investment. 
(4) All private establishment or companies in whose capital the government contributes or guarantees a 
minimum profit. … 
(5) Any authority that comes under the control of the GAB by an order from the Prime Minister or by a 
decision from the Council of Ministers." 

 

  Scope:  
P 
L 
O 

Conditions: 
Fix 
Dis 
Other 
auditors: 

  



Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
 
Article 7: "The GAB is entrusted with the task of post-audit of the all state revenues and expenditures, all movable 
and immovable state assets." 
 
Article 8: "... the GAB will create the systems required to guarantee the following:" 
 
  "1. Ascertain that all state revenues and entitlements such as movable and immovable assets and services have 
been recorded in accordance faith the regulations enforce and that all its expenditures have been made in 
accordance to the provisions of the annual budget and the administrative and financial regulations in force." 
  "2. Ascertain that all state assets are used for the purposes for which they were intended by the concerned 
authority and that such authority has adopted procedures which guarantee the safety, and proper use of such 
assets, and prevent the misuse of these assets or their use for purposes other than those for which they were 
intended." 
  "3. Ascertain that all the authorities subject to the GAB's control under the provisions of Article 9, implement the 
financial and accounting rules and regulations in accordance with their own by-laws and that their financial actions 
are not in contradiction with such rules and regulations." 
  "4. Follow up of the financial and accounting rules and regulations to ascertain their compatibility, efficiency and 
adequacy to the new developments in the public administration in the Kingdom, pointing out the deficiencies 
therein.  The GAB shall submit proposals for adoption of better procedures or alterations in existing rules and 
regulations." 
 
Article 2:  
"GAB's audit of private firms and companies, …, aims at ascertaining that such firms comply with systems and 
financial and accounting regulations established for them, and that their financial activities do not violate such rules 
and regulations.  The Bureau in its effort to achieve such aims has the right to: 
"(4) Examine the administration's efficiency and ascertain its proper use of the funds and disposition thereof for 
designated purposes.   Also to ascertain that the firm or company adopts modern systems that are adequate for 
the purposes internal financial control.  The administrative board shall present to the ordinary general assembly of 
shareholders any remarks raised by the GAB. …" 
 

  Branch of 
auditing:  
FCP 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
PO 
s 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
 
Article 20: "The President of the GAB shall submit an annual report for each fiscal year within a period …" 
 
Article 21: "The annual report referred to in the preceding is to be submitted to His Majesty the King with one copy 
to be sent to the Council of Ministers and another one to the Ministry of Finance and National Economy." 
 
Article 22: "The President of the GAB …, might submit other reports during the year, whether they were general or 
pertinent to a particular subject or case." 
 

Type of 
conclusion:  
Ass 

Reporting: 
Y 
Ç 

Intended users of the reporting 
  
Article 9: The Prime Minister and the Council of Ministers. 
 
Article 21: His Majesty the King, the Council of Ministers, and Ministry of Finance & National Economy. 
 

Intended 
users:  
Go 
He 
O 

Assignment: Financial & Accounting Violations 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
Article 15: "It shall be considered a financial violation to: 

(1) violate any provision of this constitution or any of its executive regulations issued to execute its rules. 
(2) violate any provision of the States rules and regulations relevant to preserving it movable and stable funds, 
and organizing its financial affairs such as the budget provisions, financial and accounting regulations and 
storehouse regulations. 
(3) any negligence or failure that might result in losing one of the State's financial right, or exposing one of the 
State's financial interests to danger." 
 

Article 18: "No financial violation shall be overlooked except by a decision of the council of ministers after prior 
consultation with the GAB in the regard." 
 

  Scope:  
P 
L 
O 

Conditions: 
 Dis 
Other 
auditors: 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
Article 15: the Constitution of the GAB, its Executive Regulations, the State's rules and regulations, the State's 
financial right, the State's financial interests. 
 
Article 16: "In case of disclosing a violation, the GAB might, according to the importance of such violation, ask the 
employer to carry out needed investigation with the responsible employee and inflict administrative punishment on 
him, or the GAB may resort to lodging a case against the implicated employee to the competent disciplinary 
board." 
 
Article 19: "… the President of the GAB has the authority to waive simple financial violations which do not exceed 
SR 500, providing …" 
 
Article 23: "An original copy of procurement, construction, and service contracts – in general any contracts or 
agreements - concluded with any of the authorities mentioned in paragraphs 1,2 and 3 or Article 9 and commit the 
State to certain obligations, or entitles it to certain rights of value exceeding SR 50,000 should be submitted to the 
GAB upon signature. …" 
 
 

Branch of 
auditing:  
C 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
P s 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
 
 Article 20:  

Type of 
conclusion:  
>AI 



"The President of the GAB shall submit an annual report for each fiscal year within a period …" 
 

 

Reporting: 
Y 
Ç 

Intended users of the reporting 
Article 16: The Employer, a Disciplinary Board. 
 
Article 18: The Council of Ministers. 
 

Intended 
users:  
O 
Go 

Assignment: Audit of Private Corporations & Companies 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
Article 1:  
"The GAB shall examine and audit the accounts of private firms and companies in whose capital the state 
contributes or guarantees a minimum profit.  GAB audit of such firms and companies shall be in accordance with 
commercial principles and within the scope of rules that organises the work of such firms and companies according 
to the provisions of this regulation." 
 
Article 9: "… , the following authorities are subject to the GAB control: 

(3) Public Corporations and other departments which have independent budgets to which the government 
contributes, either by way of subsidy or investment. 
(4) All private establishment or companies in whose capital the government contributes or guarantees a 
minimum profit. …" 

 
Article 8:  
"Firms, companies, associations, and bodies in whose capital the state contributes with other States, or other 
bodies or international bodies are excluded from the provisions of this regulation, they should be controlled 
according to the provisions of their respective constitutions. …" 
 

  Scope:  
O 

Conditions: 
 Fix 
Other 
auditors: 
EA 
 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
 
Article 1: Commercial principles and provisions of this regulation. 
 
Article 2: "GAB's audit of private firms and companies, …, aims at ascertaining that such firms comply with systems 
and financial and accounting regulations established for them, and that their financial activities do not violate such 
rules and regulations.  The Bureau in its effort to achieve such aims has the right to: 

(1) Examine final accounts and the balance sheet, and ascertain that it includes all important data that should 
be highlighted, … 
(2) Examine the external auditors' reports on the final accounts and balance sheet, … 
(3) Examine ledgers and financial records, …" 
(4) Examine the administration's efficiency and ascertain its proper use of the funds and disposition thereof for 
designated purposes.   Also to ascertain that the firm or company adopts modern systems that are adequate 
for the purposes internal financial control.  The administrative board shall present to the ordinary general 
assembly of shareholders any remarks raised by the GAB. …" 

 
Article 6: "Control on private companies and firms to which the state guarantee minimum profit is carried out to 
ascertain that they deserve the subsidy paid to them. …" 
 

Branch of 
auditing:  
FPC 
 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
POR 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
 Article 2: "… The GAB shall present any annual report for the results of its audit and its evaluation of performance 
to …" 
 
Article 8: "… Ministries, authorities, and public corporations that represent the state … shall provide the GAB with 
the final accounts, balance sheets, and financial reports received from its delegates … . The GAB shall study them 
and send its comments thereof …" 
 

Type of 
conclusion:  
Ass 
rA 

Reporting: 
Y 

Intended users of the reporting 
Article 2: The Administrative Board, Shareholders, the Prime Minister, the Minister of Finance & National 
Economy, the relevant minister. 
 
Article 8: Relevant ministries, heads of organizations and public corporations. 
 

Intended 
users:  
He 
O 
Go 

 
 

Country:  Republic of Tunesia 
Assignment: Jurisdictional audit (financial  audit) 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
Article 3 
The Court of Accounts shall have purview over the accounts and management of: 
  1) The State, local government and public companies whose budgets are attached as per statutes to the State 
budget; 
  2) Non Administrative Public entities, Public entities and all entities, irrespective of their appellation, in whose 
capital the State or local government participates either directly or indirectly.  
 
Article 4 
The Court of Accounts shall be, with regard to the State, local government and administrative public entities, the 
SAI, and thus has both a jurisdictional and a control authority. Indeed,  
1) It pronounces on the accounts of public accountants, with a decree identifying the accountants whose accounts 
belong necessarily within its jurisdiction. 
However, the higher administrative authority may establish the accounts of the local communities and public 

  Scope:  
N 
L 
O 
I 

Conditions: 
 Fix 
Other 
auditors: 



companies, with the possibility of revision thereof by the parties concerned or at the behest of the Court of 
Accounts itself. 
 
Current practice: State, local government, administrative public entities, non administrative public entities and 
public companies  
 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
Article 24:  
Every public accountant subject to the jurisdiction of the Court of Accounts presents his/her accounts and deposit 
them to the Secretariat of the Court of Accounts within the deadlines set. 
An ordinance shall specify the deadlines and methods of submission of the accounts by the various public 
accountants.  
 
Article 25 
The Court of Accounts reckons and settles the accounts submitted to its review and take decision thereof as to 
whether the accountants are finally discharged, or whether they have a surplus, or again that they have amounts 
due which they are required to settle.  
The Court of Accounts shall, in the first two cases, discharge the said accountants based on a final decision, while 
in the third case it shall require them, based on a provisional decision, then based on a final decision, to pay what 
is due by them to the treasury within the deadlines set by the law, unless they are exempted thereof by ordinance. 
The concerned accountant may, within two months of his/her notification of a provisional decision, access the 
documents used to issue such a decision, and this, based on a written application thereto to the President of the 
relevant Chamber. 
 
Article 32: 
Although a final decision may have been issued with regard to a given account, the Court of Accounts can review it 
either based on a request by the accountant, duly supported by the necessary documents found after issuance of 
the decision, or at the Court of Accounts’ behest, or by request on the part of the Government Commissioner 
General and as arising from an error, an omission, a forgery or a redundant use.  
The First President of the Court of Accounts may in this case order a stay on the enforcement of the decision 
proposed for revision. 
 
Current practice: Jurisdictional audit, report –decision compliance audit – recommendations to the structure and 
supervisors 
 

Branch of 
auditing:  
FC 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
P 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
 Article 25 
... The final decisions of the Court of Accounts shall be issued in first instance, and may be appealed against 
according to the terms set in Article 33 of this Law... 
  
Article 26 
The Court of Accounts’ judgments are issued, in the name of the people, and under the appellation ―decisions‖. 
Every decision shall bear the following details in particular: 

- the full names of the litigants and their quality; 
- specification of the public service or entity concerned; 
- subject of the decision; 
- summary of the litigants’ statements; 
- factual and legal evidence; 
- specification of the judgement level; 
- specification of the court and the names of the judges having issued the judgement; 
- date of issuing the court decision.  

 
Article 32: 
… review it either based on a request…. The First President of the Court of Accounts may in this case order a stay 
on the enforcement of the decision proposed for revision. 
 
Article 55  
The Court of Accounts make a report on the draft law on budget closure which shall comprise, in particular, a 
review of the State financial situation over the relevant year and the conclusions that may be derived there from. 
This report shall be accompanied by the general statement of compliance of the accounts of the public accountants 
with the general account of the Financial Administration, with the aforementioned draft law. 
 
Current practice:  

- Final Jurisdictional  decisions about the responsibility of the publics accountants ,  
- General statement of compliance of the accounts of the public accountants with the general account of 

the Financial Administration. 
-Reports related to financial controles and analysis 
 

Type of 
conclusion:  
AI 
>Des 

Reporting: 
Y 
Ç 

Intended users of the reporting 
Article 25 
…The Court of Accounts sends copies of its final decisions to the authority in charge of State disputes for purposes 
of enforcement, unless they have been appealed against. 
 
Article 27 
The Government Commissioner General shall notify the public accountants of the provisional and final decisions 
within fifteen (15) days as from the date of their receipt from the Secretary General of the Court of Accounts, and 
this, by recorded delivery mail with acknowledgement of receipt... 
 
Article 29  
The Government Commissioner General shall forward, within the deadline specified in Article 27 of this Law, a 
copy of the decisions issued to the Minister of Finance and the Minister concerned, as well as, if need be, to the 

Intended 
users:  
Go 
Pa 
Pr 



representative of the entity or local government on whose accounts the decision has been issued. 
 
Article 32: 
.. request by the accountant…. at the Court of Accounts’ behest, or by request on the part of the Government 
Commissioner General. 
 
Article 38  
Should the Court of Accounts find out, during the examination of the accounts, any infractions, amounting to a 
felony or to a misdemeanor, the latter shall be notified to the relevant public prosecution so that the offenders be 
prosecuted by the relevant courts.    
 
Current practice: Public accounts -President of the republic,   -Parliament and house of the senates members of 
the government 
 

Assignment: Management audit (regularity and performance audit) 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
Article 3 
The Court of Accounts shall have purview over the accounts and management of: 
1) The State, local government and public companies whose budgets are attached as per statutes to the State 
budget; 
2) Non Administrative Public entities, Public entities and all entities, irrespective of their appellation, in whose 
capital the State or local government participates either directly or indirectly.  
 
Article 4 
1)… 
2) It conducts an overall audit mission on the managers of public monies. 
 
Current practice: State, local government, public bodies 
 

  Scope:  
N 
L 
O 
 

Conditions: 
 Dis 
Other 
auditors: 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
Article 6  
The Court of Accounts examines the accounts and reviews economic and financial management of the entities 
listed under item 2 of Section 3 of this law. 
 
Article 8 
The Court of Accounts shall detect—as regards the entities subject to its jurisdiction, audit or appreciation—any 
faults, and order the necessary correction thereof, assess the management methods and propose the reforms 
required. 
 
Article 44 
The audit of management entrusted to the Court of Accounts aims at ascertaining compliance of the management 
actions conducted by the entities specified in Article 3 of this Law with the legislation and regulations in force; it 
also aims at evaluation of the management of such entities to ascertain the extent of its compliance with the 
requirements of good governance, in particular as regards observance of the principles of economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness, as well as the requirements of sustainable development. 
 
Current practice: Financial- compliance – performance 
 

Branch of 
auditing:  
FCP 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
PO 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
 Article 51  
The report  related to the audit works shall be submitted for the proceedings of the Chamber together with the 
response of the parties concerned and the comments of the Public Prosecution at the Court of Accounts, as well as 
with the opinion of the oversight authority, if any. 
 
Article 52  
The Court of Accounts shall draft every year a general report on the results of its activities during the past year. 
The said report shall comprise the observations and conclusions of the Court of Accounts, as well as a proposal of 
the reforms it deems necessary… 
 
Article 53 
The Court of Accounts includes in its General Annual Report the response of the entities concerned by the 
observations appearing therein. The response shall be regarded as only reflecting the point of view of the entities 
from which they emanate. 
 
Article 55 
The Court of Accounts make a report on the draft law on budget closure which shall comprise, in particular, a 
review of the State financial situation over the relevant year and the conclusions that may be derived there from. 
This report shall be accompanied by the general statement of compliance of the accounts of the public accountants 
with the general account of the Financial Administration, with the aforementioned draft law. 
 
Current practice: Annual report with responses of the entities and the recommendation of the court of accounts 
 

Type of 
conclusion:  
Ass 
 

Reporting: 
Y 

Intended users of the reporting 
Article 50  
The Court of Accounts notifies its observations and recommendations to the audited entities and, if need be, to the 
oversight bodies of such entities. The parties concerned must submit to the Court of Accounts, within two (2) 
months at the latest, its response supported by the necessary evidence, and which comprise, if need be, the 
corrective measures taken or envisioned. 
 
Article 52  
…The First President of the Court of Accounts shall submit the General Annual Report to the President of the 

Intended 
users:  
O 
Pr 
Pa 
Go 



Republic, the House of Representatives (Parliament) and the House of Senates.    
 
Article 54 
The President of the Republic may order publication of the General Report. 
 
Current practice: President of the republic parliament and the house of senates – publication on web site, and 
official magazine 
 

Assignment: Evaluating the results of the economic or financial aid granted to private entities 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
Article 7   
The court of Accounts shall undertake evaluation of any economic or financial aid, of whatever kind, granted by the 
entities listed under Section 3 of this Law to associations, mutual interest groups and private enterprises and 
entities, in particular aid that is granted under the form of tax exemption or guarantee, subsidies or monopoly. 
 
Current practice: Private entities and enterprises, associations 
 

  Scope:  
g 

Conditions: 
 Dis 
Other 
auditors: 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
Article 58 
The Court of Accounts exercises, at its behest, its audit authority on the entities specified in Article 7 of this Law. 
This audit aims at ascertaining the extent of compliance of the granting of the aid with the legal provisions, as well 
as the extent of their use for the purposes set for them. 
 
Article 59 
In case the aid has been given as an advance, or loan or grant or reimbursement of expenses, the beneficiaries 
thereof must set a utilization account to be kept at the disposal of the Court of Accounts if the aid is dedicated for 
an outlay or a type of the relevant expenses. 
The Court of Accounts shall exercise its audit based on the abovementioned utilization account, its audit scope 
possibly extending to cover all the beneficiary’s financial and economic management if the aid granted accounts for 
over 50% of the beneficiary’s total resources. 
 
In case the aid is granted under the form of a guarantee, or surety, or concession, or tax exemption, the Court of 
Accounts shall limit its audit to the activities covered by this grant. 
 
Article 60 
The Court of Accounts shall exercise its audit on private entities receiving the public aid mentioned above, based 
on the evidence submitted to it at its request, as well as on the field investigations, and in view of all documents 
constituting the accountancy of the entity concerned or serving the purpose thereof. 
 
Current practice: Compliance audit 
 

Branch of 
auditing:  
CP 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
PO 
s 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
Article 62 
The results of the audit conducted on the private entities specified above shall be enclosed in reports drafted and 
submitted according to the formats specified in Section ―C‖ of this Law. 
 
Current practice: Annual report 
 

Type of 
conclusion:  
Ass 

Reporting: 
Y 

Intended users of the reporting 
Article 52  
…The First President of the Court of Accounts shall submit the General Annual Report to the President of the 
Republic, the House of Representatives (Parliament) and the House of Senates.    
 
Article 54 
The President of the Republic may order publication of the General Report. 
 
Current practice: President of the Republic, Parliament and the House of Senates – publication on web site, and 
official magazine, members of the government, the entities 
 

Intended 
users:  
O 
Pr 
Pa 
Go 

Assignment: Assignment 4  Audit of political parties 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
Article 63 
As stipulated by Article sixteen (16) of statutory law N° 32 of 1988, dated 3 May 1988, related to the organization of 
political parties, the Court of Accounts shall exercise audit authority over the funds of such organizations… 
 
Current practice: Political parties 
 

  Scope:  
A 

Conditions: 
 Fix 
Other 
auditors: 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
Article 63  
…This audit aims at ascertaining compliance of the financial management of these parties with their own statutes. 
These parties shall submit their annual accounts to the Secretariat of the Court of Accounts by 30 June at the latest 
of the year following that for which the accounts have been prepared. 
The said accounts shall specify the amounts received, classified as per source, as well as the expenditure outlaid, 
classified as per topic. 
It also must keep, at the Court of Accounts’ disposal, all supporting documents of the receipt and expenditure 
operations it conducts, and this for a period of ten years as from the financial year in which such operations 
occurred. 
 
Current practice: Financial audit 
 

Branch of 
auditing:  
F 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
R 



Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
Article 65 
The investigations and observations made at the time of auditing the financial accounts of every political party shall 
be enclosed in a confidential report submitted by the Court of Accounts… 
 
Current practice: Annual report 
  

Type of 
conclusion:  
Ass 
Am 

Reporting: 
Y 

Intended users of the reporting 
Article 65 
… to the President of the Republic and the chief official of the party concerned. 
 
Current practice: President of the republic 

Intended 
users:  
Pr 
O 

 



Table 5: The provisions of the mandates of the selected SAIs in ASOSAI 
 
Country: China 
Assignment: General auditing 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
 
Audit law 
 
Article 2 Revenues and expenditures of the various departments of the State Council, of the local people's 
governments at various levels and their departments, financial revenues and expenditures of State-owned 
monetary institutions, enterprises and other institutions, as well as the other government and financial revenues 
and expenditures which are subject to auditing according to this Law, shall be supervised through auditing in 
accordance with the provisions of this Law. 
 
Article16 Audit institutions shall exercise supervision through auditing over the budget implementation, final 
accounts and other government revenues and expenditures of the departments (including the units directly 
subordinate to them) at the corresponding levels and of the people's governments at lower levels.  

Article 18 The National Audit Office shall exercise supervision through auditing over the financial revenues and 
expenditures of the Central Bank. Audit institutions shall exercise supervision through auditing over the assets, 
liabilities, profits and losses of the State-owned monetary institutions.  

Article19 Audit institutions shall exercise supervision through auditing over the financial revenues and 
expenditures of the State institutions as well as other institutions using government funds.‖  
 
Article20 Audit institutions shall exercise supervision through auditing over the assets, liabilities, profits and losses 
of the State-owned enterprises.  
 
Article22 Audit institutions shall exercise supervision through auditing over the budget implementation and final 
accounts in respect of the construction projects fully or mainly financed by government investment. 
 
Article23 Audit institutions shall exercise supervision through auditing over the financial revenues and 
expenditures involving social security funds, public donations and other related funds and capital which are 
managed by government departments and other units authorized by the government.  

Article24 Audit institutions shall exercise supervision through auditing over the financial revenues and 
expenditures in connection with the projects for which aid or loans are provided by international organizations or 
governments of other countries.  

 

  Scope:  

Nt 
Lt 
ObOa 
Ot 
As 
At 
Os 
Ot 
Og 
Op 
 

Conditions: 

 Fix 
 
Other 
auditors: 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
 
Audit law 
Article1  This Law is formulated in accordance with the Constitution, with a view to strengthening State supervision 
through auditing, maintaining the fiscal and economic order of the country, improving the efficiency in the use of 
government funds, promoting the building of a clean government and ensuring the sound development of the 
national economy and society.‖  
 
Article 2 Audit institutions shall, according to law, supervise through auditing the authenticity, lawfulness and 
efficiency of the government or financial revenues and expenditures . 
 
Article 34   When an audit institution conducts auditing, the auditee shall not transfer, conceal, falsify or destroy its 
accounting documents, account books, financial statements or other information relating to government or financial 
revenues and expenditures, and shall not transfer or conceal the assets in its possession that are obtained in 
violation of State regulations, An audit institution shall have the power to stop the acts committed by an auditee in 
violation of the provisions in the preceding paragraph; when necessary, the audit institution shall, with approval of 
the leading person of the audit institution of the people’s government at or above the county level, have the power 
to seal up the relevant materials and the assets obtained in violation of State regulations; and where it is necessary 
to freeze the relevant deposits of the auditee in monetary institutions, the audit institution shall submit an 
application to the people’s court. 
The audit institution shall have the power to stop the ongoing acts committed by an auditee in violation of the 
regulations of the State governing government and financial revenues and expenditures; if it fails in its efforts, it 
shall, with the approval of the leading person of the audit institution of the people’s government at or above the 
county level, notify the department of finance and the relevant department in charge to suspend allocation of the 
funds directly related to the violations of State regulations governing government and financial revenues and 
expenditures or to suspend the use of the funds already allocated. 
 
Article 35 If an audit institution considers that the regulations of the department in charge at a higher level 
governing government and financial revenues and expenditures implemented by an auditee contravene laws or 
administrative regulations, it shall suggest that the department in charge revise its regulations. If the said 
department fails to do so, the audit institution shall refer the matter to the competent department for disposition 
according to law.  
 

Branch of 
auditing:  

(CP) 
Z 
 

Type of 
require-
ments:  

(O) 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 

Audit law 

Article 3 Audit institutions shall, in accordance with laws, regulations and other regulations of the State governing 

Type of 
conclusion:  

Ass/Ass\A 
>AI 



government and financial revenues and expenditures, give audit appraisals and, within the limits of their statutory 
functions and powers, make audit decisions..  
 
Article 40 After executing audit of the audit matters, the audit team shall submit its audit report to the audit 
institution. However, prior to submission of the report to the institution, the team shall solicit opinions of the auditee. 
The auditee shall, within 10 days from the date it receives the audit team’s report, send its comments in writing to 
the audit team. The audit team shall submit to the audit institution the auditee’s written comments along with its 
own report. 
 
Article 41   An audit institution shall, in accordance with the procedures specified by the National Audit Office, 
produce its audit report after deliberating the audit team’s report and analyzing the auditee’s comments. Where 
violations of State regulations governing government and financial revenues and expenditures should be dealt with 
or punished in accordance with law, it shall, within the limits of its statutory functions and powers, make an audit 
decision or put forward to department in charge its suggestions as to how to deal with or punish the violations. 

Standard of Audit Institutions on Preparation and Review of Audit Reports:  
Article7  The audit report shall mainly include the following specific contents:  
  (1) Scope, content, approach and timing of audit; 
  (2) Basic situation of the audited body such as its financial affiliation and it 
revenues and expenditures;  
  (3) Information related to the conduct of audit, such as facts related to the audit item, disclosure of revenues and 
expenditures that comply with relevant state stipulations as well as adoption of audit approaches and explanation 
of relevant situations; 
  (4) Opinions of audit evaluation, such as summarized statement about the audited revenues and expenditures 
and their related documents, evaluation of the accountability of the audited body in combination with the priorities 
determined by the audit programs and centering around the truthfulness, compliance and effectiveness of the 
revenues and expenditures; 
  (5) Determination of the nature of acts of revenues and expenditures in violation of state stipulations as well as 
recommendations for imposing sanctions and penalties against such acts and the basis thereof. 
 

Reporting: 

Y 

Intended users of the reporting 
 
Audit law 
Article4  
The State Council and the local people's governments at or above the county level shall annually present to the 
standing committees of the people's congresses at the corresponding levels the audit reports prepared by audit 
institutions on budget implementation and other government revenues and expenditures. The audit reports shall 
focus on the audit results regarding budget implementation. When necessary, the standing committees of the 
people’s congresses may adopt resolutions on the audit reports. 
 
Article9 Local audit institutions at various levels shall be accountable and report on their work to the people's 
governments at the corresponding levels and to the audit institutions at the next higher levels, and their audit work 
shall be directed chiefly by the audit institutions at the next higher levels.  
 
Article 17 The National Audit Office shall, under the leadership of the Premier of the State Council, exercise 
supervision through auditing over the implementation of the budget of the Central Government as well as other 
government revenues and expenditures, and submit audit reports thereon to the Premier. . 
Local audit institutions at various levels shall, under the respective leadership of the governors of provinces, 
chairmen of autonomous regions, mayors, prefecture heads and heads of counties or districts as well as under the 
leadership of audit institutions at the next higher levels, exercise supervision through auditing over the budget 
implementation at the corresponding levels as well as other government revenues and expenditures, and submit 
reports on the audit results to the people's governments at the corresponding levels and to the audit institutions at 
the next higher levels. 
 

Intended 
users:  

(Pa/Go)? 

Assignment: Supervision of Individuals 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
 
Article25   
Audit institutions shall, in accordance with the relevant regulations of the State, supervise through auditing the 
principal leading persons of government departments and of other units subject to auditing by audit institutions as 
stipulated by law as to how they perform, during their terms of office, their economic accountabilities in respect of 
government and financial revenues, expenditures as well as relevant economic activities of their districts, 
departments or units. 
 

  Scope:  

I 
Conditions: 
  
Other 
auditors: 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
 
Same as assignment 1 

Branch of 
auditing:  

C 
 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
 
 Same as assignment 1 

Type of 
conclusion:  

AI 
 

Reporting: 
 

Intended users of the reporting 
 

Intended 
users:  



Same as assignment 1 
 

 

Assignment: Special reports 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
 
Article 27 
With regard to the specific matters relating to State revenues and expenditure audit institutions shall have the 
power to carry out special investigation through audit among relevant local authorities, departments and units… 

  Scope:  

Nt 
 

Conditions: 

 Dis 
 
Other 
auditors: 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
 
Same as assignment 1 

Branch of 
auditing:  

(PC) 
 

Type of 
require-
ments:  

(O) 
 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
 
 Same as assignment 1 

Type of 
conclusion:  

Ass>AI 
 

Reporting: 

Ç 
 

Intended users of the reporting 
 
Article 27 
… report the results thereof to the people's governments at the corresponding levels and to the audit institutions at 
the next higher levels. 
 

Intended 
users:  

Go 

 

 
Country: Japan 
Assignment: [Insert assignment] 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
 
(Board of Audit(BOA) Law) 
Article 22 
The following matters shall be subject to the audit by the Board of Audit. 

1. Monthly accounts of revenues and expenditures of the State 
2. Acceptance and distribution of cash and goods owned by the State, and State properties 
3. Charge and collection of government claims and issuance and repayment of Government bonds and 

other obligation of the State 
4. Acceptance and distribution of cash, precious metals and securities by the Bank of Japan on behalf of 

the State 
5. The accounts of juridical persons more than half of whose capital is invested by the State 
6. The account to be subject to audit by the Board of Audit in accordance with a provision of any law 

 

  Scope:  
Nr 
Na 
Nt 
Ns 
At 
Oa 
 

Conditions: 
 Fix 
 
Other 
auditors: 
 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
 
(BOA Law) 
Article 20 
  (1) The Board of Audit shall audit the final accounts of expenditures and revenues of the State under the provision 
of Article 90 of the Constitution of Japan and also such accounts as are provided for by laws. 
  (2)The Board of Audit shall constantly audit and review the public accounts to secure their adequacy and to rectify 
their defects. 
  (3)The Board of Audit shall conduct its audit from the aspects of accuracy, regularity, economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness, and from other necessary aspects of auditing 
 
Article 34 
In case the Board of Audit finds in the course of its audit, such matters as it deems illegal or improper concerning 
financial transactions, it may immediately present its opinions upon them to, or demand appropriate measures for 
them from, the head of the department or persons 

Article 36 
In case the Board of Audit finds such matters as it deems necessary to improve with regard to laws and 
ordinances, systems or administration, it may present its opinions upon them to, or demand measures for them 
from the competent authorities or other responsible persons. 
 

Branch of 
auditing:  
F 
C 
P 
(Z) 
 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
  
(BOA Law) 
Article 21 

Type of 
conclusion:  
(Ass\A) 
>Ass 



The Board of Audit shall, in accordance with the results of audit, verify the final accounts of revenues and 
expenditures of the State. 
 
Article 29 
The audit report to be prepared according to Article 90 of the Constitution of Japan shall contain the following 
matters. 

1. Verification of the final accounts of revenues and expenditures of the State 
2. Whether or not the amounts of final accounts revenues and expenditures of State correspond to the 

amounts of the statement of accounts of the Bank of Japan 
3. Whether or not, as results of audit, there exist any matters which are deemed in violation of, or improper 

against laws, government ordinances or the approved budget 
4. Whether or not there is any disbursement from the reserve fund, for which no action has been taken to 

ask approval of the Diet 
5. Matters on which the Board demanded disciplinary action under the provisions of Article 31 of this Law, 

Article 13 paragraph 2 of the Act on Prevention of Delay in Payment under Government Contracts or 
Article 6 paragraph 1 of the Act on the Responsibility of Government Employees who Execute The 
Budget (including the case where this is applied by Article 9 paragraph 2 of the same Law), and the 
results thereof 

6. Adjudication and re-adjudication under the provisions of Article 32 of this Law (including the case where 
this is applied by Article 10 paragraph 3 or Article 11 paragraph 2 of the Act on the Responsibility of 
Government Employees who Execute The Budget), or Article 4 paragraph 1 or Article 5 of the Act on the 
Responsibility of Government Employees who Execute The Budget (including the case where this is 
applied by Article 8 paragraph 3 or Article 9 paragraph 2 of the same Law) 

7. Matters on which the Board presented its opinions or demanded measures under the provision of Article 
34, and the results thereof 

8. Matters on which the Board presented its opinions or demanded 
 
Article 30-2 
The Board of Audit may, at any time, report to the Diet and the Cabinet on matters on which the Board presented 
its opinions or demanded measures under the provision of Article 34 or 36, or other matters which the Board 
deems particularly necessary to report. 
 
Article 30-3 
When the Board of Audit receives a request, from either House, any of the Committees of either House or any of 
the Research Committees of the House of Councillors, under the provision of Article 105 of the Diet Law (Law 
No.79 of 1947)(including the case where this is applied by Article 54-4 paragraph 1 of the same Law), it may 
conduct the audit upon specific matters requested and report the results. 
 

 

Reporting: 
Y 
Ç 

Intended users of the reporting 
 
(Constitution of Japan) 
Article 90 paragraph 1 
Final accounts of the expenditures and revenues of the State shall be audited annually by a Board of Audit and 
submitted by the Cabinet to the Diet, together with the statement of audit, during the fiscal year immediately 
following the period covered. 
 

Intended 
users:  
Pa 

Assignment: [Insert assignment] 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
 
Article 23 
 (1)The Board of Audit may audit, if it considers necessary, or at the request of the Cabinet, the following matters. 
 

1.    Securities which are owned or taken custody of by the State, and cash and goods taken custody of by 
the State 

 
2. Acceptance and distribution of cash, goods and securities by entities other than the State, on behalf of 

the State 
 

3. The accounts of such bodies as are given subsidies, incentive grants, bounties or other financial 
assistance such as loan or indemnity of loss directly or indirectly by the State 

 
4. The accounts of bodies a part of whose capital is invested by the State 

 
5. The accounts of business enterprises operating under the Commerce Law whose shares are wholly or 

partly owned by the Government Corporations subject to audit 
 

  Scope:  
NI 
Ns 
Nt 
Nf 
Og 
Oa 
Z 
 

Conditions: 
Dis 
Req 
 
Other 
auditors: 
 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
 
Same as assignment 1 

Branch of 
auditing:  
F 
C 
P 
Z 
 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
  
Same as assignment 1 
Except for Article 21. 

Type of 
conclusion:  
 

Reporting: 



 

Intended users of the reporting 
 
Same as assignment 1 
 

Intended 
users:  
 

 



Table 6: The provisions of the mandates of the selected SAIs in 
EUROSAI 
 
Country: Albania 
Assignment:  General auditing function 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
 
The State Supreme Audit, in accordance with legislation and the international auditing standards of INTOSAI may 
audit the management of the state property and the implementation of the state budget of the entities defined in 
this law (2). 
 
The main objectives of the State Supreme Audit Institution are the proper and effective use of the public funds, the 
development of the sound financial management, and the audit of orderly execution of administrative activities (6). 
 
The State Supreme Audit Institution, in accordance with its competencies in this law shall audit: 

a) the economic and financial activity of the state institutions and other juridical state individuals; 
b) the use and protection of the state funds by the organs of central and local government;  
c) the economic activity of juridical persons, in which the State owns more than the half of the parts or the 

shares, or when the loans, credits and their obligations are guaranteed by the State; 
d) Political parties and organizations for the funds given to them by the State Budget; 
e) Government Internal Audit bodies; 
f) Other entities defined by particular laws (7). 

 
The Audit Standards issued by the State Supreme Audit Institution are compulsory for government internal audit 
bodies (21). 
 

  Scope:  
Nb 
Ns 
L 
O 
Å 
P 
N 
Nf 
 

Conditions: 
Fix 
Dis 
Per 
 
Other 
auditors: 
IA 
EA 
 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
 
The audit covers the areas of legality, regularity, financial management and performance (2). 
 
 

Branch of 
auditing:  
F 
C 
P 
Z  
 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
P 
O 
 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
  
The objective is also to communicate and give information to the public authorities and the public through the 
publication of the objective reports. The auditee shall always have the opportunity to give comments on a draft 
reports before its publication. Their comments shall be reflected in the final reports (6).  
The State Supreme Audit Institution shall publish an Institutional Bulletin on a regular basis. The Institutional 
Bulletin shall be made public and in particular shall contain: 

- the final audit reports; 
- other audit conclusions and recommendations of general importance; 
- rules and procedures of the State Supreme Audit Institution; 
- the State Supreme Audit Institution’ own accounts, including the opinion of the auditors on them. (8). 

 
The State Supreme Audit Institutions may make recommendations concerning management and internal control. 
(9). 
 
State supreme Audit Institution gives its opinions and makes proposals regarding to the improvement of legislation 
in areas within its areas of activity. If the State Supreme Audit Institution during the course of audit, finds out that a 
law or a by-law is in contrary to basic legislation, it may ask the body that has enacted for amendment or 
invalidation. If the body does not amend or abrogate the law or by-law within two months from the date of request, 
then State Supreme Audit Institution may refer to the competent authorities determined in accordance with the law 
(9). 
 

Type of 
conclusion:  
Ass\A 
Ass 
 

Reporting: 
Y 
Ç 
S 
L 

Intended users of the reporting 
The State Supreme Audit submits to the Assembly: 

a) An annual report with its opinion on the final budgetary statement of the Republic of Albania, including 
the audit conclusion. The annual report shall be submitted to the Assembly in accordance with the Law 
No. 8379, dated 29.07.1998 ―For the compilation and execution of the state budget of the Republic of 
Albania‖. The annual report is published in the Bulletin. 

b) Its opinions on the Council of Minister’s report for the expenditures of the previous financial year, before 
it is approved by the Assembly. 

c) Information for audits results any time it is asked by the Assembly. The State supreme Audit present to 
the Assembly a yearly report on its activities within the first three-month of next year (18) 
 

The State Supreme Audit Institution shall present to the Council of Ministers and other authorities, when he judges 
necessary and in the interest of the state and public at large, reports, surveys and other material relating to the 
Council of Ministers and other government ministries and central institutions (19).  
 
 
 

Intended 
users:  
Pa 
Pr 
Go 
Ge 
PAA 
O 

 



 
Country: Belgium 
Assignment 1 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
 
Budget presentation 

  Scope:  
Nb 
 

Conditions: 
  
Other 
auditors: 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
 
Budget analysis of the preparation and presentation of the budget 
 
Criteria: 

- Compliance with budget legislation and the law on de state accounting; 
- Appropriateness of assumptions and estimates 
- Sound budget management 

 

Branch of 
auditing:  
X 
 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
  
Analysis report as a parliamentary document 

Type of 
conclusion:  
 

Reporting: 
 

Intended users of the reporting 
 
Parliament 
 

Intended 
users:  
Pa 

Assignment 2 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
 
State accounts 
 
Budget execution statements 
 

  Scope:  
Nb 
 
Na 
 

Conditions: 
  
Other 
auditors: 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
 
Criteria: 
Compliance with the law on the state accounting; 
Completeness and existence of accounts 
 

Branch of 
auditing:  
F 
C 
 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
  
Comments and observations in the annual report 

Type of 
conclusion:  
Ass 
 

Reporting: 
Y 
 

Intended users of the reporting 
 
Parliament 
 

Intended 
users:  
Pa 

Assignment 3 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
 
Accounts of individual entities 

  Scope:  
O 
 

Conditions: 
  
Other 
auditors: 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
 
Financial, regularity and compliance audit 
Criteria:  

- Reliability of financial statements: existence, completeness,  accuracy, valuation 
- Compliance of the operations to legislation and regulations 

 

Branch of 
auditing:  
F 
C 
 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
 - 

Type of 
conclusion:  



 

Reporting: 
 

Intended users of the reporting 
- 

Intended 
users:  
 

Assignment 4 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
 
Individual civil servants/other persons 

  Scope:  
I 
 

Conditions: 
  
Other 
auditors: 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
 
Regularity, compliance and financial verification 

Branch of 
auditing:  
F 
C 
 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
  
The Court clears the accounts of the accounting officers of the State and the provinces. The Court of Auditors 
establishes whether the accounting officers’ accounts are in balance with their accounts of whether the balance is 
in their favour or in the State’s favour.  
 

Type of 
conclusion:  
AI 
>Des 
 

Reporting: 
 

Intended users of the reporting 
 
Administrative and/or jurisdictional decision 
 

Intended 
users:  
 

Assignment 5 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
 
Public sector 

  Scope:  
P 
 

Conditions: 
  
Other 
auditors: 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
 

- Performance audit 
- Operational audit of operations, systems and processes 
- Criteria:  
- Efficiency 
- Effectivity 
- Economy 
- Compliance with accepted standards 

 

Branch of 
auditing:  
C 
P 
 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
(P) 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
  
Policy evaluation 
Assessment  
Recommendations 
 

Type of 
conclusion:  
Ass 
 

Reporting: 
 

Intended users of the reporting 
 
Ministers and ultimately the parliamentary assemblies 
 

Intended 
users:  
Go 
Pa 
 

Assignment 6 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
 
Debt 

  Scope:  
Ns 
 

Conditions: 
  
Other 
auditors: 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
 

- Verification of debt (control of state accounts): 
- Criteria: 
- Compliance 
- Completeness 
- Valuation 

Branch of 
auditing:  
F 
C 
 

Type of 



- Compliance audit of implementation of Debt Administration directives 
 

require-
ments:  
 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
  

- Reports on findings  
- Recommendations 

Type of 
conclusion:  
Ass 
 

Reporting: 
(Y) 
 

Intended users of the reporting 
 
Reporting to parliamentary assembly and in annual report of the Court of Auditors. 
 

Intended 
users:  
Pa 

Assignment 7 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
 
Tax or other revenues 

  Scope:  
Nt 
 

Conditions: 
  
Other 
auditors: 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
 

- Systems, processes, organization, legislation 
- Criteria:  
- Compliance 
- Effectivity 
- Efficiency 
- Economy 
- Completeness 
- Valuation  

 

Branch of 
auditing:  
P 
C 
 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
P 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
  
Reporting of findings 
Recommendations 
 

Type of 
conclusion:  
Ass 
 

Reporting: 
 

Intended users of the reporting 
 
Reports to ministers and ultimately to parliamentary assemblies 
 

Intended 
users:  
Go 
Pa 
 

Assignment 8 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
 
Transactions and payments 

  Scope:  
Nt 
 

Conditions: 
  
Other 
auditors: 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
 

- Pre – audit of transactions and payments  
- Systems audit of commitments 

Branch of 
auditing:  
X 
 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
  

- Reporting of findings  
- Recommendations 

 

Type of 
conclusion:  
 

Reporting: 
 

Intended users of the reporting 
 
Reports to ministers and ultimately to parliamentary assemblies in the annual report of the Court of Auditors 
 

Intended 
users:  
 

 
  



 
Country: Bulgaria 
Assignment 1: Audit of activities comprised by public budgets 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
 
Article 5: 
(1) The National Audit Office shall audit: 

1. The state budget; 
2. The budget of the state social security scheme; 
3. The budget of the National Health Insurance Fund; 
4. The budgets of municipalities; 
5. Other budgets adopted by the National Assembly.  

 
(2) The National Audit Office shall audit also: 

1. The budgets and extra-budgetary accounts and funds of spenders of budget appropriations under the 
budgets referred to in paragraph (1) and the management of their property; 

2. The autonomous budgets of the Bulgarian Academy of Sciences, state schools of higher learning, the 
Bulgarian National Television, The Bulgarian National Radio and other autonomous budgets; 

3. Any budgetary and extra-budgetary resources granted to persons engaged in business or non-business 
activity; 

4. Any resources coming from European Union funds and programmes, including their management by the 
relevant authorities and by the end users of such resources; 

5. The budget expenditures of the Bulgarian National Bank and their management; 
6. The formulation of any annual surplus of income of expenditures of the Bulgarian National Bank that is 

payable to the state budget, and any other dealings of the Bank with the state budget; 
7. (Amended, SG No. 38/2004, SG No. 34/2005) The generation and management of government debt, 

government-secured debt, municipal debt and the use of debt instruments; 
8. Any proceeds from privatisation and concession agreements in the respective accounts, their distribution 

and spending; 
9. The performance under international agreements, treaties, conventions or other international 

instruments, where so provided for in the respective international instrument or assigned by an 
empowered authority; 

10. Other public resources and activities, where so assigned by law. 
 
 

  Scope:  
Nb 
Ob 
Lb 
A 
 

Conditions: 
Fix 
Dis 
 
Other 
auditors: 
 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
 
The main purpose of the National Audit Office shall be to contribute to the sound management of budgetary and 
other public funds, and to provide the National Assembly with reliable information on the use of funds, in 
accordance with the principles of legality, effectiveness, efficiency and economy and for the truthful reporting of the 
execution of the respective budgets. (4) 
(1) The National Audit Office shall perform its auditing function by conducting: 

1. A financial audit, which includes auditing financial management and auditing financial statements; 
2. A performance audit; 
3. Other specific audits. 

(36) 
 
Article 44 
[…] 
(2) (Amended, SG No. 38/2004) Periodic accounts of the execution of the budgets and extra-budgetary accounts 
and funds of budget funded organisations that are first-level spenders of budget appropriations shall be filed with 
the National Audit Office for the purposes of continuous control, assessment of the risk of a failure to execute the 
respective budgets and extra budgetary accounts and funds, and for a preliminary study in connection with audits. 
 

Branch of 
auditing:  
F 
C 
P  
 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
(P) 
(R) 
O 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
  

(1) Where, in the course of the audit, it has been found that certain actions result in opportunities for legal 
irregularities in collecting or spending budgetary or other public funds, and for damaging the property of 
the auditees referred to in Article 5, the head of the respective department or the regional division 
director shall, upon a proposal by the head of the audit team, notify the relevant competent authority so 
that measures can be taken to discontinue such actions. 

(2) Where in the course of the audit it has been established that there have been breaches of public 
procurement procedure for procurements where it is possible that by the time the audit report is adopted 
as set out in Article 40, paragraph (1), the periods provided for initiating administrative penal proceeding 
might expire, then subject to a decision of the National Audit Office, a report on such breaches may be 
submitted to the Minister of Finance and the Executive Director of Public Procurement Agency for the 
purpose of taking the relevant action. (38) 

 
Article 39 
(1) (Amended, SG No. 38/2004) The head of the audit team shall organise the preparation of an audit report, which 
shall include findings and evaluations supported by audit evidence, in accordance with the standards adopted by 
the National Audit Office.[..] 
 
Article 40 
(1) The audit report, the opinions and the conclusion referred to in Article 39 shall be introduced to the National 
Audit Office by the department head or regional division director and adopted under a decision, which shall be final. 
Such decision may affirm, amend or cancel, completely or in part, findings and evaluations stated in the audit 
report and in the conclusion referred to in Article 39.[…] 
 
 [..] 
4) The National Audit Office shall perform continuous and ex post control to follow up on the implementation of 

Type of 
conclusion:  
Ass 
>AI 

$ 
ISSAI 
Reporting: 
Ç 
Y 

S 
L 



recommendations referred to in paragraph (1). 
 
Article 41 
(1) The National Audit Office shall send the manager of the auditee a report on the results of the audit, with 
recommendations for improving the management of budgetary and/or other public resources and activities referred 
to in Article 5 within 7 days following the adoption of the report referred to in Article 39, paragraph (1). 
 

 
Intended users of the reporting 
 
Article 42 
(1) The manager of the auditee must take measures to implement the recommendations and must notify the 
National Audit Office thereof in writing with a time period specified in the report referred to in Article 41, paragraph 
(1), which may not be shorter than one month. 
(2) In the event of a failure to implement the recommendations referred to in Article 41, paragraph (1), the National 
Audit Office shall send a report with suggestions on the appropriate actions to be taken as follows: 

1. To the National Assembly and/or the Council of Ministers, where the auditee is part of a central executive 
authority; 

2. To the municipal council and/or regional governor, where the auditee is part of a regional or local 
executive authority; 

3. To the National Assembly and/or the respective higher authority, where the auditee is outside the central, 
regional and local executive government authority; 

 
 

4. (New, SG No. 38/2004) To the Minister of Finance and/or the authority exercising supervision and 
control, for an auditee other than in the cases referred to in subparagraphs (1) through (3). 

 
1) The National Audit Office shall present to the National Assembly: 
 

1. An activity report for the preceding year; 
2. Reports on the accounts of the execution of the state budget, the budget of the state social security 

scheme, the budget of the National Health Insurance Fund and on the budgetary expenditures of the 
Bulgarian National Bank for the preceding year; 

3. […] 
4. Reports on audits performed on budgetary systems or with significant results for the respective budgets 

and other public resources and activities referred to in Article 5; 
5. Reports on the results of audits performed under a decision of the National Assembly. 

(46) 
 

 
Intended 
users:  
Go 
O 
Pa 
Ge 
D 

Assignment 2: Audit of financial management and control systems 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
 
Article 5: 
[..] 
(3)  The National Audit Office shall audit activities involved in the setting up and functioning of financial 
management and control systems in budget-funded organisations. 
 

  Scope:  
 

Conditions: 
  
Other 
auditors: 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
- 

Branch of 
auditing:  
 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
 - 

Type of 
conclusion:  
 

Reporting: 
 

Intended users of the reporting 
- 

Intended 
users:  
 

Assignment 3: Certification of financial statements 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
 
Article 5: 
[..] 
(4) (Amended, SG No. 38/2004) The National Audit Office shall audit and perform certification of annual financial 
statements of budget-funded organisations in accordance with Article 44, paragraph (1), subparagraph (2). 
 

  Scope:  
Or 
 

Conditions: 
 Fix 
 
Other 
auditors: 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
 
Article 44 
(1) The National Audit Office shall perform audit and certification of: [..] 
     2. Annual financial statements of budget-funded organisations that are first-level spenders of budget 
appropriations, and of budget-funded organisations that are second-level spenders of budget appropriations 
implementing independent budgets pursuant to special laws; 
     3. Other accounts/statements, where so provided by law. 
 

Branch of 
auditing:  
F 
 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
R 



Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
 - 

Type of 
conclusion:  
A 
(>Cass) 
 

Reporting: 
 

Intended users of the reporting 
 
1) The National Audit Office shall present to the National Assembly: 
[..] 
 
3. Reports on the results of performed audits referred to in Article 44, paragraph (1); 
 

Intended 
users:  
Pa 

Assignment 4: State owned enterprises 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
 
(5) (New, SG No. 38/2004) The National Audit Office may audit state owned enterprises subject to a decision of the 
National Assembly. (5) 
 

  Scope:  
O 
 

Conditions: 

Req 

Per 
 
Other 
auditors: 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 

- 
Branch of 
auditing:  
 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
 - 

Type of 
conclusion:  
 

Reporting: 
 

Intended users of the reporting 
- 

Intended 
users:  
 

Assignment 5: Opinions 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
 
(1) The National Audit Office shall, upon a request by the National Assembly or by the Council of Ministers, provide 
opinions on budget bills, on government programmes funded with budgetary and extra-budgetary resources or with 
government-guaranteed resources, and on draft laws related to reporting and control of budgetary and other public 
resources. 
 
(2) (New, SG No. 38/2004) The National Audit Office may introduce opinions on amending laws and regulation in 
the National Assembly and the Council of Ministers for the purposes of improving budgetary discipline and the 
management of budgetary and/or other public resources and activities referred to under Article 5.  (6) 
 

  Scope:  
 

Conditions: 
  
Other 
auditors: 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
- 

Branch of 
auditing:  
 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
 - 

Type of 
conclusion:  
 

Reporting: 
 

Intended users of the reporting 
- 

Intended 
users:  
 

 
  



 
Country: Croatia 
Assignment 1:  General audit assigment 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
 
This Act shall regulate the audit of public incomes and expenditures, the audit of financial statements and financial 
transactions of government units and local and regional self-government units, legal entities being partly or wholly 
financed from the budget, public enterprises, companies and other legal entities owned in major part by Republic of 
Croatia or local and regional self-government units, use of EU funds and funds of international organizations or 
institutions for financing of public needs (1) 
Under this Act, as government incomes and expenditures are understood all incomes and revenues, and 
expenditures being financed from the state budget or from appropriate funds at the national level, and from the 
budgets at the level of local and regional self-government units.  
 
Under this Act, as government units are understood all legislative, executive and judiciary bodies, as well as all 
agencies, institutions and other subjects at the level of the Republic of Croatia and at the level of local and regional 
self-government units, financed from the state budget or budgets of local and regional self-government units (1). 
 
audit shall be performed once a year on the state budget, funds at the national level, and budgets of local and 
regional self-government units. 
 

  Scope:  
Pt 
Nt 
Nr 
Lt 
Lr 
Ot 
Or 
Og 
 

Conditions: 
 Fix 
 
Other 
auditors: 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
 
Under this Act, audit is the examination of documents, deeds, statements, internal control and internal audit 
systems, accounting and financial procedures, and other records in order to determine whether financial 
statements truly reflect the financial activities in compliance with accepted accounting principles and accounting 
standards.  
 
Audit is also a procedure of examining financial transactions which represent government incomes and 
expenditures in terms of legal utilizations of funds.  
 
Audit also includes an assessment of the efficiency and effectiveness of activities, as well as an assessment of the 
efficiency in pursuing the objectives of a certain project (2).  
 

Branch of 
auditing:  
F 
C 
P 
 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
(R) 
(O) 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
  
The audit method and procedure shall be performed in compliance with the established INTOSAI Auditing 
Standards (4). (3). 
 

Type of 
conclusion:  
ISSAI 
Ass 
 

Reporting: 
Y 
 

Intended users of the reporting 
 
The audit report shall be submitted to the legal representative of the legal entity where the audit has been carried 
out, to the responsible minister and/or to the fund (7). 
 
submission of an annual report on executed audits and its own work to the Croatian Parliament (Sabor), till the end 
of current year for the previous year (11). 
 

Intended 
users:  
O 
Go 
Pa 

Assignment 2: Privatisation 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
 
This Act shall also regulate the audit of the procedures of transformation and privatisation in legal entities, which 
implemented such procedure pursuant to the  
  (i) Act on the transformation of Socially-Owned Enterprises, published in "Narodne Novine" Nos. 19/91, 83/92, 
84/92, 94/93, 2/94, 9/95 and 21/96 (hereinafter referred to as the "Transformation Act"),  
  (ii) Privatization Act, published in "Narodne Novine" Nos. 21/96, 71/97 and 16/98,  
  (iii) Social Capital Act, published in "Narodne Novine" Nos. 84/89 and 46/90 and  
  (iv) special laws." (1)  
 

  Scope:  
O 
 

Conditions: 
  
Other 
auditors: 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
 
For the purpose of this Act, the transformation and privatization audit means examining the documents, decisions, 
business records, contracts and acts pursuant to which the transformation and privatization was completed, as well 
as examining other documentation necessary to establish whether any violation of the provisions of the 
Restructuring Act, Privatization Act, Social Capital Act or special acts occurred in the procedure of restructuring 
and privatization (2).  
 

Branch of 
auditing:  
C 
 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
P 
O 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
 - 

Type of 
conclusion:  
 

Reporting: 
 

Intended users of the reporting 
 
The audit report shall be submitted to the legal representative of the legal entity where the audit has been carried 
out, to the responsible minister and/or to the fund (7). 

Intended 
users:  
O 
Go 



 

 
Country: Czech Republic 
Assignment 1: General audit assignment 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
 
(1) The Office shall audit: 
  (a) the management of state property and financial resources collected under the law for the benefit of legal 
persons, with the exception of resources collected by municipalities or regions under their independent jurisdiction, 
  (b) the state final account of the Czech Republic, 
  (c) the implementation of the State Budget of the Czech Republic, 
  (d) the management of financial resources provided to the Czech Republic from abroad and of financial resources 
for which the State has assumed guarantees, 
  (e) the issue and amortization of government securities, 
  (f) the state procurements. 
 
(2) Unless a special law lays down otherwise, the Office shall carry out audit in the scope specified in paragraph 1 
for 
  (a) organizational units of the state, 
  (b) legal and natural persons. [3] 
 
 

  Scope:  
Ns 
Nr 
Nb 
Pg 
/Nf 
Nt 
O 

Ig 
 
 

Conditions: 
 Dis 
 
Other 
auditors: 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
 
(1) When carrying out audits, the Office shall examine whether the audited operations conform to legal regulations, 
shall review whether they are substantively and formally correct, and shall judge whether they are effective and 
economical. 
(2) The facts being ascertained shall be subject to audit by the Office irrespective of the type and degree of their 
secrecy. 
(3) The result of the auditing operations of the Office are audit conclusions*). An audit conclusion is a written report 
summing up and evaluating the facts ascertained in the course of an audit carried out pursuant to this Act. [4] 
 

Branch of 
auditing:  
F 
C 
P 
 
 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
  
(1) The Office shall draw up and submit to the Chamber of Deputies its opinion on the report on the course of 
implementation of the State Budget and on the state final account of the Czech Republic, including the audit 
reports on which its opinion is based. 
(2) The Office shall submit to the Chamber of Deputies its opinions referred to in paragraph 1 within a term, which 
shall be half the length of the term set for the consideration of these opinions. [5] 
(3) The annual report shall be submitted by the President of the Office for information to the Chamber of Deputies, 
the Senate and the Government within two months of the end of the budgetary year and he shall publish it in the 
Office Bulletin. [18] 
 

Type of 
conclusion:  
CAss\A 
Ass 
 

Reporting: 
Y 

Intended users of the reporting 
 
(1) All approved audit conclusions shall be published by the President of the Office in the Office Bulletin and he 
shall send them without delay to the Chamber of Deputies, the Senate, the Government and, upon request, to the 
ministries. [30] 
 

Intended 
users:  
Pa 
Go 
O 
 

Assignment 2: The national bank 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
 
(3) The Office shall carry out audit of financial management by the Czech National Bank (CNB) in the area of 
expenditures for property acquisition and CNB operations.[3] 

  Scope:  
A 
 

Conditions: 
  
Other 
auditors: 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
 
(as above) 

Branch of 
auditing:  
 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
  
(as above) 

Type of 
conclusion:  
 

Reporting: 
 

Intended users of the reporting 
 
The President of the Office shall send the approved audit conclusions also to the Czech National Bank if the Bank 
is the audited person. [30] 
 

Intended 
users:  
 

 

 



Country: Denmark 
Assignment 1: Audit within the scope of the state accounts 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
 
The Audit shall include: 
(i) state accounts  
[..] 
 
(Auditor generals act, Sec 2,1) 
 
The Auditor General may arrange with the minister concerned that audit tasks according to section 2(1)(i) shall be 
performed in a specified defined cooperation between the Auditor General and an internal audit body. 
(Sec 9) 
 

  Scope:  
Na 
 

Conditions: 
  
 
Other 
auditors: 
(IA) 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
 
The audit shall verify the correctness of the accounts and the compliance of the transactions covered by the 
financial reporting with the appropriations granted, statutes, other regulations, agreements and usual practice. 
Furthermore, an evaluation shall be made as to whether sound economic management has been applied to the 
administration of the funds and of the running of the operations covered by the accounts (performance audit). (Sec 
3) 
 

Branch of 
auditing:  
F 
C 
P 
 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
P 
O 
R 
 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
 
The Auditor General shall examine the completeness of the state accounts and compare appropriation figures with 
accounting figures. The Auditor General presents a report to the Public Accounts Committee within a time limit to 
be agreed between the Public Accounts Committee and the Auditor General. (Sec 17, 1) 
 
The Auditor General shall present a report to the Public Accounts Committee on completion of such audit cases as 
the Auditor General wishes to highlight in view of their financial or principal importance. 
(Sec 17, 2) 
 
Current practice: 
For approx 100 selected organisations the SAI issue a statement with opinions on 
1) The reported financial information 
2) Systems of internal control to ensure compliance 
3) Information in the organisations yearly performance report  
4) sound economic management 
  1-2 is expressed in positive form (reasonable assurance) 
  3-4 is expressed in negative form (limited assurance) 
Based on these audits and supplementary procedures covering the remaining organisations opinions on item 1) 
and 2) are expressed in the yearly report at the level of each ministers area of responsibility as well as the overall 
state accounts. These are provided in the yearly report together with supplementary assessments of selected 
topics. 
In addition the SAI submits 15-20 special reports on selected topics each year. These include compliance and 
performance topics (eg effectiveness of programs) 
  

Type of 
conclusion:  
(A) 
Ass 
 

Reporting: 
Y 
Ç 

Intended users of the reporting 
The Public Accounts Committee shall forward the reports mentioned in section 17(1) and (2) to the Folketing 
(Parliament) and the minister concerned with any comments.  
The minister shall present a response to the Public Accounts Committee on the measures and considerations 
which a report has given rise to  
The ministers' responses and the Auditor General's comments shall form part of the Public Accounts Committee’s 
final report to the Folketing.  
 

Intended 
users:  
Pa 

Assignment 2: Audit of public entities outside the scope of the state accounts 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
 
The Audit shall include: 
[...] 
  (ii) accounts of institutions, associations, foundations, etc., whose expenses or accounting deficits are covered by 
grants financed by the state or by contributions, duties, or other revenues according to statute;  
  (iii) accounts of independent administrative entities established by statute, including the Appropriation Act, or by 
the Finance Committee’s acceptance of an appropriation application; and  
  (iv) Accounts of partnerships and enterprises in which the state [..] is a personally liable business associate. 
 
The Auditor General may arrange with the minister that audit tasks shall be performed in a specified defined 
cooperation between the Auditor General and an internal audit body and/or another auditor 
(Sec 9) 
 

  Scope:  
Or 
 

Conditions: 
  
Other 
auditors: 
(IA) 
(EA) 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
 
(1) In reviewing accounts as stated in sections 4 and 5, the Auditor General shall in particular ensure that the 
accounts are subject to adequate auditing, that the conditions for contributions etc., have been fulfilled, that the 
funds have been spent according to the given provisions and that the funds have been administered observing 

Branch of 
auditing:  
F 
C 
P 
 



sound economic management .  

(2) The accounts mentioned in section 4, include annual accounts with any possible consolidated accounts and 
annual reports, interim accounts and partial accounts as well as relevant accounting records, including 
bookkeeping records, management records and similar records, auditors’ records and reports, etc.; as well as any 
other material and information which the Auditor General deems to be of relevance for the performance of his 
duties. 
 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
P 
O 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
  
The Auditor General shall present a report to the Public Accounts Committee on completion of such audit cases as 
the Auditor General wishes to highlight in view of their financial or principal importance. 
(Sec 17, 2) 
 
Current practice: 
Yearly reports are presented to those charged with governance of the individual audits. These include opinions on 
item 1-4 as outlined above (assignment DK 1) 
 
The organisations may also be subject to audits resulting in a special report.  
 

Type of 
conclusion:  
Ass 
 

Reporting: 
Ç 

Intended users of the reporting 
The Public Accounts Committee shall forward the reports mentioned in section 17(1) and (2) to the Folketing 
(Parliament) and the minister concerned with any comments.  
The minister shall present a response to the Public Accounts Committee on the measures and considerations 
which a report has given rise to  
The ministers' responses and the Auditor General's comments shall form part of the Public Accounts Committee’s 
final report to the Folketing.  
 

Intended 
users:  
Pa 

Assignment 3: Review of audited accounts from municipalities and organisations receiving financial contributions from the state 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
 
4 (1): 
  (i) Accounts of the counties;  
  (ii) Accounts of institutions, associations, foundations, etc., receiving capital contributions, grants, loans, 
guarantees or other support from the state or one of the institutions etc., referred to in section 2(1)(ii)-(iv) or 
receiving contributions, duties or other revenues according to statute; and  
  (iii) Accounts of such institutions etc., as are referred to in section 2(1) to which statutory audit provisions apply 
which deviate from this Act.  
4 (2): 
Limited liability companies in which the state holds shares 
The part of municipal accounts that relates to activities for which payments are to be settled with the state 
 

  Scope:  
Lr 
 

Conditions: 
 Dis 
 
Other 
auditors: 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
 
The Auditor General may require the accounts to be submitted for review 
6.-(1) In reviewing accounts as stated in sections 4 and 5, the Auditor General shall in particular ensure that the 
accounts are subject to adequate auditing, that the conditions for contributions etc., have been fulfilled, that the 
funds have been spent according to the given provisions and that the funds have been administered observing 
sound economic management .  
 
(2) The accounts mentioned in section 4, cf. however subsection (3), include annual accounts with any possible 
consolidated accounts and annual reports, interim accounts and partial accounts as well as relevant accounting 
records, including bookkeeping records, management records and similar records, auditors’ records and reports, 
etc.; as well as any other material and information which the Auditor General deems to be of relevance for the 
performance of his duties.  
 
 (3) The accounts of the limited liability companies mentioned to in section 4(2), second sentence, shall, in addition 
to annual accounts etc., presented in accordance with the Danish Financial Statements Act, also include other 
material of relevance for the review of such accounts, which the minister may take possession of. 
 

Branch of 
auditing:  
F 
P 
C 
 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
  
If the accounts required to be submitted according to subsections (1) and (2) cause the Auditor General to initiate a 
detailed examination, the Auditor General shall notify the minister concerned 
 
The Auditor General shall present a report to the Public Accounts Committee on completion of such audit cases as 
the Auditor General wishes to highlight in view of their financial or principal importance. 
(Sec 17, 2) 
 

Type of 
conclusion:  
 

Reporting: 
Ç 

Intended users of the reporting 
 
(1) The Public Accounts Committee shall forward the reports mentioned in section 17(1) and (2) to the Folketing 
(Parliament) and the minister concerned with any comments.  
(2) The minister shall present a response to the Public Accounts Committee on the measures and considerations 
which a report has given rise to  
(3) The minister shall obtain a statement from the county council concerning the counties mentioned in section 
4(1)(i). In respect of the limited liability companies mentioned in section 4(2), first sentence, the minister shall 
obtain a statement from the company’s board of directors. 
 
In addition to the statement, the minister’s comments on the county council’s or the board of directors’ statement 
shall be included in the response mentioned in subsection (2) to the Public Accounts Committee.  

Intended 
users:  
Pa 



(4) The response and the statement from the county council or the board of directors of the limited liability company 
mentioned in subsection (3) shall at the same time be forwarded to the Auditor General, who shall submit his 
comments to the Public Accounts Committee within a month of receipt thereof.  
If the Public Accounts Committee considers it appropriate the statements mentioned in subsection (3) may also be 
included in the final report 
The ministers' responses and the Auditor General's comments shall form part of the Public Accounts Committee’s 
final report to the Folketing. 
 

 

 
Country: France 
Assignment 1: Implementation of finance acts 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
 
Constitution of France Article 47-2: 
The Cour des Comptes shall assist Parliament in monitoring Government action. It shall assist Parliament and the 
Government in monitoring the implementation of Finance Acts and Social Security Financing Acts, as well in 
assessing public policies.  
--- 
Includes Audits of Public Management upon request from Parliament 
(Semi-constitutional act:  
Loi organique n°2001-692 du 1 août 2001 
La mission d'assistance du Parlement confiée à la Cour des comptes par le dernier alinéa de l'article 47 de la 
Constitution comporte notamment :  
1° L'obligation de répondre aux demandes d'assistance formulées par le président et le rapporteur général de la 
commission chargée des finances de chaque assemblée dans le cadre des missions de contrôle et d'évaluation [..] 
;  
 
2° La réalisation de toute enquête demandée par les commissions de l'Assemblée nationale et du Sénat chargées 
des finances sur la gestion des services ou organismes qu'elle contrôle. Les conclusions de ces enquêtes sont 
obligatoirement communiquées dans un délai de huit mois après la formulation de la demande à la commission 
dont elle émane, qui statue sur leur publication) 
 

  Scope:  
Nb 
Nl 
 

Conditions: 
  
Other 
auditors: 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
 
(From homepage:) 
Auditing public management 
This audit concerns the quality and regularity of management, the efficiency and effectiveness of the actions 
pursued in the eyes of the objectives set by the authorities or the entity considered.  
 

Branch of 
auditing:  
(P) 
 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
  
(From homepage:) 

- The Cour does not only criticise but presents recommendations. 
- The Cour releases its conclusions by transmitting them to the Ministry or to the controlled entity. These 

"administrative communications" take several forms: référé from the Premier Président to Ministers, 
letters from Chamber Presidents, so-called "special" reports on public companies, and communications 
by the General Prosecutor. 
 

Type of 
conclusion:  
Ass 
 

Reporting: 
 

Intended users of the reporting 
 
Constitution of France Article 47-2: 

- Parliament 
- Government 
- “By means of its public reports, it shall contribute to informing citizens”. 

 

Intended 
users:  
Pa 
Go 
Ge 

Assignment 2: Certification of state accounts 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
 
(Semi-constitutional act:  

- Loi organique n°2001-692 du 1 août 2001 
- La mission d'assistance du Parlement confiée à la Cour des comptes par le dernier alinéa de l'article 47 

de la Constitution comporte notamment :  
- 5° La certification de la régularité, de la sincérité et de la fidélité des comptes de l'Etat.) 

 

  Scope:  
Na 
Nr 
 

Conditions: 
  
Other 
auditors: 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
 
Constitution of France Article 47-2 
The accounts of public administrations shall be lawful and faithful. They shall provide a true and fair view of the 
result of the management, assets and financial situation of the said public administrations  

Branch of 
auditing:  
F 
C 
 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
  
Assurance statement on the state accounts 

Type of 
conclusion:  
A 



 
(Cette certification est annexée au projet de loi de règlement et accompagnée du compte rendu des vérifications 
opérées) 
 

 

Reporting: 
Y 

Intended users of the reporting 
- 

Intended 
users:  
 

Assignment 3: Control for the purpose of accounts judgement. 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
 

- Control for the purpose of accounts judgement. 
- Public accountants are civil servants who shall incur expenditures and collect receipts of the State and of 

a large number of public entities. The Cour examines the accounts and the relevant documents 
submitted.  

- ―de facto‖ accountants: any person who, although not entitled as public accountant, became involved in 
handling administration's or public entity's public funds.  

 

  Scope:  
I 
 

Conditions: 
  
Other 
auditors: 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
 
It verifies whether income has been collected and expenses have been paid in accordance with the rules in force. 

Branch of 
auditing:  
F 
C 
 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
  
By delivering a ruling, the Cour grants the accountant discharge when the accounts are regular but places him in 
financial liability in case of income foregone or expenditure irregularly paid (i.e. repayment order – mise en débet). 
 

Type of 
conclusion:  
AI 
>Des 
 

Reporting: 
 

Intended users of the reporting 
 
During this control, should the Cour notice irregularities committed by managers, it informs the relevant 
administrative authorities or Public Auditing Authorities. 
 

Intended 
users:  
Go 

Assignment 4: Report on the implementation of the Social security financing 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
 

- A report on the implementation of the Social security financing Act; 

- (Loi Organic, 2005-881  Article 1-VIII, - La mission d'assistance du Parlement et du Gouvernement, 

confiée à la Cour des comptes par le dernier alinéa de l'article 47-1 de la Constitution, comporte 
notamment :  

- 1° La production du rapport sur l'application des lois de financement de la sécurité sociale, prévu à 
l'article LO 132-3 du code des juridictions financiers) 

 

  Scope:  
Ob 
 

Conditions: 
  
Other 
auditors: 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
 
Application of the Social Security Finance Act 

Branch of 
auditing:  
C 
 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
  
Report 

Type of 
conclusion:  
 

Reporting: 
 

Intended users of the reporting 
- 

Intended 
users:  
 

Assignment 5: Certification of the accounts of the social security fund 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
 
Certification of the accounts of the social security fund 

(Loi Organic, 2005-881  Article 1-VIII: 

La production d'un avis sur la cohérence des tableaux d'équilibre par branche du dernier exercice clos, mentionnés 
au I du présent article ;  
 
3° La production du rapport, mentionné à l'article LO 132-2-1 du code des juridictions financières, de certification 
de la régularité, de la sincérité et de la fidélité des comptes des organismes nationaux du régime général et des 
comptes combinés de chaque branche et de l'activité de recouvrement du régime général, relatifs au dernier 
exercice clos, établis conformément aux dispositions du présent livre. Ce rapport présente le compte rendu des 
vérifications opérées aux fins de certification. 
 

  Scope:  
Or 
 

Conditions: 
  
 
Other 
auditors: 



Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
 
the lawfulness (i.e. compliance with rules), the faithfulness (i.e. application of rules in good faith) and the 
truthfulness (i.e. true to the reality) of the accounts 

Branch of 
auditing:  
F 
C 
 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
(R) 
 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
  
Report including an Assurance statement  
 

Type of 
conclusion:  
Ass\A 
 

Reporting: 
 

Intended users of the reporting 
- 

Intended 
users:  
 

Assignment 6: Yearly reports on budget implementation 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
 

- provided for by (Semi-constitutional act: Loi organique n°2001-692 du 1 août 2001:  
- A report concerning the previous fiscal year's results and to the budget management, which is attached 

to the governments report on economic policy, budget management and target and results for public 
entities 

- (Le dépôt d'un rapport préliminaire conjoint au dépôt du rapport mentionné à l'article 48 relatif aux 
résultats de l'exécution de l'exercice antérieur ) 

- a report on the situation of public finance, which contributes to the budget orientation debate held every 
year before summer. 

- a report on the implementation of the Social security financing Act; 
- a report on the situation of public finance, which contributes to the budget orientation debate held every 

year before summer. 
 

  Scope:  
Nb 
 

Conditions: 
  
Other 
auditors: 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
 
The Cour monitors that Ministers respect the budget appropriations voted by both assemblies. It checks results in 
terms of expenditures as well as receipts. 
 
It contributes to the accurate awareness of the State's financial situation. It proceeds in a similar way for the whole 
social security system that complies with organizational rules and budgetary principles that are far different from 
those of the State. 
 

Branch of 
auditing:  
(P) 
 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
  
Every year 

Type of 
conclusion:  
Ass 
 

Reporting: 
Y 
 

Intended users of the reporting 
 
Parliament 
 

Intended 
users:  
Pa 

 

 
Country: Germany 
Assignment: General auditing assignment 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
Basic Law 

Article 114 (2) Court of Audit 
The Bundesrechnungshof […] shall audit the account and examine the performance, regularity and compliance of 
financial management. It shall report annually directly to both Houses of Parliament and to the Federal 
Government. In all other respects, the powers of the Bundesrechnungshof shall be determined by federal 
legislation. 
 
Federal Budget Code 

Section 88 Functions of the Bundesrechnungshof 
(1) Subject to the provisions set out below, the Bundesrechnungshof shall examine the entire financial 
management of the Federation, including its Separate Property Funds and undertakings. 
(2) On the basis of its audit findings, the Bundesrechnungshof may advise both Houses of the Federal Parliament, 
the Federal Government and individual federal ministries. […]  

Section 89 Scope of Audit 
(1) The Bundesrechnungshof shall examine 

1. the receipts, payments, commitments to incur expenditure, assets and liabilities, 
2. programmes having expenditure or revenue implications, 
3. provisional account entries for receipts and disbursements, 

  Scope:  
N 
Og 
A 
 

Conditions: 
Fix 
Dis 
Per 
Acc Neg 
 
Other 
auditors: 
- 



4. the employment of funds allocated for independent administration (self-administered funds). 
(2) The Bundesrechnungshof may restrict the audit scope and refrain from auditing specific accounts at its 
discretion.  
 
Section 91 Audit of Bodies or other Third Parties outside the Federal Administration 
(1) Except as otherwise provided by legislation, the Bundesrechnungshof shall be entitled to audit bodies  
outside the federal administration if they 
1. implement parts of the federal budget or have expenses reimbursed by the Federation, 
2. manage federal funds or assets, 
3. receive federal grants, or 
4. are bodies incorporated under private law, directly or indirectly majority-owned by the Federation and/or any of 
its separate property funds, are not exposed to competition, and if – pursuant to their specified objective – are 
engaged, entirely or for the most part, in the provision of public services or have been set up for that purpose, and 
receive for that purpose appropriated federal funds or guarantees from the Federation or one of its separate 
property funds. 

The Bundesrechnungshof may also extend its examinations to any third parties to whom such funds are passed on 
by the said bodies. 
 
Section 92 Audit of State Participation in Private-Law Enterprises 
(1) The Bundesrechnungshof shall examine, with due regard to commercial principles, the management of the 
Federation’s direct or indirect shareholdings in private-law enterprises. 
(2) Paragraph (1) applies in like manner to commercial or industrial cooperatives of which the Federation is a 
member. 
 
Section 93  
Joint Audits 
(2) Subject to agreement with foreign, supranational or international audit authorities, the Bundesrechnungshof 
may issue or accept commissions to carry out individual audit assignments, or it may take over audit duties on 
behalf of supranational or international institutions, if empowered to do so by international treaties, 
intergovernmental agreements or by the Federal Government.  
 
Section 94 Timing and Nature of Audit 
(1) The Bundesrechnungshof shall determine the timing and nature of  
the audit and shall arrange for any necessary on-the-spot investigations to be carried out by its authorized officers. 
 
Section 102 Notification of the Bundesrechnungshof 
(1) The Bundesrechnungshof shall be notified without delay whenever 
1. supreme federal authorities issue or interpret general regulations or rules relating to the management of federal 
budget funds or affecting the Federation’s receipts and payments, 
2. administrative bodies or federal undertakings affecting the federal budget are established, substantially altered 
or discontinued, 
3. any direct federal interest in enterprises or any indirect interest within the terms of Section 65, 
Paragraph (3) hereof is established, substantially altered or discontinued, 
4. agreements affecting the management of federal budget funds are concluded between the Federation and a 
body outside the federal administration or between supreme federal authorities, 
5. supreme federal authorities adopt organisational or other measures that may have major financial implications. 
 
Section 103 Consultation of the Bundesrechnungshof 
(1) The Bundesrechnungshof shall be consulted prior to the issue of administrative regulations or rules concerning 
the implementation of the Federal Budget Code. 
(2) Administrative regulations or rules within the meaning of Paragraph (1) above shall include general  
instructions on the operation of cash offices including paying points, and on accounting and the recording of assets 
and liabilities. 
(3) The responsible federal ministry should consult the Bundesrechnungshof before a 
decision is taken on passing or amending budgetary, accounting and/or audit regulations and rules relating to 
supranational or international organisations of which the Federal Republic of Germany is a member. 
 
Audit Rules (adopted by the BRH Senate) 

Article 2 Audit Authority 
(1) Bundesrechnungshof's audit authority covers 
1. all federal government departments and agencies, the federal special funds and federal undertakings; 
2. federal public law bodies, including enterprises having that legal form. 
3. public law bodies within the meaning of article 55 para. 1 of the Budgetary Principles Act incorporated under the 
authority of any of the federal states, if such bodies receive federal grants or guarantees under any statutory 
provision or if, with the Bundesrechnungshof's consent, the respective body's charter provides for audit by the 
Bundesrechnungshof; 
4. under certain circumstances, private-law entities; 
5. the management by the Federal Government of its shareholdings in 
private-law enterprises;  
6. other institutions where the law so provides. 
(2) The Bundesrechnungshof is entitled to audit bodies outside the federal administration, if they implement parts 
of the federal budget or have expenses reimbursed 
from the federal exchequer, if they manage federal funds or assets, or if they receive grants from the federal 
exchequer.  
(3) The provisions of para. 2 of this article shall apply, mutatis mutandis, to private-law entities in which the Federal 
Government (including its special funds) directly or indirectly holds a majority interest, if these entities do not 
operate in a 
competitive market, if, in accordance with the legal instruments under which they operate, their activities entirely or 
predominantly serve a 
public purpose and if they receive budget funds or guarantees from the Federal Government or any federal (4) 
Where the Federal Government is the majority shareholder of a private-law enterprise, the Bundesrechnungshof 



may, in the course of its audit of the Federal Government's management of its share holding, obtain information 
directly from the enterprise, and to this end examine the operations, the books and the records of the enterprise. 
The powers set forth in sentence 1 of this paragraph are valid only where they have been provided for in the 
enterprise's memorandum or articles of association. 
 
Article 5 Audit Scope 
As a matter of principle, the Bundesrechnungshof's audit covers all government operations and transactions that 
have a financial impact. Such financial impact is deemed to exist where the public administration has taken a 
decision that may lead to revenue or expenditure. The Bundesrechnungshof may, at its own discretion, restrict its 
audit to samples and may leave specific 
accounts unaudited.  
 
Article 56 Advisory work in connection with the preparation 
and approval of the federal budget 
(1) In connection with the preparation of the federal budget estimates, the Bundesrechnungshof provides advice to 
the Federal Government, the Bundestag and, where appropriate, the Bundesrat. It will participate in the budget 
negotiations of the requesting federal department with the Federal Ministry of Finance and in the discussions with 
the rapporteurs of the parliamentary Appropriations Committee. Based on its audit experience, the 
Bundesrechnungshof thus can provide an oral or written input into the budget deliberations. 
 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
 
Federal Budget Code 

Section 90 Substance of Audit 
The audit shall examine whether the regulations and principles of adequate financial management have been 
observed, and in particular whether 
1. the Budget Act and the adopted Estimates have been adhered to, 
2. receipts and payments have been properly substantiated and supported by vouchers, and whether both the 
budget and capital accounts have been properly prepared, 
3. funds are administered efficiently and economically, 
4. functions might be performed with fewer human or material resources, or more effectively by other means. 
 
Audit Rules (adopted by the BRH Senate) 

Article 4 Audit Criteria 
(1) The criteria for the Bundesrechnungshof's audit are performance and the regularity and compliance of 
government operations and transactions. 
 (2) The audit criterion of regularity and compliance regards the respect of legal and other regulations which 
provide the basis for disbursements, the collection 
of revenues and the commitment of funds. Moreover, this criterion covers the accuracy with which revenues and 
expenditures are calculated, supported by vouchers and stated in the accounts as well as compliance with the 
provisions 
and principles applicable to financial management. 
(3) Performance auditing looks into whether the optimum ratio between the objective pursued and the resources 
utilised has been sought and obtained. It covers the effectiveness and appropriateness of government operations 
and  
transactions including target achievement (effectiveness or programme results audit). It also covers the 
examination whether the input of resources was kept 
to the minimum necessary to achieve the preset objectives (principle of economy). 
 
Article 37 Observations on the Aggregate Annual Accounts 
(1) The audit of individual accounts and of the aggregate annual accounts provides the basis for the observations 
on the federal annual accounts set forth in the Bundesrechnungshof's annual report. […] 
 
Article 38 Audit of Individual Accounts 
The audit of individual accounts aims in particular at verifying that revenues and expenditures are duly supported 
by vouchers. This audit will generally be restricted to samples. 
 
Article 39 Audit of the Aggregate Annual Accounts 
The audit of annual accounts will cover the audit of the aggregate budget account and the aggregate capital 
account. This audit serves to verify compliance with the Budget Act and the Budget Estimates. 
 
Article 40 Audit of the Budget Account 
The audit of the aggregate budget account serves to verify compliance with the provisions of budgetary law and the 
orders and regulations issued under budgetary law, especially concerning 
- payments by which extra budgetary or excess expenditure is incurred; 
- commitment of future years' budget funds; 
- carrying over of unexpended balances; 
- use made of expenditure funds eligible for virement; 
- compliance with prescribed savings targets; 
- release of blocked funds. 
 
Article 41 Audit of the Capital Account 
The audit of the capital account shall particularly address compliance with the pertinent regulations issued by the 
Federal Ministry of Finance in agreement with the Bundesrechnungshof. 
 

Branch of 
auditing:  
F 
P 
C 
 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
P 
O 
R 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
  
See Article 114 (2) Basic Law: ―shall report annually‖ 
 
Federal Budget Code 

Type of 
conclusion:  
Ass 
Des 
$ 
§ 



Section 97 Observations 
(1) The Bundesrechnungshof shall compile, in the form of an annual report for the two Houses of Parliament, the 
results of its audit in so far as these may be significant for the grant of discharge to the Federal Government in 
respect of the budget and capital accounts. The Bundesrechnungshof shall submit this annual report to the two 
Houses of Parliament and the Federal Government. 
(2) The annual report shall state in particular 

1. whether the amounts stated in the budget and capital accounts tally with the ledgers and whether 
audited receipts and payments are properly supported by vouchers, 

2. in which significant instances the regulations, rules and principles of financial management have not 
been observed, 

3. which criticisms of substance have arisen from the audit of state participation in enterprises with 
independent legal status,  

4. what action is recommended for the future. 
(3) The annual report may include statements relating to subsequent or previous financial years. 
(4) The annual report on matters which are to be kept confidential shall be submitted to the Presidents of the two 
Houses of the Federal Parliament, to the Federal Chancellor and the Federal Ministry of Finance. 
 
Section 99 Matters of Particular Importance 
The Bundesrechnungshof may at any time inform the two Houses of Parliament and the Federal Government of 
matters of particular importance. […] 
 
See also Section 88 (2) Federal Budget Code (―advice‖) 
 
Audit Rules (adopted by the BRH Senate) 

Article 3 Audit Objectives 
(1) The Bundesrechnungshof's audits serve to generate essential findings about the financial management of 
federal departments and agencies and 
other audited bodies. The audit objectives are to ensure the regularity and compliance of public sector operations 
and 
transactions, to enhance public sector performance and to proactively address any weaknesses found. 
(2) The Bundesrechnungshof supports Parliament in the exercise of its right to determine the budget and in its 
decision on granting discharge to the Federal 
Government in respect of its financial management. The Bundesrechnungshof shall help to provide the two Houses 
of Parliament with a reliable overview of federal financial management, reveal the causes and impacts of significant 
weaknesses and make proposals to address the problems stated. 
 
Article 42 Reporting 
(1) Reporting of the Bundesrechnungshof to the two Houses of Parliament and the Federal Government will 
comprise, 

1. the annual report ('the Observations') according to article 97 of the Federal Budget Code, 
2. the reports on matters of special significance in accordance with article 99 Federal Budget Code, and 
3. advice on the strength of its audit findings (article 88 para. 2 Fed. Budget Code). 

(2) Where the law so provides, the Bundesrechnungshof will report to other decision-making bodies. 
 
Article 43 Subject of the Annual Report 
(1) The annual report sets forth audit findings which may be of significance for assessing federal financial 
management including special funds. 
(2) They also deal with results of audits of public-law entities and private-law entities which have significant 
financial impact on the 
federal budget or may in any other way be of importance for decisions of the users of the report. 
(3) The annual report may also include advice given by the 
Bundesrechnungshof and the Federal Performance Commissioner. 
 
Article 53 Advice on the Basis of Audit Findings (Article 88 para. 2 Fed. Budget Code) 
(1) On the basis of its audit findings, the Bundesrechnungshof may advise both Houses of the Federal Parliament, 
the Federal Government and individual 
federal ministries on financially major transactions and important legislation to be enacted. […] 
 
Article 54 Reports on Matters of Particular Importance 
(1) Apart from the annual report, the Bundesrechnungshof may at any time inform the legislative bodies and the 
Federal Government of any matters of particular importance. Where the Bundesrechnungshof reports to 
Parliament, it will at the same time inform the Federal Government. Such special reports are used to communicate 
audit findings which serve to provide information and advice to the legislative bodies and the Federal Government 
about financial management and other issues to be decided by these authorities. This form of reporting is to be 
chosen if it 
appears appropriate to inform the general public. 
 

 

Reporting: 
Y 
Ç 

Intended users of the reporting 
 
See Article 114 (2) Basic Law: 
―both Houses of Parliament and the Federal Government‖ 
 
Federal Budget Code 

Section 96 Audit Findings 
(1) The Bundesrechnungshof shall communicate the audit findings to the appropriate agencies for comment within 
a period to be set by it. It may also communicate them to other agencies and to the Appropriations Committee of 
the Bundestag where it deems this to be necessary. 
(2) The Bundesrechnungshof shall inform the Federal Ministry of Finance of any audit findings of fundamental 
importance or of considerable financial significance.  
 
See also Sections 88 (2), 97 (1) and 99 Federal Budget Code: both Houses of the Federal Parliament, the 

Intended 
users:  
Pa 
Go 
O 



Federal Government and individual federal ministries 
 
Bundesrechnungshof Act 

Section 1 Legal Status 
[…] The Bundesrechnungshof shall provide assistance 
to the Federal Parliament and the Federal Government in their decision making 
procedure. 
 
Audit Rules (adopted by the BRH Senate) 

Article 34 Recipients of Management Letter 
(1) The management letter will be addressed to the agencies directly affected by the audit findings. This includes 
the audited agency and, as a rule, its superior  
authority or an agency responsible for preparing and promulgating legal regulations or for taking supervisory 
action. Where management letters include findings which are of fundamental importance or have a considerable 
financial impact, they are also forwarded to the Federal Ministry of Finance.  
(2) Where appropriate, audit findings may also be communicated to the agencies mentioned in article 91 paragraph 
1 sentence 1 Fed. Budget Code 
and their supervisory authorities. 
(3) Audit findings may also be communicated to other government audit institutions, if there is a legal provision or 
an agreement to that effect or where such communication is appropriate on other grounds. 
 
Article 50 Distribution and Publication of the Annual Report 
(1) The Bundesrechnungshof will submit the annual report simultaneously to the two Houses of the Federal 
Parliament and to the Federal Government. The annual report will then be published by the Bundesrechnungshof's 
President. 
 
See also Articles 53, 54 and 56 of the Audit Rules: both Houses of the Federal Parliament, the Federal 
Government and individual federal ministries; general public in the case of Article 54 
 
 

 

 
Country: Hungary 
Assignment 1: General auditing 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
 
  (1) The State Audit Office shall audit the public financial management, and within the framework thereof: the well-
foundedness of the Budget Bill 
(supplementary budgets); the realisability of the revenue estimates; the lawfulness and expedience of the use of 
capital investment appropriations implying state commitments; the loans raised by the budget, and their use and 
repayment. The State Audit Office shall audit the Appropriation Accounts prepared on the execution of the central 
budget. 
  (2) The President of the State Audit Office shall countersign the agreements on the borrowings by the budget. 
The countersignature certifies the compliance of the borrowing with statutory 
requirements. 
  (3) The State Audit Office shall audit the operation of the chapters falling under the structural order of the central 
budget, the use of the Social Security Fund and separate state funds, as well as the financial management of local 
governments and minority self-governments. 
  (4) The State Audit Office shall audit the tax levying activities of the state tax authority and of the local 
governments, and the activities of the customs authority. 
  (5) The State Audit Office shall audit the entities (institutions) managing state budget resources, the use of 
special-purpose state property granted free of charge, and of state budget subsidies at local governments, national 
and local ethnic selfgovernments, public foundations (including corporations established by public foundations), 
public bodies, public utility companies, economic organisations, non-government organisations, foundations and 
other beneficiary organisations. 
  (6) The State Audit Office shall audit the trusteeship and management of the property under the sub-systems of 
public finance, the activities of (partly or completely) state-owned economic organisations to maintain and increase 
property value, as well as the compliance with the rules on alienating and mortgaging the property under public 
finance. [2] 
 

  Scope:  

P 

Nb 

Ns 

Of 

L 

No 
 

Conditions: 

 (Fix) 

 
(Req) 
 
Other 
auditors: 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
 
  (8) In the course of its audits, the State Audit Office shall monitor compliance with the public finance accounting 
system, the operation of public internal financial control system, and take position on proposals for their further 
development, respectively make such proposals. 
  (9) In context of the audit tasks in Article 2, paragraphs 5-6, the State Audit Office may scrutinise procurements 
funded from the subsystems of public finance, as well the contracts concerning the property of the subsystems of 
public finance at the customer (entity in charge of property management) or at the natural person or corporate body 
acting on behalf or in representation of the customer (entity in charge of property management). Contracting 
parties responsible for the fulfilment of the contract in question, as well as all economic organizations engaged in 
the fulfilment are also subject to this audit of the State Audit Office. [2] 
 
  (1) The State Audit Office shall perform its audits on the base of expediency, effectiveness and legality 
considerations.[16]  
 

Branch of 
auditing:  

C 
P 
 

Type of 
require-
ments:  

(P) 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
  
  (2) The President of the State Audit Office shall submit the report made on the audit of the Appropriation Accounts 
to the Parliament together with the Appropriation Accounts.[18] 

Type of 
conclusion:  

(Ass) 

>AI 



  

Reporting: 
 

Intended users of the reporting 
 
e) Ensure that the report containing the results of the audits performed and analyses made by the State Audit 
Office be submitted to Parliament, and that the report containing the results of the audits performed on request of 
Government be sent to the Prime Minister; [13] 
 
  (1) The State Audit Office shall send the audit findings to the head of the audited organ, who may make written 
remarks or may order the taking of measures within 8 working days. The State Audit Office shall be notified of the 
measures taken within 30 days.  
If the measures are not satisfactory, the President of the State Audit Office shall notify the head of the audited 
organ; he may notify the Parliament or may disclose the case in the annual report on the Appropriation Accounts. 
[25]  
 
  (2) If the State Audit Office during the audit establishes the suspicion of a criminal offence, it shall notify the 
competent authority of the findings without delay, while in other cases of default the State Audit Office may initiate 
that responsibility be cleared up, respectively validated. The body appealed to shall notify the State Audit Office, of 
its position on the initiation of legal procedure within 60 days, if statutory provisions to the contrary are not in place. 
In addition, the body appealed to shall notify the State Audit Office, of the outcome of the legal procedure within 30 
days after completion. [25] 
 

Intended 
users:  

Pa 

 

Go 
 

Assignment 2: National Bank 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
 
The State Audit Office shall scrutinise the financial management of the National Bank of Hungary and the central 
bank activities performed on base of the Act on the National Bank of Hungary and not constituting part of the 
primary tasks. In this scope the State Audit Office shall scrutinise if the National Bank of Hungary is operating in 
compliance with legislation, the own statutes, and the resolutions of its General Assembly.[3] 
 

  Scope:  

A 
 

Conditions: 
  
Other 
auditors: 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
 
(compliance with legislation, the own statutes, and the resolutions of its General Assembly) 

Branch of 
auditing:  

C 
 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
 - 

Type of 
conclusion:  
 

Reporting: 
 

Intended users of the reporting 
- 

Intended 
users:  
 

Assignment 3: Political parties 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
 
The State Audit Office shall audit, in accordance with the provisions of a separate Act, the financial management of 
the political parties.[5] 

  Scope:  

A 
 

Conditions: 
  
Other 
auditors: 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
 
(2) The State Audit Office shall perform, with using legality considerations, audits on the financial management of 
political parties, the use of the subsidy disbursed by Parliament to Parliamentary factions of parties on base of the 
respective Act [16] 
 

Branch of 
auditing:  

C 
 

Type of 
require-
ments:  

P 
O 

 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
- 

Type of 
conclusion:  
 

Reporting: 
 

Intended users of the reporting 
- 
 

Intended 
users:  
 

  



Assignment 4: International tasks accepted 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
 
(7) Upon requests from NATO, the European Union and from international organisations, where the State of 
Hungary is one of the members, and, furthermore, in order to perform the obligations following from international 
agreements made by the Parliament or the Government, the State Audit Office may perform audits, also against 
remuneration, and may provide expert services within its field of competence both at home and abroad. The 
activity specified in this paragraph may not endanger the fulfilment of the annual audit plan of the State Audit 
Office.[17] 
 

  Scope:  
 

Conditions: 
 Neg 
 
Other 
auditors: 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
- 

Branch of 
auditing:  
 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
 - 

Type of 
conclusion:  
 

Reporting: 
 

Intended users of the reporting 
- 

Intended 
users:  
 

 

 
Country: Ireland 
Assignment 1: Assignment by the constitution 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
 
Article 33 of the constitution: 
all accounts of moneys administered by or under the authority of the Oireachtas (Parliament) 
Comptroller and Auditor-General Act, 1923: 
7. It shall be the duty of the Comptroller and Auditor-General to control all disbursements and to audit all accounts 
of moneys administered by or under the authority of the Oireachtas at such times and in such manner as shall from 
time to time be prescribed by law… 
 

  Scope:  
Na 
 

Conditions: 
  
Other 
auditors: 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
- 
 

Branch of 
auditing:  
(F) 
 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
  
…It shall also be the duty of the Comptroller and Auditor-General to report to Dáil Eireann on such matters and at 
such periods and times as shall from time to time be prescribed by law or required by resolution of Dáil Eireann 
 

Type of 
conclusion:  
 

Reporting: 
 

Intended users of the reporting 
 
Dáil Éireann (Parliament’s second chamber) 
 

Intended 
users:  
Pa 

Assignment 2: Audit of appropriation accounts 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
 
Comptroller and Auditor General (Amendment) Act, 1993: 
3. ( a ) the appropriation accounts for the previous financial year prepared by the Departments and submitted to 
him under section 22 of the Act of 1866, 
 

  Scope:  
Na 
 

Conditions: 
 Fix 
 
Other 
auditors: 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
 
  ( b ) in the course of the audit of such an account, carry out such audit tests as he considers appropriate to satisfy 
himself as to— 
 
  (i) whether the receipts and expenditure recorded in the account are supported by substantiating documentation, 
  
  (ii) whether the amounts expended have been applied by the Department concerned for the purposes for which 
the appropriation made by the Oireachtas was intended, and 
  (iii) whether the transactions recorded in the account conform with the authority under which they purport to have 
been carried out. 
 

Branch of  
auditing:  
F 
C  
 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
R 
P 
O 

  



Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
  
4. If, in the course of the audit of an appropriation account, the Comptroller and Auditor General becomes of 
opinion that a transaction recorded therein is not properly chargeable to the account, the Comptroller and Auditor 
General— 
  
  ( a ) shall raise the question with the accounting officer concerned and, if it is not answered to his satisfaction, he 
shall refer the matter to the Minister in writing and the Minister shall determine how the transaction shall be 
accounted for, and 
  
  ( b ) may, if he considers it appropriate to do so, draw up a report in writing in relation to the transaction and the 
determination and cause a copy thereof to be laid before Dáil Éireann. 
  
  (3) If it appears to the Comptroller and Auditor General that a Department has incurred any material expenditure 
the incurring of which required but did not receive the authorisation of the Minister, he shall report that fact in 
writing to the Minister and, unless the Minister, after investigation of the matter, ratifies the expenditure and so 
notifies the Comptroller and Auditor General, it shall be regarded as not being properly chargeable to an 
appropriation account and the Comptroller and Auditor General shall draw up a report on the matter in writing and 
cause it to be laid before Dáil Éireann.  
  (4) If the Minister has reasonable cause to believe that material expenditure has been incurred by a Department 
which required but did not receive his authorisation, the Comptroller and Auditor General shall, if so requested by 
the Minister, investigate the matter and report the result of the investigation in writing to the Minister and, if, 
following the investigation, it appears to the Comptroller and Auditor General that such material expenditure was 
incurred and that it required but did not receive the authorisation of the Minister, he shall, unless the Minister 
ratifies the expenditure, draw up a report on the matter in writing and cause it to be laid before Dáil Éireann. 
5. Upon the completion of his audit of an appropriation account, the Comptroller and Auditor General shall attach to 
the account a certificate stating whether, in his opinion, the account properly presents the receipts and expenditure 
of the Department concerned and refer to any material case in which— 
   ( a ) a Department has failed to apply expenditure recorded in the account for the purpose or purposes for which 
the appropriations made by the Oireachtas were intended, or 
   ( b ) transactions recorded in the account do not conform to the 
 

  Type of 
conclusion:  
A 
>AI 
 

Reporting: 
Y 
Ç 

Intended users of the reporting 
 
Minister 
Dáil Éireann (Parliament’s second chamber) 
 

Intended 
users:  
Go 
Pa 

Assignment 3: Stocks and stores 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
 
(6) ( a ) Where stocks or stores of any kind (including stocks of securities or stamps) held by a Department are of 
such a character or transactions in relation to them are carried out in such volume as, in the opinion of the Minister, 
to require the keeping of records of the stocks or stores or of the transactions, the Minister may direct the 
Department to keep such records in relation to the stocks or stores or the transactions, and to keep them in such 
form, as he may specify and the Department shall comply with such a direction. 
 

  Scope:  
Ns 
 

Conditions: 
  
Other 
auditors: 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
 
(6) ( b ) The Comptroller and Auditor General shall carry out such examinations as he considers appropriate in 
order to satisfy himself as to— 
   (i) whether any record kept pursuant to a direction under paragraph (a) is accurate, and 
   (ii) whether the systems, procedures and practices (including the system of stock-taking) employed by the 
Department concerned for controlling the stocks or stores to which the record relates are adequate and whether 
the manner in which the systems, procedures and practices are employed and applied is adequate. 
 

Branch of 
auditing:  
F 
 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
P 
O 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
  
(―satisfy himself‖) 

Type of 
conclusion:  
 

Reporting: 
 

Intended users of the reporting 
- 

Intended 
users:  
 

Assignment 4: Revenues of the state 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
 
(7)  
(a) The Comptroller and Auditor General shall examine the accounts of the receipt of revenue of the State collected 
by the Revenue Commissioners and the accounts of such other persons who receive money which is by law 
payable into the Exchequer as he considers appropriate. 
 

  Scope:  
Nt 
 

Conditions: 
  
Other 
auditors: 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
 
(b) The Comptroller and Auditor General shall carry out such examinations as he considers appropriate of the 
accounts aforesaid in order to satisfy himself as to whether they are complete and accurate. 
(c) The Comptroller and Auditor General shall carry out such examinations as he considers appropriate in order— 
   (i) to ascertain whether systems, procedures and practices have been established that are adequate to secure an 
effective check on the assessment, collection and proper allocation of the revenue aforesaid, and 
   (ii) to satisfy himself as to whether the manner in which the systems, procedures and practices have been 
employed and applied is adequate 

Branch of 
auditing:  
F 
C 
 

Type of 
require-
ments:  



  

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
  

- (―satisfy himself‖) 
- (―ascertain‖) 

Type of 
conclusion:  
 

Reporting: 
 

Intended users of the reporting 
- 

Intended 
users:  
 

Assignment 5: Departments carrying out commercial activities 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
 
8 ) ( a ) For any financial year in which a Department is carrying on a manufacturing, commercial or trading 
undertaking, it shall, if the Minister so directs, keep, in such form as the Minister may specify or approve, a profit 
and loss account, a balance sheet and such other (if any) accounts as the Minister may specify. 
 

  Scope:  
Or 
 

Conditions: 
 Fix 
 
Other 
auditors: 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
 
( b ) Accounts kept pursuant to paragraph (a) shall be submitted to and audited by the Comptroller and Auditor 
General… 

Branch of 
auditing:  
F 
 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
R 
 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
  
…and he shall attach to the accounts a certificate stating whether, in his opinion, they properly present the profit or 
loss of the undertaking and its balances at the end of the financial year concerned. 
 

Type of 
conclusion:  
A 
 

Reporting: 
Y 
 

Intended users of the reporting 
- 

Intended 
users:  
 

 

 
Country: Israel 
Assignment 1: Audited bodies 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
 
The following bodies (hereafter referred to as "audited bodies") Audited bodies shall be subject to the audit of the 
Comptroller: 
(1) every Government Ministry; 
(2) every enterprise or institution of the State; 
 

  Scope:  
No 
 

Conditions: 
  
Other 
auditors: 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
 
Within the scope of his functions the Comptroller shall, as far as Extent of audit necessary, examine - 
(1)  
    [a] whether every expenditure has been incurred within the limits of the legal appropriation and for the purpose 
for which it has been designated; 
    [b] whether the income has been received in accordance with law and is authorized by law; 
    [c] whether there is sufficient documentation in respect of all expenditure and income; 
    [d] whether every act within the scope of his audit has been done in accordance with law and by the person 
competent to do it;  
    [e] whether the keeping of accounts, the drawing-up of balance sheets, the checking of the cash-in-hand and the 
stock, and the system of documentation are efficient; 
    [f] whether the method of keeping moneys and safeguarding property is satisfactory; 
    [g] whether the state of the cash-in-hand and the stock tallies with the accounts. 
(2) whether the audited bodies within the meaning of section 9 (1), (2), (4) and (5) have operated economically, 
efficiently and in a morally irreproachable manner; such examination shall also be applicable to bodies audited 
under section 9 (6) unless the law, decision or agreement referred to in that paragraph otherwise provides, and 
bodies audited under section 9(7), (8) and (9) if and to the extent that they have been made subject to audit; 
(3) any such other matter as he may deem necessary. [10] 
 

Branch of 
auditing:  
F 
C 
P 
(Z) 
 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
P 
O 
R 
 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
  
(a) Not later than the 15th of February each year, the Comptroller shall present a report for the consideration of the 
Prime Minister and of the Chairman of the State Audit Affairs Committee of the Knesset on the results of the audit 
of the audited bodies within the meaning of section 9(1) and (2), carried out during the course of the previous 
financial year. The Comptroller may present the report in parts, provided that the entire report is presented by the 
aforesaid date. 
(b) In a report under subsection (a) the Comptroller shall summarize his activities in the field of audit and - 
  (1) specify any violation of moral integrity; 

Type of 
conclusion:  
Ass 
 

Reporting: 
Y 



  (2) specify any such defect and any such violation of law or of the principles of economy and efficiency as in his  
        opinion deserve to be included in the report; 
  (3) make recommendations for the rectification of the defects and their prevention. 
  (4) specify any improvement or outstanding actions that the Comptroller deems worthy of inclusion in the report. 
[15].  
 

Intended users of the reporting 
 
(a) In this section, "head of an audited body" means each of the following: 
(1) in an audited body as referred to in section 9(1) or (2) – the minister in charge of that body; [21A.] 
 

Intended 
users:  
Pa 
Go 

Assignment 2: Other audited bodies 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
 
  (3) every person or body holding, otherwise than under contract, any State property or managing or controlling 
any State property on behalf of the State; 
  (4) every local authority; 
  (5) every governmental corporation within the meaning of the Governmental Corporations Law, 5735-1975  and 
every enterprise, institution, fund or other body in the management of which the Government has a share; 
  (6) every person, enterprise, institution, fund or other body made subject to audit by law, by decision of the 
Knesset or by agreement between him or it and the Government; [9] 
  (7) every governmental subsidiary corporation within the meaning of the Governmental Corporations Law and 
every enterprise, institution, fund or other body in the management of which one of the bodies enumerated in 
paragraphs (2), (4), (5) and (6) has a share; however, no audit of such a body shall be carried out except and 
insofar as the Committee or the Comptroller so decides; 
  (8) every enterprise, institution, fundor other body assisted, either directly or indirectly, by the Government or by 
one of the bodies enumerated in paragraphs (2), (4), (5) and (6) by way of a grant, a guarantee or the like; 
however, no audit of such a body shall be carried out except and insofar as the Committee or the Comptroller so 
decides; 
  (9) every general employees' organization, and every enterprise, institution, fund or other body in the 
management of which such employees' organization has a share, provided that the audit shall not be carried out 
on their activities as a trade union; however, no audit of such a body shall be carried out except and insofar as the 
Comptroller so decides and subject to international conventions to which the State of Israel is party;  
if the Comptroller decides to carry out such audit, the Comptroller shall have all the powers granted him in respect 
of an audited body, even in respect of the activities of such employees' organization, enterprise , institution, fund or 
body, as a trade union, provided that the Comptroller deems that necessary for  the purposes of the audit of their 
other activities. [9] 
 

  Scope:  
L 
O 
I 
 

Conditions: 
  
Other 
auditors: 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
 
(ass assignment 1 above) 

Branch of 
auditing:  
F 
C 
P 
(Z) 
 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
P 
O 
R 
 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
  
  (a) Upon completion of an audit of audited bodies within the meaning of section 9 (3), (4), (5), (6), (7), (8) and (9) 
(hereinafter – "other audited bodies"), the Comptroller shall prepare a report on the result of his audit. In this report, 
the Comptroller shall include a summary, details, and recommendations as aforesaid in section 15(b). 
  (b) The Comptroller shall submit each report on the audit of an audited body within the meaning of section 9(4) to 
the head of the local authority audited, together with copies for all the members of council of such local authority; a 
copy of the report shall be submitted by the Comptroller to the Committee, to the Prime Minister and to the Minister 
of the Interior. 
  (c) Each report on the audit of an audited body within the meaning of section 9(3), (5), (6), (7), (8) and (9) shall be 
submitted by the Comptroller to the Committee; a copy of the report shall be submitted by the Comptroller to the 
Prime Minister, to the Minister concerned and to the audited body; however, a copy of such a report concerning an 
audited body within the meaning of section 9 (9) shall only be submitted by the Comptroller to the audited body 
itself. 
  (d) In regard to other audited bodies, the head of the audited body, as defined in section 21A, shall submit to the 
Comptroller, within ten weeks of receiving the report in whole or in part, his observations concerning the report 
regarding every defect or violation detailed therein. [20] 
 

Type of 
conclusion:  
Ass 
 

Reporting: 
 

Intended users of the reporting 
 
(a) In this section, "head of an audited body" means each of the following: 
  (2) in an audited body referred to in section 9(4) – the head of the local authority; 
  (3) in another audited body – the directorate or comparable body in the audited body; [21A.] 
 

Intended 
users:  
O 
Pa 
Go 
 

 
  



Country: Poland 
Assignment 1: Bodies of governmental administration, the National Bank of Poland, state legal persons and other units of the 
state 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
The Supreme Audit Office of Poland (NIK) audits the activity of bodies of governmental administration, the National 
Bank of Poland, state legal persons and other units of the state (2.1. and Polish Constitution - Art 203.1). 
 
The NIK audits the subjects as set out in Article 2 and investigates in particular the implementation of the state 
budget and execution of laws or other legal acts with respect to the financial, economic and administrative activity 
of these units (3) 
 
The bodies entrusted by government administration and local Government with the audit, review and inspection of 
their activity co-operate with the NIK and are required to: 

1. provide the NIK at its request, with the results of audits conducted by these bodies,  
2. conduct certain audits jointly under the management of the NIK, 
3. conduct ad hoc audits on the order of the NIK. (12) 

 
The NIK undertakes aduits on the order of the Sejm or its bodies, on the request of the President of the Republic  
of Poland, the Prime Minister, or at its own initiative . 
The NIK performs its tasks on the basis of periodical plans, which are submitted to the Sejm. It may also conduct 
ad hoc audits. (6) 
 

  Scope:  
 

Conditions: 
  
Other 
auditors: 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
legality, sound management, efficacy and integrity (5.1.  and Polish Constitution - Art 203.1) 
 
The audit proceedings aim at establishing the facts concerning the activity of audited entities, at providing accurate 
documentation of these facts and at evaluating the audited activity from the point of view of criteria defined in 
Article 5 (28) 

Branch of 
auditing:  
 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
 The NIK  submits to the Sejm its: 

1. analysis of the implementation of the state budget and of the monetary policy guidelines, 
2. opinion on the budget validation for the Council of Ministers, 
3. final audit reports containing information on the results of audits ordered by the Sejm or its bodies, 
4. final audit reports containing information on the results of audits conducted on the request of the 

President of the Republic of Poland, the Prime Minister or of other important audits, 
5. recommendations on particular problems considered by the Sejm in relation to the activity of bodies 

performing public tasks, 
6. final audit reports (information on audit results) containing demurrers arising out of audits, concerning the 

activity of members of the Council of Ministers, heads of central government offices, the president of the 
National Bank of Poland and heads of the units listed in Article 4 paragraph l, 

7. activity report for the previous year (7 and Polish Constitution - Art 204). 

 

The NIK provides the President of the Republic of Poland with final audit reports containing information on the 
results of audits conducted on his request and on the results of audits conducted on the order of the Sejm, or its 
bodies, or of the Prime Minister as well as final audit reports containing information concerning other important 
audits. 
The NIK provides the Prime Minister with final audit reports containing information on the results of audits 
conducted on his request and on the results of audits submitted to the Sejm and to the President of the Republic of 
Poland. (8) 
 

Type of 
conclusion:  
 

Reporting: 
 

Intended users of the reporting 
The audit protocol to the head of the audited unit (54) 
 
The NIK submits the post-audit statements to the head of the audited unit and if necessary, to the head of the 
superior unit and to appropriate government and local government bodies (60)  
 
On the basis of the audit protocols and the post-audit statements, the NIK draws up final audit reports (information 
on audit results), which are submitted to the Sejm, the President of the Republic of Poland and the Prime Minister 
(64) 
 
The regional offices of the NIK provide appropriate voivodship governors with the final audit reports containing 
information on the results of those important audits which refer to the activity of territorial bodies of the 
governmental administration (9.1.) 
 
To the public  (10) 
 

Intended 
users:  
 

Assignment 2: Bodies of local government, communal legal persons and other communal organisational units 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
The Supreme Audit Office of Poland (NIK) may audit the activity of bodies of local government, communal legal 
persons and other communal organisational units. (2.2 and Polish Constitution - Art 203.2). 
 
The NIK audits the subjects as set out in Article 2 and investigates in particular the implementation of the state 
budget and execution of laws or other legal acts with respect to the financial, economic and administrative activity 
of these units (3) 
 
 The bodies entrusted by government administration and local Government with the audit, review and inspection of 
their activity co-operate with the NIK and are required to: 

1. provide the NIK at its request, with the results of audits conducted by these bodies, 
2. conduct certain audits jointly under the management of the NIK, 

  Scope:  
 

Conditions: 
  
Other 
auditors: 



3. conduct ad hoc audits on the order of the NIK. (12) 
 
The NIK undertakes audits on the order of the Sejm or its bodies, on the request of the President of the Republic  
of Poland, the Prime Minister, or at its own initiative . 
The NIK performs its tasks on the basis of periodical plans, which are submitted to the Sejm. It may also conduct 
ad hoc audits. (6) 
 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
legality, sound management and integrity (5.2. and Polish Constitution - Art 203.2) 
 
The audit proceedings aim at establishing the facts concerning the activity of audited entities, at providing accurate 
documentation of these facts and at evaluating the audited activity from the point of view of criteria defined in 
Article 5 (28) 
 

Branch of 
auditing:  
 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
 - 

Type of 
conclusion:  
 

Reporting: 
 

Intended users of the reporting 
The regional offices of the NIK provide appropriate voivodship governors, local government councils and local 
councils with the final audit reports containing information on the results of those important audits which refer to the 
activity of a local government (9.2) 
 
The NIK submits the post-audit statements to the head of the audited unit and if necessary, to the head of the 
superior unit and to appropriate government and local government bodies (60)  
 
On the basis of the audit protocols and the post-audit statements, the NIK draws up final audit reports (information 
on audit results), which are submitted to the Sejm, the President of the Republic of Poland and the Prime Minister 
(64) 
 
To the public  (10) 
 

Intended 
users:  
 

Assignment 3: Other economic subjects (businesses) and organisational units 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
The NIK may also audit the activity of other economic subjects (businesses) and organisational units, to the extent 
to which they make use of state or communal property or  resources and meet their obligations to the state (2.3 
and Polish Constitution - Art 203.3). 
 
The NIK audits the subjects as set out in Article 2 and investigates in particular the implementation of the state 
budget and execution of laws or other legal acts with respect to the financial, economic and administrative activity 
of these units (3) 
 
The bodies entrusted by government administration and local Government with the audit, review and inspection of 
their activity co-operate with the NIK and are required to: 

1. provide the NIK at its request, with the results of audits conducted by these bodies, 
2. conduct certain audits jointly under the management of the NIK, 
3. conduct ad hoc audits on the order of the NIK. (12) 

 
The NIK undertakes audits on the order of the Sejm or its bodies, on the request of the President of the Republic of 
Poland, the Prime Minister, or at its own initiative . 
The NIK performs its tasks on the basis of periodical plans, which are submitted to the Sejm. It may also conduct 
ad hoc audits. (6) 
 

  Scope:  
 

Conditions: 
  
Other 
auditors: 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
legality and integrity (5.3. and Polish Constitution - Art 203.3) 
 
 
The audit proceedings aim at establishing the facts concerning the activity of audited entities, at providing accurate 
documentation of these facts and at evaluating the audited activity from the point of view of criteria defined in 
Article 5 (28) 
 

Branch of 
auditing:  
 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
 - 

Type of 
conclusion:  
 

Reporting: 
 

Intended users of the reporting 
The audit protocol to the head of the audited unit (54) 
 
The NIK submits the post-audit statements to the head of the audited unit and if necessary, to the head of the 
superior unit and to appropriate government and local government bodies (60)  
 
On the basis of the audit protocols and the post-audit statements, the NIK draws up final audit reports (information 
on audit results), which are submitted to the Sejm, the President of the Republic of Poland and the Prime Minister 
(64) 
 
To the public (10) 
 

Intended 
users:  
 

 



Assignment 4: Organizational units which execute tasks in the sphere of common health insurance 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
The NIK may audit the activity of organizational units which execute tasks in the sphere of common health 
insurance other than those referred to in items 1 and 2 of Article 2, para 3 (2.4). 

 
The NIK audits the subjects as set out in Article 2 and investigates in particular the implementation of the state 
budget and execution of laws or other legal acts with respect to the financial, economic and administrative activity 
of these units (3) 

 
The bodies entrusted by government administration and local Government with the audit, review and inspection of 
their activity co-operate with the NIK and are required to: 
1. provide the NIK  at its request, with the results of audits conducted by these bodies, 
2. conduct certain audits jointly under the management of the NIK, 
3. conduct ad hoc audits on the order of the NIK. (12) 

 
The NIK undertakes audits on the order of the Sejm or its bodies, on the request of the President of the Republic  
of Poland, the Prime Minister, or at its own initiative . 
The NIK performs its tasks on the basis of periodical plans, which are submitted to the Sejm. It may also conduct 
ad hoc audits. (6) 
 

  Scope:  
 

Conditions: 
  
Other 
auditors: 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
legality and sound management (2.4) 
 
The audit proceedings aim at establishing the facts concerning the activity of audited entities, at providing accurate 
documentation of these facts and at evaluating the audited activity from the point of view of criteria defined in 
Article 5 (28) 
 

Branch of 
auditing:  
 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
 - 

Type of 
conclusion:  
 

Reporting: 
 

Intended users of the reporting 
The audit protocol to the head of the audited unit (54) 
 
The NIK submits the post-audit statements to the head of the audited unit and if necessary, to the head of the 
superior unit and to appropriate government and local government bodies (60)  
 
On the basis of the audit protocols and the post-audit statements, the NIK draws up final audit reports (information 
on audit results), which are submitted to the Sejm, the President of the Republic of Poland and the Prime Minister 
(64) 
 
To the public (10) 
 

Intended 
users:  
 

 

 
Country: Sweden 
Assignment 1: Performance audits 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
 
Section 2 
The Swedish National Audit Office may, in accordance with the more detailed prescriptions of Section 4, audit: 

1. the activities that are conducted by the Government, the Government Offices, the courts and the 
administrative agencies supervised by the Government, 

2. the activities that are conducted by the administrative offices of the Riksdag and agencies supervised by 
the Riksdag (Swedish Parliament), 

3. the activities that are conducted by the Palace Administration and the Royal Djurgården Administration, 
4. the activities that are conducted by the State in the form of limited companies, provided the activities are 

governed by statute or other enactment or if the State as owner or by the provision of Government 
appropriations or by contract or in some other way has a controlling influence over the activities, 

5. the activities that are conducted by the State in the form of a foundation, if the activity is governed by 
statute or some other enactment or if the foundation has been formed by or jointly with the State or is 
administered by a State agency, 

6. how State funds that have been received as support for a particular activity are used, provided there is a 
duty to account for the funds to the State or special regulations or conditions have been issued 
concerning how the funds may be used, and 

7. the processing of unemployment benefits by the unemployment benefit fund offices. 
 

  Scope:  
N 
A 
Nf 
O 
 

Conditions: 
 Dis 
 
Other 
auditors: 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
 
Section 4 
The audit referred to in Section 2 shall primarily focus on circumstances linked to the national budget and the 
implementation and result of State activities and duties generally, but may also relate to the work of the State 
generally. 
The audit shall promote development whereby the State, having regard to the general public interest, receives the 
optimum return on its resources (performance audit/‖effectiveness audit‖). 
 

Branch of 
auditing:  
P 
 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
 



Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
  
The findings of the audit shall, unless it is intended only for preparatory measures, be reported in a performance 
audit report. 

Type of 
conclusion:  
Ass 
 
>Cass 
 

Reporting: 
Ç 
 
Y 
 

Intended users of the reporting 
 
Reports on the performance audits in accordance with Section 2, items 1 and 3–7, shall be submitted to the 
Government. 
 
The most important observations made on the performance audit and the financial audit shall be compiled in an 
annual report. The annual report shall be submitted to the Government and the Riksdag. 
 

Intended 
users:  
Go 
 
Pa 

Assignment 2: Audits of annual accounts 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
 
Section 3 
The Swedish National Audit Office shall, in accordance with the more detailed prescriptions of Section 5, audit the 
financial statements of 

1. the State, 
2. the Government Offices and, with the exception of the National Pension Insurance Funds, the 

administrative agencies supervised by the Government, 
3. the Riksdag Administration, the Parliamentary Ombudsmen, the Riksbank (Swedish Central Bank) and 

the Bank of Sweden Tercentenary Foundation 
4. the Palace Administration and the Royal Djurgården Administration. 

 
5. the Riksdag Administration, the Parliamentary Ombudsmen, the Riksbank (Swedish Central Bank) and 

the Bank of Sweden Tercentenary Foundation, 
 
The Swedish NAO is also entitled to appoint auditors within its staff being authorized public accountants in state 
owned enterprizes and state founded foundations.  
 
For entities with an obligation to submit an interim report, the said report, with the exception of forecasts, shall be 
audited.  
 

  Scope:  

Nr 

 
Or 
 

Conditions: 

 Fix 

 
3
 

 
Other 
auditors: 

IA
4
 

 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
 
Section 5 
The audit referred to in Section 3 shall be conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and 
be intended to assess whether the accounts and the underlying accounting are reliable and the accounting records 
true and fair and also whether the administration by the management complies with the applicable regulations and 
special decisions. 
 
Current practice: 
―generally accepted auditing standard‖ is interpreted as International Auditing Standards adopted for the public 
sector (ISSAI) 
 

Branch of 
auditing:  

F 
C

5
 

 

Type of 
require-
ments:  

R 
P 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
  
The audit shall, at the end of each financial year, be concluded with an auditor’s report. The audit of an interim 
report shall be concluded with an auditor’s certificate. 

Type of 
conclusion:  

ISSAI 

rA 
 
IFAC 

Reporting: 

Y 
S 

 

Intended users of the reporting 
 
The auditor’s report on the annual accounts of the State shall be submitted to the Government and the Riksdag. 
Auditor’s reports and auditor’s certificates on the financial audit in accordance with Section 3, first paragraph, items 
2 and 4, shall be submitted to the Government. 
 
The most important observations made on the performance audit and the financial audit shall be compiled in an 

Intended 
users:  

Go 

 

 

                                                      
3
 we do not perform pre-audits, but try to perform the audit in a timely manner in order to point out possible misstatements before the 

financial statements is finalized by the entity 
4
 Cooperation with internal auditors is not mandatory but  the auditor should assess whether it is possible to rely on work performed by 

internal auditors (see ISSAI 1610) 
5
 We have no obligation to give an opinion on compliance, but the entity has an obligation to report on material issues that is of 

relevance for Government in their financial statement, which includes material non-compliance. The audits are performed according to 
ISSAI 1250) 



annual report. The annual report shall be submitted to the Government and the Riksdag. 
 
  

Pa 

 

Ge 

 
O 

 

 
Country: United Kingdom 
Assignment 1: Performance auditing 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
 
6 Public departments etc 
(3) Subject to subsections (4) and (5) below, this section [economy, efficiency and effectiveness examination] 
applies to—  
  (a) any department which is required to prepare resource accounts under section 5 of the Government Resources 
and Accounts Act 2000 
    (aa) the National Assembly for Wales 
  (b)  
anybody required to keep accounts under section 98 of the M6 National Health Service Act 1977 or section 86 of 
the M7 National Health Service (Scotland) Act 1978; 
  (c) 
any other authority or body whose accounts are required to be examined and certified by, or are open to the 
inspection of,  
the Comptroller and Auditor General by virtue of any enactment, including an enactment passed after this Act; and        
  (d) 
any authority or body which does not fall within section 7 below and whose accounts are required to be examined 
and certified by, or are open to the inspection of, the Comptroller and Auditor General by virtue of any agreement 
made, whether before or after the passing of this Act, between that authority or body and a Minister of the Crown. 
(§6) 
7 Other bodies mainly supported by public funds: 
(1) If the Comptroller and Auditor General has reasonable cause to believe that any authority or body to which this 
section applies has in any of its financial years received more than half its income from public funds he may carry 
out an examination into the economy, efficiency and effectiveness with which it has in that year used its resources 
in discharging its functions. 
(National Audit Act, 1983) 
 

  Scope:  
No 
Of 
 

Conditions: 
 Dis 
 
Other 
auditors: 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
 
Economy, Efficiency and Effectiveness Examinations 
6  
(1) The Comptroller and Auditor General may carry out examinations into the economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness with which any department, authority or other body to which this section applies has used its 
resources in discharging its functions.  
(2) Subsection (1) above shall not be construed as entitling the Comptroller and Auditor General to question the 
merits of the policy objectives of any department, authority or body in respect of which an examination is carried 
out.  
 

Branch of 
auditing:  
P 
 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
O 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
  
Reports to House of Commons 
The Comptroller and Auditor General may report to the House of Commons the results of any examination carried 
out by him under section 6 or 7 above. 
 

Type of 
conclusion:  
Ass 
 

Reporting: 
Ç 
 

Intended users of the reporting 
 
House of Commons 
 

Intended 
users:  
Pa 

Assignment 2: Government accounts 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
 
Whole of government accounts 
 9 Preparation  
(1) The Treasury shall prepare in respect of each financial year a set of accounts for a group of bodies each of 
which appears to the Treasury—  
  (a) to exercise functions of a public nature, or  
  (b) to be entirely or substantially funded from public money.  
(2) Accounts prepared under this section may include information referring wholly or partly to activities which—  
  (a) are not activities of bodies falling within subsection (1), but  
  (b) appear to the Treasury to be activities of a public nature.  
10 Obtaining information  
(1) Where the Treasury intend the accounts under section 9 for a particular financial year to relate in part to a 
particular body which falls within section 9(1), the Treasury may by order designate that body for the purposes of 
this section in respect of that year.  
(2) Where a body is designated in respect of a financial year it shall—  
  (a) prepare such financial information in relation to the year as the Treasury may request,  
  (b) present the information in such form as the Treasury may direct,  

  Scope:  
Or 
 

Conditions: 
 Fix 
 
Other 
auditors: 

http://www.statutelaw.gov.uk/content.aspx?LegType=All+Legislation&title=national+audit+act&searchEnacted=0&extentMatchOnly=0&confersPower=0&blanketAmendment=0&sortAlpha=0&TYPE=QS&PageNumber=1&NavFrom=0&parentActiveTextDocId=1284352&ActiveTextDocId=1284352&filesize=54649#756538
http://www.statutelaw.gov.uk/content.aspx?LegType=All+Legislation&title=national+audit+act&searchEnacted=0&extentMatchOnly=0&confersPower=0&blanketAmendment=0&sortAlpha=0&TYPE=QS&PageNumber=1&NavFrom=0&parentActiveTextDocId=1284352&ActiveTextDocId=1284352&filesize=54649#756539


  (c) arrange for the information to be audited [..] 
 
(Governments resource and accounts act (GRA), 2000) 
 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
 
9 Preparation  
(3) The accounts shall contain such information in such form as the Treasury think fit.  
(4) In determining the form and content of the accounts the Treasury shall aim to ensure that the accounts—  
  (a) present a true and fair view, and  
  (b) conform to generally accepted accounting practice subject to such adaptations as are necessary in the 
context.  
(5) For the purpose of subsection (4)(a) and (b) the Treasury shall in particular—  
  (a) have regard to any relevant guidance issued by the Accounting Standards Board Limited or any other body 
prescribed for the purposes of section 256 of the [1985 c. 6.] Companies Act 1985 (accounting standards), and  
  (b) ensure that the accounts include, subject to paragraph (a), a statement of financial performance, a statement 
of financial position and a cash flow statement. 
 
11 Scrutiny  
(1) The Treasury shall send accounts under section 9 to the Comptroller and Auditor General.  
(2) The Comptroller and Auditor General shall examine accounts sent to him under this section with a view to 
satisfying himself that they present a true and fair view. 
 

Branch of 
auditing:  
F 
 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
R 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
  
11 Scrutiny  
[..]  
(3) Where the Comptroller and Auditor General has conducted an examination of accounts he shall—  
  (a) certify them and issue a report, and  
  (b) send the certified accounts and the report to the Treasury.  
 

Type of 
conclusion:  
A 
/ 
Ass\A 
 

Reporting: 
Y 

Intended users of the reporting 
 
4) The Treasury shall lay accounts and reports received under subsection (3)(b) before the House of Commons.  
(5) A person who acts as auditor for the purposes of section 10(2)(c) shall give to the Comptroller and Auditor 
General such information and explanations as he may reasonably require for the purposes of this section. 
 

Intended 
users:  
Pa 

Assignment 3: Departmental accounts 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
 
Departmental accounts  
5 Resource accounts: preparation  
(1) A government department for which an estimate is approved by the House of Commons in respect of a financial 
year shall prepare accounts (to be known as resource accounts) for that year detailing—  
  (a) resources acquired, held or disposed of by the department during the year, and  
  (b) the use by the department of resources during the year.  
(2)Resource accounts shall be prepared in accordance with directions issued by the Treasury.  
 
(Governments resource and accounts act (GRA), 2000) 
 

  Scope:  
Or 
 

Conditions: 
 Fix 
 
Other 
auditors: 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
 
5 Resource accounts: preparation  
(3) The Treasury shall exercise the power to issue directions under subsection (2) with a view to ensuring that 
resource accounts—  
  (a) present a true and fair view,  
  (b) conform to generally accepted accounting practice subject to such adaptations as are necessary in the context 
of departmental accounts, and  
  (c) accord with guidance issued by the Treasury about the inclusion of an explanation of the difference between 
an item appearing in a department’s estimate and a corresponding item appearing in or reflected in the 
department’s resource accounts.  
 
(4) For the purpose of subsection (3)(a) and (b) the Treasury shall in particular—  
  (a) have regard to any relevant guidance issued by the Accounting Standards Board Limited or any other body 

prescribed for the purposes of section 256 of the [1985 c. 6.] Companies Act 1985 (accounting standards), and  
  (b) require resource accounts to include, subject to paragraph (a), a statement of financial performance, a 
statement of financial position and a cash flow statement. 
 
6. Resource accounts: scrutiny  
(1) The Comptroller and Auditor General shall examine any resource accounts which he receives from a 
department under section 5(5) with a view to satisfying himself—  
  (a) that the accounts present a true and fair view,  
  (b) that money provided by Parliament has been expended for the purposes intended by Parliament,  
  (c) that resources authorised by  
Parliament to be used have been used for the purposes in relation to which the use was authorised, and  
  (d) that the department’s financial transactions are in accordance with any relevant authority. 
 

Branch of 
auditing:  
F 
C 
 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
R 
O 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
  
6. Resource accounts: scrutiny  

Type of 
conclusion:  
Ass\A 



 
(2) If resource accounts appear to the Comptroller and Auditor General to suggest that a material use of resources 
required but did not receive the authority of the Treasury—  
  (a) he shall inform the Treasury, and  
  (b) if the Treasury sanction the use of resources, he shall treat it as always having had the Treasury’s authority.  
(3) Where the Comptroller and Auditor General has conducted an examination of accounts under subsection (1)—  
  (a) he shall certify them and issue a report,  
  (b) he shall send the certified accounts and the report to the Treasury not later than 15th January of the financial 
year following that to which the accounts relate, and  
  (c) if he is not satisfied of the matters set out in subsection (1)(a) to (d), he shall report to the House of Commons. 
 

 

Reporting: 
Y 
 
Ç 

Intended users of the reporting 
 
Treasury (Ministry of Finance) 
House of Commons (Parliament) 
 
25.3 
An examination of accounts carried out by the Comptroller and Auditor General shall be carried out on behalf of the 
House of Commons. 
 

Intended 
users:  
Go 
 
Pa 
 

Assignment 4: Other departmental accounts 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
 
7 Other departmental accounts „ 
(1) The Treasury may direct a government department to prepare for each financial year accounts in relation to any 
specified matter.  
(2) Accounts under subsection (1) shall be prepared in accordance with directions issued by the Treasury.  
 
(Other bodies: 
25 
6) The Treasury may by order provide for the accounts of a body to be audited by the Comptroller and Auditor 
General.  
(7) An order under subsection (6)—  
  (a) may be made in relation to a body only if it appears to the Treasury that the body exercises functions of a 
public nature or is entirely or substantially funded from public money, and  
act (GRA), 2000) 
 
  (b) may make such supplementary or consequential provision (including provision amending an enactment) as 
the Treasury think expedient.) 
(Governments resource and accounts 
 

  Scope:  
Or 
 

Conditions: 
 Fix 
 
Other 
auditors: 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
 
The Comptroller and Auditor General shall carry out his examination of accounts under subsection (3)(b) with a 
view to satisfying himself—  
  (a) that money provided by Parliament has been expended for the purposes intended by Parliament,  
  (b) that resources authorised by Parliament to be used have been used for the purposes in relation to which the 
use was authorised, and  
  (c) that the department’s financial transactions are in accordance with any relevant authority. 
 

Branch of 
auditing:  
F 
C 
 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
R 
O 
 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
  
  (b) the Comptroller and Auditor General shall examine and certify the accounts, issue a report on them and send 
the certified accounts and the report to the Treasury not later than 15th January of that year, and  
  (c) the Treasury shall lay the certified accounts and the report before the House of Commons not later than 31st 
January of that year. 
 

Type of 
conclusion:  
Ass\A 
 

Reporting: 
Y 

Intended users of the reporting 
 

- Treasury 
- House of Commons 

 

Intended 
users:  
Go 
 
Pa 
 

Assignment 5 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
 
Government funds and accounts 
For payments out of the Consolidated Fund or the National Loans Fund:  
(2) A requisition, request or order to which this subsection applies  may be produced, authenticated and 
transmitted in any manner which the Treasury, with the approval of the Comptroller and Auditor General, decide to 
adopt Payments in by error  
(1) Where money is paid into the Consolidated Fund or the National Loans Fund, and the money should not or 
need not have been paid into the Fund, all or any part of the money may be paid out of the Fund in accordance 
with this section. 
(2) In the case of the Consolidated Fund  the Comptroller and Auditor General shall on receipt of a requisition from 
the Treasury grant a credit on the Exchequer account at the Bank of England (or on its growing balance), and  an 
issue shall be made on orders given to the Bank by the Treasury in accordance with a credit granted.  
(3) In the case of the National Loans Fund the Comptroller and Auditor General shall at the request of the Treasury 

  Scope:  
A 
 

Conditions: 
 X 
 
Other 
auditors: 



grant a credit on the National Loans Fund 
(GRA, 2000, 3-4) 
 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
- 

Branch of 
auditing:  
 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
 - 

Type of 
conclusion:  
 

Reporting: 
 

Intended users of the reporting 
- 

Intended 
users:  
 

 



Table 7: The provisions of the mandates of the selected SAIs in North 
America 
 
Country: Canada 
Assignment 1: Legislative auditing   
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
 
5. The Auditor General is the auditor of the accounts of Canada, including those relating to the Consolidated 
Revenue Fund […] 
 
6. The Auditor General shall examine the several financial statements required by section 64 of the Financial 
Administration Act to be included in the Public Accounts, and any other statement that the President of the 
Treasury Board or the Minister of Finance may present for audit […] 
 

  Scope:  
Nr 
Or 
 

Conditions: 
Fix 
Req 
 
Other 
auditors: 
 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
 
6. […] opinion as to whether [financial statements] present fairly information in accordance with stated accounting 
policies of the federal government and on a basis consistent with that of the preceding year together with any 
reservations he may have.  
 
 
7 (2). […]anything that he considers to be of significance and of a nature that should be brought to the attention of 
the House of Commons, including any cases in which he has observed that  
 

a) accounts have not been faithfully and properly maintained or public money has not been fully accounted 
for or paid, where so required by law, into the Consolidated Revenue Fund; 

 
b) essential records have not been maintained or the rules and procedures applied have been insufficient to 

safeguard and control public property, to secure an effective check on the assessment, collection and 
proper allocation of the revenue and to ensure that expenditures have been made only as authorized; 

 
c) money has been expended other than for purposes for which it was appropriated by Parliament; 

 
d) money has been expended without due regard to economy or efficiency; 

 
e) satisfactory procedures have not been established to measure and report the effectiveness of programs, 

where such procedures could appropriately and reasonably be implemented; or 
 

f) money has been expended without due regard to the environmental effects of those expenditures in the 
context of sustainable development. 

 

Branch of 
auditing:  
F 
C 
P 
Z 
 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
P 
O 
R 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
 
 6. The Auditor General […] shall express his opinion as to whether they [financial statements] present fairly 
information […] 
 
7.  
 

(1) The Auditor General shall report annually to the House of Commons and may make, in addition to any 
special report made under subsection 8(1) or 19(2) and the Commissioner’s report under subsection 
23(2), not more than three additional reports in any year to the House of Commons  
[..] 

 
(2) Each report of the Auditor General under subsection (1) shall call attention to anything that he considers 

to be of significance and of a nature that should be brought to the attention of the House of Commons, 
including any cases in which he has observed that […] (se columne on subject and audit criteria) 

 
8. (1) The Auditor General may make a special report to the House of Commons on any matter of pressing 
importance or urgency that, in the opinion of the Auditor General, should not be deferred until the presentation of 
the next report under subsection 7(1). 
 

Type of 
conclusion:  
A 
>Cass 
 

Reporting: 
Y 
Ç 

Intended users of the reporting 
 
Parliament, The House of Commons, cf. 7.(1), 8.(1) 
 

Intended 
users:  
Pa 

Assignment 2: Inquires  of improper retention of public money 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
 
Any person or organization that has received financial aid from the Government of Canada or in respect of which 
financial aid from the Government of Canada is sought. 

  Scope:  

Ig 
Og 
 

Conditions: 
  
Other 
auditors: 
 



Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 

 
Improper retention of public money 

10. Whenever it appears to the Auditor General that any public money has been improperly retained by any 
person, he shall forthwith report the circumstances of the case to the President of the Treasury Board.  
 
Inquiry and report 
11. The Auditor General may, if in his opinion such an assignment does not interfere with his primary 
responsibilities, whenever the Governor in Council so requests, inquire into and report on any matter relating to the 
financial affairs of Canada or to public property or inquire into and report on any person or organization that has 
received financial aid from the Government of Canada or in respect of which financial aid from the Government of 
Canada is sought. 

 

Branch of 
auditing:  
 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
 - 

Type of 
conclusion:  

AI 
 

Reporting: 
 

Intended users of the reporting 
- 

Intended 
users:  
 

 

 
Country: USA 
Assignment 1 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
 
United States Code, Title 31 Subtitle 1 Chapter 7 
§712 Investigating the use of public money 
The Comptroller General shall: 

(1) investigate all matters related to the receipt, disbursement, and use of public money;  
 

(2) estimate the cost to the United States Government of complying with each restriction on expenditures of 
a specific appropriation in a general appropriation law and report each estimate to Congress with 
recommendations the Comptroller General considers desirable;  

 
(3) analyze expenditures of each executive agency the Comptroller General believes will help Congress 

decide whether public money has been used and expended economically and efficiently;  
 

(4) make an investigation and report ordered by either House of Congress or a committee of Congress 
having jurisdiction over revenue, appropriations, or expenditures; and  

 
(5) give a committee of Congress having jurisdiction over revenue, appropriations, or expenditures the help 

and information the committee requests.  
 
Current practice:  
(1) We develop and present information in a number of ways, including: 

- evaluations of federal policies, programs, and the performance of agencies; 
- oversight of government operations through financial and other management audits to determine 

whether public funds are spent efficiently, effectively, and in accordance with applicable laws; 
- investigations to assess whether illegal or improper activities are occurring; 
- analyses of the financing for government activities; 
- constructive engagements in which we work proactively with agencies, when appropriate, to provide 

advice that may assist their efforts toward positive results; 
- legal opinions that determine whether agencies are in compliance with applicable laws and regulations; 
- policy analyses to assess needed actions and the implications of proposed actions; and 
- additional assistance to the Congress in support of its oversight and decision-making responsibilities. 

 
(2) We generally issue over 1,000 products annually, primarily in an electronic format. In addition, annually we 
publish 250 to 350 legal decisions and opinions. In fiscal year 2010, we plan to issue: 

- reports and written correspondence; 
- testimonies and statements for the record, where the former are delivered orally by one or more of our 

senior executives at a hearing and the latter are provided for inclusion in the congressional record; 
- briefings, which are usually given directly to congressional staff members; and   
- legal decisions and opinions resolving  bid protests and addressing issues of  appropriations law, as well 

as opinions on the scope and exercise of authority of federal officers. 

 

  Scope:  
P 
O 

Conditions: 
 Fix 
Req 
Dis 
 
Other 
auditors: 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
 

(1) Financial, Compliance, and Performance Audits--GAO Yellow Book standards;  non audit services---
GAO Policy Manual, 

(2) Appropriations law decisions—GAO Principles of Federal Appropriations Law. 
(3) Financial, Compliance, and Performance Audits--GAO Yellow Book standards. 
(4) Investigations—GAO Yellow Book standards and quality standards for investigations established by the 

President’s Council on Integrity and Efficiency as adapted for GAO’s work. 
(5) Financial, Compliance, and Performance Audits--GAO Yellow Book standards;  non audit services---

GAO Policy Manual, 

Branch of 
auditing:  
F 
P 
C 
Z 
 

Type of 
require-



 ments:  
 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
 
 §719 
(a) At the beginning of each regular session of Congress, the Comptroller General shall report to Congress (and to 
the President when requested by the President) on the work of the Comptroller General. A report shall include 
recommendations on—  

(1) legislation the Comptroller General considers necessary to make easier the prompt and accurate making 
and settlement of accounts; and  

(2) other matters related to the receipt, disbursement, and use of public money the Comptroller General 
considers advisable. […]  

 
(b) (2) In a report under subsection (a) of this section or in a special report to Congress when Congress is in 
session, the Comptroller General shall include recommendations on greater economy and efficiency in public 
expenditures.  
 […] 
 
(c) The Comptroller General shall report to Congress—  
 

(1) specially on expenditures and contracts an agency makes in violation of law;  
(2) on the adequacy and effectiveness of—  
(A) administrative audits of accounts and claims in an agency; and  
(B) inspections by an agency of offices and accounts of fiscal officials[…] 

(d) The Comptroller General shall report on analyses carried out under section 712 (3) of this title to the 
Committees on Governmental Affairs and Appropriations of the Senate, the Committees on Government 
Operations and Appropriations of the House, and the committees with jurisdiction over legislation related to the 
operation of each executive agency (§719). 
 

Type of 
conclusion:  
$ 
 

Reporting: 
Y 
Ç 
 

Intended users of the reporting 
 
U.S. Congress and Taxpayers 

Intended 
users:  
Pa 
Go 
Ge 
O 
 

Assignment 2 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
 
§717 Evaluating programs and activities of the United States Government 
(b) The Comptroller General shall evaluate the results of a program or activity the Government carries out under 
existing law— 
       (1) on the initiative of the Comptroller General;  
 (2) when either House of Congress orders an evaluation; or  
 (3) when a committee of Congress with jurisdiction over the program or activity requests the evaluation. 
c) The Comptroller General shall develop and recommend to Congress ways to evaluate a program or activity the 
Government carries out under existing law.  
(d) (1) On request of a committee of Congress, the Comptroller General shall help the committee to—  
 […]  
(B) assess program evaluations prepared by and for an agency.  
 
Current practice: Same as assignment 1 
 

  Scope:  
Np 
 

Conditions: 
 Dis 
 
Req 
 
Other 
auditors: 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
 
Financial, Compliance, and Performance Audits--GAO Yellow Book standards;  non audit services---GAO Policy 
Manual, 
 

Branch of 
auditing:  
F 
C 
P 
Z 
 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
 
 §719 (a) At the beginning of each regular session of Congress, the Comptroller General shall report to Congress 
(and to the President when requested by the President) on the work of the Comptroller General. […] 
 
(b)(1) The Comptroller General shall include in the report to Congress under subsection (a) of this section--  (A) a 
review of activities under sections 717 (b)–(d) and 731(e)(2) of this title, including recommendations under section 
717(c) of this title.  
 
 

Type of 
conclusion:  
$ 
 

Reporting: 
Y 
(Ç) 

Intended users of the reporting 
 
U.S. Congress and Taxpayers 
 

Intended 
users:  
Pa 
Ge 
Go 
O 

http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/html/uscode31/usc_sec_31_00000717----000-.html
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/html/uscode31/usc_sec_31_00000717----000-.html#b
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/html/uscode31/usc_sec_31_00000717----000-.html


 

Assignment 3 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
 

- §§ 713, 714, 715: audited entitees: 
- § 713. Audit of Internal Revenue Service, Tax and Trade Bureau, and Bureau of Alcohol, Tobacco, 

Firearms, and Explosives  
- § 714. Audit of Financial Institutions Examination Council, Federal Reserve Board, Federal reserve 

banks, Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, and Office of Comptroller of the Currency 
- § 715. (a) In addition to the audit carried out under section 455 of the District of Columbia Home Rule Act 

(Public Law 93–198, 87 Stat. 803; D.C. Code, § 47–117), the Comptroller General each year shall audit 
the accounts and operations of the District of Columbia government. An audit shall be carried out 
according to principles, under regulations, and in a way the Comptroller General prescribes. When 
prescribing the procedures to follow and the extent of the inspection of records, the Comptroller General 
shall consider generally accepted principles of auditing, including the effectiveness of accounting 
organizations and systems, internal audit and control, and related administrative practices.(§715) 

 
Current practice: Same as assignment 1 
 

  Scope:  
O 
 

Conditions: 
 Fix 
Other 
auditors: 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
 
§ 713.  Financial and Compliance Audits--GAO Yellow Book standards. 
 
§ 714.  Financial and Compliance Audits--GAO Yellow Book standards. 
 
§ 715. Financial, Compliance, and Performance Audits--GAO Yellow Book standards.   

Branch of 
auditing:  
F 
C 
P 
 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
 

- (Defined by government Auditing Standards – yellow book) 
- §719 (C)(3) 
- The Comptroller General shall report to Congress as frequently as practicable on audits carried out 

under sections 713 and 714 of this title. 
 

- On the accounts and operations of DC Government]…  
- § 715. (b)The Comptroller General shall submit each audit report to Congress and (other than the audit 

reports of the District of Columbia Courts) the Mayor and Council of the District of Columbia. The report 
shall include the scope of an audit, information the Comptroller General considers necessary to keep 
Congress, the Mayor, and the Council informed of operations audited, and recommendations the 
Comptroller General considers advisable. (§715) 

 

Type of 
conclusion:  
$ 
 

Reporting: 
Ç 
Y 
 

Intended users of the reporting 
U.S. Congress and Taxpayers 
 

Intended 
users:  
Pa 
Ge 
O 
Go 
 

Assignment 4: Financial Audit engagements as defined by Yellow book 2007 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
(Carried out under assignment 1, 2 and 3 above) 
 

  Scope:  
 

Conditions: 
  
Other 
auditors: 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
- 
 
Current practice:  
GAGAS,  1.22  
Financial audits provide an independent assessment of and reasonable assurance about whether an entity’s 
reported financial condition, results, and use of resources are presented fairly in accordance with recognized 
criteria. Reporting on financial audits performed in accordance with GAGAS also includes reports on internal 
control, compliance with laws and regulations, and provisions of contracts and grant agreements as they relate to 
financial transactions, systems, and processes. 
Financial audits performed under GAGAS include financial statement audits and other related financial audits: 

a. Financial statement audits: The primary purpose of a financial statement audit is to provide 
reasonable assurance through an opinion (or disclaim an opinion) about whether an entity’s 
financial statements are presented fairly in all material respects in conformity with generally 
accepted accounting principles (GAAP),9 or with a comprehensive basis of accounting other 
than GAAP. 

b. Other types of financial audits: Other types of financial audits under GAGAS provide for 
different levels of assurance and entail various scopes of work, including: (1) providing special 
reports, such as for specified elements, accounts, or items of a financial statement; (2) 
reviewing interim financial information; (3) issuing letters for underwriters and certain other 
requesting parties; (4) reporting on the controls over processing of transactions by service 
organizations; and (5) auditing compliance with regulations relating to federal award 
expenditures and other governmental financial assistance in conjunction with or as a by-

Branch of 
auditing:  
F 
 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
R 
 
P 

http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/html/uscode31/usc_sec_31_00000713----000-.html
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/html/uscode31/usc_sec_31_00000714----000-.html
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/html/uscode31/usc_sec_31_00000714----000-.html
http://www.law.cornell.edu/usc-cgi/get_external.cgi?type=statRef&target=date:nonech:nonestatnum:87_803
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/html/uscode31/usc_sec_31_00000713----000-.html
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/html/uscode31/usc_sec_31_00000714----000-.html
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/html/uscode31/usc_sec_31_00000714----000-.html
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/html/uscode31/usc_sec_31_00000713----000-.html
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/html/uscode31/usc_sec_31_00000714----000-.html
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/html/uscode31/usc_sec_31_00000714----000-.html


product of a financial statement audit. 

 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
- 
 
Current practice:  
GAGAS 5.03  
The four AICPA (American Institute of Certified Public Accountants) generally accepted standards of reporting are 
as follows:  
a. [..] 
b. [..] 
c. [..] 
d. The auditor must either express an opinion regarding the financial statements, taken as a whole, or state that an 
opinion cannot be expressed, in the auditor’s report. When the auditor cannot express an overall opinion, the 
auditor should state the reasons therefore in the auditor’s report. In all cases where an auditor’s name is 
associated with financial statements, the auditor should clearly indicate the character of the auditor’s work, if any, 
and the degree of responsibility the auditor is taking in the auditor’s report. 
 
5.04 GAGAS establish reporting standards for financial audits in addition to the standards contained in the AICPA 
standards. Auditors should comply with these additional standards when citing GAGAS in their audit reports. 
 
5.07 When providing an opinion or a disclaimer on financial statements, auditors must also report on internal 
control over financial reporting and on compliance with laws, regulations, and provisions of contracts or grant 
agreements. 
 internal control over financial reporting and on compliance with laws, regulations, and provisions of contracts or 
grant agreements.  
 
5.08 Auditors should include either in the same or in separate report(s) a description of the scope of the auditors’ 
testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance with laws, regulations, and provisions of contracts 
or grant agreements. If the auditor issues separate reports, the auditors’ report on financial statements should 
include a reference to the separate reports. Auditors should state in the reports whether the tests they performed 
provided sufficient, appropriate evidence to support an opinion on the effectiveness of 
 
5.10 For financial audits, including audits of financial statements in which auditors provide an opinion or disclaimer, 
auditors should report, as applicable to the  
objectives of the audit, and based upon the audit work performed, (1) significant deficiencies in internal control, 
identifying those considered to be material weaknesses; (2) all instances of fraud and illegal acts unless 
inconsequential; and (3) violations of provisions of contracts or grant agreements and abuse that could have a 
material effect on the financial statements. 
 
5.15 Under AICPA standards and GAGAS, auditors have responsibilities for detecting fraud and illegal acts that 
have a material effect on the financial statements and determining whether those charged with governance are 
adequately informed about fraud and illegal acts. GAGAS include additional reporting standards. [..] 
 
5.18 Auditors should report known or likely fraud, illegal acts, violations of provisions of contracts or grant 
agreements, or abuse directly to parties outside the audited entity in the following two circumstances.  
-  When entity management fails to satisfy legal or regulatory requirements to report such information to external 
parties specified in law or regulation […] 
b. When entity management fails to take timely and appropriate steps to respond to known or likely fraud, illegal 
acts, violations of provisions of contracts or grant agreements [..] 
 
 

Type of 
conclusion:  
rA 
 
Ass\A 
 
(>AI) 
 

Reporting: 
 

Intended users of the reporting 
- 

Intended 
users:  
 

Assignment 5: Attestation engagements as defined by Yellow book 2007 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
(Carried out under assignment 1, 2 and 3 above) 

  Scope:  
 

Conditions: 
  
Other 
auditors: 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
- 
 
Current practice: 
GAGAS  
1.24 The subject matter of an attestation engagement may take many forms. Possible subjects of attestation 
engagements include reporting on  

- •prospective financial or performance information;  
- •management’s discussion and analysis (MD&A) presentation;  
- •an entity’s internal control over financial reporting;  
- •the effectiveness of an entity’s internal control over compliance with specified requirements, such as 

those governing the bidding for, accounting for, and reporting on grants and contracts;  
- •an entity’s compliance with requirements of specified laws, regulations, policies, contracts, or grants;  
- •the accuracy and reliability of reported performance measures;  
- •incurred final contract costs are supported with required evidence and in compliance with the contract 

terms;  
- •the allowability and reasonableness of proposed contract amounts that are based on detailed costs;  
- •the quantity, condition, or valuation of inventory or assets; and  

Branch of 
auditing:  
F 
P 
C 
Z 
 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
 



- •specific procedures performed on a subject matter (agreed-upon procedures). 

 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
 - 
 
Current practice: 
GAGAS 
1.23 Attestation engagements can cover a broad range of financial or nonfinancial objectives and may provide 
different levels of assurance about the subject matter or assertion depending on the users’ needs. Attestation 
engagements result in an examination, a review, or an agreed-upon procedures report on a subject matter or on an 
assertion about a subject matter that is the responsibility of another party. The three types of attestation 
engagements are:  

- Examination: Consists of obtaining sufficient, appropriate evidence to express an opinion on whether the 
subject matter is based on (or in conformity with) the criteria in all material respects or the assertion is 
presented (or fairly stated), in all material respects, based on the criteria.  

- Review: Consists of sufficient testing to express a conclusion about whether any information came to the 
auditors’ attention on the basis of the work performed that indicates the subject matter is not based on 
(or not in conformity with) the criteria or the assertion is not presented (or not fairly stated) in all material 
respects based on the criteria. As stated in the AICPA SSAE, auditors should not perform review-level 
work for reporting on internal control or compliance with laws and regulations.  

- Agreed-Upon Procedures: Consists of specific procedures performed on a subject matter. 
 

Type of 
conclusion:  
rA 
 
lA 
 

Reporting: 
 

Intended users of the reporting 
- 

Intended 
users:  
 

Assignment 6 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
(Carried out under assignment 1, 2 and 3 above) 

  Scope:  
 

Conditions: 
  
Other 
auditors: 
 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
- 
 
Current practice: 
1.28 Performance audit objectives may vary widely and include assessments of program effectiveness, economy, 
and efficiency; internal control; compliance; and prospective analyses. These overall objectives are not mutually 
exclusive. Thus, a performance audit may have more than one overall objective. For example, a performance audit 
with an initial objective of program effectiveness may also involve an underlying objective of evaluating internal 
controls to determine the reasons for a program’s lack of effectiveness or how effectiveness can be improved. 
7.03 Performance audits that comply with GAGAS provide reasonable assurance that evidence is sufficient and 
appropriate to support the auditors’ findings and conclusions. Thus, the sufficiency and appropriateness of 
evidence needed and tests of evidence will vary based on the audit objectives, findings, and conclusions. 
Objectives for performance audits range from narrow to broad and involve varying types and quality of evidence. In 
some engagements, sufficient, appropriate evidence is available, but in others, information may have limitations. 
Professional judgment assists auditors in determining the audit scope and methodology needed to address the 
audit objectives, while providing the appropriate level of assurance that the obtained evidence is sufficient and 
appropriate to address the audit objectives. (See paragraphs 7.55 through 7.71 for a discussion about assessing 
the sufficiency and appropriateness of evidence.) 
 
 

Branch of 
auditing:  
P 
 
C 
 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
- 
 
Current practice: 
1.25 Performance audits are defined as engagements that provide assurance or conclusions based on an 
evaluation of sufficient, appropriate evidence against stated criteria, such as specific requirements, measures, or 
defined business practices. Performance audits provide objective analysis so that management and those charged 
with governance and oversight can use the information to improve program performance and operations, reduce 
costs, facilitate decision making by parties with responsibility to oversee or initiate corrective action, and contribute 
to public accountability.  
Reporting information without following GAGAS is not a performance audit but a nonaudit service provided by an 
audit organization. 
 
1.26 Performance audits that comply with GAGAS provide reasonable assurance that the auditors have obtained 
sufficient, appropriate evidence to support the conclusions reached. Thus, the sufficiency and appropriateness of 
evidence needed and tests of evidence will vary based on the audit objectives and conclusions. 
 
1.27 A performance audit is a dynamic process that includes consideration of the applicable standards throughout 
the course of the audit. An ongoing assessment of the objectives, audit risk, audit procedures, and evidence during 
the course of the audit facilitates the auditors’ determination of what to report and the proper context for the audit 
conclusions, including discussion about the sufficiency and appropriateness of evidence being used as a basis for 
the audit conclusions. Performance audit conclusions logically flow from all of these elements and provide an 
assessment of the audit findings and their implications 
 
8.14 In the audit report, auditors should present sufficient, appropriate evidence to support the findings and 
conclusions in relation to the audit objectives. Clearly developed findings [..] assist management or oversight 

Type of 
conclusion:  
Ass 
 
(A) 
 

Reporting: 
 



officials of the audited entity in understanding the need for taking corrective action. If auditors are able to 
sufficiently develop the elements of a finding, they should provide recommendations for corrective action if they are 
significant within the context of the audit objectives. However, the extent to which the elements for a finding are 
developed depends on the audit objectives. Thus, a finding or set of findings is complete to the extent that the 
auditors address the audit objectives. 
 
8.27 Auditors should report conclusions, as applicable, based on the audit objectives and the audit findings. Report 
conclusions are logical inferences about the program based on the auditors’ findings, not merely a summary of the 
findings. 
The strength of the auditors’ conclusions depends on the sufficiency and appropriateness of the evidence 
supporting the findings and the soundness of the logic used to formulate the conclusions. Conclusions are stronger 
if they lead to the auditors’ recommendations and convince the knowledgeable user of the report that action is 
necessary.  
 
8.28 Auditors should recommend actions to correct problems identified during the audit and to improve programs 
and operations when the potential for improvement in programs, operations, and performance is substantiated by 
the reported findings and conclusions. Auditors should make recommendations that flow logically from the findings 
and conclusions, are directed at resolving the cause of identified problems, and clearly state the actions 
recommended. 
 

Intended users of the reporting 
- 

Intended 
users:  
 

Assignment 7: Performance audit engagements -  Program effectiveness and results audit objectives, as defined by the Yellow 
book 2007 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
(Carried out under assignment 1, 2 and 3 above) 

  Scope:  
Pp 
 

Conditions: 
  
Other 
auditors: 
 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
 
1.29 Program effectiveness and results audit objectives are frequently interrelated with economy and efficiency 
objectives. Audit objectives that focus on program effectiveness and results typically measure the extent to which a 
program is achieving its goals and objectives. Audit objectives that focus on economy and efficiency address the 
costs and resources used to achieve program results. Examples of audit objectives in these categories include 
assessing the extent to which legislative, regulatory, or organizational goals and objectives are being achieved;  

- assessing the relative ability of alternative approaches to yield better program performance or eliminate 
factors that inhibit program effectiveness;  

- analyzing the relative cost-effectiveness of a program or activity; 
- determining whether a program produced intended results or produced results that were not consistent 

with the program’s objectives;  

 
Current practice 

- determining the current status or condition of program operations or progress in implementing legislative 
requirements;  

- determining whether a program provides equitable access to or distribution of public resources within the 
context of statutory parameters;  

- assessing the extent to which programs duplicate, overlap, or conflict with other related programs;  
- evaluating whether the audited entity is following sound procurement practices;  
- assessing the reliabi lity, validity, or relevance of performance measures concerning program 

effectiveness and results, or economy and efficiency;  
- assessing the reliability, validity, or relevance of financial information related to the performance of a 

program;  
- determining whether government resources (inputs) are obtained at reasonable costs while meeting 

timeliness and quality considerations;  
- determining whether appropriate value was obtained based on the cost or amount paid or based on the 

amount of revenue received;  
- determining whether government services and benefits are accessible to those individuals who have a 

right to access those services and benefits;  
- determining whether fees assessed cover costs;  
- determining whether and how the program’s unit costs can be decreased or its productivity increased; 

and  
- assessing the reliability, validity, or relevance of budget proposals or budget requests to assist 

legislatures in the budget process.  
 

Branch of 
auditing:  
P 
 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
O 
P 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
 - 

Type of 
conclusion:  
 

Reporting: 
 

Intended users of the reporting 
- 

Intended 
users:  
 

  



Assignment 8: (Performance audit -  Internal control audit objectives, as defined by the Yellow book, 2007) 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
(Carried out under assignment 1, 2 and 3 above) 

  Scope:  
 

Conditions: 
  
Other 
auditors: 
 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
- 
 
Current practice: 
1.30 Internal control audit objectives relate to an assessment of the component of an organization’s system of 
internal control that is designed to provide reasonable assurance of achieving effective and efficient operations, 
reliable financial and performance reporting, or compliance with applicable laws and regulations. Internal control 
objectives also may be relevant when determining the cause of unsatisfactory program performance. Internal 
control comprises the plans, policies, methods, and procedures used to meet the organization’s mission, goals, 
and objectives. Internal control includes the processes and procedures for planning, organizing, directing, and 
controlling program operations, and management’s system for measuring, reporting, and monitoring program 
performance. 
Examples of audit objectives related to internal control include an assessment of the extent to which internal 
control provides reasonable assurance about whether  

- resources are used in compliance with laws, regulations, or other requirements;  
- resources, including sensitive information accessed or stored outside the organization’s physical 

perimeter, are safeguarded against unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition;  
- management information, such as performance measures, and public reports are complete, accurate, 

and consistent to support performance and decision making;  
- the integrity of information from computerized systems is achieved; and  
- contingency planning for information systems provides essential back-up to prevent unwarranted 

disruption of the activities and functions that the systems support. 
 

Branch of 
auditing:  
C 
 
P 
 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
P 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
 - 

Type of 
conclusion:  
 

Reporting: 
 

Intended users of the reporting 
- 

Intended 
users:  
 

Assignment 9: Performance audit engagements -  Compliance audit objectives, as defined by the Yellow book, 2007 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
(Carried out under assignment 1, 2 and 3 above) 

  Scope:  
 

Conditions: 
  
Other 
auditors: 
 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
- 
 
Current practice: 
11.31 Compliance audit objectives relate to compliance criteria established by laws, regulations, contract 
provisions, grant agreements, and other requirements16 that could affect the acquisition, protection, use, and 
disposition of the entity’s resources and the quantity, quality, timeliness, and cost of services the entity produces 
and delivers. Compliance objectives include determining whether  
a. the purpose of the program, the manner in which it is to be conducted, the services delivered, the outcomes, or 
the population it serves is in compliance with laws, regulations, contract provisions, grant agreements, and other 
requirements; 

- government services and benefits are distributed or delivered to citizens based on the individual’s 
eligibility to obtain those services and benefits; 

- incurred or proposed costs are in compliance with applicable laws, regulations, and contracts or grant 
agreements; and 

- Revenues received are in compliance with applicable laws, regulations, and contract or grant 
agreements.  

 

Branch of 
auditing:  
C 
 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
 - 

Type of 
conclusion:  
 

Reporting: 
 

Intended users of the reporting 
- 

Intended 
users:  
 

Assignment 10: Performance audit engagements -   Prospective analysis audit objectives as defined by the Yellow book, 2007 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
(Carried out under assignment 1, 2 and 3 above) 

  Scope:  
Pp 
Pb 
 



Conditions: 
  
Other 
auditors: 
 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
- 
 
Current practice: 
1.32 Prospective analysis audit objectives provide analysis or conclusions, about information that is based on 
assumptions about events that may occur in the future along with possible actions that the audited entity may take 
in response to the future events. Examples of objectives pertaining to this work include providing conclusions 
based on a. current and projected trends and future potential impact on government programs and services;  
b. program or policy alternatives, including forecasting program outcomes under various assumptions;  
c. policy or legislative proposals, including advantages, disadvantages, and analysis of stakeholder views;  
d. prospective information prepared by management;  
e. budgets and forecasts that are based on  
  (1) assumptions about expected future events and  
  (2) management’s expected reaction to those future events; and f. management’s assumptions on which 
prospective information is based. 
 

Branch of 
auditing:  
P 
 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
R 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
  

Type of 
conclusion:  
 

Reporting: 
 

Intended users of the reporting 
 

Intended 
users:  
 

 



Table 8: The provisions of the mandates of the selected SAIs in 
OLACEFS 
 
Country: Argentina 
Assignment 1 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
 
The SAI of Argentina is an entity providing technical assistance to the Congress in relation to the States’ control 
over public accounts. It verifies the Executive branch’s accounting, legal and management compliance, controls the 
public accounts proper disclosure, and audits the public resources sound management. Through their audit 
reports, which include comments, conclusions, and recommendations, the SAI of Argentina provides advisory 
services to the Legislative branch in relation to the Public Administration’s performance and to the status of public 
treasury.   
 

  Scope:  
Na 
 

Conditions: 
  
Other 
auditors: 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
 
…Executive branch’s accounting, legal and management compliance, controls the public accounts proper 
disclosure, and audits the public resources sound management. 
… Public Administration’s performance and to the status of public treasury.   

Branch of 
auditing:  
FCP 
 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
  
Through their audit reports, which include comments, conclusions, and recommendations, the SAI of Argentina 
provides advisory services … 

Type of 
conclusion:  
Ass 
 

Reporting: 
 

Intended users of the reporting 
 
…  technical assistance to the Congress. 
 

Intended 
users:  
Pa 

Assignment 2 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
 
The SAI of Argentina is, through its audit opinions, responsible for the Legislative Branch’s review and judgment in 
relation to public management’s performance and situation. This SAI controls the legal compliance, management 
and audit of any activities within the public management. 

  Scope:  
 

Conditions: 
  
Other 
auditors: 
 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
 
… public management’s performance and situation. 
 
The SAI of Argentina carries out financial, compliance, management and special audits. 

Branch of 
auditing:  
F 
CP 
 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
  
This SAI issues audit opinions over public entities’ financial accounting statements. 

Type of 
conclusion:  
(A) 
 

Reporting: 
 

Intended users of the reporting 
 
…  Legislative Branch’s review and judgment … 
 

Intended 
users:  
Pa 

Assignment 3 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
 
The SAI of Argentina audits those entities responsible for executing programs and projects funded by international 
credit organisms, according to the corresponding agreements. 

  Scope:  

Of 
 

Conditions: 
  
Other 
auditors: 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
 
…  entities responsible for executing programs and projects funded by international credit organisms … 

Branch of 
auditing:  
 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
  

Type of 
conclusion:  



(audit report)  

Reporting: 
 

Intended users of the reporting 
 
Recipients of credits granted by international organisms. 
 

Intended 
users:  
 

Assignment 4 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
 
The SAI of Argentina controls the execution of resources stemming from public credit transactions and carries out 
special audits to issue an audit opinion in relation to this indebtedness. This SAI might audit, request any 
information and issue audit opinions in relation to the Central Bank’s and Ministry of Economy and Public Work’s 
financial accounting statements and transactions. This SAI could also examine those public entities managing 
public officers’ national patrimony. 
 

  Scope:  

Ps 
 

Conditions: 
  
Other 
auditors: 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
 
… Central Bank’s and Ministry of Economy and Public Work’s financial accounting statements and transactions. 
 
Any public officer: minister, vice minister, directorate, senior officer or member of any pubic entity. 

Branch of 
auditing:  
 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
  
… to issue an audit opinion 

Type of 
conclusion:  

(A) 
 

Reporting: 
 

Intended users of the reporting 
- 

Intended 
users:  
 

 

 
Country: Brazil 
Assignment 1 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
 
Article 71.  External control, incumbent on the National Congress, shall be exercised with the aid of the Federal 
Court of Accounts, which shall: 
I -  Examine the accounts rendered annually by 
the President of the Republic, by means of a prior 
opinion which shall be prepared in sixty days counted 
from receipt (Brazilian Constitution) 
Article 36. The Brazilian Court of Audit is competent to, as prescribed in its Internal Regulation, examine the 
accounts rendered annually by the President of the 
Republic, by means of a prior opinion to be elaborated in sixty days after its receipt. 
Sole Paragraph - The accounts shall consist of the general balances of the State and of the report of the internal 
control central agency of the Executive Branch on the execution of the budgets which paragraph 5 of art. 165 of the 
Federal Constitution addresses (Bylaws of the Brazilian Court of Audit – Law 8.443, of July 16 of 1992). 
 

  Scope:  
 

Conditions: 
  
Other 
auditors: 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
 

- Performance, Financial and Compliance Auditing 
- Outcome 

 

Branch of 
auditing:  
 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
  

- A prior opinion on the annual accounts of the President of the Republic to be rendered to the National 
Congress 

 
- Yearly 

 

Type of 
conclusion:  
 

Reporting: 
 

Intended users of the reporting 
 
National Congress 
 

Intended 
users:  
 

Assignment 2 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
 
II - Evaluate the accounts of the administrators and other persons responsible for public monies, assets 
and values of the direct and indirect administration, including foundations and companies instituted and 
maintained by the Federal Government as well as the accounts of those who have caused a loss, misplacement 
or other irregularity resulting in losses to the public treasury (Brazilian Constitution, Article 71)  
  Article 7. The accounts of administrators or accountable officials to which the previous article refers to shall be 

  Scope:  
 

Conditions: 
  
Other 
auditors: 



annually submitted to judgment by the Court, in the form of a rendering of accounts, organized according to the 
rules established in the internal rule. 
Sole Paragraph - When rendering accounts to which this article alludes to, all the budgetary and extra-budgetary 
resources administered or not by the unit or the entity should be included (TCU Bylaws) 
  Article 15. When judging the accounts, the Court shall decide if they are regular, regular with restriction, or 
irregular (TCU Bylaws) 
 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
 

- Compliance auditing 
 

- Process / Reporting 

Branch of 
auditing:  
 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
  

- A technical opinion by the auditors to be presented to the Minister rapporteur. The Rapporteur will report 
the accounts to the Court, which will judge them regular, regular with restriction or irregular. 

 
- Yearly 

 

Type of 
conclusion:  
 

Reporting: 
 

Intended users of the reporting 
 
Auditees 
 

Intended 
users:  
 

Assignment 3 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
 
III - Examine, for the purpose of registration, the lawfulness of acts of admission of personnel, on any account, in 
the direct and indirect administration, including the foundations instituted and maintained 
by the Federal Government, with the exception of the appointments to commission offices, as well as the granting 
of civil and military retirement and pensions, except for subsequent improvements which do not alter the legal 
fundaments of the conceding act (Brazilian Constitution, Article 71) 
Article 39. Under the terms of articles 5, clause XXIV, 71, clauses II and III, 73 in fine, 74, paragraph 2, 96, clause 
I, item a, 97, 39, paragraphs 1 and 2, and 40, paragraph 4, of the Federal Constitution, the Court shall examine, for 
the purpose of registration or review, the acts of: 
I - admission of personnel, in any form, in the direct or indirect administration, including the foundations instituted 
and maintained by the federal public power with the exception of the nominations to commissioned offices; 
II - initial concession of civil service and military retirement annuities and pensions, as well as of subsequent 
benefits which alter the basis of the respective initial conceding act. (TCU Bylaws) 
 

  Scope:  
 

Conditions: 
  
Other 
auditors: 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
 

- Compliance auditing 
- Process 

Branch of 
auditing:  
 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
 

- A technical opinion by the auditors to be presented to the Minister rapporteur, who will present the act to 
the Court. The Court will examine the lawfulness of the act. 

 
- Regularly 

 

Type of 
conclusion:  
 

Reporting: 
 

Intended users of the reporting 
 

- Auditees 
- Public employees 

 

Intended 
users:  
 

Assignment 4 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
 
  IV - Carry out, on its own initiative or on that of the Chamber of Deputies, of the Federal Senate, or of a technical 
or inquiry committee, inspection and audits of an accounting, financial, budgetary, operational or property nature in 
the administrative units of the Legislative, Executive and Judicial Powers and other entities referred to in item II 
(Brazilian Constitution, Article 71) 
Article 38. The Court is also competent to: 
  I - carry out by initiative of the Chamber of Deputies, of the Federal Senate, of a Technical or Inquiry Committee, 
inspections and audits of an accounting, financial, budgetary, performance and property nature in the  
administrative units of the Legislative, Executive and Judicial Branches and in the entities of indirect administration, 
including the foundations and institutions created and maintained by the federal public power; 
(…) 
  IV - audit, by request of the Committee to which refers art. 166, paragraph 1, of the Federal Constitution, or of 
Technical Committees of any of the Houses of the National Congress, projects and programs authorized in the 
annual budget Act, evaluating their results as to the effectiveness, efficiency and economy. (TCU Bylaws) 
 
 

  Scope:  
 

Conditions: 
  
Other 
auditors: 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements Branch of 



 
- Compliance auditing / Performance auditing 
- Process / outcome 

auditing:  
 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
  

- An auditing report to be presented by the auditors to the Minister rapporteur, who will submit it to the 
Court, for appreciation.  

 
- Ad hoc 

 

Type of 
conclusion:  
 

Reporting: 
 

Intended users of the reporting 
 
National Congress 
Auditees 
 

Intended 
users:  
 

Assignment 5 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
 
V - Control the national accounts of supranational companies in whose capital stock the Union holds a direct or 
indirect interest, as set forth in the acts of incorporation (Brazilian Constitution, Article 71) 
 

  Scope:  
 

Conditions: 
  
Other 
auditors: 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
 
Compliance auditing / Performance auditing 
 
Process / 

Branch of 
auditing:  
 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
  
▪ A technical opinion to be presented to the Minister rapporteur 
 
▪ Yearly 
 

Type of 
conclusion:  
 

Reporting: 
 

Intended users of the reporting 
 
Auditees 
 

Intended 
users:  
 

Assignment 6 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
 
VI - Control the use of any funds transferred by the Union, by means of an agreement, arrangement, 
adjustment or any other similar instrument, to a 
state, the Federal District or a municipality (Brazilian Constitution, Article 71) 
Article 41. In order to ensure the effectiveness of control and to provide information for the judgment of the 
accounts, the Court shall carry out the audit over the acts  which result in revenue or expenditure, performed by 
accountable officials under its jurisdiction, being competent, for this purpose, especially: 
(...) 
IV - to control, as prescribed in its Internal Regulation, the application of any type of resource transferred by the 
Federal State by means of a pact, agreement, settlement or other similar instruments, to a state, to the Federal 
District or to a municipality.(TCU Bylaws) 
 
Art. 199. The regulation of the use of any resources signed over by the Government, agencies, foundations, 
created and maintained by the government, and other agencies of the Federal Administration through different 
agreements or other similar instruments, to the States, the Federal District and Municipalities will be carried out by 
the Brazilian Court of Audit through inspections and audits, as well as the analysis of the processes of rendering of 
accounts of the agency that transferred the resources.(TCU Internal Regulation) 
 

  Scope:  
 

Conditions: 
  
Other 
auditors: 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
 

- Compliance auditing/ Performance auditing 
- Process / outcome 

Branch of 
auditing:  
 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
  

- A technical opinion to be presented to the Minister rapporteur  
- Regularly 

 
- An auditing report to be presented to the  Minister rapporteur, who will submit it to the Court, for 

appreciation.  
 

- Ad hoc 
 

Type of 
conclusion:  
 

Reporting: 
 



Intended users of the reporting 
 
Auditees 
 

Intended 
users:  
 

Assignment 7 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
 
VII - Render the information requested by the National 
Congress, by either of its Houses or by any of the respective committees concerning accounting, financial, 
budgetary, operational and property control 
and the results of audits and inspections made (Brazilian Constitution, Article 71) 
Article 38. The Court is also competent to: 
(…) 
II - render the information requested by the National Congress, by any of its 
Houses, or by its Committees, on  accounting, financial, budgetary, performance and property control and on the 
results of inspections and audits carried out; 
III - issue, in the period of thirty days after the receipt of the request, a conclusive opinion on the matter submitted 
to its appreciation by the Permanent Joint Committee of Senators and Deputies, according to the terms of 
paragraphs 1 and 2 of art. 72 of the Federal Constitution; 
(…) (TCU Bylaws) 
 

  Scope:  
 

Conditions: 
  
Other 
auditors: 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
 

- Compliance auditing / Performance auditing 
- Process / outcome / reporting 

Branch of 
auditing:  
 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
  

- An opinion to be prepared by the auditors to be sent to the Congress. 
- Ad hoc 

Type of 
conclusion:  
 

Reporting: 
 

Intended users of the reporting 
 
National Congress 
 

Intended 
users:  
 

Assignment 8 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
 
VIII - In case of illegal expenses or irregular accounts, 
apply to the responsible parties the sanctions 
provided by law, which shall establish, among other 
comminations, a fine proportional to the damages 
caused to the public treasury; (Constitution, Article 71) 
Article 19. When the accounts are judged irregular, if there is a debt, the Court shall condemn the accountable 
official to pay the monetarily updated debt, with the delay interest added, and may also apply the fine mentioned in 
art. 57 of this Act. The instrument of the ruling shall be considered a bond upon which to base the respective 
collection suit. 
Article 45. If the illegality of an act or contract is verified, the Court, as prescribed in its Internal Regulation, shall 
establish a deadline for the accountable official to take the necessary measures for the full compliance to the law, 
expressly indicating the provisions to be observed. Paragraph 1 - In the case of an administrative act, the Court, if 
not complied to: (...) 
III - shall apply to the accountable official the fine prescribed in clause II of art. 58 of this Act. 
Article 58. The Court may apply a fine of up to Cr$ 42.000.000,00 (forty two million cruzeiros), or the equivalent 
value in another currency which is adopted as the national currency, to those responsible for: 
  I - accounts judged to beirregular from which no debt resulted, in the terms of the sole paragraph of art. 19 of this 
Act; 
  II - an act carried out with serious violation of law or regulation of an accounting, financial, budgetary, 
performance or property nature; 
  III - an illegitimate or anti-economic act of management of which results unjustified loss to the Treasury; 
  IV - noncompliance, in the established period, without a justified reason, with a search order by the Rapporteur or 
with a Court ruling; 
  V - obstruction to the free execution of the ordered inspection and audits; 
  VI - withholding of suit, document or information, in inspections or audits carried out by the Court; 
  VII – recurrence of in noncompliance to the Court’s determinations.(TCU Bylaws) 
 

  Scope:  
 

Conditions: 
  
Other 
auditors: 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
 

- Compliance auditing 
- Process / Outcome / Reporting 

 

Branch of 
auditing:  
 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
  

- Reimbursement of the amount spent irregularly and sanctions to the person held accountable 
- Special 

 

Type of 
conclusion:  
 

Reporting: 
 



Intended users of the reporting 
 

- Auditees 
- Public Prossecution Office within the TCU 

 

Intended 
users:  
 

Assignment 9 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
 
IX - Determine a period of time for the agency or entity to take the necessary steps for the strict compliance with 
the law, if an illegality is established (Brazilian Constitution, Article 71) 
Article 45. If the illegality of an act or contract is verified, the Court, as prescribed in its Internal Regulation, shall 
establish a deadline for the accountable official to take the necessary measures for the full compliance to the law, 
expressly indicating the provisions to be observed. 
  Paragraph 1 - In the case of an administrative act, the Court, if not complied to: 
(...) 
II - shall communicate the ruling to the Chamber of Deputies and to the Federal Senate; 
(...) 
  Paragraph 2 - In the case of a contract, the Court, if not complied to, shall communicate the fact to the National 
Congress, which has the competence to adopt the act of interruption and request, immediately, that the Executive 
Branch take the appropriate measures. 
  Paragraph 3 - If the National Congress or the Executive Branch, in the period of ninety days, does not take the 
measures prescribed in the previous paragraph, the Court shall decide on the interruption of the contract. 
(TUC Bylaws) 
 

  Scope:  
 

Conditions: 
  
Other 
auditors: 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
 

- Compliance auditing 
- Process / Reporting 

Branch of 
auditing:  
 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
  

- Regularization of illegal situations and procedures 
- Special 

 

Type of 
conclusion:  
 

Reporting: 
 

Intended users of the reporting 
 
Auditees 
 

Intended 
users:  
 

Assignment 10 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
 
X - If not heeded, stop the execution of the impugned 
act, notifying the Chamber of Deputies and the Federal Senate of such decision (Brazilian Constitution, Article 
71)  
Article 45. If the illegality of an act or contract is verified, the Court, as prescribed in its Internal Regulation, shall 
establish a deadline for the accountable official to take the necessary measures for the full compliance to the law, 
expressly indicating the provisions to be observed. 
Paragraph 1 - In the case of an administrative act, the Court, if not complied to: 
I - shall interrupt the execution of the contested act; 
(...) (TCU Bylaws) 
 

  Scope:  
 

Conditions: 
  
Other 
auditors: 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
 

- Compliance auditing  
- Process 

Branch of 
auditing:  
 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
  

- Suspension of an illegal or irregular act in progress 
- Special 

 

Type of 
conclusion:  
 

Reporting: 
 

Intended users of the reporting 
 
National Congress 
 

Intended 
users:  
 

Assignment 11 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
 
XI - Present a formal charge to the competent Power 
on any irregularities or abuses verified (Brazilian Constitution, Article 71) 
Article 45. If the illegality of an act or contract is verified, the Court, as prescribed in its Internal Regulation, shall 
establish a deadline for the accountable official to take the necessary measures for the full compliance to the law, 
expressly indicating the provisions to be observed. 
  Paragraph 1 - In the case of an administrative act, the Court, if not complied to: 
(...) 

  Scope:  
 

Conditions: 
  
Other 
auditors: 



II - shall communicate the ruling to the Chamber of Deputies and to the Federal Senate; 
(…) 
  Paragraph 2 - In the case of a contract, the Court, if not complied to, shall communicate the fact to the National 
Congress, which has the competence to adopt the act of interruption and request, immediately, that the Executive 
Branch take the appropriate measures. 
  Paragraph 3 - If the National Congress or the Executive Branch, in the period of ninety days, does not take the 
measures prescribed in the previous paragraph, the Court shall decide on the interruption of the contract. 
 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
 
Compliance auditing / Performance auditing 
Process / Outcome 

Branch of 
auditing:  
 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
  

- Notification about illegal situations to the competent bodies 
- Special 

 

Type of 
conclusion:  
 

Reporting: 
 

Intended users of the reporting 
 
The competent authority of the Judicial, Legislative or Judiciary Branch 
 

Intended 
users:  
 

 

 
Country: Chile 
Assignment 1 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
 
The Contraloria General de la República de Chile is the supreme audit institution, according to the politic 
Constitution, which counts on autonomy in relation to the Executive Branch and other public entities. This is mainly 
an entity responsible for the compliance control over public management’s actions, whose activity is focused on 
legal accounting and financial auditing according to the compliance principal. 
 

  Scope:  
P 
 

Conditions: 
  
Other 
auditors: 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
 
… entity responsible for the compliance control over public management’s actions, whose activity is focused on 
legal accounting and financial auditing according to the compliance principal 

Branch of 
auditing:  
FC 
 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
(PR) 
 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
  
This SAI’s legal function is fulfilled through the issuing of mandatory legal statements, namely a preventive 
administrative jurisprudence.  
 
This SAI’s auditing function is fulfilled through the execution of audits over the entities’ internal control systems, 
and the corresponding issuing of audit opinion over financial statements and the public officer’s legal compliance. 
 

Type of 
conclusion:  
AI 
 

Reporting: 
 

Intended users of the reporting 
 
The SAI of Chile constitutes a mechanism to protect the citizens’ fundamental guarantees, against any public 
management’s actions. 
 

Intended 
users:  
 

 

 
Country: Columbia 
Assignment 1 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
 
The SAI of Colombia, as technical bodies of the Congress on behalf of the citizenship, promotes a control culture in 
relation to the States heritage and the proper public management. It also promotes transparency regarding the 
public resources use through a strategic process, which is focused on risky entities and areas. 
 

  Scope:  
 

Conditions: 
  
Other 
auditors: 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
 

- risky entities and areas. 
- systematic and permanent surveillance over State and particular entities managing public resources.  

 

Branch of 
auditing:  
 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
 

Type of 
conclusion:  



- preparation and execution of an annual general auditing plan, containing the auditing program on control 
aspects to be audited throughout the year.  

 
- the final fiscal control outcome is an audit report 

 
- as audits ultimate result, the audited entities must prepare an improvement plan containing the corrective 

actions in view of the SAI’s audit conclusions. 
 

(Ass) 
 

Reporting: 
 

Intended users of the reporting 
 
…as technical bodies of the Congress on behalf of the citizenship 
 

Intended 
users:  
 

Assignment 2 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
 

The Supreme Audit Institution of Colombia carries out the fiscal control and audits the administration’s public 
entities’ and private entities’ management of country funds and goods. 

 
The SAI of Colombia’s auditing approach is preventive in order to allow public managers to timely identify and 
amend any inconsistencies through the application of a corrective control, thus fostering more efficient and 
effective public entities and, therefore, attaining the ultimate SAI’s goal, namely, the public entities’ continuous 
improvement. 
 

  Scope:  
 

Conditions: 
  
Other 
auditors: 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
 

- administration’s public entities’ and private entities’ management of country funds and goods. 
- preventive and corrective auditing over public managers’ national funds management. 

 

Branch of 
auditing:  
(P) 
 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
-  

 

Type of 
conclusion:  
 

Reporting: 
 

Intended users of the reporting 

…public entities’ continuous improvement. 

 

In accordance with the article 119 of the National Constitution, the SAI of Colombia on behalf of the community 
oversees the management of public funds and goods. 
 

Intended 
users:  
 

Assignment 3 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
 
The SAI of Colombia assesses the results achieved by diverse pubic organizations and entities, determining 
whether they acquire, manage and/or use public resources within the legal framework, and subject to the following 
principles: economy, efficiency, effectiveness, equity and environmental sustainability.   
 

  Scope:  
 

Conditions: 
  
Other 
auditors: 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
 

- diverse pubic organizations and entities. 
- within the legal framework, and subject to the following principles: economy, efficiency, effectiveness, 

equity and environmental sustainability.   
 

Branch of 
auditing:  
CP 
 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
O 
 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
  
(assessment) 

Type of 
conclusion:  
Ass 
 

Reporting: 
 

Intended users of the reporting 
- 

Intended 
users:  
 

Assignment 4 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
 
The SAI of Colombia examines the consistency of financial statements of those entities subject to fiscal control, 
and determines the degree in which they attain their objectives, and fulfills their plans, programs and projects. In 
this regard, this SAI settles the corresponding public officers’ and private entities’ fiscal responsibility, according to 
their actions or omissions. 
 

  Scope:  
Or 
 

Conditions: 
  
Other 
auditors: 



Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
 

- Examines the conssistency of financial statements of those entities subject to fiscal control. 

Branch of 
auditing:  
F 
 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
  
(examination) 
 
(establishment of fiscal responsibilities) 
 

Type of 
conclusion:  
(AI) 
 

Reporting: 
 

Intended users of the reporting 
- 

Intended 
users:  
 

 

 
Country: Mexico 
Assignment 1 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
 
The Superior Audit Office of Mexico (SAO), is a technical body attached to the Legislative Branch, which carries 
out its external auditing function of the three Branches of Federal Government, the constitutionally autonomous 
bodies, Mexico’s states and municipalities, and individuals, when dealing with federal resources. 
The SAI of Mexico audits the government’s income and expenditure, as well as the public resources management, 
custody and allocation. It also examines the fulfillment of federal programs objectives, through the audit reports, 
which will be rendered in accordance to the applicable regulation.  
This SAI is also responsible for auditing the federal resources executed by the federal entities, municipalities and 
even private entities and people. 
 

  Scope:  
N 
L 
I 
 
Pt 
Pa 
Pp 
 

Conditions: 
 Fix 
 
Other 
auditors: 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
 

- Three Branches of Federal Government, the constitutionally autonomous bodies, Mexico’s states and 
municipalities, and individuals, when dealing with federal resources. 

 
- The SAI of Mexico audits the government’s income and expenditure, as well as the public resources 

management, custody and allocation. It also examines the fulfillment of federal programs objectives 
 

- federal entities, municipalities and even private entities and people. 
 

Branch of 
auditing:  
 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
 

- Through the audit reports, which will be rendered in accordance to the applicable regulation. 
- The SAI of Mexico must deliver the audit report on the Public Account Review to the Chamber of 

Deputies, on March 31 of the next year to its disclosure, at the latest. This audit report must include each 
particular audit opinion, as well as a section to report on the fulfillment of programs objectives, and to 
present any audited entities’ comments and conclusions. 

- The SAI of Mexico is able to request any reports to the audited entities, as well as the corresponding 
review to allow for the necessary corrective actions, taking into account the terms determined by the 
applicable regulations. 

- federal entities, municipalities and even private entities and people. 
 

Type of 
conclusion:  
Ass\A 
 

Reporting: 
 

Intended users of the reporting 
 
The Superior Audit Office of Mexico (SAO), is a technical body attached to the Legislative Branch. 
 

Intended 
users:  
 

Assignment 2 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
 
The Superior Audit Office of Mexico was created to support the Lower Chamber in the exercise of its constitutional 
powers concerning the monitoring of the Federal Public Treasury’s accounts. The goal is to assess the financial 
management outcomes, checking compliance with the provisions of the Budget for Federal Expenditure and the 
corresponding Revenues Act, and to verify the manner in which, and the extent to which, the goals and objectives 
contained in the Government’s programs have been fulfilled. 
 

  Scope:  
Na 
 

Conditions: 
 
Other 
auditors: 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
 

- To assess the financial management outcomes, checking compliance with the provisions of the Budget 
for Federal Expenditure and the corresponding Revenues Act. 

- To assess the extent to which, the goals and objectives(…) have been fulfilled. 
 

Branch of 
auditing:  
CP 
 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
O 



 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
  
(Assessment report) 

Type of 
conclusion:  
Ass 
 

Reporting: 
 

Intended users of the reporting 
 
…  to support the Lower Chamber in the exercise of its constitutional powers concerning the monitoring of the 
Federal Public Treasury’s accounts 
 

Intended 
users:  
Pa 

Assignment 3 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
 
The Office must inform the Lower Chamber in a timely and accurate manner, via the SAO Surveillance 
Commission, of its findings after verifying the origin and utilization of public resources and compliance with 
the Government’s goals and objectives; foster effectiveness, productivity and integrity of the use of federal funds; 
and promote transparency and accountability for all three Branches of Government, of the autonomous federal 
public entities, of Mexico’s states and municipalities, and of individuals, whenever they make use of federal 
resources. 
 

  Scope:  
P 

Conditions: 
  
Other 
auditors: 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
 

- Verifying the origin and utilization of public resources and compliance with the Government’s goals and 
objectives;  foster effectiveness, productivity and integrity of the use of federal funds; and promote 
transparency and accountability. 

 
- Promotes transparency and accountability for all three Branches of Government, of the autonomous 

federal public entities, of Mexico’s states and municipalities, and of individuals, whenever they make use 
of federal resources. 

 

Branch of 
auditing:  
CP 
 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
(O) 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
 - 

Type of 
conclusion:  
 

Reporting: 
 

Intended users of the reporting 
 
The Office must inform the Lower Chamber (…), via the SAO Surveillance Commission 
 

Intended 
users:  
Pa 

Assignment 4 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
 
Clear, timely and transparent accounting is a sine qua non prerequisite if a society is to fully exercise its right to 
monitor the integrity and effectiveness of the use of public funds. 

  Scope:  
P 
 

Conditions: 
 Dis 
 
Other 
auditors: 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
 

- Right to monitor the integrity and effectiveness of the use of public funds. 
 

Branch of 
auditing:  
CP 
 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
  

- federal entities, municipalities and even private entities and people managing, responsible for the 
custody or allocating public funds and resources. 

Type of 
conclusion:  
 

Reporting: 
 

Intended users of the reporting 
 
Society (society’s right to monitor the integrity and effectiveness of the use of public funds) 
 

Intended 
users:  
 

Assignment 5 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
 
The SAI of Mexico is able to investigate any acts or omissions regarding any illegal conduct or irregularity found in 
relation to the receipt, expenditure, management, custody and allocation of federal public resources and funds. 
This SAI is, thus, able to make domiciliary visits to force the presentation of accounting books, paperwork, or any 
files necessary to carry out the investigation, according to the regulations and the corresponding procedures. 
 

  Scope:  
N 
L 
O 
I 
 

Conditions: 
  
Other 
auditors: 



Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
 

- to investigate any acts or omissions regarding any illegal conduct or irregularity found… 
 

Branch of 
auditing:  
 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
  

- federal entities, municipalities and even private entities and people managing, responsible for the 
custody or allocating public funds and resources. 

Type of 
conclusion:  
AI 
 

Reporting: 
 

Intended users of the reporting 
- 

Intended 
users:  
 

Assignment 6 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
 
The SAI of Mexico determines any damage or detriment caused to the Federal Public Treasury or to the patrimony 
of public entities, and also determines and settles the corresponding pecuniary sanctions to those responsible for 
these detriments. The SAI of Mexico presents before the corresponding authorities, any accusation to proceed with 
the corresponding penalties to be applied in accordance to law.. 
 

  Scope:  
 

Conditions: 
  
Other 
auditors: 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
 

- those responsible for any damage or detriment against Federal Public Treasury or to the patrimony of 
public entities. 

Branch of 
auditing:  
 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
  
Accusation before the corresponding authorities and pecuniary sanctions by the SAI of Mexico. 

Type of 
conclusion:  
AI 
 

Reporting: 
 

Intended users of the reporting 
 
Public Entities’ patrimony. 
 

Intended 
users:  
 

 

 
Country: Panama 
Assignment 1 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
 
The Contraloría General de la República of Panama is the Supreme Audit Institution responsible for executing 
audits according to the regulations in force, and to the principles of economy, efficiency, effectiveness and equity, 
in order to guarantee the country’s sound public patrimony management. 
The SAI of Panama in an independent State entity, whose mission is to audit, regulate and control any funds and 
public resources-related movements. It examines, provides an audit opinion, and also judges in relation to public 
accounts-related matters. 
 

  Scope:  
P 
 

Conditions: 
  
Other 
auditors: 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
 
   Responsible for executing audits according to the regulations in force, and to the principles of economy, 
efficiency, effectiveness and equity. 
  This SAI’s auditing scope concers all entities and persons responsible for managing State’s, Municipalities’, 
Communities’, State Enterprises’, Autonomous Entities’ and Semi-autonomous entities’ resources and fund, both 
within the country or overseas. 
  The auditing function is also over those people and organisms that have State’s or Public Entities’ economic 
participation (financial shares, economic support or subsidies), or over those who are in charge of collecting funds 
on behalf of the State. 
  The SAI of Panama’s auditing scope does not include work unions, cooperative societies and any other entities 
whose auditinng, oversight and control fall under any other official entity’s responsibility. 
 

Branch of 
auditing:  
CP 
 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
  
(The SAI of Panama) examines, provides an audit opinion and also judges in relation to public accounts-related 
matters. 
The SAI must render an activities report before the Executive and Legislative branches. 
 

Type of 
conclusion:  
A 
>AI 
 

Reporting: 
 

Intended users of the reporting 
 
The SAI of Panama is expected to gain the society’s reliability and to guarantee the proper management of the 

Intended 
users:  
Ge 



resources audited. 
 

Assignment 2 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
 
The SAI of Panama is responsible for the national accounts, including those related to domestic and foreign debts. 
This SAI audits the government’s accounts.  
 
Furthermore, the SAI of Panama is also responsible for the national public accountability by determining the public 
entities’ accounting methodologies and systems 
 

  Scope:  
Na 
 

Conditions: 
  
Other 
auditors: 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
 
This SAI audits any public entities’ accounts, and concerns any public officer, person and entity managing public 
resources and funds. 
The audit must focus on the practice of sound accounting methodologies with due compliance to the respective 
regulatory framework. 
The SAI of Panama is able to execute any preventive or corrective audit. 
 

Branch of 
auditing:  
 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
(P) 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
  
Issuing of public accounting methodologies and systems. 
Stemming from its auditing and investigation faculties, the SAI of Panama could present any criminal complaint 
before the corresponding government entity. 
The SAI of Panama is able to demand any report in relation to the fiscal management from public officers and 
public entities (federal, regional, municipal, autonomous, semi-autonomous or State-owned enterprises), within the 
more convenient timeframes for the SAI. 
 

Type of 
conclusion:  
 

Reporting: 
 

Intended users of the reporting 
 
Public entities (since the SAI of Panama is responsible for the national public accountability and it determines the 
corresponding public accounting methodologies and systems to be considered) 
 

Intended 
users:  
 

Assignment 3 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
 
The SAI of Panama is responsible for developing the national statistics, according to the applicable regulations. In 
this regards, the SAI of Panamá could create any technical committees as necessary to promote the national 
statistics improvement.  
 

  Scope:  
 

Conditions: 
  
Other 
auditors: 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
- 

Branch of 
auditing:  
 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
 - 

Type of 
conclusion:  
 

Reporting: 
 

Intended users of the reporting 
- 

Intended 
users:  
 

Assignment 4 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
 
The SAI of Panamá will participate in the preparation of the State’s general budget, according to the legal 
provisions stated in the Political Constitutions. The SAI of Panamá is responsible for submitting an opinion on the 
feasibility and convenience of the issuing of supplementary and extraordinary credits and will report to the 
Executive Branch in relation to the Public Management’s financial status.  
This SAI also issues an opinion on any draft or law project, which affect the income expected for the Federal 
Budget, and establish any rents in substitution or increase those already existing. 
 

  Scope:  
N 
L 
 

Conditions: 
  
Other 
auditors: 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
 
This function is carried out, in municipalities, communities, autonomous entities and semi-autonomous bodies, 
public-owned enterprises by a delegate or representative on behalf of the SAI of Panamá. 
 

Branch of 
auditing:  
X 
 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
  
The SAI of Panamá must present to the Executive Branch, monthly and annual reports in relation to the financial 
status of the Government’s accounts, regardless some reports could be required with other frequency. 
Likewise, the SAI of Panamá must present to the Executive branch, together with the Ministry of Economy and 

Type of 
conclusion:  
 

Reporting: 
 



Finance, a plan to reduce public expenditure when, at any given time during the year, they consider that the total 
expected incomes could be less that the authorized expenditure. This plan must be presented for endorsement and 
later execution. 
 
Monthly reports 
 

Intended users of the reporting 
- 

Intended 
users:  
 

 



Table 9: The provisions of the mandates of the selected SAIs in PASAI 
 
Country: Federated States of Micronesia 
Assignment 1: Financial Audits 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
 
The Public Auditor’s Act 
The FSM National Public Auditor may from time to time audit the financial statements, accounts and other 
information that are required to be audited by; 

- Any public entity of the FSM National Government; 
- Any public entity of the four FSM State Governments based on request from the State Government 

concerned; 
- Any project, program and activity receiving funds in part or in whole from the National Government. 
- Any non-profit entity receiving funds in part or in whole from the National Government 

 
Current practice: 
The FSM National Public Auditor follows the US Government Auditing Standards  in all financial reports audits.  
These are the Generally Accepted Government Auditing Standards (GAGAS) which are issued by the Comptroller 
General of the US. 
 

  Scope:  
O 
Nf 
Og 
 

Conditions: 
 Dis 
 
Other 
auditors: 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
Title 55 of the FSM Code (The Public Auditor’s Act), Chapter 5, states in part: 

- ―The Public Auditor shall inspect and audit transactions, accounts, books, and other financial records of 
every branch, department, office, agency, board, commission, bureau, and statutory authority of the 
National Government and of other public legal entities, including, but not limited to, States, subdivisions 
thereof, and nonprofit organizations receiving funds from the National Government…..‖It also states that,  

- ‖The Public Auditor shall inspect and audit transactions, accounts, books, and other financial records 
associated with any project, program, and activity receiving funds in whole or in part from public funds of 
the National Government.‖It also states that, 

- ‖The Public Auditor may audit the records of any contractor performing public work on cost-
reimbursement-type contracts for the National Government of the Federated States of Micronesia to 
verify the cost charged to public contract.‖ 

 
Current practice: 
In financial audit report, the audit criteria are usually the generally accepted accounting principles.  In FSM, we 
followed the US generally accepted accounting principles. 
 

Branch of 
auditing:  
F 
 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
R 
 
P 
 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
 The Public Auditor conducts financial audits in order to express an opinion on the financial statements.  This is the 
primary objective of the financial audits. 
 
Additionally and in conformity with the US auditing standards, the Public Auditor is to evaluate and report on the 
entity’s internal controls and compliance with laws, rules, regulations and grant terms and conditions. 
The Public Auditor is required to issue written audit reports.  Audit reports, when finalized and issued by the Public 
Auditor, become a matter of public information. 
 
Sub-section 505 (6) of the Public Auditor’s Act requires that ―The Public Auditor shall file a report at least once a 
year with the congress. The Public Auditor may file other reports at such other tomes as he may determine. All 
reports of the Public Auditor shall be made available to the public.‖ 
 
Current practice: 
The purpose of financial audit report is to communicate to users of the financial statements an opinion whether the 
financial statements and Notes to the financial statements are fairly presented in accordance with the generally 
accepted accounting principles. 
 

Type of 
conclusion:  
A 
 
Ass 
 
 
(> 
CAss) 
 

Reporting: 
Y 

Intended users of the reporting 
- General public 
- President 
- Members of the Congress 
- Chief Executive Officer and Board Directors of entities audited 
- Secretary of department, office, or agency audited 
- Grantor, donor, and other stakeholders 

 
Current practice: 
Results of financial audits are summarized in written reports and addressed to the; 
President 
 

- Members of the Congress 
- Chief Executive & Board of  
- Directors of the entity being audited 
- General Public 
- Donors and other stakeholders 
- Audit reports are posed on the Public Auditor’s website at www.fsmopa.fm 

 

Intended 
users:  
Ge 
Pr 
Pa 
O 
 

Assignment 2: Performance Audits 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
 
The Public Auditor’s Act 
From time to time, the Public Auditor should conduct performance audits to determine whether a governmental 
entity is managing and utilizing its resources economically and efficiently, the cause of inefficiencies or 

  Scope:  
O 
 

Conditions: 
 Dis 

http://www.fsmopa.fm/


uneconomical practices, and whether the entity is complying with laws and regulations concerning economy and 
efficiency. 
 
Current practice: 
The FSM National Public Auditor follows the US Government Auditing Standards  (Generally Accepted 
Government Auditing Standards). 
 

 
Other 
auditors: 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
 
The Public Auditor conducts performance audits in order to examine and evaluate the programs and systems of 
the audited entity in terms of; 
Effectiveness and efficiency; 
Compliance with statutory obligations and grant terms and conditions; 
Waste, abuse and fraud; 
Prudence. 
 
Current practice: 
In performance audits, the audit criteria are usually the laws, statutes, grant terms and conditions, best practices as 
may apply to the operation of the entity. 
 
Performance audits are detailed and in-depth, examine an entire process from start to finish, and generally assess 
systems. The auditors evaluate, review, study and analyze the programs and activities of the audited entity.   
 

Branch of 
auditing:  
C 
P 
 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
(O) 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
 
The Public Auditor conducts performance audits in order to gain reasonable assurance that the entity will 
implement its programs and activities effectively and efficiently, and that it will comply with laws and regulation and 
applicable grant terms and conditions. 
The Public Auditor is required to issue written audit reports.  Audit reports, when finalized and issued by the Public 
Auditor, become a matter of public information. 
 
Current practice: 
The Public Auditor is required to issue written audit reports.  Audit reports, when finalized and issued by the Public 
Auditor, become a matter of public information. 
 
Sub-section 505 (6) of the Public Auditor’s Act requires that ―The Public Auditor shall file a report at least once a 
year with the congress. The Public Auditor may file other reports at such other tomes as he may determine. All 
reports of the Public Auditor shall be made available to the public.‖ 
 
Performance audits result in providing information to managers for decision-making, making recommendations for 
improvements, and identifying where administrative actions may be necessary.   
 

Type of 
conclusion:  
A 
/ 
Ass 
 

Reporting: 
Ç 
L 

Intended users of the reporting 
 

- General public 
- President 
- Members of the Congress 
- Chief Executive Officer and  
- Board of Directors of entity audited 
- Secretary of department, office, or agency audited 
- Grantor, donor, and other stakeholders 

 
Current practice: 
 

- General public 
- President 
- Members of the Congress 
- Chief Executive Officer and  
- Board of Directors of entity audited 
- Secretary of department, office, or agency audited 
- Grantor, donor, and other stakeholders 

 

Intended 
users:  
Ge 
Pr 
Pa 
O 

Assignment 3: Single Audits 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
 
The annual Single Audits is required by the Compact of Free Association between the US and the FSM 
Governments.  It is a requirement of US Single Acts of 1984 which applies to all five (5) governmental entities that 
receives US federal financial assistance.  As per the Compact of Free Association, the FSM National and four 
State Governments are required to have their accounts audited in accordance with the US Single Audit Acts, as 
amended.  
In addition to the five Primary Governments, the Single Audits also covered all the Component Units (Enterprise 
Funds) for the five governments. 

- The annual Single Audits are required yearly and deadline is June 30th every year. 
- The FSM Public Auditor is the authorized oversight entity on behalf of the FSM Governments for the 

annual Single Audits. 
- The Single Audits are out-sourced to external CPA firms. 

 
Current practice: 
The Public Auditor has complete oversight over the Single Audits.  Public Auditor out-sourced the annual Single 
Audits to external CPA firms. 
Single Audits are conducted pursuant to the US Single Audit Acts and using the US Government Auditing 

  Scope:  
PN 
Ar 
 

Conditions: 
  
Other 
auditors: 
EA 



Standards which are generally accepted governmental auditing standards issued by the Comptroller General of the 
US. 
Other US applicable standards are used by the external CPA firms to perform the Single Audits. 
 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
 
Section 505 (5) of the Public Auditor’s Act requires ―The Public Auditor shall have the exclusive audit jurisdictions 
over public funds of the National Government of the Federated States of Micronesia, but he shall have the authority 
to contract for independent auditing service to be performed under his supervision in instances where specialized 
expertise is required, or where auditing requirements are beyond capacity of the Public Auditor's staff and 
separates funding is available.‖ 
The Single Audits are financial audits of the government’s general purpose financial statements. 
 
The Single Audits are conducted in accordance with the US Single Audit Acts and utilizing the Government 
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the US, OMB Circular A-133, and in accordance with 
other applicable US rules and requirements.   
 
Current practice: 
Auditing criteria for Single Audits include the Compact Agreement between the US and the FSM, OMB Common 
Rules, and the related fiscal procedures agreement, and other applicable rules for US federal assistance grants. 
 

Branch of 
auditing:  
F 
 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
R 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
 
Sub-section 505 (6) of the Public Auditor’s Act requires that ―The Public Auditor shall file a report at least once a 
year with the Congress. The Public Auditor may file other reports at such other times as he may determine. All 
reports of the Public Auditor shall be made available to the public.‖ 
In addition, the Compact of Free Association requires that the final audit reports on the FSM Governments shall be 
furnished no later than June 30th to the US Audit Clearinghouse.  Once the audit reports are posted on the US 
Audit Clearinghouse website, then all the US Grantor Agencies will have access to it. 
 
Current practice: 
Single Audits review the general purpose financial statements of the FSM Primary Governments and their 
component units for the purpose of expressing an opinion on those financial statements. 
The audit reports communicate the results of the Single Audits mainly to the US as the primary donor of the federal 
financial assistance grant to the FSM Governments. 
Audit reports give opinion on the financial statements, on the internal controls and on the entity’s compliance with 
laws, rules and regulations. 
 

Type of 
conclusion:  
$ 
(A) 
 

Reporting: 
Y 
L 

Intended users of the reporting 
 

- General public 
- President 
- Members of the Congress 
- Chief Executive Officer and  
- Board of Directors of entity audited 
- Secretary of department, office, or agency audited 
- Grantor, donor, and other stakeholders 

 
Current practice: 
Audit reports for Single Audits are addressed to the Chief Executive Officer and Members of the Legislative Body 
of the Primary Governments. 
Single Audit Reports are also addressed to the chief executive officers for the Component Units (Enterprise 
Funds). 
Single Audit Reports are provided to all US grantor agencies via the US Audit Clearinghouse. 
Also, all single audit reports are made available to the citizens of the FSM and electronic copies are posted on the 
FSM Public Auditor’s website at www.fsmopa.fm. 
 

Intended 
users:  
Ge 
Pr 
Pa 
O 
D 

Assignment 4: Inspection 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
 
Section 506 of the Public Auditor’s Act empowers the Public Auditor to conduct inspection of accounts, books, 
operations, and activities of any entity that receives funds in part or in whole from the FSM National Government. 
Inspections are conducted for the entities as may be requested or based on the initiation of the Public Auditor. 
 
Current practice: 
The FSM Public Auditor uses the Quality Standards for Inspections issued by the President’s Council on Integrity 
and Efficiency/Executive Council on Integrity and Efficiency in conducting Inspections. 
 

  Scope:  
Nog 
 

Conditions: 
 Req 
Dis 
 
Other 
auditors: 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
 
The FSM Public Auditor follows the Quality Standards for Inspections issued by the President’s Council on Integrity 
and Efficiency/Executive Council on Integrity and Efficiency in conducting Inspections. 
Inspections are more focused and usually review the entity’s systems and operations. 
 
Current practice: 
Inspections are a method for handling the requirements of the performance audit, not a substitution for them.  The 
tools used in both the inspection and the performance audit are similar, but the processes and how they are 
conducted make them different.  Inspections have a more defined focus whereas performance audits are more 
detailed and in-depth, examine an entire process from start to finish, and generally assess systems.  In both, the 
auditors evaluate, review, study and analyze the programs and activities of the audited entity.  Both result in 
providing information to managers for decision-making, making recommendations for improvements, and 

Branch of 
auditing:  
P 
C 
 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
(P) 

http://www.fsmopa.fm/


identifying where administrative actions may be necessary.   
Because Inspections are more focused, it is faster to complete. It is a tool which the Public Auditor adopted starting 
in FY-2006 as a way forward to be able to start and complete his reviews more faster and efficiently. 
 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
 
The Public Auditor conducts Inspections in order to gain reasonable assurance that the entity will implement its 
programs and activities effectively and efficiently, and that it will comply with laws and regulation and applicable 
grant terms and conditions. 
The Public Auditor is required to issue written audit reports.  Audit reports, when finalized and issued by the Public 
Auditor, become a matter of public information. 
Sub-section 505 (6) of the Public Auditor’s Act requires that ―The Public Auditor shall file a report at least once a 
year with the congress. The Public Auditor may file other reports at such other tomes as he may determine. All 
reports of the Public Auditor shall be made available to the public.‖ 
 
Current practice: 
The report following Inspections contains an Introduction & Background Section which identifies the audit 
objectives, audit scope, methodology, prior audit coverage and conclusion.  The Background Section follows by the 
detail findings and recommendations.  Appendices are also included in the report as deem appropriate. 
Final results of an inspection are published and issued in written reports. 
Once issued, they become a matter of public information.  All final reports issued by the FSM Public Auditor are 
available online at www.fsmopa.fm. 
Press Releases are issued for each new report.  Local news media and other internet forums are utilized to 
disseminate the information to the public. 
 

Type of 
conclusion:  
(Ass) 
 

Reporting: 
Y 
Ç 
 

Intended users of the reporting 
 

- General public 
- President 
- Members of the Congress 
- Chief Executive Officer and  
- Board of Directors of entity audited 
- Secretary of department, office, or agency audited 
- Grantor, donor, and other stakeholders 

 
Current practice: 

- General public 
- President 
- Members of the Congress 
- Chief Executive Officer and  
- Board of Directors of entity audited 
- Secretary of department, office, or agency audited 
- Grantor, donor, and other stakeholders 

 

Intended 
users:  
Pa 
Ge 
Pr 
O 
D 
 

Assignment 5: Investigations 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
 
The Public Auditor’s Act grants the Public Auditor the authority to conduct administrative investigations. 
Moreover, a Memorandum of Understanding between the Department of Justice and the Public Auditor’s Office 
grants the Public Auditor the authority to conduct criminal investigations. 
Section 505 (2) of the Public Auditor’s Act requires ―The Public Auditor shall inspect and audit transactions, 
accounts, books, and other financial records associated with any project, program, and activity receiving fund in a 
whole or in part from public funds of the National Government.‖ 
Section 506 (3) of the Public Auditor’s Act requires ―The Public Auditor may subpoena summon person to appear 
at a reasonable time before him and administer oaths to such persons..‖ 
 
He may question such persons, under oath, regarding receipts and expenditures of money and any other 
reasonable and relevant matters necessary for the performance of his duties  
Additionally, Section 506 (4) requires ―The Public Auditor may issue subpoena duces tecum within a reasonable 
time requiring the production of books, records, documents, or other relevant financial papers or objects necessary 
for the performance of his duties.‖ 
 
Current practice: 

The Public Auditor may conduct investigations and inquiries of funds received from the Congress by 
any entity within the Federated States of Micronesia National and State Governments. 
Investigations are usually predicated on complaints and tips brought to the attention of the Public 
Auditor by citizens of the FSM.  Also, audit findings involving fraud, waste and abuse are referred to 
the Investigation Division within the Public Auditor’s Office for investigation. 
 

  Scope:  
Nog 
 

Conditions: 
 Dis 
 
Other 
auditors: 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
 
Any law or statute that stipulates the requirement on how the funds shall be used is used as investigation criteria. 
 
Investigations are conducted to determine whether fraud, waste, abuse and illegal acts have occurred. 
 
The Compliance Investigation Division has adopted the Quality Standards for Investigations which have been 
prepared by the U.S. President's Council on Integrity and Efficiency Executive Council on Integrity and Efficiency.   
 
Current practice: 

The Compliance Investigation Division within the Public Auditor’s Office determines the criteria to 

Branch of 
auditing:  
C 
 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
Z 

http://www.fsmopa.fm/


apply to the subject under investigation. 
 
In 2003, a MOU between the FSM Office of the National Public Auditor and the FSM Department of 
Justice was signed.  The MOU seeks to formalize and improve cooperation between the two agencies 
in the investigation of financial crime and financial corruption involving National Government and 
Compact funds.   
 
The MOU reinforces the authority of the Compliance Investigation Division of the National Public 
Auditor’s Office to conduct preliminary inquiries into allegations of non-compliance in public office, 
misuse of public resources, financial crime, financial corruption or any other breach of National laws or 
regulations involving public funds from the National Government.  The MOU also empowers the 
Compliance Investigation Division to work with the Department of Justice, including the National 
Police, in the investigation of criminal allegations of financial crime and financial corruption.  The MOU 
allows for cooperation in the field of financial crime investigations education and training and the 
sharing of intelligence and information related to financial crime and corruption.   
 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
 
If the discoveries of the investigation involve criminal violations, an investigation report is prepared and forwarded 
to the Department of Justice for review and appropriate legal action. 
 
If the discoveries of the investigation involve administrative violations, an investigation report is prepared and 
forwarded to the Chief Executive Officer of the program or entity. 
Investigation reports are not public information. 
 
Current practice: 

If the discoveries of the investigation involve criminal violations, an investigation report is prepared 
and forwarded to the Department of Justice for review and appropriate legal action. 
 
If the discoveries of the investigation involve administrative violations, an investigation report is 
prepared and forwarded to the Chief Executive Officer of the program or entity. 
 
Investigation reports are not public information. 
 

Type of 
conclusion:  
AI 
 

Reporting: 
Ç 
L 
 

Intended users of the reporting 
 
Department of Justice, if findings involve criminal elements. 
Chief Executive Officer, if administrative findings. 
 
Current practice: 

- Department of Justice, if findings involve criminal elements. 
- Chief Executive Officer, if administrative findings. 

 

Intended 
users:  
Go 
O 

 

 
Country: New Zealand 
Assignment 1: Financial Report Audits   
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
 

Section 15, The Public Audit Act 2001 

(1) The Auditor-General must from time to time audit the financial statements, accounts, and other information 
that a public entity is required to have audited. 

 
Current practice: 
The Auditor-General’s auditing standards, which incorporate the New Zealand Auditing Standards, apply to all 
financial report audits 
 

  Scope:  
Pa 
Pr 

Conditions: 
 Fix 
 
Other 
auditors: 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
 
Section 14, The Public Audit Act 2001 
(1)  … the financial statements, accounts, and other information that a public entity is required to have audited.  
 
Current practice: 

Audit Criteria 
 
In a financial report audit, the recognized framework is usually generally accepted accounting practice. 
If that is not applicable, the legislation or other rules under which the entity operates established the 
pre-determined criteria. 
 
Further guidance is provided in the Auditor-General’s statements and additional auditing standards.   
 

Branch of 
auditing:  
F 
C 
P 
 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
R 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
  
The Public Audit Act 2001 

Type of 
conclusion:  
$ 
(rA) 



Reports to House of Representatives 

20  … the Auditor-General must report at least once every calendar year to the House of Representatives on 
matters arising out of the performance and exercise of the Auditor-General's functions, duties, and powers. 

21  Reports to Minister, committees, etc 

The Auditor-General may report to a Minister, a committee of the House of Representatives, a public entity, 
or any person on any matter arising out of the performance and exercise of the Auditor-General's functions, 
duties, and powers that the Auditor-General considers it desirable to report on. 

 

23   Publication of auditing standards 

(1) The Auditor-General must publish, by way of a report to the House of Representatives, the auditing 
standards that the Auditor-General applies, or intends to apply, to the conduct of audits and inquiries, and 
the provision of other auditing services, under this Part. 

(2) A report under subsection (1) must be prepared at least once every 3 years. 

(3) If requested to do so by any person, the Auditor-General must supply a copy of any report under 
subsection (1) to that person on payment by that person of a reasonable fee determined by the Auditor-
General. 

(4) In each annual report prepared under section 37, the Auditor-General must include a description of any 
significant changes made to the auditing standards during the year covered by that annual report. 

 
Current practice: 

Financial Report audits 
 
The purpose of the audit report is to communicate to users of the financial statements (including the 
statement of service performance where provided) an opinion on whether the financial statements 
comply with generally accepted accounting practice and fairly present the performance and position of 
the entity. The audit report may also report instances where an entity has not complied with legislative 
requirements.  
 
Further guidance on issues affecting ―the Audit report‖ is provided in the Auditor-General’s statements 
and additional auditing standards  as follows: 
 
AG-208: Consideration of Laws and Regulations in an Audit provides auditors with guidance on the 
manner in which matters concerning a public entity’s non-compliance with legislation should be dealt 
with in the audit report. 
 
AG-2: The Appropriation Audit and the Controller function provides auditors with guidance on the 
manner in which matters concerning compliance with appropriation requirements should be dealt with 
in the audit report . 
 
AG-4: The Audit of Service Performance  
reports provides auditors with guidance on the manner in which matters concerning service performance reports 
should be dealt with in the audit report. 
 

 
>Cass 
 
 

Reporting: 
Ç  
 
Y 
 

Intended users of the reporting 
 

- General public 
- House of Representatives 
- Minister 
- Committees  

 
Current practice: 

All audit reports on financial statements issued by the Auditor-General must be addressed to the 
―readers‖ of the financial statements 
 
Public entities are accountable to a wide constituency. The Auditor-General has broad responsibilities 
to report to this constituency.  By addressing the audit report to ―the readers‖ covers the wide 
constituency. In elation to companies, the term ―readers‖ encompasses shareholders   
 
Results of annual audits of Central Government and Local Government are reported annually to the 
House of Representatives as required by section 20 of the Public audit Act 2001. 
 

Intended 
users:  
Ge 
Go 
 
Pa 
 

Assignment 2: Performance Audits 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
 
Section 16, The Public Audit Act 2001 
The Auditor-General may at any time examine— 
  (a) the extent to which a public entity is carrying out its activities effectively and efficiently: 
  (b) a public entity's compliance with its statutory obligations: 
  (c) any act or omission of a public entity, in order to determine whether waste has resulted or may have resulted 
or may result: 
  (d) any act or omission showing or appearing to show a lack of probity or financial prudence by a public entity or 1 
or more of its members, office holders, and employees. 

  Scope:  
Po 
 

Conditions: 
 Dis 
 
Other 
auditors: 



An audit under this section may relate to 1 or more public entities.  
    (3) Subsection (1)(a) does not apply to the Reserve Bank of New Zealand or any registered bank (as defined in 
section 2(1) of the Reserve Bank of New Zealand Act 1989). 
    (4) If subsection (1)(a) applies and there is an applicable government or local authority policy to which the public 
entity is required to adhere, the examination is to be limited to the extent to which activities are being carried out 
effectively and efficiently in a manner consistent with that policy. 
 
Current practice: 

The Auditor-General’s auditing standards, which incorporate the New Zealand Auditing Standards 
apply to the extent that they are relevant to the particular work being undertaken. For example, if the 
work being carried out is not in the nature of an audit, but includes dimensions that are covered by 
particular standards, then those standards will be applied where they are relevant and appropriate.   
 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 

- Effectiveness and efficiency; 
 

- Compliance with statutory obligations; 
 

- Waste 
 

- Probity; and 
 

- Financial prudence. 
 
Current practice: 

The Office of the Auditor-General determines the criteria specifically to be consistent with the chosen 
audit objective.   
Further guidance is provided in the Auditor-General’s statements and additional auditing standards as 
follows: 
 
AG-208: Consideration of Laws and Regulations in an Audit; 
 
 AG-3: The Auditor’s Approach to Issues of Performance, Waste and Probity 
 

Branch of 
auditing:  
P 
C 
 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
O 
P 
 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 

 
The Public Audit Act 2001 
Reports to House of Representatives 
 
20 … the Auditor-General must report at least once every calendar year to the House of 
Representatives on matters arising out of the performance and exercise of the Auditor-General's 
functions, duties, and powers. 
 
21 Reports to Minister, committees, etc 
 
The Auditor-General may report to a Minister, a committee of the House of Representatives, a public 
entity, or any person on any matter arising out of the performance and exercise of the Auditor-
General's functions, duties, and powers that the Auditor-General considers it desirable to report on. 
23   Publication of auditing standards 
 

(1) The Auditor-General must publish, by way of a report to the House of Representatives, the 
auditing standards that the Auditor-General applies, or intends to apply, to the conduct of 
audits and inquiries, and the provision of other auditing services, under this Part. 

 
(2) A report under subsection (1) must be prepared at least once every 3 years. 

 
(3) If requested to do so by any person, the Auditor-General must supply a copy of any report 

under subsection (1) to that person on payment by that person of a reasonable fee 
determined by the Auditor-General. 

 
(4) In each annual report prepared under section 37, the Auditor-General must include a description of any 

significant changes made to the auditing standards during the year covered by that annual report. 
 
Current practice: 

The report following a performance audit is not subject to any specific requirements as to form and 
content. Because the audit will have been specifically designed for the chosen objective, the report 
often contains a full description of the objective, scope, audit criteria, procedures followed, evidence 
gained, and conclusions reached. It typically does so in narrative and graphical form.  
 

Type of 
conclusion:  
$ 
(Ass) 
 

Reporting: 
Ç 
Y 

Intended users of the reporting 

 
- General public 
- House of Representatives 
- Minister 
- Committees  

Intended 
users:  
Ge 
Pa 
Go 
 



 
Current practice: 

- General public 
- House of Representatives 
- Minister 
- Committees  

 

Assignment 3: Inquiries 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
 

Inquiries by the Auditor-General 
Section 18, The Public Audit Act 2001 

(1) The Auditor-General may inquire, either on request or on the Auditor-General's own initiative, 
into any matter concerning a public entity's use of its resources. 

(2) Subsection (1) does not apply to the Reserve Bank of New Zealand or any registered bank 
(as defined in section 2(1) of the Reserve Bank of New Zealand Act 1989). 

(3) If subsection (1) applies and there is an applicable government or local authority policy to which the 
public entity is required to adhere, the inquiry is to be limited to the extent to which the public entity is 
using its resources in a manner consistent with that policy. 

 
Current practice: 
The Auditor-General’s auditing standards, which incorporate the New Zealand Auditing Standards apply to the 
extent that they are relevant to the particular work being undertaken. For example, if the work being carried out is 
not in the nature of an audit, but includes dimensions that are covered by particular standards, then those 
standards will be applied where they are relevant and appropriate.   
 

  Scope:  
Po 
 

Conditions: 
Req 
Dis 
 
Other 
auditors: 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 

 
Effectiveness and efficiency; 
 
Compliance with statutory obligations 
 
Current practice: 

The Office of the Auditor-General determines the criteria specifically to be consistent with the objective 
of the inquiry.   
 

Branch of 
auditing:  
P 
C 
 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
P 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 

 
The Public Audit Act 2001 
Reports to House of Representatives 
 
20 … the Auditor-General must report at least once every calendar year to the House of 
Representatives on matters arising out of the performance and exercise of the Auditor-General's 
functions, duties, and powers. 
 
21 Reports to Minister, committees, etc 
The Auditor-General may report to a Minister, a committee of the House of Representatives, a public 
entity, or any person on any matter arising out of the performance and exercise of the Auditor-
General's functions, duties, and powers that the Auditor-General considers it desirable to report on. 
 
23   Publication of auditing standards 
 

(1) The Auditor-General must publish, by way of a report to the House of Representatives, the 
auditing standards that the Auditor-General applies, or intends to apply, to the conduct of 
audits and inquiries, and the provision of other auditing services, under this Part. 

 
(2) A report under subsection (1) must be prepared at least once every 3 years. 

 

(3) If requested to do so by any person, the Auditor-General must supply a copy of any report 
under subsection (1) to that person on payment by that person of a reasonable fee 
determined by the Auditor-General. 

 
(4) In each annual report prepared under section 37, the Auditor-General must include a 

description of any significant changes made to the auditing standards during the year 
covered by that annual report. 

 
Current practice: 
The report on the results of an inquiry is not subject to any specific requirements as to form and content. 
 

Type of 
conclusion:  
($) 
(AI) 
 

Reporting: 
Ç 
 

Intended users of the reporting 

 
- General public 

 
- House of Representatives 

 

Intended 
users:  
Ge 
Pa 
Go 
 



- Minister 
 

- Committees  
 

Assignment 4: Other auditing services 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
 

Section 17, The Public Audit Act 2001 
 
The Auditor-General may, with the agreement of a public entity, perform for that entity any services of a kind that it 
is reasonable and appropriate for an auditor to perform 
 
Current practice: 

The Auditor-General’s auditing standards, which incorporate the New Zealand Auditing Standards 
apply to the extent that they are relevant to the particular work being undertaken. For example, if the 
work being carried out is not in the nature of an audit, but includes dimensions that are covered by 
particular standards, then those standards will be applied where they are relevant and appropriate.   
 

  Scope:  
Po 
 

Conditions: 
Neg 
 
Other 
auditors: 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
 
..any services of a kind that it is reasonable and appropriate for an auditor to perform. 
 
Current practice: 
The Office of the Auditor-General determines the criteria specifically to be consistent with the objective of the 
auditing service.   
 

Branch of 
auditing:  
C 
Z 
 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
P 
 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
  

The Public Audit Act 2001 
Reports to House of Representatives 
 
20… the Auditor-General must report at least once every calendar year to the House of 
Representatives on matters arising out of the performance and exercise of the Auditor-General's 
functions, duties, and powers. 

21 Reports to Minister, committees, etc 

The Auditor-General may report to a Minister, a committee of the House of Representatives, a public entity, or any 
person on any matter arising out of the performance and exercise of the Auditor-General's functions, duties, and 
powers that the Auditor-General considers it desirable to report on. 

 
23   Publication of auditing standards 
(1) The Auditor-General must publish, by way of a report to the House of Representatives, the auditing 
standards that the Auditor-General applies, or intends to apply, to the conduct of audits and inquiries, 
and the provision of other auditing services, under this Part. 
 
  (2) A report under subsection (1) must be prepared at least once every 3 years. 
 
  (3) If requested to do so by any person, the Auditor-General must supply a copy of any report under 
subsection     
  (1) to that person on payment by that person of a reasonable fee determined by the Auditor-General. 
 
  (4) In each annual report prepared under section 37, the Auditor-General must include a description 
of any significant changes made to the auditing standards during the year covered by that annual 
report. 
 
Current practice: 
The Auditor-General’s auditing standards, which incorporate the New Zealand Auditing Standards apply to the 
extent that they are relevant to the report on the particular work being undertaken. 
 

Type of 
conclusion:  
($) 
 

Reporting: 
Ç 

Intended users of the reporting 
Leadership of audited entity 
 

Intended 
users:  
O 
 

Assignment 5: Appropriation Audit and Controller Function 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 

 
Section 14, The Public Audit Act 2001 
 (2) In the case of an audit of a department (within the meaning of section 2(1) of the Public Finance 
Act 1989) or an Office of Parliament, the Auditor-General must also audit the appropriations 
administered by the department or Office. 
 
Current practice: 

The Auditor-General’s auditing standards, which incorporate the New Zealand Auditing Standards 
apply. 

  Scope:  
Nt 
Nr 
Nb 
 

Conditions: 
 Fix 
 
Other 
auditors: 



The Public Finance Act 1989 

65Y Treasury must report on all expenses and capital expenditure incurred with or without 
appropriation or other statutory authority 
(1) The Treasury must, within the time required under subsection (3), prepare and submit to the 
Auditor-General a report that sets out— 
  (a) all actual expenses and capital expenditure incurred against an appropriation, or other authority, 
by or under an Act; and 
  (b) all actual expenses and capital expenditure incurred in excess of, or without, an appropriation, or 
other authority, by or under an Act. 
(2) The report must also set out, for each appropriation, or other authority, by or under an Act, the 
balance between— 
  (a) the amount of expenses and capital expenditure authorised to be incurred; and  
  (b) the amount that was actually incurred. 
(3) The time required is 3 working days after the Treasury receives the information from departments 
that is required for the preparation of the monthly financial statements of the Government reporting 
entity under section 31A. 
(4) To avoid doubt, this section does not limit the powers of the Auditor-General, under Part 4 of the 
Public Audit Act 2001, to access information from a public entity or any person. 
(5) In this section, a reference to authority includes a reference to an authority in advance of an 
appropriation. 
(6) In this section and sections 65Z and 65ZA, a reference to the Auditor-General is a reference to the 
Auditor-General in his or her capacity as Controller and Auditor- General. 
 
 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 

 
Subject 
 
the appropriations administered by the department or office.  
  
Treasury monthly reports. 
 
Current practice: 
 

Criteria 

The Treasury Instructions and the Public Finance Act 1989 sets out the key requirements in relation to 
appropriations.  
 
Further guidance is provided in  the Auditor-General’s statements and additional auditing standards  
as follows: 
 
AG-2:The Appropriation Audit and the Controller Function 
 
AG-208: Consideration of Laws and Regulations in an Audit; 
 
AG-2 paragraph 3.1 requires Appointed Auditors to ensure the following broad audit objectives are 
met: 
 

To complete the audit as required by section 15(2) of the Public Audit Act 2001; 
 
To assess whether the Department has appropriate accountability structures and processes, including 
control systems and procedures, to enable effective monitoring of expenditure against appropriation or 
other statutory authority, and to provide assurance that the Public Finance Act 1989 and any other 
legislation relating to appropriations have been complied with; and  
 
To provide reasonable assurance that expenses and capital expenditure are incurred only as 
expressly authorized by an appropriation or other statutory authority, and that public money is spent 
only as expressly authorised by or under an Act. 
 

Branch of 
auditing:  
C 
 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
P 
R 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
  

The Public Audit Act 2001 
 
Reports to House of Representatives 
20 … the Auditor-General must report at least once every calendar year to the House of 
Representatives on matters arising out of the performance and exercise of the Auditor-General's 
functions, duties, and powers. 
 
21 Reports to Minister, committees, etc 
The Auditor-General may report to a Minister, a committee of the House of Representatives, a public 
entity, or any person on any matter arising out of the performance and exercise of the Auditor-
General's functions, duties, and powers that the Auditor-General considers it desirable to report on. 
 

23   Publication of auditing standards 

Type of 
conclusion:  
$ 
 

Reporting: 
Y 



(1) The Auditor-General must publish, by way of a report to the House of Representatives, the 
auditing standards that the Auditor-General applies, or intends to apply, to the conduct of 
audits and inquiries, and the provision of other auditing services, under this Part. 

(2) A report under subsection (1) must be prepared at least once every 3 years. 
(3) If requested to do so by any person, the Auditor-General must supply a copy of any report 

under subsection (1) to that person on payment by that person of a reasonable fee 
determined by the Auditor-General. 

(4) In each annual report prepared under section 37, the Auditor-General must include a 
description of any significant changes made to the auditing standards during the year 
covered by that annual report. 

 
Current practice: 

AG-2: The Appropriation Audit and the Controller function provides auditors with guidance on the 
manner in which matters concerning compliance with appropriation requirements should be dealt with 
in the audit report . 
 
The Public Finance Act 1989 
65Z Auditor-General may direct Ministers to report to House of Representatives in cases involving 
unlawful expenses, etc 
 
(1) The Auditor-General may direct a Minister to report to the House of Representatives if the Auditor-
General has reason to believe that expenses or capital expenditure for which that Minister is 
responsible have been incurred for a purpose that— 
  (a) is not lawful; or 
  (b) is not within the scope, amount, or period of any appropriation, or other authority, by or under an 
Act. 
(2) The report must set out the following details: 
  (a) the nature and extent of any alleged breach of the appropriation or other authority that the 
Auditor-General has reason to believe has occurred; and  
  (b) the events that gave rise to the alleged breach; and 
  (c) the remedial action taken or proposed to be taken to correct the breach and prevent its 
recurrence. 
 
65ZA Auditor-General may stop payments out of Bank Accounts 
(1) This section applies if the Auditor-General has reason to believe that any money to be paid out of a 
Crown Bank Account or a Departmental Bank Account may be applied for a purpose that— 
  (a) is not lawful; or 
  (b) is not within the scope, amount, or period of any appropriation, or other authority, by or under an 
Act. 
(2) If this section applies, the Auditor-General may direct the Minister, the Treasury or, as the case 
may be, the department concerned to stop payments out of that Crown Bank Account or Departmental 
Bank Account. 
 

Intended users of the reporting 
 

- General public 
 

- House of Representatives 
 

- Minister 
 

- Committees  
 

Intended 
users:  
Ge 
Pa 
Go 
 

Assignment 6: Audit of Long Term Council Community Plans of local government authorities( 10- year plans of local government 
authorities) 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 

 
Section 15, The Public Audit Act 2001 
(1) The Auditor-General must from time to time audit the financial statements, accounts, and other information that 
a public entity is required to have audited 
 
Current practice: 

The Auditor-General’s auditing standards, which incorporate the New Zealand Auditing Standards 
apply. 
Local Government Act 2002 

84 (4) A statement of proposal to which subsection (1) or subsection (2) applies must also contain a 
report from the local authority's auditor on— 
  (a) the extent to which the statement complies with the requirements of this Act; and 
  (b) the quality of the information and assumptions underlying the forecast information provided in the 
statement; and 
  (c) the extent to which the forecast information and proposed performance measures will provide an 
appropriate framework for the meaningful assessment of the actual levels of service provision. 
(5) For the avoidance of doubt, the report under subsection (4) must not comment on the merits of any 
policy content of the statement. 

  Scope:  
Lp 
Lr 
 

Conditions: 
 Fix 
 
Other 
auditors: 



94 Audit of long-term council community plan 
(1) The long-term council community plan must contain a report from the local authority's auditor on— 
  (a) the extent to which the local authority has complied with the requirements of this Act in respect of 
the plan; and 
  (b) the quality of the information and assumptions underlying the forecast information provided in the 
plan; and 
  (c) the extent to which the forecast information and performance measures provide an appropriate framework for 
the meaningful assessment of the actual levels of service provision. 
 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
 

…other information that a public entity is required to have audited: 
 
Long Term Council Community Plans (LTCCPs) of local government authorities 
 
Current practice: 

Local Government Act 2002 

93 Long-term council community plan 
(1) A local authority must, at all times, have a long-term council community plan under this section. 
(2) A local authority must use the special consultative procedure in adopting a long-term council 
community plan. 
(3) A long-term council community plan must be adopted before the commencement of the first year to 
which it relates, and continues in force until the close of the third consecutive year to which it relates. 
(4) A local authority may amend a long-term council community plan at any time. 
(5) A local authority must use the special consultative procedure in making any amendment to a long-
term council community plan. 
(6) The purpose of a long-term council community plan is to— 
  (a) describe the activities of the local authority; and 
(b) describe the community outcomes of the local authority's district or region; and 
  (c) provide integrated decision-making and co-ordination of the resources of the local authority; and 
  (d) provide a long-term focus for the decisions and activities of the local authority; and  
  (e) provide a basis for accountability of the local authority to the community; and 
  (f) provide an opportunity for participation by the public in decision-making processes on activities to 
be undertaken by the local authority.  
(7) A long-term council community plan adopted under this section must— 
  (a) cover a period of not less than 10 consecutive financial years; and 
  (b) include the information required by Part 1 of Schedule 10. 
 
Further guidance is provided in  the Auditor-General’s statements and additional auditing standards 
 

Branch of 
auditing:  
P 
C 
F 
 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
R 
P 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
  

The Public Audit Act 2001 
Reports to House of Representatives 
20 … the Auditor-General must report at least once every calendar year to the House of 
Representatives on matters arising out of the performance and exercise of the Auditor-General's 
functions, duties, and powers. 
 
21 Reports to Minister, committees, etc 
The Auditor-General may report to a Minister, a committee of the House of Representatives, a public 
entity, or any person on any matter arising out of the performance and exercise of the Auditor-
General's functions, duties, and powers that the Auditor-General considers it desirable to report on. 
 
22   Publication of auditing standards 
  (1) The Auditor-General must publish, by way of a report to the House of Representatives, the 
auditing standards that the Auditor-General applies, or intends to apply, to the conduct of audits and 
inquiries, and the provision of other auditing services, under this Part. 
  (2) A report under subsection (1) must be prepared at least once every 3 years. 
  (3) If requested to do so by any person, the Auditor-General must supply a copy of any report under 
subsection    (1) to that person on payment by that person of a reasonable fee determined by the 
Auditor-General. 
  (4) In each annual report prepared under section 37, the Auditor-General must include a description of any 
significant changes made to the auditing standards during the year covered by that annual report. 
 
Current practice: 

Local Government Act 2002 

94(1) The long-term council community plan must contain a report from the local authority's auditor 
on— 
  (a) the extent to which the local authority has complied with the requirements of this Act in respect of 
the plan; and  
  (b) the quality of the information and assumptions underlying the forecast information provided in the 
plan; and  
  (c) the extent to which the forecast information and performance measures provide an appropriate 
framework for the meaningful assessment of the actual levels of service provision 

Type of 
conclusion:  
$ 
(rA) 
 
 

Reporting: 
(Y) 



Example of an unqualified LTCCP opinion is as follows: 
Opinion  
 

Overall Opinion 
In our opinion the LTCCP of [Council type] incorporating volumes [...] to [...] dated [date] provides a 
reasonable basis for long-term integrated decision-making by the [Council type] and for participation in 
decision-making by the public and subsequent accountability to the community about the activities of 
the [Council type]. 
In forming our overall opinion, we considered the specific matters outlined in section 94(1) of the Act 
which we report on as follows.  
Opinion on Specific Matters Required by the Act 

In our view : 
- the [Council type] has complied with the requirements of the Act in all material respects 

demonstrating good practice for a council of its size and scale within the context of its 
environment; 

- the underlying information and assumptions used to prepare the LTCCP provide a 
reasonable and supportable basis for the preparation of the forecast information; and 

- the extent to which the forecast information and performance measures within the LTCCP 
provide an appropriate framework for the meaningful assessment of the actual levels of 
service provision, reflects good practice for a council of its size and scale within the context 
of its environment. 

 
Actual results are likely to be different from the forecast information since anticipated events frequently 
do not occur as expected and the variation may be material. Accordingly, we express no opinion as to 
whether the forecasts will be achieved. 
 

Intended users of the reporting 

 
- General public 
- House of Representatives 
- Minister 
- Committees  

 

Intended 
users:  
Ge 
Pa 
Go 
 

Assignment 7: Other Work  ( Administration of the Local Authorities ( Members‟ Interests) Act 1968 ) 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
- 
 
Current practice: 

Local Authorities (Members‟ Interests) Act 1968 

The role of the Auditor-General under the Act includes 
- deciding applications for approval of contracts worth more than $25,000 in a financial 

year;(section 3) 
- deciding applications for exemptions or declarations from the rule against members 

discussing and voting where they have a pecuniary interest (section 6)  
- providing guidance to local authority members and officers, to help them comply with the Act 

in particular situations ;and 
- investigating and prosecuting alleged offences against the Act ( section 8).  

The Auditor-General’s auditing standards, which incorporate the New Zealand Auditing Standards 
apply to the extent that they are relevant to the particular work being undertaken. For example, if the 
work being carried out is not in the nature of an audit, but includes dimensions that are covered by 
particular standards, then those standards will be applied where they are relevant and appropriate.   
 

  Scope:  
L 
 

Conditions: 
 Fix 
 
Other 
auditors: 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
- 
Current practice: 

The Local Authorities (Members’ Interests) Act 1968 sets out the key requirements.  
Further guidance is provided in the good practice guide  ― Guidance for members of local authorities about the law 
on conflicts of interest‖ published in June 2007 under section21 of the Public Audit Act.   
 

Branch of 
auditing:  
C 
 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
P 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
 - 
 
Current practice: 

Non-assurance work.  
Reports are not subject to any specific requirements as to form and content. 
When an investigation does not result in a decision to prosecute, the Office may, in appropriate cases, make a brief 
public statement about its investigation against alleged offences of the Act. The Office may also inform the 
authority of its findings. 
 

Type of 
conclusion:  
AI 
 

Reporting: 
Ç 
 

Intended users of the reporting 
- 

Intended 
users:  
Ge 
O 
 



Country: Papua New Guinea 
Assignment 1: Audits of public accounts 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
 
The Constitution of the Independent State of Papua New Guinea. 
(The Constitution is supported by Organic Law and the Audit Act 1989) 
 
Section 214 of the Constitution 
 
Functions of the Auditor-General. 
(1) The primary functions of the Auditor-General are to inspect and audit, and to report at least once in every fiscal 
year (as provided by an Act of the Parliament) to the Parliament on the public accounts of Papua New Guinea, and 
on the control of and on transactions with or concerning the public moneys and property of Papua New Guinea, 
and such other functions as are prescribed by or under a Constitutional Law. 
 
Audit Act 1989 
 
The Audit Act provides for financial reports but with scope to audit and report more widely if considered necessary 
by Auditor-General. 
Part II (section 3 (1)),(2), and (3) duplicates the Constitution for the audit of the Public Accounts  
 
Subject to Section 214 of the Constitution, the Auditor-  
 
General shall, in such manner and at such times as he thinks proper, inspect and audit all accounts that relate 
directly or indirectly to— 
  (a) the collection, receipt, expenditure or issue of public moneys; or 
  (b) the receipt, custody, disposal, issue or use of stores or other property of the State. 
 
Current practice: 
The Constitution is supported by the by Organic Las and the Audit Act 1989 
 
The Public Account audit is conducted in accordance with International Standards of Auditing (ISAs) 
 

  Scope:  
Pa 
Pr 
 

Conditions: 
(Fix) 
Dis 
 
Other 
auditors: 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
 
Section 214 of the Constitution; 
Subject 
 (1)…. the public accounts of Papua New Guinea 
The Audit Act 1989 
Subject 
audit all accounts that relate directly or indirectly to— 
  (a) the collection, receipt, expenditure or issue of public moneys; or 
  (b) the receipt, custody, disposal, issue or use of stores or other property of the State. 
Criteria 
 
The Auditor-General shall take such action as he thinks necessary to satisfy himself that— 
  (a) all accounts referred to in Subsection (4 )of the Audit Act) have been reasonably kept; and 
  (b) all reasonable precautions have been taken to safeguard the collection and custody of public moneys, and 
that all applicable laws, directions and instructions have been duly observed and provide an effective check of the 
assessment and collection of the revenue; and 
  (c) all expenditure of public moneys has been properly authorized and applied to the purposes for which they 
were appropriated; and 
  (d) all such expenditure has been properly accounted for; and 
  (e) all such expenditure has been made with due regard to economy and the avoidance of waste and 
extravagance; and 
  (f) all reasonable precautions have been taken to safeguard the receipt, custody, disposal, issue and proper use 
of stores and other property of the State; and 
  (g) all applicable laws, directions and instructions have been duly observed; and 
  (h) the functions performed by, and the operations carried out by the relevant body, are being carried out in an 
economical, efficient and effective manner; and 
  (i)the procedures that are followed by the relevant body for reviewing operations carried on by the body are 
adequate to assess the extent to which those procedures are being carried on in an economical, efficient and 
effective manner. 
 
Current practice: 
Subject 
The public accounts 
 

Branch of 
auditing:  
F 
C 
P 
 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
P 
O 
R 
 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
 
 Section 214 of the Constitution 
 
  
(3) Notwithstanding that other provision for inspection or audit is made as provided for by Subsection (2), the 
Auditor-General may, if he thinks it proper to do so, inspect and audit, and report to the Parliament on, any 
accounts, finances or property of an institution referred to in that subsection, insofar as they relate to, or consist of 
or are derived from, public moneys or property of Papua New Guinea. 
 
(4) An Act of the Parliament may expand, and may provide in more detail for, the functions of the Auditor-General 
under Subsections (1), (2) and (3), and may confer on the Auditor-General additional functions and duties not 
inconsistent with the performance of the functions and duties conferred and imposed by those subsections. 
 

Type of 
conclusion:  
(A) 
 
>AI 
 
 

Reporting: 
Y 
Ç 



Audit Act 1989 
 
5. Power to prosecute. 

(1) Where the Auditor-General is satisfied that a person, to whom the provisions relating to audit contained 
in the Constitutional Laws and this Act apply, is guilty of misappropriation, misuse or fraud of public 
money, stores or property he shall refer the matter, together with a statement of the reasons for being so 
satisfied, to the Public Prosecutor. 

(2) Where a matter has been referred to the Public Prosecutor under Subsection (1) and the Public 
Prosecutor has failed to proceed with the matter after 60 days, the Auditor- General may prosecute the 
person who in his opinion is guilty of misappropriation of public monies. 

 
Current practice: 
The audit of the Public Accounts provides an opinion on the Public Accounts which represent the financial 
statements of the Government of Papua New Guinea 
 
A report is tabled in the Parliament once a year. 
 

Intended users of the reporting 
 

- Parliament (including PAC) 
- Ministers and National  
- Executive Council 
- General Public 
- Government entities 

 
Current practice: 

- Parliament (including PAC) 
- Responsible Ministers  
- General Public 
- Government entities 

 

Intended 
users:  
Pa 
Go 
Ge 

Assignment 2: Audits of National Government Departments 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
 
Section 214 of the Constitution 
 
(2) Unless other provision is made by law in respect of the inspection and audit of them, Subsection (1) extends to 
the accounts, finances and property of— (a) all arms, departments, agencies and instrumentalities of the National 
Government; 
 
 
Audit Act 1989 
 
Subject to Section 214 of the Constitution, the Auditor-General shall, in such manner and at such times as he 
thinks proper, inspect and audit all accounts that relate directly or indirectly to— 

(a) the collection, receipt, expenditure or issue of public moneys; or 
(b) the receipt, custody, disposal, issue or use of stores or other property of the State. 

 
Current practice: 

- Departmental audits of accounts and records and governance regimes in place. 
- Departments are not required to produce financial statements 

 

  Scope:  
No 
 

Conditions: 
Dis 
 
Other 
auditors: 
EA 
 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
 
Section 214 of the Constitution 
Subject 
(2) the accounts, finances and property of— 
  (a)all arms, departments, agencies and instrumentalities of the 
National Government; 
Part II Section 3 Subsections 4 and 5 of the Audit Act 1989 amplify the terms of the Constitution for audits of 
National Government Departments 
 
Subject 
... all accounts that relate directly or indirectly to— 
  (a) the collection, receipt, expenditure or issue of public moneys; or 
  (b) the receipt, custody, disposal, issue or use of stores or other property of the State. 
Criteria 
The Auditor-General shall take such action as he thinks necessary to satisfy himself that— 
  (a) all accounts referred to in Subsection (4) have been reasonably kept; and 
  (b) all reasonable precautions have been taken to safeguard the collection and custody of public moneys, and 
that all applicable laws, directions and instructions have been duly observed and provide an effective check of the 
assessment and collection of the revenue; and 
  (c) all expenditure of public moneys has been properly authorized and applied to the purposes for which they 
were appropriated; and 
  (d) all such expenditure has been properly accounted for; and 
  (e) all such expenditure has been made with due regard to economy and the avoidance of waste and 
extravagance; and 
  (f) all reasonable precautions have been taken to safeguard the receipt, custody, disposal, issue and proper use 
of stores and other property of the State; and 
  (g) all applicable laws, directions and instructions have been duly observed; and 
  (h) the functions performed by, and the operations carried out by the relevant body, are being carried out in an 

Branch of 
auditing:  
F 
C 
P 
 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
P 
O 
 



economical, efficient and effective manner; and 
  (i)the procedures that are followed by the relevant body for reviewing operations carried on by the body are 
adequate to assess the extent to which those procedures are being carried on in an economical, efficient and 
effective manner. 
 
Current practice: 
Management of accounts and records, and internal control structures. 
 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
  
Section 214 of the Constitution 
  
(3) Notwithstanding that other provision for inspection or audit is made as provided for by Subsection  
 
(2), the Auditor-General may, if he thinks it proper to do so, inspect and audit, and report to the Parliament on, any 
accounts, finances or property of an institution referred to in that subsection, insofar as they relate to, or consist of 
or are derived from, public moneys or property of Papua New Guinea. 
 
Current practice: 
The Department of Finance centrally consolidates the annual accounts of Departments, which provide the basis for 
information in the Public Accounts 
 

Type of 
conclusion:  
 

Reporting: 
Y 
Ç 

Intended users of the reporting 
- Parliament (including PAC) 

 
- Responsible Ministers  

 
- General Public 

 
- Government entities 

 

Intended 
users:  
Pa 
Go 
Ge 
 

Assignment 3: Audits of Provincial Government 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
 
Organic law on Provincial Governments and Local Level Governments 
Provincial Audit Services 
(1) The Auditor-General, may, in accordance with an Act of the Parliament, establish a Provincial Audit Service in a 
province. 
 
(2) The Head of a Provincial Audit Service shall be the Provincial Auditor who shall be appointed by the Auditor-
General. 
 
(3) The Auditor-General shall assign additional auditors and other officers and employees as he considers 
necessary for purposes of adequately carrying out audit functions under this Organic Law and in accordance with 
an Act of the Parliament. 
 
(4) The functions of the Provincial Audit Service are to– 
    (a) maintain an effective and efficient audit service within a province; and  
    (b) extend the provisions of Section 214 (functions of the Auditor-General) of the Constitution, and of any Act of 
the Parliament relating to the inspection and audit of the accounts of governmental bodies including commercial 
statutory authorities in Papua New Guinea and of transactions referred to in Section 214(1) of the Constitution; and 
    (c) extend the audits to the accounts, moneys and properties of Provincial Governments and Local-level 
Governments; and 
    (d) carry out performance audit of the officers of the Public Service and members of the Teaching Service and 
other State Services assigned to Provincial Governments and Local-level Governments. 
 
(5) The accounts of Provincial Governments and Local-level Governments are to be audited annually and their 
accounts may be inspected at any time without notice by the Provincial Audit Service. 
 
(6) A Provincial Auditor may take such action as he thinks necessary to satisfy himself that all the functions and the 
operations carried out by the Provincial Governments and the Local-level Governments are being carried out in an 
efficient and effective manner in accordance with law. 
 
(7) An Act of the Parliament may make further provisions in relation to the functions and the duties of the Provincial 
Audit Service not inconsistent with the functions and duties conferred by the relevant provisions of the Constitution, 
this Organic Law and any other law. 
 
(10) The Auditor-General may prosecute any person or persons for any unlawful acts in connection with the affairs 
of the Provincial Governments and the Local-level Governments concerned. 
Supported by Part V of the Audit Act as follows: 
Control and Audit of Provincial Accounts and Local-level Government Accounts. 
 
(1) The provisions of this Part apply to all Provincial Governments and Local-level Governments, bodies and 
projects specified in 
Subsection (2) notwithstanding any provision to the contrary in any other law and notwithstanding and without 
regard to any options, limitations, conditions, additions or modifications contained in any other law. 
 
(2) Subject to this Part, the provisions of Section 214 (functions of the Auditor-General) of the Constitution 
extended to the accounts, moneys and property of each— 
    (a) Provincial Government; and 
    (b) Local-level Government as specified in Section 26(3) of the Organic Law on Provincial Governments and 

  Scope:  

L 
 

Conditions: 
  
Other 
auditors: 

PAA 
EA 



Local-level Governments; and 
    (c)subsidiary corporation of a Provincial Government; and 
    (d) body established by— 
      (i)a provincial law; or 
      (ii)executive or administrative act of a Provincial Executive Council; and 
    (e)Provincial Government Association; and 
    (f)Provincial Government-owned company; and 
    (g)public project, where the repayment or part repayment of the loan is to be made out of provincial moneys. 
 
(3)The annual report of the Auditor-General on each Provincial Government and 
Local-level Government for a fiscal year shall be prepared by 30 April in the year succeeding and shall be 
submitted to— 
    (a)the Minister responsible for Provincial Government and Local-level Government matters, who shall table it in 
Parliament at its meeting immediately following the receipt by him of the report; and 
    (b) the Minister responsible for finance matters; and 
    (c) the Provincial Government and Local-level Governments concerned; and 
    (d)the National Economic and Fiscal Commission. 
 
(4) The Auditor-General shall, in a report under this section on the financial statements of a Provincial Government 
or Local-level Government, specify—  
    (a) whether the financial statements are based on proper accounts and records; and 
    (b) whether the financial statements are in agreement with the accounts and records and whether they show 
fairly the financial operations for the period which they cover and the state of affairs at the end of that period; and  
    (c) whether the receipt and payment and investment of moneys and the acquisition  
and disposal of assets during the period covered by the financial statements have been in accordance with the 
Public Finances (Management) Act 1995 and the provincial law; and 
    (d) such other matters arising out of the financial statements as the Auditor-General considers should be 
reported. 
(5)The Auditor-General shall, in a report under this section on the financial statements of a relevant body, specify— 
    (a) whether the financial statements are based on proper accounts and records; and 
    (b)whether the financial statements are in agreement with the accounts and records to which they relate and 
whether they show fairly the financial operations for the period which they cover and the state of affairs at the end 
of that period; and 
    (c)whether the receipt and payment and (where appropriate) the investment of moneys and acquisition and 
disposal of assets of the body have been in accordance with its constituent law; and 
    (d)such other matters arising out of the financial statements as the Auditor-General considers should be 
reported. 
 
Current practice: 
International Standards on Auditing 
 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
 
Section 113 of the Organic law 
Subject 
Provincial Governments, and arms, agencies and instrumentalities of Provincial Governments 
Organic law on Provincial Governments and Local Level Governments 
Subject 
(5) The accounts of Provincial Governments and Local-level Governments 
Criteria 
(6) A Provincial Auditor may take such action as he thinks necessary to satisfy himself that all the functions and the 
operations carried out by the Provincial Governments and the Local-level Governments are being carried out in an 
efficient and effective manner in accordance with law 
 
The Audit Act Part V 
Subject 
(2) 
the accounts, moneys and property of each— 
    (a) Provincial Government; and 
    (b) Local-level Government as specified in Section 26(3) of the Organic Law on Provincial Governments and 
Local-level Governments; and 
    (c)subsidiary corporation of a Provincial Government; and 
    (d) body established by— 
(i)a provincial law; or 
(ii)executive or administrative act of a Provincial Executive Council; and 
    (e)Provincial Government Association; and 
    (f)Provincial Government-owned company; and 
    (g)public project, where the repayment or part repayment of the loan is to be made out of provincial moneys. 
 
Criteria 
    (a) whether the financial statements are based on proper accounts and records; and  
    (b) whether the financial statements are in agreement with the accounts and records and whether they show 
fairly the financial operations for the period which they cover and the state of affairs at the end of that period; and 
    (c) whether the receipt and payment and investment of moneys and the acquisition and disposal of assets during 
the period covered by the financial statements have been in accordance with the Public Finances (Management) 
Act 1995 and the provincial law 
 

Branch of 
auditing:  

FCP 
 

Type of 
require-
ments:  

P 
R 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
  
Section 214 of the Constitution 
  

Type of 
conclusion:  

(A) 
(>Cass) 



(3) Notwithstanding that other provision for inspection or audit is made as provided for by Subsection (2), the 
Auditor-General may, if he thinks it proper to do so, inspect and audit, and report to the Parliament on, any 
accounts, finances or property of an institution referred to in that subsection, insofar as they relate to, or consist of 
or are derived from, public moneys or property of Papua New Guinea. 
Part V of the Audit Act: 
 
(3)The annual report of the Auditor-General on each Provincial Government and Local-level Government for a 
fiscal year shall be prepared by 30 April in the year succeeding and shall be submitted to— 
    (a)the Minister responsible for Provincial Government and Local-level Government matters, who shall table it in 
Parliament at its meeting immediately following the receipt by him of the report; and 
    (b) the Minister responsible for finance matters; and 
    (c) the Provincial Government and Local-level Governments concerned; and 
    (d) the National Economic and Fiscal Commission 
 
(4) The Auditor-General shall, in a report under this section on the financial statements of a Provincial Government 
or Local-level Government, specify— 
 
   (a) whether the financial statements are based on proper accounts and records; and 
   (b) whether the financial statements are in agreement with the accounts and records and whether they show 
fairly the financial operations for the period which they cover and the state of affairs at the end of that period; and 
   (c) whether the receipt and payment and investment of moneys and the acquisition and disposal of assets during 
the period covered by the financial statements have been in accordance with the Public Finances (Management) 
Act 1995 and the provincial law; and 
   (d) such other matters arising out of the financial statements as the Auditor-General considers should be 
reported. 
 
(5)The Auditor-General shall, in a report under this section on the financial statements of a relevant body, specify— 
   (a) whether the financial statements are based on proper accounts and records; and 
   (b)whether the financial statements are in agreement with the accounts and records to which they relate and 
whether they show fairly the financial operations for the period which they cover and the state of affairs at the end 
of that period; and 
   (c)whether the receipt and payment and (where appropriate) the investment of moneys and acquisition and 
disposal of assets of the body have been in accordance with its constituent law; and 
   (d)such other matters arising out of the financial statements as the Auditor-General considers should be reported. 
 
Current practice: 
Audit opinions on the financial statements of each Provincial Government issued to the responsible Minister for 
tabling in Parliament. 
A summary report of audit opinions expressed on the financial statements of each Provincial Government is tabled 
in the Parliament annually 
 

 

Reporting: 

(Y) 

Intended users of the reporting 
 

- Parliament (including PAC) 
- Responsible Ministers  
- General Public 
- Government entities 
- National Economic and Fiscal Commission. 

 
Current practice: 

- Parliament (including PAC) 
- Responsible Ministers  
- General Public 
- Government entities 
- National Economic and Fiscal Commission. 

 

Intended 
users:  

Go 
Pa 

Assignment 4: Audits of Public Bodies  
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
 
Section 214 of the Constitution 
Unless other provision is made by law in respect of the inspection and audit of them, Subsection (1) extends to the 
accounts, finances and property of— 
    (b) all bodies set up by an Act of the Parliament, or by executive or administrative act of the National Executive, 
for governmental or official purposes. 
 
The Audit Act 1989 
PART III.—PUBLIC BODIES. 
 
8.Audit. 
(1) The provisions of this section apply to and in respect of all public bodies and subsidiary corporations 
notwithstanding any provision to the contrary in any other law and notwithstanding and without regard to any 
exceptions, limitations, conditions, additions or modifications contained in any other law. 
 
(2) Subject to this section, the Auditor-General shall inspect and audit— 
 
    (a) he accounts and records and financial transactions; and 
    (b)the records relating to the assets and liabilities and assets in the custody,of each public body and shall 
promptly draw the attention of the Minister, and of the Minister responsible for the body to any irregularity disclosed 
by the inspection and audit that is, in the opinion of the Auditor-General, of sufficient importance to justify his so 
doing and shall report to them the results of his inspection and audit of any accounts and records under this section 
in respect of each financial period for which financial statements are prepared. 
 

  Scope:  
O 
 

Conditions: 
 Fix 
 
Other 
auditors: 
(EA) 
 



(3) The Auditor-General may, in his discretion, dispense with the whole or any part of the detailed inspection and 
audit of any accounts and records referred to in Subsection (2) 
 
(4) The Auditor-General may, in his discretion, for the purpose of assisting him in an 
audit and inspection under Subsection (2), employ a registered company auditor who 
shall act under the direction of the Auditor-General and on terms and conditions 
determined by the Auditor-General. 
 
Current practice: 
International Standards on Auditing 
 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
 
Section 214 of the Constitution 
 
Subject 
the accounts, finances and property of— 
((b) all bodies set up by an Act of the Parliament, or by executive or administrative act of the National 
Executive, for governmental or official purposes. 
 
The Audit Act 1989 
Subject  
. 
(2) Subject to this section, the Auditor-General shall inspect and audit— 
    (a)t he accounts and records and financial transactions; and 
    (b)the records relating to the assets and liabilities and assets in the custody,of each public body 
Criteria 
 
4A)A report under Subsection (4) shall specify— 
 
    (a)whether the financial statements, to which the report relates, are based on proper accounts and records; and 
    (b)whether the financial statements, to which the report relates, are in agreement with the accounts and records 
and, in the case of— 
      (i)a public body or subsidiary corporation—declared by its constituent law to be a trading enterprise; or 
      (ii)Government-owned company—empowered by its Articles of Association to trade, 
whether the financial statements to which the report relates show fairly— 
      (iii)the financial operations for the period which they cover; and 
      (iv)the state of affairs at the end of that period. 
 

Branch of 
auditing:  
F 
 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
R 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
  
(4) The Auditor-General shall report, on all financial statements furnished to him under Section 63(4) of the Public 
Finances (Management) Act 1995 by each public body, to— 
    (a)  the Minister; and 
    (b)the Minister responsible for the body. 
 
(4A)A report under Subsection (4) shall specify— 
    (a)whether the financial statements, to which the report relates, are based on proper accounts and records; and 
    (b)whether the financial statements, to which the report relates, are in agreement with the accounts and records 
and, in the case of— 
      (i)a public body or subsidiary corporation—declared by its constituent law to be a trading enterprise; or 
      (ii)Government-owned company—empowered by its Articles of Association to trade, 
whether the financial statements to which the report relates show fairly— 
      (iii)the financial operations for the period which they cover; and 
      (iv)the state of affairs at the end of that period. 
 
Current practice: 
Audits of financial statements are conducted and reported on annually. 
 

Type of 
conclusion:  
A 
 

Reporting: 
Y 
C 
 

Intended users of the reporting 
 
(4) The Auditor-General shall report, on all financial statements furnished to him under Section 63(4) of the Public 
Finances (Management) Act 1995 by each public body, 
to— 
    (a) the Minister; and 
    (b) the Minister responsible for the body.. 
 
Current practice: 

- Parliament (including PAC) 
- Responsible Ministers  
- General Public 
- Government entities 

 

Intended 
users:  
Pa 
(Go) 
Ge 
 

Assignment 5: Miscellaneous provisions 
The scope and conditions of SAI’s audit assignment 
 
The Audit Act 1989 

- Part II Section 3 (3) Notwithstanding that other provision for inspection or audit is made as provided for 
by Subsection (2), the Auditor-General may, if he thinks it proper to do so, inspect and audit, and report 
to the Parliament on, any accounts, finances or property of an institution referred to in that subsection, 
insofar as they relate to, or consist of or are derived from, public moneys or property of Papua New 

  Scope:  
Pf 
 

Conditions: 
Dis 
 
Other 



Guinea. 
- Part II, Section 3(3) of the Audit Act allows the Auditor-General discretion to inspect, audit and report.   
- Part II Section 3(5)(5h) and (5i) enables the Auditor-General to satisfy himself that functions and 

operations performed by bodies are carried out in an economical, efficient and effective manner. 
 

auditors: 
EA 
 

Audit criteria: Branch of auditing and Type of requirements 
 
The Audit Act 1989 
Subject 
..any accounts, finances or property of an institution referred to in that subsection, insofar as they relate to, or 
consist of or are derived from, public moneys or property of Papua New Guinea  
 
Criteria 

- h) the functions performed by, and the operations carried out by the relevant body, are being carried out 
in an economical, efficient and effective manner; and 

- (i)the procedures that are followed by the relevant body for reviewing operations carried on by the body 
are adequate to assess the extent to which those procedures are being carried on in an economical, 
efficient and effective manner. 

 

Branch of 
auditing:  
P 
 

Type of 
require-
ments:  
PO 

Type of conclusion to be reached and reporting 
  
The Audit Act 1989 
 
Part II Section 3 (3) Notwithstanding that other provision for inspection or audit is made as provided for by 
Subsection (2), the Auditor-General may, if he thinks it proper to do so, inspect and audit, and report to the 
Parliament on, any accounts, finances or property of an institution referred to in that subsection, insofar as they 
relate to, or consist of or are derived from, public moneys or property of Papua New Guinea. 
 
Current practice: 
Over the years, the Auditor-General has reported to the Parliament on a number of audits he has conducted on a 
discretionary basis 
 

Type of 
conclusion:  
(Ass) 
AI 
 

Reporting: 
Ç 

Intended users of the reporting 
 

- Parliament (including PAC) 
- Responsible Ministers  
- General Public 
- Government entities 

 

Intended 
users:  
Pa 
Go 
Ge 
D 

 

 


